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OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED OCTOBER 14, 2011

Ratings: Moody’s: “Ana”
Standard & Poor’s: “AAA”
Ficch: “AAA”

(See “OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION - Ratings”)
NEW ISSUE — Book-Entry-Only

In the opinion of McCall, Patkhurst & Horton LL.P., Bond Counsel (“Bond Counsel™), interest on the Seres 2011A Bonds is
excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes under existing law and the Bonds are not ptivate activity bonds.
See “TAX MATTERS — Tax-Exempt Bonds” for a discussion of the opinion of Bond Counsel, including a description of the
alternative minimuem tax consequences for corporations.

$68,285,000
CITY OF AUSTIN, TEXAS
{Travis, Williamson and Hays Counties)
Public Improvement Refunding Bonds, Series 2011A

Dated: October 1, 2011 Due: Septemnber 1, as stated herein

Interest on the City of Austin, Texas $68,285,000 Public Improvement Refunding Bonds, Series 2011A (the “Series 2011A
Bonds”) will accrue from the dated date shown above, will be payable March 1, 2012, and each September 1 and March 1
thereafter until maturity, and will be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30—day months. The City of
Austin, Texas {the “City”) intends to utilize the Book-Entry-Only System of The Depository Trust Company (“IDXTC”), but
reserves the right on its behalf or on the behalf of DTC to discontinue such system. Such Book-Entry-Only System will affect
the method and timing of payment and the method of transfer (see “BOND INFORMATION - Book-Entty-Only System”™).

The Bonds are being issued pursuant to the general laws of the State of Texas, particularly Chapter 1207, Texas Government
Code, as well as a Series 2011A Ordinance (the “Series 2011A Ordinance™) passed by the City Council of the City authorizing the
Series 2011A Bonds (see “BOND INFORMATION - Authotity for Issuance™. The Bonds are direct obligations of the City,
payable from the proceeds of a continuing, direct annual ad valorem tax levied, within the limits preseribed by law, on all taxable

property located within the City, as provided in the Series 2011A Ordinance {see “BOND INFORMATION — Security”).

In the Series 2011A Ordinance, the power to effect the sale of the Series 2011A Bonds was delegated to the City Manager and the
Chief Financial Officer of the City. The authority to execute the sale of refunding bonds, in the aggregate principal amount not to
exceed $125,000,000, expires on March 30, 2012, The issuance of the Seties 2011A Bonds is the first issuance of refunding bonds
under authority of the Series 2011A Ordinance.

Proceeds from the sale of the Seres 2011A Bonds will be used to refund portions of the City’s outstanding general obligation
debt, and to pay certain costs of issuance of the Series 2011A Bonds (see “PLAN OF FINANCING - Purpose of Refunding”
and “APPENDIX D - Summary of Refunded Obligatdons™).

MATURITY SCHEDULE

See “MATURITY SCHEDULE?” Herein

The Series 2011A Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities.

The Series 2011A Bonds are offered for delivery when, as and if issued and accepted by the Underwriters, subject to the
approving opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas and of McCall, Parkhurst & Horton L.L.P., Bond Counsel.
The opinion of Bond Counsel will be printed on or attached to the Series 2011A Bonds {see APPENDIX C — “Forms of Bond

Counsel's Opinions”). Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Underwriters by their counsel, Andrews Kurth LLP,
Austin, Texas.

It is expected that the Seties 2011A Bonds will be delivered through the facilittes of DTC on or about November 2, 2011,

Ramirez & Co., Inc.
Barclays Capital Citigroup Cabrera Capital Markets, LL.C
Morgan Keegan Morgan Stanley Rice Financial Products Company

Siebert Brandford Shank & Co., L. L.C. Southwest Securities



$68,285,000
CITY OF AUSTIN, TEXAS
Public Improvement Refunding Bonds, Setics 2011A

MATURITY SCHEDULE
Base CUSIP No. 052396 (1)
Maturity Principal ~ Interest Ininal CUSIP Maturity Principal  Interest Initial CUSIP
(September 1) Amount Rate Yield Suffix (September 1) Amount Rate Yield Suffix
2012 $15,235,000 2.000% 0.260% K23 2018 $2,180,000 4.000% 2.110% K30
2013 5155000 4.000% 0.550% K31 2019 2,260,000 4.000% 2.420% K98
2014 9,630,000 4.000% 0800% K49 2020 2,345,000 4.500% 2.660% L22
2015 6,535,000 4.000% 1.170% K56 2021 2,425000 4.000% 2.780%  L30
2016 6,755,000 4.250% 1.550% K64 2022 7,140,000 5.000% 2970% 148
2017 6,875,000 5.000% 1.830% K72 2023 1,750,000 5.000% 3.120% L55

{Interest to accrue from the Dated Date)

Coneurrent Isswer . . . The Series 2011A Bonds and the Series 2011B Bonds (collectively, the “Bonds™) are being offered
concurrently by the City under a common Offictal Statement, The Series 2011A Bonds and the Series 2011B Bonds are separate
and distinct securities offerings being issued and sold independently except for this Official Statement, and while they share
certain common attributes, each issue is separate from the other and should be reviewed and analyzed independently, including
without limitation the type of obligation being offered, its terms for payment, the tghts of the City to redeem the Bonds, the
tederal, state or local tax consequences of the purchase, ownership or disposition of the Bands and other features,

(1) CUSIP is a registered trademark of the American Bankers Association. CUSIP data herein is provided by CUSIP Global
Services, managed by Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC on behalf of the American Bankers Association. This data is
not intended to create a database and does not serve in any way as a substitute for the CUSIP services. CUSIP numbers are
provided for convenience of reference only. Neither the City, the Financial Advisor (as defined herein), nor the Underwriters
take any responsibility for the accuracy of such aumbers.

[The remasnder of this page is intentionally kft blank.]



OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED OCTOBER 14, 2011

Ratings: Moody’s: “Aaa”
Standard & Poor’s: “AAA”
Fitrch: “AAANY

{See “OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION - Ratings™)
NEW ISSUE - Book-Entry-Only

In the opinion of McCall, Parkhurst & Horton LI.I%, Bond Counsel (“Bond Counsel™), as of the date of issuance of the Settes
20118 Bonds, the Senes 2011B Bonds are not obligations described in Section 103(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. See
“TAX MATTERS — Taxable Bonds”.

$3,000,000
CITY OF AUSTIN, TEXAS
(Travis, Williamson and Hays Counties)

Pablic Improvement Refunding Bonds,
Taxable Series 2011B

Dated: October 1, 2611 Due: September 1, as stated herein

Interest on the City of Austin, Texas §3,000,000 Public Improvement Refunding Bonds, Sedies 20118 (the “Series 2011B
Bonds”), will accrue from the dated date shown above, will be payvable March 1, 2012, and each September 1 and March 1
thereafter until maturity, and will be calculated on the basis of a 360~day year consisting of twelve 30—day months. The City of
Austin, Texas (the “Ciry™) intends to wtilize the Book-Entry-Only System of The Depository Trust Company (“IDTC), but
reserves the right on its behalf or on the behalf of IY1C to discontinue such system. Such Book-Entry-Only System will affect
the method and timing of payment and the method of transfer {see “BOND INFORMATION - Book-Entry-Only System”).

I'he Bonds are being issued purswant to the general laws of the State of Texas, particularly Chapter 1207, Texas Government
Code, as well as a Serdes 2011B Ordinance (the “Series 20113 Ordinance™) passed by the City Council of the City authorizing the
Bonds {see “BOND INFORMATION - Authonty for Issuance™). The Serics 20118 Bonds are direct obligations of the City,
pavable from the proceeds of a continuing, direct annual ad valorem tax levied, within the imits presenbed by law, on all taxable

property located within the City, as provided in the Senes 20115 Ordinance (sce “BOND INFORMATION — Security™).

In the Series 2011B Otrdinance, the power to effect the sale of the Series 2011B Bonds was delegated to the City Manager and the
Chief Financial Officer of the City. The authomnty to execute the sale of refunding bonds, in the aggregate principal amount not to
exceed §3,500,000, expires on March 30, 2012,

Proceeds from the sale of the Series 2011B Bonds will be used to refund pottions of the City’s outstanding general obligation
debt, and to pay certain costs of issuance of the Senes 20118 Bonds (sec “PLAN OF FINANCING — Purpose of Refunding”
and “APPENDIX D — Summary of Refunded Obligations™).

MATURITY SCHEDULE
“See “MATURITY SCHEDULE Heein

The Serics 2011B Bonds are not subject to tedemption pror to their stated matunties.

"The Series 2011B Bonds are offered for delivery when, as and if issued and accepted by the Underwnters, subject to the
approving opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas and of McCall, Parkhurst & Horton LL.P., Bond Counsel.
The opinion of Bond Counsel will be printed on ot attached to the Series 20118 Bonds (sce APPENDIX C ~ “Forms of Bond
Counsel’s Opinions™). Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Underwriter by its counsel, Andrews Kurth LLP, Austin,
Texas.

It is expected that the Series 20118 Bonds will be delivered through the facilities of IDTC on or about November 2, 2011,

Ramirez & Co., Inc.



$3,000,000
CITY OF AUSTIN, TEXAS
Public Improvement Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2011B

MATURITY SCHEDULE
Base CUSIP No. 052396 (1)
Matunty Prncipal  Inrerest  Initral CUSIP Matuatity Principal  Intercst Initial CUSIP
(September 1) Amount Rate Yield Suffix {September 1) Amount Rate Yield Suffix
2012 $620,000  0.440°% 0.440% 163 2015 $740,000  1.510% 1.510%  1.97
2013 655,000  0.810% 0.810% L7 2016 290,000  1.860% 1.860% A2
2014 695,000  1.190% 1.190% 1.89

(Interest ro accrue from the Dated Date)

Congurrent Issues . . . The Series 2011\ Bonds and the Sertes 2011B Bonds (collectively, the “Bonds™) are being offered
concurrently by the City under a common Official Statement. The Series 20114 Bonds and the Serics 2011B Bonds are separate
and distinct secunties offerings being issued and sold independently except for this Official Statement, and while they share
certain common attributes, each issuc is separate from the other and should be reviewed and analyzed independently, including
without limitation the type of obligation being offered, its terms for payment, the rights of the City to redeem the Bonds, the
federal, state or local tax consequences of the purchase, ownership or disposition of the Bonds and other fearures.

(1) CUSIP is a regstered trademark of the Amencan Bankers Association. CUSIP data herein is provided by CUSIP Global
Services, managed by Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC on behalf of the .\merican Bankers Association. This data is
not intended to creale a database and does not serve in any way as a substitute for the CUSIP services. CUSIP numbets are
provided for convenience of reference only. Neither the City, the Financial Advisor (as defined herein), nor the Underwriters
take any responsibity for the accuracy of such numbers.

[The remainder of this page is tntentionally left blank.|



No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized by the City or by the Underwriters to give any
information or to make any representations, other than as contained in this Offtcial Statement, and if given or made
such other information or represcntations muse not be relied upon as having been authorized by the City or the
Underwriters. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitition of an offer to buy, nor shall
there be any sale of, the Bonds, by any person in any jurtsdiction in which 1t 1s unlawful for such person to make such
offer, solicitation or sale.

This Official Statement is submitted in connection with the sale of sccurities referred to hetein and may not be
reproduced or uscd for any other purpose. In no instance may this Official Statement be reproduced or used in part.

TIIE BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDLER THL SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED,
NOR HAVE THE ORDINANCES BUEN QUALIFIED UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939 IN
RELIANCE ON EXEMPTIONS CONTAINED IN SUCH ACTS.

The informanon set forth herein has been furnished by the City and includes information obtamned from other sources
which are helieved to be reliable, but is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness by, and is not to be construed as a
representation by, the Underwnters. The information and expressions of the opinion contained hercin are subject 16
change without notice and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any
circumnstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the City or the other matters
described hetein since the date hercof. CUSIP numbers have been assigoed to this issuc by the CUSIP Global Services
for the convenience of the owners of the Bonds.

This Official Statement includes desciptions and summanes of certain events, matters, and documents.  Such
descriptions and summardes do not purport to be complete and all such descriptions, sumnmaries and references thereto
arc qualified in their entdrety by reference to this Official Statement in its entirety and to each such document, copies of
which may be obtained from the Ciry or from Public Financial Management, Inc., the Financial Advisor to the Ciry.
Any statements made in this Official Starement or the Appendices hereto involving matters of opinion or estimates,
whether or not so expressly stated, are sct forth as such and not as representations of fact, and no representation 1s made
that any of such opinions or estimates will be realized.

IN CONNECTION WITH THI. OFFUERING OF 'THIL BONDS I'HE UNDERWRITERS MAY OVER ALLOYT
OR EFFECT "TRANSACTIONS THAT STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THL BONDS
AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THIE, OPUEN MARKET. SUCH
STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME.

THE UNDERWRITERS HAVLE PROVIDED 'ITIE FOLLOWING SENTENCE FOR INCLUSION IN THIS
OFFICIAL STATEMENT. THE UNDERWRITERS HAVE REVIEWED THE INFORMATION IN THIS
OFFICIAL STATEMENT IN ACCORDANCE WTI'1T{ THEIR RESPONSIBILITIES TO INVESTORS UNDER
THE FEDERAL SECURITIES LAWS AS APPLIED TO THE FACTS AND CIRCUMSTANCES OF THIS
TRANSACTION, BUT THE UNDERWRITERS DO NOT GUARANTEE THE ACCURACY OR
COMPLETENLSS OIF SUCH INFORMATION.
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SELECTED DATA FROM THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT

The selected data on this page 1s subject in all respects to the mote complete mmformation and definittons contained or
incorporated in this Official Statement. The offering of the Bonds to potential investors is made only by means of this
entire Official Statement. No person is authonzed to detach this data page from this Official Statcment or to otherwise
use it without the entire Official Statement.

The Issuet.....ooooocccecneccorccce. The City of Austing Texas (the “City™), is a political subdivision located in
Travis, Williamson and Hays Counties, operating as a home—tule city under the
laws of the State of Texas and a charter approved by the voters in 1953, as
amended. The City operates under the Council/Manager form of government
where the mayor and six councilmembers are elected for staggered three-year
terms. The City Council formulates operating policy for the City while the City
Manager is the chief administrative officer.

‘The City 15 apptroximately 306 square miles in area (sce APPENDIX A -
“General Information Regarding the City™).

The Seties 2011A Bonds............ The Sercs 2011A Bonds are being issued in the principal amount of
$68,285,000, pursuant to the general laws of the State of Texas, particularly
Chapter 1207, Texas Government Code, and an ordinance (the “Senies 20114
Oxdinance™) passed by the Ciy Councl of the City (see “BOND
INFORMATION — Authority for Issuance™).

The Series 2011B Bonds.............. The Series 20113 Bonds are being issued in the principal amount of §3,000,000,
pursuant to the general laws of the State of Texas, pasticulatly Chapter 1207,
Texas Government Code, and an ordinance (the “Sertes 2011B Ordinance™)
passed by the City Council of the City (see “BOND INFORMATION —
Authority for Issuance™). The Senes 2011.A Bonds and the Sertes 20118 Bonds
are referred to collectively as the “Bonds™.

SeCHuLitY .o The Bonds constitutes a direct obligation of the City, payable from a continuing
ad valorem tax levied, within the limits prescribed by law, on taxable property
within the City in an amount sufficient to provide for payment of principal of
and interest on all ad valorem tax debt.

Redemption ... The Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities.

Tax Exemption..........cccoceccsvneee.. In the opinion of Bond Counsel, the interest on the Senmes 20114 Bonds 1s
excludable from gross mcome for federal income tax purposes under existing
law and the Bonds will not constitute pavate activity bonds.  See “TAX
MATTERS — Tax Exempt Bonds” for a discussion of the opinion of Bond
Counsel including the alternative minimum tax consequences for corpotations.

In the opinton of Bond Counsel, as of the date of issnance of the Series 20113
Bonds, the Serics 2011B Bonds are not obligations described in section 103(a)
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. See “TAX MATTERS — Taxable
Bonds”.

Payment Record ............conseee.. The City has not defaulted since 1900 when all bonds were refunded at par with
a voluntary reduction in interest rates.



Selected Issuer Indices

Ratio of Net

Fiscal Per Capita Funded Tax
Year  Estimated Taxable (000r's) Per Capita Debt to % of

Ended City Taxable Assessed Assessed Net Funded Net Funded Taxable Tax
9-30  Population (1) Valuation Valuation Tax Debt (2} Tax Debt Valuation Collection
2003 674,719 $50,759,650,668 $ 75,230.80 § 896,011 $1,327.98 1.77% 99.60%
2004 683,551 48,964,275,008 71,632.22 955,156 1,397.34 1.95% 98.90%
2005 695,881 49,702,906,522 71,424.43 933,180 1,341.01 1.88% 99.60%
2006 714,237 52,349,642,297 73,294.50 943,312 1,320.73 1.80% 100.32%
2007 732,381 60,512,328,889 82,624.11 869,974 1,187.87 1.44% 100.20%
2008 746,105 68,736,790,926 92,127.50 907,667 1,216.54 1.32% 99.56%
2009 770,296 76,752,007,737 99,639.03 1,065,565 1,383.32 1.39% 100.63%
2010 778,560 80,960,540,976 103,987.54 1,002,186 1,287.23 1.24% 99.93%
2011 799,578 77,097,148,556 96,422.30 923,013 1,154.37 1.20% 99.91% (3)
2012 813,776 80,089,291,854 (4) 08,416.88 1,019,922 (3) 1,253.32 (5) 1.27% (4) N/A

(1) Source: City of Austin Department of Planning and Devclopment based on full purpose atea as of September 30.

(2) Excludes general obligation debt issued for enterprise funds and general fund departments which transfer-in from
Operating Budget.

(3) FEstimated collections as of June 30, 2011 bascd on the July 2010 Certified Tax Roll tax levy.

(4) Certified taxable value for the 2011 tax year.

{5 Projected. Includes the Bonds; exciudes the Refunded Obligations. Includes the Public Improvement Bonds,
Sertes 2011A; Pubhlc Improvement Bonds, Taxable Series 2011B; Certificates of Obligation, Series 2011; and
Public Property Finance Contractual Obligations, Series 2011 which were sold on August 25, 2011 and delivered
on October 4, 2011. See “DEBT INFORMATION™,

[Vhe remainder of this page is infentionally feft blank.]

xi



OFFICIAL STATEMENT

Relating to

CITY OF AUSTIN, TEXAS

$68,285,000
Public Improvement Refunding Bonds, Series 2011A

$3,000,000
Public Improvement Refunding Bonds, Taxable Secies 2011B

INTRODUCTION

This Official Statement, which includes the summary statement and the appendices hercto, provides certain information
regarding the issuance by the City of Austin, Texas (the “City”™) of its $68,285,00¢ Public Improvement Refunding
Bonds, Series 2011A (the “Series 2011A Bonds™) and $3,000,000 Public Improvement Refunding Bonds, Taxable Senes
20118 (the “Series 2011B Bonds”, and collectively with the Series 2011\ Bonds, the “Bonds”). Capitalized terms used
in this Official Statement have the same meanings assigned to such terms in the ordinances authorizing the issuance of
the Bonds adopted by the City Council of the City on August 25, 2011 (the “Series 2011A Ordinance™ and the “Series
2011B Ordinance”, respectively, and collectively the “Ordinances™), except as otherwise indicated herein. In accordance
with the terms of the Ordinances, the City Council authorized the City Manager and the Chief Financial Officer of the
City to effect the sale of the Bonds. The Ordinances designate certain outstanding obligations of the City as eligible to
be refunded. Through the issuance of the Bonds, most, but nor all, of the obligations designared in the Ordinances shall
be refunded. The authortty delegated to the City Manager and the Chicf Financial Officer of the City permits the
issuance of up to $125,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of refunding bonds under the Sentes 2011A Ordinance and
$3,500,000 in aggregate principal amount of refunding bonds under the Series 20118 Ordinance. The Bonds represent
the fest issnances of bonds under authorty of the Ordinances. The authonty 1o 1ssue refunding bonds by the terms of
the Ordinances expires on March 30, 2012, Should favorable conditions warrant, the City may issue refunding bonds
under authority of the Series 2011A Ordmance to effect a refunding to achieve a debt service savings. The City does not
expect te issuc future refunding bonds under authoriry of the Sertes 2011B Ordinance.

Thete follows in this Official Statement a description of the Bonds and cettain information regarding the City and its
finances.  All descoptions of documents contained herein are only summares and are gualified in their entirety by
reference to each such document. This Official Statement speaks only as to its date, and the information contaned
herein is subject to change. Copies of the Final Official Statement and the Escrow Agreement (hereinafter defined)
pertaining to the Bonds will be deposited with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, 1900 Duke Street, Suite 600,
Alexandria, Virginia 22314. See “CONTINUING DISCLLOSURE OF INFORMATION” for a description of the
City’s undertaking to provide certain mnformation on a continuing basis.

PLAN OF FINANCING
Purpase of Refunding

The Bonds are being issued to refund $73,720,000 of the City’s currently cutstanding general obligation indebtedness
{the “Refunded Obligations”), as further described 1n APPENDIX D to this Official Statement, and to pay costs of
issuance. The purpose of the transaction is to effect debt service savings. The refunding of the Refunded Obligations
tefunded with the proceeds of the Series 2011A Bonds results in a net present value savings to the City in excess of the
thresholds established by the Senes 2011\ Ordinance. The refunding of the Refunded Obligations refunded with the
proceeds of the Senies 2011B Bonds results in the City effecting covenant changes that will enhance the security for the
Series 2011B Bonds. See APPENDIX DD for a listing of the Refunded Obligations.



Refunded Obligations

The Refunded Obhgations, and intcrest duc thercon, are to be paid on the scheduled interest payment dates and the
maturity or redemption dates of such Refunded Obligations from funds to be deposited pursuant to two certain Escrow
Agreements (the “Escrow Agreements”), one with respect to the Refunded Obligations refunded with the proceeds of
the Series 2011A Bonds, the other with respect to the Refunded Obligations refunded with the proceeds of the Series
2011B Bonds, between the City and BOKF, NA dba Bank of Texas, Houston, Texas (thc “Escrow Agent™). The
Ordinances provide that the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds will be deposited with the Escrow Agent in an amount
necessary to accomplish the discharge and final payment of the Refunded Obligations refunded with proceeds of each
respective series of Bonds. Such funds will be held by the Escrow Agent in special escrow accounts (the “Escrow
Funds™ and used to purchase direct obligations of the United States of America (the “Securnittes™) to be held in the
Lscrow Funds. Under the Escrow Agreements, the Escrow Funds are wrevocably pledged to the payment of the
principal of and interest on the Refunded Obligattons. The Arbitrage Group, Inc., a nationally recognized accounting
firm, will verify ar the time of delivery of the Bonds to the Underwniters the mathematical accuracy of the schedules that
demonstrate that the Securities will mature and pay interest in such amounts which, together with uninvested funds, if
any, in the Escrow Funds, will be sufficient to pay, when due, the principal of and intcrest on the Refunded Obligations.
Such maturing principal of and interest on the Securities, and other uninvested funds in the Escrow Funds, will not be
available to pay the debt serviee on the Bonds,

By deposit of the Secunties and cash wath the Escrow .\gent pursuant to the Escrow Agreements, the City will have
entered mto a firm banking and financial axrangement for the discharge and final payment of the Refunded Obligations,
in zccordance with applicable law.  As a result of such firm banking and financial arrangements, the Refunded
Obligations will be outstanding only for the putpose of rcceiving payments from the Securities and cash held for such
purpose by the Escrow Agent, and such Refunded Obligations will not be decemed as being outstanding for the purpose
of any limitation on debt or the assessment of taxes.

The City has covenanted m the Fscrow Agreements to make timely deposits to the Escrow Funds from lawfully
available funds, or any additional amounts required to pay the principal of and interest on the Refunded Obligations, if,
for any reason, the cash balances on deposit or scheduled to be on deposit in the Escrow Funds are insufficient to make
such payment.

Sources and Uses of Funds

‘The proceeds of the Bonds will be applied substantially as follows:

Series 2011A Bonds Series 2011B Bonds

Sources of Funds:

Sources of Funds:

Principal Amount $68,285,000.00 Principal Amount $3,000,000.00
Accrued Interest 225,005.11 Accrued Interest 2.830.64
Original Issue Premium 6,901,148.90 Total §3,002,830.64
Issuer Contribution 534,100.33
Total $75.945,254.34
Uscs of Funds: Uses of Funds:
Deposit to Fscrow Funds $75,164,595.03 Deposit to T'axable Escrow Fund $2,975,379.47
Accrued Interest 225,005.11 Acerued Interest 2,830.64
Costs of Issuance 305,799.39 Costs of Issuance 13,310.54
Undetwriters” Discount 249.854.81 Underwrters’ Discount 11,309.99
Total $75,945,254.34 Total $3.002,830.64



BOND INFORMATION
Authority for Issuance

The City is authorized to issue the Bonds under authority granted by Chapter 1207, Texas Government Code, and by
the Ordinances.

General

The Bonds are dated as of the Dated Date and shall bear interest on the unpaid principal amounts from such date, at the
per annum tates shown on inside cover page of this Official Statement. Interest on the Bonds will be calculated on the
basts of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-dav months. Interest on the Boads will be payable on March 1, 2012, and
on each September 1 and March 1 thereafrer until maturity. Principal is payable, upon presentation thereof, at the
Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar (see “Paying Agent/Registrar”™ herein).  Interest
thereon is payable by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the registered owner appearing on the registration books of the
Paying Agent/Regisirar at the close of business on the Record Date (hercinafter defined) and shall be paid by the Paying
Agent/Registrar by check mailed by United States mail, first class postage prepaid, to the address of such person as 1t
appears on the registration books of the Paving Agent/Registrar on or before each mterest payment date or by such
other method, acceptable to the Paving Agent/Registrar, requested by, and at the risk and expense of, the bondholder.
The Bonds arc issued only as fully registered obligations in denominations of $5,000 or any integral mutltiple thereof
within a maturity.

The record date (the “Record Date”) for the interest payable on any interest payment date is the 15th day of the month
next preceding such interest payment date, as specified in the Ordinances. In the event of a nonpayment of uiterest on a
scheduled interest payment date, and for 30 days thereafrer, a new record date for such interest payment (the “Special
Record Date™} will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, in accordance with the provisions of the Ozdinances, if
and when funds for the payment of such interest have been recetved from the City. Notice of the Special Record Date
and of the scheduled payment date of the past due intcrest, which shall be at teast 15 days after the Special Record Date,
shall be sent at least five bustness days prior to the Special Record Date by United States mail, first class postage prepaid,
to the address of each registered owner of Bonds appearing on the registration books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at
the close of business on the last business day nexi preceding the date of mailing of such notice,

Security

The Bonds constitute direct obligations of the Ciry, payvable from a continuing ad valorem rax levied, within the hmits
prescrbed by law, on taxable property located within the Ciry in an amount sufficient to pay the principal of and interest
on all ad valorem tax debt.

All taxable property within the City is subject to the assessment, levy and collection by the City of a continuing, direct
annual ad valorem tax sufficient 1o provide for the payment of principal of and interest on all ad valorem tax debt within
the limits prescribed by law. Article X1, Section 5, of the Texas Constitution is applicable to the City, and limits its
maximum ad valorem tax rate to $2.50 per $100 assessed valuation for all City purposes. The City operates under a
Flome Rule Charter, sometimes refetted to hetein as the “Charter”, which also limits the City’s ad valorem tax rate to
$2.50 per $100 assessed valuation for all City purposes. Within such Charter limitation, the total tax which may be levied
annually by the City for municipal general operating purposes may not exceed $1.00 per $100 assessed valuation.

Remedies

If the City defaults in the payment of principal, interest, or redemption price on Bonds when due, or the City defaults in
the obsetvation ot performance of any other covenants, conditions, or obligations set forth in the Ordinances, the
registered owners may seek a writ of mandamus to compel the City or City officials to carry out the legally imposed
duties with respect to the Bonds if there 15 no other available remedy at law to compel performance of the Bonds or the
Ordinances authorizing the issuance of the Bonds, and the City’s obligations are not uncertatn or disputed. The issuance
of 2 writ of mandamus is conirolled by equitable principles, so rests with the discretion of the court, but may not be
atbitratily refused. There is no acceleration of maturity of the Bonds in the event of default and, consequently, the
remedy of mandamus may have to be relied upon from year to year. The Ordinances do not provide for the
appointment of a trustee to represent the interest of the holders of the Bonds upon any fallure of the City to perform in



accordance with the terms of the Ordinances, or upon any other condion and accordingly all legal actions to enforce
such remedies would have to be undertaken at the mitative of, and be financed by, the regisrered owners. On
June 30, 2006, the Texas Supreme Court ruled in Tooke v City of Mexda, 197 5 W.3d 325 (Tex. 2006) that a waiver of
sovercign immunity in a contractual dispute must be provided for by statute in “clear and unambiguous” language.
Because it is unclear whether the Texas legislature has effectvely waived the City’s sovereign immunity from a suit fot
money damages, holders of the Bonds may not be able to bring such a suit against the City for breach of the Bonds or
covenants contained in the Ordinances. Fven if a judgment against the City could be obtained, it could not be enforced
by direct levy and execution against the City’s property.

The City is eligible to seek relief from its creditors under Chapter 9 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code (“Chapter 97).
Aithough Chapter 9 provides for the recognition of a secunty intetest represented by a specifically pledged source of
revennes, such provision is subject to judicial construction. Chapter 9 also includes an automatic stay provision that
would prohibit, without Bankruptcy Court approval, the prosecution of any other legal action by creditors or holders of
the Bonds of an entity which has sought protection under Chapter 9. Thetefore, should the Ciey avail rself of Chapter 9
protection from creditors, the ability to enforce would be subject to the approval of the Bankruptey Court {which could
require that the action be heard in Bankruptcy Court mstead of other federal or state court); and the Bankruptey Code
provides for broad discretionary powers of a Bankruptcy Court in admmstenng any proceeding brought before 1. The
opinion of Bond Counsel will note that all opinions telative to the enforceability of the Bonds arc qualificd with respect
to the customary rights of debtors relative to their creditors.

Defeasance of Bonds

The Ordinances provide for the defeasance of the Bonds when the paymem of the poncipal of and premium, if any on
the Bonds, plus intercst thereon to the due date thereof {(whether such due date be by reason of maturity or otherwisce),
is provided by irrevocably depositing with a paying agency, in trust (1) money sufficient to make such payment or {2)
Defeasance Sccurities, certified by an independent public accounting firm of national reputation to mature as (o prancipal
and intercst in such amounts and at such times to insure the availability, without reinvestment, of sufficient money to
make such payment, and all necessary and proper fees, compensation and expenses of the paving agent for the Bonds.
The Oudinances provide that “Defeasance Securities” means {a} direct, noncallable Bonds of the Untted States of
Amenca, including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America, (b) noncallabie
obligations of an agency or instrumentality of the United States of America, including obligations that are
unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the agency or instrumentality and that, on the date of their purchase, are rated
as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than “AAA” or its equivalent, and (¢)
noncallable obligations of a state or an agency or 2 county, municipality, or other political subdivision of a state that have
been refunded and that, on the date the governing body of the City adopts or approves the proceedings authorizing the
fnancial arrangements, are rated as 1o investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than
“AAA” or its equivalent. The City has additionally reserved the right, subject to sansfying the requirements of (1) and
(2) above, to subsatute other Defeasance Securities for the Defeasance Secunties originally deposited, to reinvest the
uninvested moneys on deposit for such defeasance and to withdraw for the benefit of the City moneys in excess of the
amount required for such defeasance. There 1s no assurance that the ratings for any Defeasance Security will be
maintained at any particular rating category.

Upen such deposir as descnibed above, such Bonds shall no longer he regarded to be outstanding or unpaid. The City
has reserved the option, however, to be exercised at the time of the defeasance of the Bonds, to call for redemption at
an eatlier date, Bonds which have been defeased to their matunty date, if the City in the proceedings providing for the
firm banking and financial arrangements (i) expressly reserves the nght to call the Bonds for redemption; (i) gives notice
of the reservation of that night to the owners of the Bonds immediately following the making of the firm banking and
financial arrangements; and (i) directs that notice of the reservation be included in any redemption notices that it
authornzes.

Book-Entry-Only System

The City has elected to utilize the Book-Entry-Only System of DTC, as described under this heading. The
obligation of the City is to timely pay the Paying Agent/Registtar the amount due under the Osdinances. The
responsibilities of DTC, the Direct Participants and the Indirect Participants to the Beneficial Owner of the
Bonds are described herein.



The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York, will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The
Bonds will be issued as fully-registered Bonds registered 1 the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nomince) or
such othcr name as may be requested by an authonzed representative of D'1'C. One fully-registered Bond certificate will
be issued for each matunty of the Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited
with DTC.

DTC, the wortld’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized nnder the New York
Banking Law, a “banking orgamization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal
Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New Yotk Uniform Commercial Code, and a
“cleating agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Secunities Exchange Act of 1934, DTC
holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issucs, corporate and municipal
debt issues, and money matket instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct Participants”)
deposit with D'TC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other secunities
transactions 1n deposited securttics, through electronic computertzed book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct
Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities cerfificates. Direct Partcipants
include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain
other organizatons. 1TC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation {"IDTCC?).
D1CC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing
Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of 1ts regulated subsidianies.
Access to the DTC system 1s also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. secunties brokers and dealers,
banks, trust companies, and cleating corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct
Participant, cither dircctly or indircctly (“Indirect Participants™). Direct Participants and Indirect Participants are
referred to as “Participants”.  DTC has a Standard & Poor’s rating of “AA+”. The DTC Rules applicable to its
Patticipants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at
www.cdtce.com.

Purchases of Boads under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will recave a credit
for the Bonds on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Bond (“Beneficial Owner™) is
in turn to be recorded on the Participants’ records. Bencficial Owners will not recerve written confirmation from DTC
of their purchase. Benefictal Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the
transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Participant through which the Beneficial Owner
entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entnes made on
the books of Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates
representing their ownership interests in Bonds, except in the event that usc of the book-entry system for the Bonds is
discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Threct Participants with IXT'C are registered in the name of
DTCs partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorzed representative of
DTC. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nomince
do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. IDTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds;
DT(’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited, which may
or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on
behalf of theit customers. Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Patticipants, by Direct
Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficiai Owners will be
governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from
time to time. Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices
of significant events with respect to the Bonds, such as redemptions, teaders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the
Bond documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds
for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmut notices to Beneficial Owmners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners
may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be provided directly to
them.

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. 1If less than all of the Bonds within a maturity are being redeemed, DTC’s
practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of cach Direct Participant in such matusity to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. {nor any other DTC nomnee} will consent or vote with respect to Bonds unless
authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with D'I'C’s MMI Procedures. Under its usual procedures, IXTC mails


http://www.dtcc.com

an Omnibus Proxy to the City as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s
consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Bonds are credited on the record date
(identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

All payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authonzed
representative of IXTC. IDTC’s practice 1s to credit Direct Participants” accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and
corresponding detail information from the City or the Paying Agent/Registrar, on payable date in accordance with their
respective holdings shown on D1Cs records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by
standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with Bonds held for the accounts of customers in hearer
form or registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of IYI'C, the Paying
Ageni/Registrar, or the Ciry, subjeet to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.
Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments to Cede & Co. {ot such other nominee as may
be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the City or the Paying Agent/Registrar,
disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such
pavments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Parucipants.

DTC may discontinue providing its scrvices as depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving reasonable
notice to the City or the Paying Agent/Registrar. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is
not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The Cuy may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through D'I'C (ot a successor
securities depository). In that event, Bond certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC.

The infonmation in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained from sources that the
City believes to be reliable, but neither the City nor the Undenwriters take any responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

Paying Agent/Registrar

The inital Paying Agent/Registrar the Bonds is Bank of Texas, N.AA. Interest on and principal of the Bonds will be
payable, and transfer functions will be performed at the corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar in Houston,
Texas (the “Designated Payment/Transfer Office”). In the Ordinances, the City retains the right to replace the Paying
Ageni/Registrar. The City covenants to maintain and provide a Paying Agent/Registrar at all imes while the Bonds are
outstanding and any successor Paying Agent/Registrar shall be a commercial bank, trust company or other entity duly
qualified and legally authonzed to serve as and perform the dudes 2nd services of Paying Agent/Registrar. Upon any
change in the Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds, the City agrees to promptly cause a written notice thereof to be
sent to each registered owner of the Bonds by United States mail, first class postage prepaid, which notice shall also give
the address of the new Paying Agent/Registrar.

Transfer, Exchange and Registration

In the event the Book-Entry-Only System should be discontinued, the Bonds may be transferred and exchanged on the
tegistration books of the Paying Agent/Regisirar only upon ptesentaton and surrender thereof to the Paying
Agent/Registrar at the Designated Payment/ Transfer Office and such transfer or exchange shall be without expense or
service charge to the registered ownet, except for any tax or other governmental charges required to be paid with respeet
to such tegistration, exchange and transfer. A Bond may be assigned by the execution of an assignment form thereon or
by other instrament of transfer and assignment aceeptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar. A new Bond will be delivered
by the Paying Agent/Registrar, in lien of the Bonds being transferred or exchanged, at the Designated
Payment/Transfer Office, or sent by United States mail, first class postage prepaid, to the new registered owner or his
designee. T'o the extent possible, new Bonds issued 1n an exchange or transfer will be delivered to the registered owner
or assignee of the registered owner in not more than three business days after the receipt thereof to be canceled, and the
written instrument of transfer or request for exchange duly cxecuted by the registered owner or his duly authorized
agent, 1n form satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar. New Bonds registered and delivered in an cxchange or
transfer shall be in any integral multiple of $5,000 for any one maturity and for a like aggregate principal amount as the
Bonds surrendered for exchange ot transfer. See “Book-Entry-Only System™ herein for a description of the system to
be ntilized initially in regard to ownership and transferability of the Bonds.



Redemption

The Bonds of either series are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.
TAX INFORMATION

Ad Valorem Tax Law

The appraisal of property within the City is the responsibility of the Travis Central Appraisal District, the Williamson
Central Appraisal District and the Hays Central Appraisal District (the “Appraisal Distdets™). Excluding agricultural and
open—space land, which may be taxed on the basis of productive capacity, the Appraisal Districts are required under
Tite 1, V.T.C.A. Tax Code {(commonly known as the “Property T'ax Code™) to appraise all praperty within the Appratsal
Districts on the basts of 100% of 1ts market value and 1s prohibited from applving any assessment ratios. [n determining
the market valuc of property, different methods of appraisal may be used, including the cost method of apprassal, the
income method of appraisal and the market data companson method of apprasal, and the method considered most
appropziate by the chicf appraiser 1s to he used. State law requires the appraised value of 2 residence homestead to be
based solely on the property’s value as a residence homestead, repardless of whether residential use is considered to be
the highest and best use of the property. Statc law further hmits the apprased value of a residence homestead for 4 tax
year (the “Iomestead 10% Increase Cap™) to an amount not to exceed the lesser of (1) the property’s market value in
the most recent tax vear i which the market value was determined by the Appraisal Districts or (2) the sum of (a) 10%
of the property’s appraised value in the preceding tax year, plas (b) the property’s appraised value the preceding tax year,
plus (c) the market value of all new improvements to the property. The value placed upon property within the Appraisal
Districts is subject 10 review by an Appraisal Review Board, consisting of three members appointed by the Board of
Directors of cach respective Apprassal District. The Appraisal Districts are required to review the value of property
within the Appraisal Districts at least every three vears, The Citv may require annual review at its own expense, and is
entitled to challenge the determination of appraised value of property within the City by petition filed with the Appraisal
Review Board of the appropnate Appratsal District.

Reference is made to the Property Tax Code for identification of property subject to taxation; property exempt or which
may be excmpted from taxation, if claimed; the appraisal of property for ad valorem taxation purposes; and the
procedures and limitations applicable to the levy and collection of ad valorem taxes.

Article VIII of the State Constitution (“Article VIIT”) and State law provide for cerrain exemptions from property taxes,

the valuation of agticultural and open—space lands at productivity value, and the exemption of certain personal property
from ad valorem taxation.

Under Section 1-b, Article VIII, and State law, the governing body of a political subdivision, at its option, may grant an
exemption of not less than §3,000 of the market value of the residence homestead of persons who are 65 years of age or
older and persons who ate disabled from all ad valorem taxes thercafter levied by the political subdivision. Once
authorized, such cxemption may be repealed or decreased or increased in amount (1) by the governing body of the
political subdivision or (i) by a favorable vote of a majority of the qualified voters at an election called by the governing
body of the political subdivision, which clection must be called upon reccipt of a petition signed by at least 20% of the
number of qualified voters who voted in the preceding election of the political subdivision. In the case of a decrease, the
amount of the exempton may not be reduced to less than $3,000 of the market value,

The surviving spouse of an individual who qualifies for the foregoing exemption for the residence homestead of a
person who is 65 or older {but not the disabled) is entitled to an cxemption for the same property in an amount equal to
the exemption for which the deceased individual qualified if (1) the deceased individual died in a year in which such
individual qualified for the exemption, (i) the surviving spouse was at least 55 years of age at the time of the death of the
individual and (iii) the property was the residence homestead of the surviving spouse when the deceased individual died
and remains the residence homestead of the surviving spouse.

The City grants an exemption to the appraised value of the residence homestead of persons 65 years of age or older and
to the disabled of $51,000.



In addition to any other exemptions provided by the Property Tax Code, the governing body of a political subdivision,
at its option, may grant an exemption of up to 20% of the market value of residence homesteads, with a minimum
exemption of $5,000,

In the case of residence homestead exemptions granted under Section 1-b, Article VIII, ad valorem taxes may continue
to be levied against the value of homesteads exempted where ad valorem taxes have previously been pledged for the
payment of debt if cessation of the levy would impair the obligation of the contract by which the debt was created.

State law and Section 2, Article VIII, mandate an addiuonal property tax exemption for disabled veterans or the
surviving spouse or children of a deceased veteran who died while on active duty in the armed forces. The exemption
applies to etther real or personal property with the amount of assessed valuation exempted ranging from $5,000 to a
maximum of §12,000. In addition, a disabled veteran who receives from the United States Department of Veterans
Affairs or its successor 100 percent disability compensation due to a service-connected disability and a tating of 100
percent disabled or of individual unemployabilny is entitled to an exemption from taxation of the total appraised value
of the veteran’s residence homestead.

Section 1-b, Article VIIE of the Texas Constitution, and State law authorize a county, city, town or junior college distret
1o establish an ad valorem tax freeze on residence homesteads of persons who are disabled or sixty-five years of age or
older. If the City Council does not tuke action 10 cstablish the tax hmitanon, voters within the City may submit a petition
signed by five percent of the registered voters of the City requiring the City Council to call an election to detetmine by
majority vote whether to establish the tax hmitation.

If the tax limiration ts established, such freeze on ad valorem taxes is transferable to a different residence homestead.
Also, a surviving spouse of a taxpayer who qualifies for the freeze on ad valorem taxes is entitled to the same exemption
so long as the property was the residence homestead of the surviving spouse when the deceased spouse died and
remains the residence homestead of the surviving spouse and the spouse was at least 55 years of age at the time of the
death of the individual’s spouse. If improvements {(other than repairs or improvements required to comply with
governmental requirements) are made 1o the property, the value of the improvements is taxed at the then current tax
rate, and the total amount of taxes imposed 1s increased to reflect the new improvements with the new amount of taxes
then serving as the ceiling on taxes for the following years. Once established, the tax rate limitation may not be repealed
or rescinded. Once established, the governing body of the taxing unit may not repeal or tescind the tax limitation.

The City Council has not determuned at this ime what action, if any, it will take regarding this constitutional amendment.
The City can make no representations or predictions concerning the impact such a tax limitation would have on the
taxing rates of the City or its ability to make debt setvice payments.

Article VITI provides that cligible owners of both agricultural land (Scction 1-d) and open-space land (Section 1-d-1},
including open-space land devoted to farm or ranch purposes or open-space land devoted to timber production, may
elect to have such property appraised for property taxation on the basis of its productive capacity. The same land may
not be qualified under both Section 1-d and 1-d-1.

Personal property not used in the business of a taxpayer, such as automobiles or light trucks, is exempt from ad valorem
taxation unless the governing body of a political subdivision elects to tax this property.

Article VIIT, Section 1-j of the Texas Constitution provides for “frecport property” to be exempted from ad valorem
taxation. Freeport property 15 defined as goods detained in Texas for 175 days or less for the purpose of assembly,
storage, manufactuting, processing or fabrication.

Article VIIL, Section I-n of the Texas Consotution provides for an exemption from taxation for “goods-in-transit.”
“Goods-in-transit” arc defined as (i) personal property acquired or imported into Texas and transported to another
location in the State, (it) stored under a contract for bailment in public warchouses not in any way owned or controlled
by the owner of the stored goods, and () transported to another location in the State or outside of the State within 175
days of the date the property was acquired or imported into Texas. The exemption excludes oil, natural gas, petroleum
products, aircraft and special inventory, including motor vehicle, vessel and out-board motot, heavy equipment and
manufactured housing inventory. Pursuant to changes enacted during the 2011 Texas Legislatdve Special Session, all
taxing units, including those that have previcusly taken official action to tax goods-in-transit, may not tax goods-in-
transit in the 2012 rax year or thereafter, unless the governing body of the taxing unit holds a public hearing and takes



action on or after October 2011, to provide for the taxation of the goods m-transit. After holding the public hearing, a
taxing unit may take official action prior 1o January 1 of the first tax year in which the governing body proposes to tax
goods-in-transit.  After raking official action, the goods-in-transit remain subject to taxation by the taxing unit until the
governing body rescinds or repeals its previous action to tax goods-in-transit.  If, however, a taxing unit took offictal
action priot to October 1, 2011 to tax goods-in-transit and pledged the taxes imposed on goods-in-transit untl the debt
is discharged, if cessation of the imposition of the tax would impair the obligation of the contract by which the debt was
created.

Freeport property 1s exempt from taxation by the City,

The City may create one or more tax increment financing distrets (“ITE™) within the City and freeve the taxable values
of real property in the TIE at the value at the tme of its creation. Other overlapping taxing units levying taxes in the ITF
may agree to contnibute all or part of future ad valorem taxes levied and collected against the value of property in the
TIF in excess of the “frozen values” to pay or finance the costs of certain public improvements in the TIF. Taxes levied
by the City against the values of real property in the TIF in excess of the “frozen” value are not available for general city
use but are restricted o paying or financing “project costs” within the 1TF, The City may also entet into tax abatement
agreements to encourage cconomic development. Under the agreements, a property owner agrecs to construct certain
improvements on its property. The City in turn agrees not to levy a tax on all or patt of the increased value attributable
to the improvements until the expiration of the agreement. The abatement agreement could last for a period of up to 10
years. The City has adopted criteda for granting tax abatements which cstablish guidelines regarding the number of jobs
10 be created and the amount of new value to be added by the taxpayer in teturn for the abatement. The City has
entered into several such abatement agrecments in recent years.

Cities arc also authorized, pursuant to Chapter 380, Texas Local Government Code (“Chapter 3807) to establish
programs to promote state ot local cconomic development and to stimulate business and commeretal activity in the City.
In accordance with a program established pursuant to Chapter 380, the City may make loans or grant of public funds for
economic development purposes, however, no obligations sccured by ad valorem taxes may be issued for such purposes
unless approved by votets of the City. "U'he City has entered into several such Chapter 380 agreements mn recent years.

Tax Valuation

January 1, 2011 Appraised Valuation (1) $91,767,486,326
Less T.ocal Fxemptions to Assessed Values: (2)

Residential Iomestead over 65 $1,422,646,185

IHomestead 10% Increase Cap 343,995,165

Disabled Veterans 157,734,502

Agricultural and Historical Exemptions 522,802,891

Disability Exemption 105,118,585

Other Exemptions 8,052,413,541

Freeport Exemption 1.073.483.603 11.678.194472
January 1, 2011 Net Taxable Assessed Valuation (1) $50,089,291,854

{1) 2011 Cerfied Appraised Value includes §6,232,221,078 i property in the appeals process.

(2) Exemptions or adjustments to assessed valuation granted in 2010 include (a) exemptions of $51,000 for residence
homestead property of property owners who are over 65 years of age or disabled; (b) exemptions for residence
homestead property exceeding a 10 percent increasc in valuation from the previous year, (¢) exemptons for
property of disabled veterans or certain surviving dependents of disabled veterans; (d) certain adjustments to
productive agricubtural lands; (¢) exemptions to the land designated as histoncally significant sites by certain pubhc
bodies; (f) exemption of freeport property detained in Texas for 175 days or less for the purpose of assembly,
storage, manufacninng, processing or fabrication of exported finished goods from Texas.



Statement of Debt (As of September 30, 2011) (3)

The following table sets forth on a pro forma basis the amount of Public Improvement Bonds, Assumed Bonds,
Contract Tax Bonds, Certificates of Obligation and Contractual Obligations outstanding and certain debt ratios relared
theteto.

Public Improvement Bonds (1) $890,810,000
Certificates of Obligations (1) 134,700,000
Contractual Obligations (1) 88,850,000
Assumed Bonds (2) 11,274,994
The Bonds (3) 71,285,000
Total $1,196,919,994
Less Seli-Supporting Debt: (includes the Refunded Obligations, excludes the Bonds)
Assumed Water & Wastewater Bonds (2) § 7,218,251
Alrport (4) 222,881
Austin Energy (4) 986,930
City Hall (4) 20,503,186
CMTA Mobility (5) 5,635,000
Code Compliance (4) 224,557
Convention Center (4) 23,201,507
Financial Services (4) 22,420,160
Fleet Management (4) 4,129,587
Golf (4) 1,155,000
One Texas Center (4) 8,535,000
PARD - Zilker Park (5) 1,745,946
Sohd Waste (3) (4) 67,153,808
Transportation (3} (4) 18,358,141
Waller Creek (3) (4) 35,000,000
Water and Wastewater (3) (4) 19,630,101
Watershed Protection (4) 12,862,166
$248,982,221
Interest and Sinking Fund (6) 13,872,699
Self-Supporting General Fund Payments (7) 11.052.317
Net Debt (7) $923,012,757
Ratio T'otal Debt to FY 2011 Net Taxable Assessed Valuation 1.55%
Rado Net Debt to FY 2011 Net Taxable Assessed Valuation 1.20%

2011 Population {Esimate} — 799,578 (8)
Per Capita Net Taxable Assessed Valuation — §96,422.30
Per Capita Net Debt Outstanding — $1,154.37

(1) Excludes the Refunded Obligations. Includes the Public Improvement Bonds, Series 2011A; Public Improvement
Bonds, Taxable Series 2011B; Certificates of Obligation, Series 2011; and Public Property Finance Contractual
Obligations, Seties 2011 which were sold on August 25, 2011 and delivered on October 4, 2011.

(2) Represents bonds of utlity districts annexed by the City.

(3) The Bonds are expected to be delivered on Novemnber 2, 2011.

{4) Airport, Austin Energy, City Hall, Convention Center, Financial Services, Fleet Management, Golf, One Texas
Center, Solid Waste, Transportation, Water, Wastewater and Watershed Protection represent a portion of the City’s
Outstanding Public Improvement Bonds, Certificates of Obligation and/or Contractual Obligations. Debt service
for Airport, Austin Energy, Convention Center, Financial Services, Golf, One Texas Center, Solid Waste,
Transportation, Water, Wastewater and Watershed Protection is paid from revenue of the respective enterpnses.
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The City plans to continue to pay these oblipanons from each respective enterprise.  Fleet Management and One
Texas Center are internal service funds that generate revenue through charges to nscr departments.

(5) The City entered into an interlocal agreement with Capital Metro Transit Authority (CMTA), whereby CMTA will
pay the required debt service to the City through a transfer of funds 30 days prior to each debt service payment
date. The City entered into an agreement with C3 Productions, whereby C3 Productions will pay the City $500,000
each year fot 5 years to covet the required debt scrvice.

(6) Represents estimate of cash plus investments at cost on September 30, 2011,

(7) Vanous general fund departments have issued debt which is supported by a transfer into the debt service fund from
the issuing department. These departments budget the required debt service which reduces the debt service tax
requirement,

(8} Source: City of Austin Planming/Growth Department. This figure does not include areas annexed for limited
purposcs.

Revenue Debt (\s of June 30, 2011)

In additon to the above, on a pro forma basis, the City had outstunding $119,597,847 Combined Uthty Systems
Revenue Bonds payable from a first lien on the combined net revenue of the Electric System and the Water and
Wastewater System and $230,919,512 Combined Uthty System Revenue Bonds payable from a subordinate lien on the
combined net revenue of the Electric System and the Water and Wastewater System; $1,103,605,000 Electnc Utlity
Obligations payable from a separate lien on the net revenucs of the Electric Utility System; $1,773,675,000 Warer and
Wastewater Obligations payable from a separate hen on the net revenue of the Water and Wastewater System, and
$307,588,000 Combined Uulity Systems Commercial Paper payable from a subordinate lien on the combined net
revenue of the Electric System and the Water and Wastewater System.

The Ciry also has cutstanding $323,015,000 Airpost System Prior Lien Revenue Bonds payable from revenue of the
City’s Alrport System.  The City also has outstanding $215,470,000 in Convention Center Bonds, pavable from
hotel/motel occupancy and rental car tax collections.

Obligations Subject to Annual Appropriation

With respect to the redevelopment of the property formerly known as Robert Mueller Municipal Akport {“Mueller”),
the City entered into a Master Development Agreement with Catellus Austin, LLC, effective as of December 2, 2004
{the “Dcvelopment Agreement”), and in the Development Agreement, the City agreed to issuc debt te finance certain
“Public Finance Reimbursable Project Costs” either directly or through the auspices of a local government corporation
to be created by the City. The City has entered into 2 economic development grant agreement {the “Grant Agreement™)
with Mueller Local Government Corperation (“MLGC”), a non-profit local government corporation created by the City
to act on its behalf with respect to the redevelopment of Mueller. MLGC was created in response to the provisions of
the Development Agreement. Under the terms of the Grant Agreement, the City will make grant payments to MLGC
from the General Fund, subject to annual appropriation by the City, in amounts sufficient to pay debt service on bonds
issued by MLGC to fund Public Finance Reimbursable Project Costs and pay administrative costs associated with such
bonds. It is anticipated that sales tax revenues generated by properties developed at Mueller will be sufficient to fund
the grants throughout the term of the Grant Agreement. $12,000,000 in Contract Revenue Bonds were 1ssued in 2006 by
MLGC to finance Public Finance Reimbursable Preject Costs.

The City has also created a tax increment reinvestment zone for the Mueller project to include Reinvestment Zone
Number Sixteen (the “Zone”) and neighbonng areas for the promoton, development, encouragement and maintenance
of employment, commerce, economic development and public facility development in the Zone which consists of
approximately 700 acres. Currently, only the City participates in the Zone by contributing its tax increment revenues to
the Zone, and 1t is not expected that any other taxing unit will participate in the Zone. The tax increment tevenues of
the City will be contributed by the City to the MLGC pursuant to the terms of a Tr-Party Agreement among the City,
the MLGC and the Zone {the “T'n-Party Agreement”). In addidon, the City has agreed to consider making payments to
the MLGC under a grant agteement between the City and the MLGC, pursuant to which the City may make available to
the ML.GC grant funds in amounts sufficient to pay debt service on the Tax Increment Contract Revenue Bonds, should
Pledged Revenues be insuffictent to allow the MLGC to meet its debt service payment obligations. The grant payments
are to be funded from avatlable moneys in the City’s gencral fund, subject to annual appropriation. The City is under no
obligation to make prant payments. The MLGC issued $15 million in Tax Increment Contract Revenue Bonds in
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Fiscal
Year
Ended

9-30
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

September 2009 backed by tax increment revenues generated from taxation of real property within the boundaries of the
Zone from taxing unils participating in the Zone.

Valuation and Funded Debt History

Estmated
City Taxable Assessed
Population (1) Valuation

674,719 $50,759,650,668
(83,551 48,964,275,008
695,881 49,702,906,522
714,237 52,349,642,297
732,381 60,512,328,889
746,105 68,736,790,926
770,296 76,752,007,737
778,560 80,960,540,976
799,578 77,097,148,556
813,776 80,089,291,854 (4)

Per Capita
Taxable
Asscssed
Valuation

$ 75,230.80
71,632.22
71,424.43
73,294.50
82,624.11
92,127.50
99.639.63

103,987.54

96,422.30
08,416.88

(000’s) Per Capita
Net Funded Net Funded
Tax Debt (2) Tax Debt

$ 896,011 $1,327.98
055,156 1,397.24
033,180 1,341.0%
943,312 1,320.73
869,974 1,187.87
007,667 1,216.54
1,065,565 1,383.32
1,002,186 1,287.23
923,013 1,154.37
1,019,922 (5) 1,253.32 {5)

Rano of Net
Funded Tax

Debt to
Taxable

Valuation

1.77%
1.95%
1.88%
1.80%
1.44%
1.32%
1.39%
1.24%
1.20%
1.27% (4)

% of
Tax

Collections

99.60%
98.90%
99.60%

100.32%

100.20%
99.56%

100.63%
99,93%
99.91% (3)

N/A

(1) Source: Ciry of Austn Depariment of Planning and Development based on full purpose arca as of Seprember 30
{2) Excludes general obligation debt issued for enterprise funds and general fund departments which transfer-in from
Operating Budget.

(3) Estimated collections as of June 30, 2011 based on the July 2010 Certifted Tax Roll tax levy.

(4) Certfied taxable value for the 2011 tax year.
{3) Projected. Includes the Bonds; excludes the Refunded Obligations.  Includes the Public Improvement Bonds,
Series 2011.A; Public Improvement Bonds, Taxable Series 2011B; Certificates of Obligation, Serdes 2011; and
Public Property Finance Contractual Obligations, Series 2011 which were sold on August 25, 2011 and deltvered
on October 4, 2011. See “DEBT INFORMATION”.

Tax Rate, Levy and Collection History

Fiscal Year
Ended

9-30
2003
2004
2005 (1)
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

Total
Tax
Rate
$0.4597
0.4928
0.4430
0.4430
0.4126
0.4034
0.4012
0.4209
0.4571
0.4811

Distribution

General Interest and % Current
Fund Sinking Fund Tax Levy Collections

$0.2969 $0.1628 $233,342,114 08.84%
0.3236 0.1692 241,295,947 99.06%
0.2747 0.1683 220,183,876 98.97%
0.2841 0.1589 231,908,915 99.55%
0.2760 0.1366 249,673,869 99.61%
0.2730 0.1304 277,284,215 99.22%
0.2749 0.1263 307,929,055 99.60%
0.2950 0.1259 340,762,917 99.00%
0.3262 0.1309 352,411,066 99.13% (2)
0.3551 0.1260 385,309,583 N/A

% Total

Collections

99.60%
98.90%
99.60%

100.32%

100.20%
99.56%

100.63%
99.93%
99.91% (2)
N/A

{1) The total tax rate decreased by 6.35¢ as a result of the voters of I'ravis County (which includes the City) approving
in May 2004 the creation of a new County wide hospital district, which resulted in public health services previously
provided by the City to be provided by the hospital district. (See “DEBT INFORMATION — Estimated Direct and
Overlapping Funded Debt Payable from Ad Valorem Taxes”.)

{2) Estimated collections as of June 30, 2011 based on the July 2010 Certified Tax Roll tax levy.
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Ten Largest Taxpayers (1)

January 1, 2011 % of Total Taxable

Name of Taxpayer Nature of Property Taxable Assessed Valuation Assessed Valuation
Samsung Semiconductor LLC Manufactunng $2,880,603,071 3.60%
Thomas Property Group LLC Commercial 707,020,200 0.88%
Freescale Semiconductot Inc.(2) Manufacturing 282,070,717 0.35%
Advanced Micro Devices Inc Manufactuiing 258,394,900 0.32%
1BM Corporation Manufactuting 214,683,553 0.27%
Dell Computer Corporation Manufacturing 193,025,722 0.24%
Spansion LLC (3) Manufacturing 171,948,670 0.21%
Metropohtan Life Insurance Commercial 155,781,175 0.19%
Southwestern Bell Telephone Commercial 141,930,480 0.18%
Simon Property Group Texas LP Commercial 132,546,017 0.17%
TOTAL $5.138,004,505 6.42%

{1) Six of the companies represent computer technology manufacturers.

{2) The Motorola Corporation released a portion of its operations to form Freescale Semiconductor Inc.
{3) The Advanced Micro Devices corporation released a portion of its operations to form Spansion L1.C.
Source: Travis Central Apprasal Dastnict.

Property Tax Rate Distribution

Fiscal Year Finded September 30

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
General l'und $.2730 $.2749 $.2950 $.3262 $.3551
Interest and Sinking Fund 1304 1263 1259 1309 1260
Total Tax Rate $.4034 $.4012 $.4209 $.4571 $.4811

[The remainder of this page is intentionally keft blank.]
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Net Taxable Assessed Valuations, Tax Levies and Collections

Fiscal

Year

Ended Valuation Real Property Personal Property Net Taxable Total % Current % Total
9-30 Date Amount % of Total Amount % of Total Assessed Valuation Tax [evy Collections Collections
2003 1-1-02 $44,261,013,540 87.20%  $6,498,637,128 12.80% $50,739,650,668 $233,342.114 98.84% 99.60%
2004 1-1-03 42 832,762,815 87.48% 6,131,512,193 12.52% 48,964,275,008 241,295,947 09,06% 08.90%
2005 1-1-04 43,662,323,952  87.85% 6,040,582.570 12.15% 49,702,906,522 220,183,876 (1) 98.97% 99.60%
2006 1-1-05 46,492,828,677  88.81% 5,856,813,620 11.19% 52,349,642.297 231,908,915 99.53% 100.32%
2007 1-1-06 53,724,137, 471 88.78% 6,788,191 418 11.22% 60,512,328,889 249,673,869 99.61% 100.20%
2008 1-1-07 61,455,307,904 8§89.41% 7,281,483,022 10.59% 68,736,790,926 277,284 215 99.22% 99.56%
2009 1-1-08 68,709,111,385  89.63% 7,961,896,352 10.37% 76,752,607,737 307,929,055 99.60% 100.63%
2010 1-1-09 72,029,659,502 94.21% 8,147,372,223 10.66% 80,960,540.976 340,762,917 99.00% 99.93%
2011 1-1-10 70,024,297 956 90.83% 7,072,850,600 9.17% 77,0097,148,536 352,411,066 99.13% (2) 09.91% (2
2012 1-1-11 71,055,252,115  88.72% 9,034,039,739 11.28% 80,089,291 854 383,309,853 N/A N/A

(1) 'The City approved a tax rate of §0.5065 which is the effective tax rate. As a result of the voter approved Hospital District, the tax rate was amended and reduced
by $0.0635 to $0.4430 (see “DEBT INFORMATION - Estimated Ditect and Overlapping Funded Debt Payable from Ad Valorem Taxes™).
{2) Estimated collections through June 30, 2011 based on the July 2010 Certified Tax Roll tax levy.
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Tax Rate Limitation

All taxable property within the City s subject to the assessment, levy and collection by the City of a continumg, direct
annual ad valorem tax sufficient to provide {or the payment of principal of and interest on all ad valorem tax debt within
the limits prescribed by law. Asticle XI, Section 5, of the Texas Constitution is applicable to the City, and hmits its
maximum ad valorem tax rate to $2.50 per $100 assessed valvation for all City purposes. The City operates under a
Home Rule Charter which also limits the City’s ad valorem tax rate to $2.50 per $100 assessed valuation for all City
putposes. Within such Charter limitation, the total tax which may be levied annually by the City for municipal general
operating purposes may not exceed $1.00 per $10{) asscssed valuation.

By cach September 1 or as soon thereafter as practicable, the City Council adopts a tax rate per $100 taxable value for
the upcoming fiscal vear beginning October 1. The tax rate consists of two components: (1) a rate for funding of
maintenance and operation expenditures, and (2) a rate for debt service.

Section 26.05 of the Property Tax Code provides that the goveming body of a taxing unit is required to adopt the annual
tax rate for the unit before the latet of September 30 or the 60th day after the date the certified appraisal roll 1s received
by the taxing unit, and a failure 10 adopt a 1ax rate by such required date will result in the tax rate for the taxing unit for
the tax year to be the lower of the effective tax rate calculated for that tax year or the tax rate adopted by the taxing unit
for the preceding tax year. Furthermore, Secuon 26.05 provides the City Council may not adopt a tax rate thar exceeds
the lower of the rollback tax rate or the effective tax rate until two public heatings ate held on the proposed rax rate
following a notice of such public hearing (mcluding the requirement that notice be posted on the Citry’s website if the
City owns, operates or controls an internet website and public notice be given by television if the City has free access to
a television channel) and the Citv Council has otherwise complied with the legal requirements for the adoption of such
tax rate. If the adopted tax rate exceeds the wollback tax rate, the qualified voters of the City by peution may require that
an clection be held to derermine whether or not to reduce the 1ax rate adopied for the current year 1o the rollback tax
rate.

“FEffective tax rate” means the rate that will produce last year’s total tax levy (adjusted) from this year’s total taxable
valves (adjusted). “Adjusted” means lost values are not included 1n the calculavon of Tast year’s taxes and new values are
not incladed in this year’s taxable values.

“Rollback tax rate” means the rate that will produce last year’s maintenance and operation tax levy (adjusted) {tom this
yeat’s values (adjusted) mulitiplied by 1.08 plus a ratc that will produce this year’s debt scrvice from this year’s values

(unadjusted) divided by the anticipated tax collection rate.

Reference is made to the Property Tax Code for definitive requirements for the levy and collection of ad valorem taxes
and the calculation of the vanous defined tax rates.

[Vhe resmainder of this page is intentionally kefi blank.|
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Debt Service Requirements

DEBT INFORMATION (a)

Fiscal

Year Public Certificates Grand Less Net Percent
Ending Improvement of Contractual Assumed The Refunding Total Self-Supporting Total Principal

09/30 Bonds Obligation Obligations MUDs Bonds Requirements Requirements (b) Requirements Payout

2012 5(,634,056 11,658,934 18,496,811 1,123,505 18,280,348 140,193,634 39.389,144 100,804,510

2013 90,029,706 11,738,302 17,623,860 1,117,360 8,148,407 128,657,634 36,278,954 92,378,680

2014 81,359,328 10,662,016 15,533,586 1,120,098 12,451,901 121,126,929 33,368,252 87,758,677

2015 81977176 10,125,482 14,097,286 1,115,998 9.008.431 116,324,371 28768312 87.556,059

2016 76,121,536 10,195,829 11,579,120 1,135,590 8,505,857 107,537,931 26.573,783 80.964, 146 32.82%

2017 80,986,371 8,904,315 8,540,352 1,008,319 8,043.375 107,482,732 22.899.179 84,583,553

2018 83,664,951 8.980,381 6,417,510 1,012,938 3,004,625 103,080,404 18,215,196 84,865,208

2019 81,691,463 9,056,647 2,795,238 1,030,083 2,997,425 97.570,857 16,007,737 81,563,120

2020 79,137,356 9,051,326 309,956 1,033,498 2,992,025 92,324,160 14,533,531 77.990.629

2021 75,356,508 9,135,749 1,046,118 2.966,500 88,504,875 14,800,313 73,695,562 61.61%

2022 60,797,441 9.226,394 1,036,678 7,584,500 78,645,013 12,269,955 66,375,058

2023 53,631,412 9,305,763 1,041,188 1,837.500 65.815.863 9.933.558 55.882,304

2024 51.314.850 11,260,003 1,038,575 £3.613.429 9.682.619 33.930,810

2025 51,150,920 9,375,834 1,044.475 61.611.230 7.775.848 53,837,381

2026 53,553,035 8,858,747 043 463 63.355.245 7,318,142 56,037,103 83.08%

2027 63,828,887 6,964,615 70,793,501 4,624,481 66,169,020

2028 42,502,699 6,703,200 45.205,899 4,541,862 44 664,037

2029 32,673,744 5,870,114 38,543,858 4,581,646 33.662.212

2030 25,200,798 5,595,689 30,796,486 4,293,688 26,502,798

2031 10,923.500 3,860,334 14,783,834 3.262,334 11.521,500 98.27%

2032 2,583,949 2.583.949 2583949

2033 2,603,894 2.603.894 2,603,854

2034 2,620,134 2,620,134 2,620,154

2035 2,635,681 2,635,681 2,635,681

2036 2,657,069 2,657,069 2,657,069 99.G6%

2037 2,669,000 2,669,000 2,669,000

2038 2,689,413 2689413 2.689413

2039 2,699,838 2,699,838 2.699.838

2040 2315513 2315513 2315513

2041 2,329,988 21.329.988 2.329.988 100.00%

(a) As of October 13, 2011.
(b) Includes principal and interest on all self-supporting debt (see "Statement of Debt”, p. 10). Includes the Refunded Obligations and excludes the Bonds.
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Estimated Ditect and Overlapping Funded Debt Payable From Ad Valorem Taxes (As of 9-30-10) (in 000%)

Fxpenditures of the vanious taxing bedies within the territory of the City are paid out of ad valorem taxes levied by these
taxing bodies on properties within the City. These political taxing bodies are independent of the City and may incur
borrowings to finance their expenditures. Except for the amounts relating to the City, the City has not independently
venfied the accuracy or completeness of such information, and no person should tely upon such information as being
accurate or complete. Furthermore, certain of the entitics listed below may have issued additional bonds since the datc
stated above, and such entities may have programs requinng the issuance of substantial amounts of additional bonds the
amount of which cannot be determined. The following table reflects the estimated share of overlapping funded debt of
the major taxing bodies in the area.

Total Estimated % Overlapping
Taxing Jurisdiction I'unded Debt Applicable Funded Debt
Austin, City of $599,500 (1) 100.00% $ 899,500
Austin Community College 94,519 71.12% 67,222
Austin Independent School District 809,188 93.97% 760,394
Northwest Travis County Road District #3 2,780 100.00% 2,780
Round Rock Independent School District 666,450 33.39% 222528
Travis County 523,199 69.92% 365,821
Del Valle Independent School District 173,905 68.31% 118,795
Eanes Independent School District 115,945 29.89% 34,656
Leandcr Independent Schoal Distrct 1,280,258 11.07% 141,725
Manor Independent School District 190,775 69.65% 132,875
Pflugerville Independent School District 358,635 38.48% 138,003
Wilhamson County 767,347 9.85% 75,584
TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING FUNDED DEBT $2,959,883
Ratio of Direct and Oveilapping Funded Debt to Taxable Assessed Valuation (2) 3.66%
Per Captta Overlapping Funded Delbt (3) $3,801.74

(1) Lxcludes the Bonds. Excludes general obligation debt reported in propnetary funds.

{2) Based on assessed valuation of $80,960,540,976 provided by the Travis Central Appraisal Distdet, Willamson
County Appraisal District and Ilays Central Appraisal District.

{(3) Based on 2010 estimated population of 778,560.

Source: 2010 City of Austin CAFR.

Note:  Overlapping governments are those that coincide, as least in part, with the geographic boundades of the City.

This schedule estimated the pottion of the outstanding debt of those ovetlapping governments that is bome by the City

tesidents and businesses. This process recogmzed that, when considesing the City’s ability to issve and repay long-term

debt, the entite debt botne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However, this does not imply

that every taxpayer 1s a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping government.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.|
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Authorized General Obligation Bonds

Amount
Date Amount Previcusly Unissued

Pugpose Authorzed Authorized Issued (1) Balance
Brackenridge 2000 10/22/83 § 50,000,000  § 40,785,000 $ 9,215,000
Park Improvements 09/08/84 9,975,000 9,648,000 327,000
Culrural Arts 01/19/85 20,285,000 14,890,000 5,395,000
Transpottation (Prop 1) 11/07/06 103,100,000 79,960,000 23,140,000
Dramnage Improvements (Prop 2} 11/07/06 145,000,000 125,000,000 20,000,000
Park Improvements (Prop 3) 11/07/06 84,700,000 57,810,000 26,890,000
Cultural Arts (Prop 4) 11/07/06 31,500,000 21,600,000 9,900,000
Affordable Housing (Prop 5) 11/07/06 55,000,000 48,350,000 6,650,000
Central Library (Prop 6) 11/07/06 90,000,000 5,500,000 84,500,000
Public Safety Facility (Prop 7) 11/07/06 58,100,000 52,100,000 6,000,000
Mobility Transporstation (Prop 1) 11/02/10 90,000,000 15,305,000 714,695,000

$737,060,000 $470,948,000 $266,712,000

{1} Includes the Public Improvement Bonds, Senes 2011\ and the Public Improvement Bonds, Taxable Series 20118;
which were sold on August 23, 2011 and delivered on October 4, 2011.

Anticipated Issuance of General Obligation Bonds

The City does not antcipate the issuance of additional general obligation bonds before the fall of 2012, The City
continues to review opportunities for refunding cettain previously issued general obligation bonds and assumed debt.

Funded Debt Limitation

No direct funded debt limitaton s imposed on the Ciry under current State law or the City’s Home Rule Charter,
Article X1, Secnon 5, of the Texas Constitution is applicable to the City, and limits its maximum ad valorem tax rate to
$2.50 per $100 assessed valuation for all City purposes. The City operates under a Home Rule Charter which adopts the
constimtional provisions and also contains a limstation that the total tax which may be levied annually by the City for
municipal general operating purposes may not exceed $1.00 per $100 assessed valuation.

FISCAL MANAGEMENT
The Capital Improvements Program Plan and Capital Budget

The Capital Improvement Plan is a five-year list of capital improvements and a corresponding spending plan for
financing these improvements. It is developed through public input and department prodtization of needs. ‘The
process includes neighborhood meetings, department requests, Budget Office assessment of requested projects, input
from the Planning Commission’s CIP Subcommittee and other Boards and Commissions, and citizen input from public
hearings. Iiach year, the Planning Commission reviews the Capital Improvement Plan and submits a recommendation
to the City Manager detailing specific projects to be included 1n the Capital Budget for the next fiscal year.

The City Manager considers the Planning Commission’s recommended Plan to propose a Capital Budget to the City
Council. The Capital Budget contains requested approprations for new projects, additional appropriations for
previously approved projects and any requests to revise prior year approprations. Unlike the Operatng Budget, which
authonzes expenditures for only one fiscal year, Capital Budget approptrations are multi-year, lasting until the project is
complete or until changed by the City Council.

The City Council reviews the Capital Budget, holds public hearings to gather final citizen input and establishes the
amount of revenue and general obligation bonds to sell to fund capital improvements.
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2011-2012 Capital Budget

The 2011-2012 five-year Capiral Improvement Program {CII') plan was reviewed by the Planning Commussion and the
Bond Oversight Committee. Public input was received at a public hearing held by the Planning Commission and the
Bond Oversight Committee. The plan estimates city-wide capital spending in 2011-2012 of $450.2 million in enterptise
funds and §428.4 million in general government funds.

"The first year of the five-vear plan was used to determine the new approptiations required for inclusion in the 2011-2012
Capital Budget. Total new approved appropation for General Government CIP Funds is $170.6 million and total new

approved appropriation for Enterprise CIP Funds 1s $237.9 million. Appropration by department is listed below.

Summary of 2011-2012 Approved Capital Budget (millions):

Austin Energy $104.0
Austin Water Utihity $31.1
Aviation $23.4
Solid Waste Scrvices $8.5
Watershed Protection $70.9

Enterprise Appropriations $237.9
Communications & Technology Management $12.9
Economic Growth and Redevclopment Services Office $0.2
I'inanctal & Administrative Services 3.6
Fleet 301
Library $77.6
Neighborhood Housing & Community Development $10.2
Parks & Recrcation $24.2
Planning & Development Review $0.7
Public Works and Austin Transportation $41.1

General Government Appropriations $170.6
TOTAL PROPOSED NEW APPROPRIATIONS $408.5

Operating Budget

The City’s Home Rule Charter and State law require the City Manager to prepare and submit to the City Council a
balanced budget consisting of an estimate of the revenues and expenditures in the budget period and the undesignated
General Fund balance available for reappropriation. The budget process in the City normally commences with all
department heads submitting to the Chicf Financial Officer of the City a detailed estimate of the appropriations required
fot their respective departments during the next fiscal year, The Chief Financial Officer of the City, in turn, forwards
these estimates to the City Manager who submits them to the Mayor and City Council for their consideration and
approval.

In June 1989, the City Council approved Financial Management Polictes. Among other items, these policies require that
2 General Fund Emergency Reserve Fund of at least $40,000,000 shall be budgeted. Additionally, a General Fund
Contingency Reserve Fund of 1% of total budgeted departmental expenditures, but not less than $2,000,000, and a
General Fund Reserve for Budget Stabilization shall be budgeted annually. At the end of each fiscal year, any excess
revenue received in that year and any unspent appropriations at the end of that year will be deposited mto General Fund
Reserve for Budget Stabilization. The Budget Stabilization Reserve will then be available for appropriation for one-time
expenditures such as capital equipment but no more than one-third of the reserve will normally be appropriated in any
one yeat,
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2011-2012 Budget (Amounts are in thousands)

The 2011-2012 operating budget was adopted on September 12, 2011, and was prepared in accordance with guidehnes
provided by the City Council. The approved budget mncludes a total tax rate of $0.4811 per $100 assessed valuation,
which is based on the 2011 certified tax roll. The properiy tax revenue in the approved budget is not significantly
different with the revised tax ratcs. The following is a summary of the approved 2011-2012 General Fund Budget.

Beginning Balance, October 1, 2011 (Budget Basis) (000’s omitted)
Summary of Budgeted General 'und Resources

Revenue:
General Property Taxes $279,378
City Sales Tax 152,723
Other Taxes 5,160
Gross Receipis/Franchise Fees 33,827
Miscellancous 82,551
Total Revenue $553,639
Transfers [n:
Electric Revenue $105,000
Water Revenue 31,920
Water Infrastructure Tnspection 1,200
Total Transfets In 138120
Total General Fund Resources $691,759

Summary of Budgeted General 'und Requirements
Departmental Appropnations:

Administrative Services £ 12,773

Urban Growth Management 21,181

TPublic Safety 447,425

Public Health and Human Scrvices 41,493

Public Recreation and Culture 71,493
Total Departmental Approprations $594,365
Transfers Our:

Support Services Fund $ 30,970

Other Funds 29.638
Total Transfers Out $ 60,608
Other Requirements 36,786
‘f'otal General Fund Requirements $691,759
Use of Beginning Balance 0
Ending Balance i]
One-Time Critical Equipment ¥ 11,040
Transfer to/from Budget Stabilization Reserve (11,046)
Adjusted Ending Balance Q
Budgeted Reserve Requirements

Emergency Reserve $ 40,000

Contingency Reserve 6,505

Property Tax Reserve 4,000

Budget Stabilization Reserve IFund 36,192
Total Budgeted Reserve Requirements § 86,697
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Deficit Budgeting
“The City is barred by T'exas law and the City’s Charter from deficit budgeting.
Accounting System

The City’s accounting records for general governmental operations are maintained on a modified accrual basts, with the
revenue being recorded when available and measurable and expenditures being recorded when the services or goods are
received and the labilities are incurred. Accounting records for the City’s enterpose and internal scrvice funds are
maintained on an accrual basis.

Article VTT, Section 15 of the City’s Charter requires an annual audit of all accounts of the City by an independent
certified public accountant. This charter requirement has been complied with and the accountant’s report is included
herein.

Short—Term Borrowing

Pursuant to Section 1431, V.T.C..A Government Code, the City has the authority to conduct short term borrowings to
provide for the payment of current expenses, through the issuance of annapation notes. Such notes must mature hefore
the first anniversary of the date the Attorney General approves the anticipation notes.

INVESTMENTS

The City invests its avallable funds in investments authorized by State law, particutarly the Texas Public Funds
Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code (the “PEFIA”), in accordance with investment policies approved
by the City Council. Both State law and the City’s investment policies are subject to change.

Legal Investments

Under “l'exas law, the City is authorized to invest in (1) obligations of the United States or 1ts agencies and
instrumentalities, including letters of credit; (2) direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies and
instrumentalities; (3) collateralized mortgage obligations directly issued by a federal agency or instrumentality of the
United States, the underlying security for which is guaranteed by an agency or instrumentality of the United States; (4)
other obligations, the principal and interest of which is guaranteed or insured by or backed by the full faith and credit of,
the State of Texas or the United States or their respective agencies and instrumentalities, including oblipations that are
fully guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Tnsurance Corporation or by explicit full faith and credit of the
United States; (3) obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other political subdivisions of any state rated as to
investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than A or its equivalent; (6) bonds issued,
assumed or guarantced by the State of Israel; (7) certificates of deposit meeting the requirements of the PFIA and are
guarantced or insured by a combination of cash and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or the National Credit
Union Share Insurance Lund, or are secured as to principal by obligations described in clauses (1) through (6) of in any
other manner and amount provided by law for City deposits; (8) fully collateralized repurchase agreements that have a
defined termination date, are fully secured by a combination of cash and obligations described in clause (1) which are
pledged to the City, held m the City’s name, and deposited at the time the investment is made with the City or wath a
third party sclected and approved by the City and are placed through a primary government securitics dealer, as defined
by the Federal Resetve, or a financial institution doing business in the State of Texas; (9} certain bankers’ acceptances
with the remaining term of 270 days or less, if the short-term obligations of the accepting bank or its parent are rated at
least A-1 or P-1 or the equivalent by at least onc nationally recognized credit rating agency; (10) commercial paper with a
stated maturity of 270 days or less that is rated at least A-1 or P-1 or the equivalent by either (a) two nationally
recognized credit rating agencies or (b} one nationally tecognized credit rating agency if the commercial paper is fully
secuted by an irrevocable letter of credit issued by a U.S. or state bank; (11) no-load money market mutual funds
registered with and regulated by the Secunties and Exchange Commussion that have a dollar weighted average stated
maturity of 90 days or less and include in their investment objectives the maintenance of a stable net asset value of $1
for each share; {12) no-load mutual funds registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission that have an average
weighted maturity of less than two years, invest exclusively in obligations described in this paragraph, and are
continuously rated as to investment cuality by at least one nationally recognized iavestment rating firm of not less than
“AAA” or its equivalent; and {13) local government investment pools organized in accordance with the Interlocal
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Cooperation Act (Chapter 791, Texas Government Act) as amended, whose assets consist exclusively of the obligations
that are descrbed above. A public funds investment pool must be contnuously ranked no lower than “AAA”, “AAN-
m” or at an cquivalent ratung by at least one nationally recognized rating service. The City may also invest bond
proceeds in guaranteed investment contracts that have a defined termination date and are secured by obligations of the
United States or its agencies and instrumentalities in an amount at least equal to the amount of bond proceeds invested
under such contraci, othet than the prohibited obligations descnbed below. The City also 1s authorized by the PFIA to
invest its funds in certificates of obligation issued by one or more federally insuted depository institutions, wherever
located, in accordance with procedures set forth in the PFLA.

A political subdivision such as the City may enter into sccutities lending programs if (1) the securties loaned under the
program are 100% collateralized, a loan made under the program allows for termination at any time #nd a loan made
under the program is cither secured by (a) obligations that are descubed in clauses (1) through (6) above, (b) irrevocable
letters of credit issued by 4 state ot national bank that is continuously rated by # nationally recognized investment rating
firm at not less than A or its equivalent or () cash invested in obligatons described in clauses {1} through (6) above,
clauses (10) through (12) above, or an authorized investment pool; (1) securities held as collateral under a loan are
pledged to the City, held in the City’s name and deposited at the time the investment is made with the City or a third
party designated by the City; (1) a loan made under the program is placed through cither a primary government
secuntics dealer or 2 financial insttution doing business in the State of Texas; and (1v) the agreement to lend securities
has a term of one year or less.

Liffective September 1, 2005, the City, as the owner of a municipal electric wility that 15 engaged in the sale of electric
energy to the public, may invest funds held in a “decommissioning trust” (a trust created to provide the Nuclear
Regulatory Commission assurance that funds will be available for decommissioning purposes as required under 10
C.F.R. Part 50 or other sinular regulation) in any investment authonized by Subtitle B, Title 9, Texas Property Code
(commonly referred to as the “Texas Trust Code”). The Texas Trust Code provides that a trustee shall invest and
manage frust assets as a prudent investor would, by considerng the purposes, terms, distribution requirements, and
other arcumstances of the trust. In satisfying this standard, the trustee shall exercise reasonable care, skill, and caution.

The City may also contract with an investment management firm registered under the Investment Advisor Act of 1940
(15 U.S.C. Section 80b.1 et seq.) or with the State Secunities Board to provide for the investment and management of its
public funds or other funds under its control for a term of up to two years, but the City retatas ultimate responsibility as
fiduciary of its assets.

The City is specifically prohibited from nvestung in: (1} obligations whose payment represents the coupon payments on
the outstanding principal balance of the undetlying mortgage-backed sccurity collateral and pays no principal, (2)
obligations whose payment represents the principal stccam of cash flow from the underlying mortgage-backed security
and bears no interest; (3) collateralized mortgage obliganons that have a stated final marnty of greater than 10 years;
and (4) collateralized mortgage obligations the interest rate of which is determined by an index that adjusts opposite to
the changes in a market index.

Investment Policies

Under State law, the City is required to invest its funds under wntten investment policies that primarily emphasize safety
of principal and liquidity; that address investment diversification, yield and matunty; and also that address the quality and
capability of investment personnel. The policy includes a list of authorized investments for City funds, the maximum
allowable stated maturity of any individual nvestment, the maximum average dollar—weighted maturity allowed for
pooled fund groups, methods to monitor the market price of investments acquired with public funds, a requirement for
settlement of all transactions, except investment pool funds and mutual funds, on a delivery versus payment basis, and
procedures to monitor rating changes in investments acquired with public funds and the liquidation of such investments
consistent with the PFIA. Al City funds must be mvested consistent with a formally adopted “Investment Strategy
Staternent” that speafically addresses each funds’ investment. Fach Investment Strategy Statement must describe the
investment objectives for the particular fund using the following priodties: {1) suitability of investment type,
(2) preservation and safety of principal, (3) hiquidity, (4) marketability of each investment, (5} diversification of the
portfolio, and (6) yield.

Under State law, City investments must be made “with judgment and care, under prevailing circumstances, that a person
of prudence, discretion and intelligence would exercise in the management of that person’s own affairs, not for
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speculation, but for investment, consideting the probable safety of capital and the probable income to be denved.” At
least quartetly, the investment officers of the City shall submit an investment report detailing: (1} the investment position
of the City, (2) that all investment officers jointly prepared and signed the report, (3) the beginning market value and the
ending value of each pooled fund group, (4) the book value and market value of each separately listed asset at the end of
the reporting period, (5) the maturnity date of each separately mvested asset, (6) the account or fund or pooled fund
group for which each individual investment was acquired, and (7) the compliance of the investment portfolio as it relates
to (a} adopted investment strategy statements and (b) Statc law. No person may mnvest City funds without express
written authonty of the City Council or the Chief Financial Officer of the City.

Additional Provisions

Under Texas law, the City is additionally required to: (1) annually review its adopted policies and strategies, (2) require
any investment officers with personal business reladonships or relatives with firms seeking to sell secunties to the Cily to
disclose the relationship and file a statement with the Texas Ethics Commission and the City Council, (3) require the
registered representative of firms seeking to sell securities to the City to (a) recerve and review the City’s investment
policy, (b} acknowledge that reasonable controls and procedures have been implemented to precinde imprudent
investment activities, and (¢} deliver a written statement attesting 10 these requirements; (4) perform an annual audit of
the management controls on mvestments and adherence to the Ciry’s investment policy; and (5) provide specific
investment training for the Chief Hinancial Officer of the City, Treasurer and Investment Officers.

Curtent Investments

As of June 30, 2011, the City’s investable funds were invested in the following categories.

Type of Investment Percentage
U, S. Treasuncs 4%
U. S. Agencies 48%,
Municipal Bonds 1%
Money Market Funds 2%
Iocal Government Investment Pools 45%

The dollar weighted average maturity for the combined City investment portfolios is 400 days. The City prices the
porifolios weekly utilizing a market pricing service,

[The remainder of this page is tnfentionally left blank.]
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GENERAL FUND REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

(Amounts are in thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended September 30

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Revenues:
Taxes (1) $294,344 $326,576 $347,961 $356,064 $387,061
Franchise Fees 30,677 32,275 35,577 33,276 34,964
Fincs, Forfcitures and Penaltics 18,832 16,094 18,946 19100 18,692
Licenses, Permits and Inspections 22,131 25,635 24,268 20,531 15,716
Charges for Services 24,453 26,357 29,175 33,655 33,394
Intetest and Other 15,882 13,602 12,639 10.456 8.059
Total Revenues $406,319 $440,539 $468,566 $473,082 $497,886
Expenditures:
Administration $ 9,018 $ 10,607 $ 11,592 $ 11,966 $ 11,768
Utrban Growth Management 16,701 18,886 20,692 19,682 17,535
Public Safety 323,006 352,149 384,081 389,518 308,930
Pubhc Services and Unlines 262 297 340 365 363
Public Health 20,824 32,545 34,823 37,133 37,404
Public Recreation and Culture 47,599 53,213 58,919 59,988 60,040
Nondepartmental Expendttures 54494 68,170 65112 52197 69,456
Total Expenditutes $480,904 $535,867 $575,559 $570,849 $595,5506
Excess {(Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures Before Other

Financing Sources (Uses) $ (74,585) $ (95,328) $(106,993) $ (97,767) $ (97,670)
Orther Financing Soutrces {Uses):
Ttansfers from Other Funds 97,658 107,241 116,311 121,936 130,233
Transfers to Other Funds (16,611} {16.907) (27.438) (20.698) (16,014)
Net Other Financing Sources $ 81,047 $ 20,334 $ 88,873 $101,238 $114.219
Ixcess {Deficiency) of Total

Revenues and Other Services

Over Fxpenditures and Other

Uses $ 6,462 $ @99 (2 $(18,120) £ 3471 § 16,549
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 105,342 111,804 106,810 B8.690 92,161
Fund Balances at End of Year £111,804 106,810 § 88,090 (3) § 92,161 (3) $108,710

(1} Consists of property, sales and mixed drinks tax.

(2y 'The City’s financtal policies were amended in 2006 to establish a budget stabihzation reserve in the General Fund.
The policies aflow the expenditure of one-third of this reserve in any given year to fund capital or other one-time
costs. During 20006 and 2007, the City allocated reserve funds to pay for capital and one-time costs that had been
deferred dunng fiscal years 2002 through 2004.

(3) In addition to the budget stabilization teserve, the ending balance includes a contingency resetve of approximately
$5.0 million and an emergency teserve of $40 mitlion,
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CERTAIN GENERAL FUND RECEIPTS OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES
Municipal Sales Tax

At an election held on September 30, 1967, the citizens of Austin voted a 1% retail sales and usc 1ax to become effective
on January 1, 1968. This tax provides an additional revenue source to the General Fund of the City. Collections and
enforcements are effected through the offices of the Comprroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, who
currently remits the proceeds of the tax to the City monthly. Revenue from this source has been:

Fiscal Year Per Capita (in 000’s) % of

LEnded 9-30 Sales and Use Tax Sales and Use T'ax Ad Valorem Tax Tevy
2003 $163.70 $110,454 47.34%
2004 173.44 117,725 48.79%
2005 177.64 123,617 56.14%
2006 196.75 139,289 60.06%
2007 211.43 153,098 61.32%
2008 207.00 154,445 55.70%
2009 182,51 139,795 45.40%
2010 185.87 144,710 42.47%
2011 (1) 185.44 148,275 42.07%
2012 (2) 187.67 152,723 30.63%

(1) Estimate.
(2) Estimate used in FY 2012 Approved Budget.

Transfers from Utility Funds

The City owns and operates a Water and Wastewater System and an Electne Light and Power System, the financial
operations of which are accounted for i the Utility Funds. Transfers from the Unlity Funds to the General und have
historically provided a significant percentage of the receipts for operation of the General Fund. The following sets forth
the amount of such transfers.

Fiscal Year (in 000’s) % of General

Ended 9-30 Transfers Fand Requirements
2003 $ 92417 20.3%
2004 95,894 21.1%
2005 94,116 20.9%%
2006 97,658 20.3%
2007 106,471 20.0%
2008 115,629 19.8%
2009 121,505 20.9%
2010 129,967 21.5%
2011 (1) 134,263 20.7%
2012 (2 136,920 19.8%

(1) Estimate.
(2) Estimate used in FY 2012 Approved Budget.

[The rematnder of this page is intentionally left blank.]
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets

The Linterprise Funds account for the activities of the City which render services on a user charge basis to the general
public. Set forth on pages B-28 and B-29 of APPENDIX B, attached hercto, is a summary of the revenues, expenses,
transfers and net assets of the Ciy’s enterprise funds for the year ended September 30, 2010,

THE SYSTEMS

The City owns and operates an Liecte Utiliey System (also referred to hercin as “Austin Energy”) and a Water and
Wastewater System (also referred to herein as the “Water and Wastewater Udlity”) which provide the City, adjoining
areas of Travis County and certain adjacent areas of Willamson County with electric, water and wastewater services.
The City owns all the facilities of the Water and Wastewater System. The City jointly participares with other electric
utilities in the ownership of coal-fired electric generation facilities and a nuclear powered clectric generation facility.
Additionally, the City individually owns gas/oil-fired electric generation facilities, which are available to meet system
demand. ‘The Llectric Unlity System had approximately 1,609 full-time regular employees as of March 31, 2011, The
Water and Wastewater System had approximately 1,070 full-time regular cmployees as of the same date.

RESPONSE TO COMPETITION
Strategic Plan

In December 2003, the City Council approved a strategic plan for Austin Energy. The plan identified three strategies to
position Austin Energy for continued suceess.

First, an overarching Risk Management Strategy guides Austin Foergy to manage its exposure when considering furare
courses of action. This approach allows Austin Energy to prepare for futute options withour prematurely investing and
allows time for more informaiion to become known before major commitments are made.

Sccond, a strategy to provide lixcellent Customer Service positions Austin lnergy 1o meet evolving customer
expectations in a rapidly changing energy industry. Under this strategy, Austin Energy intends to build employee and
customer satisfaction so that it is positioned for competition or regulation in the future.

Third, an Energy Resource strategy dirccts Austin Energy to seek cost-effective renewable energy and conservation
solutions to meet customers’ new energy needs before resorting to traditional fossil fuel sources. In keeping with the
risk management approach, Austin Energy has developed a Resource, Generation and Climate Protection Plan to 2020
discussed further in the next section.

Resource, Generation, and Climate Protection Plan to 2020

The City Council adopted the Austin Climate Protection Plan (“ACPP”) in 2007 to build a more sustainable community.
Every City department was subscquently tasked to create action plans intended to ensure that departmental operations
were consistent with the ACPP. Austin linergy devcloped the Resource, Generation, and Climate Protection Plan 1o
2020 (the “Plan”) to meet these objectives.

The City Council approved the Plan on April 22, 2010 with a delayed cffective date to give Austin Energy time to
develop an affordability plan for City Council approval.

Goals Summary

The City Council adopted the following changes and additions to the prior resource planning goals, with a target of
meeting these goals by 2020:

— Increase the cnergy efficiency goal from 700 MW to 800 MW/;

— Inctease the renewable energy goat from 30% to 35%;

— Increase the solar component of the renewable energy goal from 100 MW to 200 MW; and

—  Establish a carbon dioxide reduction goal of 20% below 2005 level.
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Following the development of an affordability goal, the City Council adopted the Plan on February 17, 2011, as a
resource-planning tool that brings together demand and energy management options over the planning horizon.

Affordability Goal

The affordability goal, intended 1o make the Plan as predictable as possible, calls for Austn Encrgy to operate so as to
control all-in (base, fuel, dders, erc.) rate increases to residential, commercial, and industrial customer to 2% or less per
year. In addition, the goal is to maintain Austin Energy’s current all-in competitive rates in the lower 50 percent of
Texas rates overall. 'The affordability goal will apply immediately upon implementation of Austin Energy’s revenue
requirements in 2012, Austin Energy will update electric rate henchmarkmg metrics and an affordability forecast cvery
year and report 10 the City Council along with its five year financial forecast. This will allow the City Council to gauge
whether progress towards achieving the Plan’s goals is keeping Austin Energy in 1is favorable posttion related to other
electric service providers in Texas.

Developing the Plan involved extensive analysis of the expected nisks, costs, and opportunities to meer the future
demand for eleciricity services and an evaluation of the state of technology and national, state and local energy policies.
The Plan also benefited from substantial input from cihzens, customer groups, utihty advisory commussions and a City
Council-appointed task force.

The Plan is designed to be flexible and dynamic. As circumstances change, the City maintams the flexibility to modify
clements to respond to a range of faciors, including economic conditions, customer load, fuel prices and avalability,
infrastructure  build-out, technological development, law and regulations, policy direction, and customer needs.
Therefore, as conditions change, the Plan will be adapted and modified to manage risk, maintain system and service
rehability, achieve policy goals, and meet customer demand for excellence in all aspects of service. As each significant
mplementation step is undertaken through contracts, purchases or other arrangements, Austin Energy’s
recommendanions to the Gity Council will be supported by assessment of impacts on all customers and by charting the
progress each step will make toward achieving the goals outlined in the Plan,

Austin Fnergy will review the Plan annually and issue a report on petformance against goals. Austin Lnergy will reassess
the Plan in a public forum every two years. Livery major resource decision and Plan change will be taken before the City
Counail for review and authornization.

Financial Policies

In a constantly changing electric uthty industry, Austin Energy continues to follow strong financial policics aimed at
maintaining financial integnity while allowing for flexibility to respond to market and regulatory challenges. Some of the
mote significant financial policies reviewed and approved annually by City Council during the budget process are:

— Current revenue, which does not include the beginning balance, will be sufficient to support current
expenditures (defined as “structural balance™). However, if projected revenuce in future years is not sufficient to
support projected requirements, ending balance may be budgeted to achieve structural balance.

— A fund named Strategic Reserve Fund shall be created and established, replacing the Debt Management Fund.
Tt will have three components:

—  An Lmergency Reserve with a minimum of 60 days of operating cash.

—  Up to a maximum of 60 days additional operating cash set aside as a Contingency Reserve (“Contingency
Reserve™).

—  Any additional funds over the maximum 120 days of operating cash may be set aside in 2 Competitive
Reserve (“Competitive Reserve™).

— 'The General Fund Transfer shall not exceed 12% of Austin Energy’s three-year average revenues, caleulated
using the current year estimate and the previous two yeats’ actual revenues from the City’s Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report. (Actual percentage has been 9.1% since 2003.)

—  Electric ratcs shall be designed to generate sufficient revenue, after consideration of nterest income and
miscellaneous tevenue, to support (1) the full cost (direct and indirect) of operations including depreciation, (2)

27



debt sctvice, (3) General Fund transfers, (4) equity funding of capital investments, {5} requisite deposits of all
reserve accounts, (6) sufficient annual debt service requirements of the Partty Electnc Uality Obligations and
other bond covenant requirements, if applicable and (7) any other current budget directing excess net revenues
for General Iund transfers, capital investment, repair and replacement, debt management, competitive
strategies and other Austin Energy requirements such as working capital.

A complete listing of Austin Energy’s financial policies can be found at http://www.ci.austin, txus/budget/10-
11/downloads/fy11 proposed budget volume 2.pdf.

Real Estate Taxes

Austin Encrgy pays no real property taxes on facilities mside or outside the City, nor payments in lieu of taxes with
respect to Austin Energy.

CERTAIN FACTORS AFFECTING THE ELECTRIC UTILITY INDUSTRY
Rate Regulation

The City's rates, except for wholesale transmission rates, are regulated by the City Council. Ratepayers can appeal rate
changes to the Public Unlittes Commission of Texas (“PUCT™) under section 33.101 of the Public Utilines Regulatory
Act (“PURA”) by the filing of a petition with the PUCT containing the requisitc number of valid signatures from
residential ratepayers wha take service outside the City imits. State courts have held that the PUCT may apply the same
ratemaking standards to the City as are applied to utlities over which the PUCT has original junsdiction.

Section 35.004 of PURA requires the City to provide rransmission service at wholesale to another wiility, a qualifying
facility, an exernpt wholesale generator, a power marketer, power generation company, ot a retail electric provider.
Section 35.004 of PURA requires the City to provide wholesale services at rates, terms of access, and conditions that arc
not unreasonably preferential, prejudicial, discriminatory, predatory, or anti-competitive.

Rate Review

Austin Fnergy began planning for a review of its electric rate levels and rate strucrures in eatly 2010 and began work on
a cost of service siudy in October 2010. Austin Encrgy’s rate review includes reviewing its customer classes,
determining its revenue requirements, completing a cost of service analysis to determine the cost to scrve each customer
class, and designing new rates for each customer class and rate option.

To remain financially sustainable, Austin Energy must produce sufficient revenue from its retall rates to cover its
tevenue requirements and allow for ongoing operating expenses and capital improvement. The cost of service study
provides the analytic basts for identifying the true costs mncurred by Austin Linergy to provide service to different types
of customers. Austin Energy has a policy to complete a cost of service study at a mintmum of every five years. The rate
design includes an assessment of the rate structurcs for each customer class and consideration of the utility’s strategic
objectives,

The City Council-appointed Electric Utility Commission and the City Council in a series of public meetings and hearings
in late 2011 will review Austin Energy’s rate proposal. It1s expected that new rates will be implemented in eatly 2012.

State Wholesale Market Design Developments

On September 23, 2005, the Electric Reliability Council of Texas (“ERCO1™) filed with the PUCT the nodat market
Protocols developed through the ERCOT stakeholder process. The nodal Protocols incorporate specific provisions that
will allow Austin Energy to hedge congestion risk in the new market. For its generation resources in operation prior to
Scptember 1, 1999, Austin Energy will receive preassigned CRRs at a discount to the market price which are available
ptior to the auction of congestion revenue tights (“CRRs”). The setvice territory of Austin Energy will be identified as a
load zone for settlement purposes. On February 23, 2006, the PUCT voted to approve the nodal Protocols for the
ERCOT 1egion. The nodal market began operation on December 1, 2010, Austin Energy’s Enecrpgy and Market
Operations staff, system planning and operations staff, and finance and accounting staff have taken steps to modify key
systems and processcs to assure Austin Energy’s capability to participate fully in the ERCOT nodal market.
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Federal Rate Regulation

Austin Energy is not subject to Federal regulation in the establishment of rates, the issuance of secunities ox the
operation, maintenance or cxpansion of Austin Energy under current Federal statutes and regulations. Austin Encrgy
submits various reports to the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) and voluntarily utilizes the FERC
System of AAccounts in maintaining its books of accounts and records.

Under the Energy Policy Act of 2005, all users, owners and operators of the bulk-power system (including Austin
Energy) are now subject to certain FERC junisdicoon regarding the reliability of the bulk-power system. On July 20,
2006, the FERC certified the North Amencan Electric Reliability Corporation (“NERC™ as the nation’s Electric
Relizbility Organivation (“ERO”), which will be tesponsible for developing and enforcing mandatory electric reliability
standards under the FERC’s oversight. Specific Relability Standards have been developed by NLRC and approved by
the FLLRC. On Apnl 19, 2007, FERC approved the Delegation Agreement between NERC and FRCQT, which
governed the responsibilities of the “Texas Repional Entity” (a division of ERCOT) as the Regional Entity responsible
for overseeing compliance with the NERC reliability standards in the ERCOT region. Since thar ume, the Texas
Regional Linaty separated from ERCO'L and became the Texas Reliability Entity (“Texas RE”). Texas RE now oversees
compliance with the NERC reliability standards i the ERCOT region. On June 4, 2007, FERC approved an inital set
of NERC reliability standards that apply to entities operating 1n the United States. Austin Energy has established a
Reltability Compliance Office to assist Austin Energy operational orgamizations in examining the requirements for
compliance with the NERC standards and to evaluate and implement any needed changes to systems and procedures.
This process 15 verfied through external audits mvolving the Texas RE. Austin Energy has been through several audits
conducted by Texas RE.

Texas Ri: alleged that Austin FEnergy failed to comply with NERC Rehabihty Standard TRO-001-1, Requirement 8.
Fssentially, Texas RE took that position that Austin Energy, as the Qualified Scheduling Enuty for a Generation

Resource, failed to timcly convey to the Genetation Resource a directive {i.e. a dispatch instruction) received from
ERCOT.

Environmental Regulation General

Austin Encrgy’s Environmental Policy commuits that Austin Energy shall maintain its status as a leader in environmental
stewardship and continually improve ilts environmental performance. Austin Energy’s operations are subject to
environmental regulation by Federal, State and local authorities. Austin Linergy has processes in place for assuring
compliance with applicable environmental regulations. Austin Energy’s Environmental Care and Protection section
consists of a staff of educated and trained environmental compliznce professionals who are responsible for establishing
and maintaining compliance programs throughout the utility. The Environmental Carc and Protection section intetprets
existing Federal, State and local regulations and routinely track changes to regulations, which affect Austin Energy
processes. Austn Energy has prepared documentation which details roles and responsibilities for environmental
compliance throughout the organization. The Environmental Care and Protecnon section staff and facility personnel
monitot conformance with the environmental requirements and report deficiencies to facility management,
Environmental Services s also responsible for conducting environmental training for the organization.

Environmental Regulation Related to Air Emissions

Congress enacted the Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990, which included permitting requirements for power
production facilides. All of Austin Fnetgy’s large generating units have been issucd Federal Operating Permits and
Federal Acid Rain Permits for the individual units by the Texas Commission on Unvironmental Quality (“TCEQ”} and
the United States Environmental Protection Agency (“USEPA”). Refcrences to the TCLQ in this Official Statement are
wntended to include agencies whose duties and responsibilities have been assumed by the TCEQ.

In 1999, as part of legislation enacted into law which provided for comprehensive changes to the electric utility industry
in Texas (“SB7"), the State Legislature imposed new environmental regulations on power plants constructed pror to
1971 (30 Texas Administration Code (“T'AC”} 116, Electnc Generating Facility Permits, and 30 TAC 101.330,
Emissions Banking and 'I'tading of Allowances). All of Austin Energy’s then operational units were “grandfathered”
from State permitting requirements at the time of the passage of the Texas Clear Air Act in 1971. The SB7 permitting
program tnstituted a “cap and trade” program for NOx emissions. “Grandfathered” units were allocated allowances of
NQOx based on an emission rate of 0.14 Ibs. of NOx per mmBrtu times the 1997 heat input to the unit. Austin linergy’s
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SB7 permitted units must have cnough SB7 emission allowances available to cover the actual emissions from these units
on a yearly basis. If the total NOx emissions from these plants cxceed the total system allocation, Austin Energy must
purchase the addinonal allowances needed to cover its emissions. The emission-trading program will also allow Austin
Energy to sell in the open market emission allowances denived from excess NOx reductions. Since the NOx emission
rate from the Decker Unit 2 is considered very low compared to similar units, this unit was veluntarily included in this
same permitting program. By making this voluntary move, Austin Energy significamly reduced the costs of complying
with this program. A total of 1,741 tons of NOx were allocated to the “grandfathered” units and Decker Unit 2.

In addition to the NOx reductions made to comply with SB7, .\ustin Energy has made voluntary commitments to cap
the emissions of NOx from the Decker Plant and the new units at the Sand Hill Encrpy Center to a total of 1,500 tons
pet vear. 'This commitment was made in order to assist with the Farly Action Compact or EAC made between the
governmental bodies of the Austin Area and USEPA.

The TCEQ has also implemented further NOx reduction rules under 30 1'AC 117. The TCFQ now requites that coal-
fired urits that were placed mto service prior to December 31, 1995 and located in the east side of Texas (east of 1-35)
have a yeasly average NOx emission rate of 0.165 1b/mmBtu or less. This rule also requires that gas-fired boilers and gas
tuthines in this same geographic region that were placed inio service pror o December 31, 1995 (ie, all of Austin
Energy’s currently operational Decker units) have a yearly averape NOx emission rate of 0.14 Ib/mmBm or less.
Modifications made to the Decker units resulted in an average emission ratc of (.097 lbh/mmBtu for 2008.
Modifications have been made to the Fayette Power Project Units 1 & 2 (which Austin Energy co-owns with the LCRA)
and current emission rates atre averaging approximately 0.107 lb/mmBtu.  All the Decker units will comply with their
cmission limits. All the Decker gas turbine units fall under an exemption from this rule due to their limited run times.

Beginning with calendar year 2009, Austin Energy’s large facilities must comply with the Clean Air Interstate Rule
(“CAIR™), a cap-and-trade program for annual NOx emissions, CAIR, although ruled illegal by the courts, remains in
effect pending a mandate to the USEP.A to replace it.

Austin Energy and the co-owner, Lower Colorado Rwver Authorty ("LCRA™}, have installed scrubbers for Fayette
Power Project Units 1 & 2. Thesc scrubbers will reduce the emissions of SO2 from these units by at least 95%. These
scrubbets should also reduce the emissions of mercury from these units as well.

Austin Lnergy has joined the California Climate Action Registry (“CCAR”), which requires Austin Energy to report its
point and non-point sources. The emissions will be reported each year and will be certified by a third party auditor.

Greenhounse Gas Emissions

In 2007, the United States Supreme Court rendered its first major decision in the climate change area in Massachusests v
EPA. The Court held, 5-4, that carbon dioxide was an “air pollutant” for putposes of Section 202 of the Clean Air Act
{“CAA” or the “Act”) and that USEPA was required by that section to issue catbon dioxide emission standards for
motor vehicles if it found that such emissions endanger public health and welfare. 1In December 2009, USLPA made the
endangerment finding. USEPA’s endangerment finding obligated the agency, under Section 202(a) of the CAA, to issue
greenhiouse-gas emissions standards for motor vehicles. In May 2010, USEPA began discharging this duty when 1t
issued 2 final rule regulating greenhouse gas emissions from mobile sources (the “Light Duty Vehicle Rule™). With this
action, greenhouse gas emissions became “subject to regulation” under the CAA for the first ume. Under the text of the
CAA, air pollutants that are subject to regulation under the statute are subject to the Act’s Prevention of Significant
Deterioration (“PSD”) and Title V Operating-Permit (“Title V) provisions for stationary sources. Consequently,
adoption of the Light Duty Vehicle Rule trggered the regulation of new and modified stationary sources, such as power
plants, under the PSD and Title V programas. In an effort to Limit the number of affected sources, USLEPA issued a rule
on June 3, 2010 {the “Tailoring Rule”’}, which establishes heightened emission thresholds for new and modified sources.
In addition, USEPA’s reconsideration of the “Johnson Memo”, which was completed on March 29, 2010, confirmed
that the inclusion of greenhouse gas emissions in PSD) permits for new and modified sources exceeding the emission
threshold will begin on January 2, 2011.

Austin Energy is a participant in trade organizations actively monitoring potential greenhouse gas regulatory programs.
While there is much uncertainty as to how greenhousc gases will be repulated, Austin Energy believes that it 1s similarly
positioned as any other comparable electric utility with similar electric generation resources and is factodng the hest
available information into its generation resource decisions.
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Environmental Regulation Water

Wastewater discharges are regulated pursuant to the Clean Water Act National Pollution Discharge Elimination System
(“NPDES”). Storm water run-off is similarly regulated. "The USEPA has granted the TCEQ authority to implement
these programs in Texas as the Texas Polution Discharge Elimination System (“TPDES”).  Austin FEnergy’s larger
power generation facilities, Decker and Sand Hill Energy Center, have TPDES and Storm water Permits, which require
momtoring and limitations of discharges.

Auvstin Energy maintains plans for preventing and responding 1o spills of o1l and hazardous materials at its power plants
and substations as required by the Clean Water Act Spill Prevention Control and Countermeasure and Facility Response
Plan requiretnents, \ustin Energy’s spill response team responds to spills in less than one hour from the time the spills
are reported.

Envitonmental Other

Ausun Energy was selected by the TCIEQ to recetve its annual Environmental lixeellence Award for Innovative
Technology in the methods emploved for the remediation activities performed during the decommissioning of the
Seaholm Power Plant. [n 2009, planning began to decommission Austin Hnergy’s Holly Street Power Plant, which
ceased operations in 2007, In 2011, the City Councail approved the contract to begin decommissioning activities.

"The Decker Power Plant and the Favette Power Units | and 2 are “Gold” level member of Clean Texas. Clean T'exas is a
voluntary environmental leadership program to protect air, water, and land resources in the State.  Clean Texas
tecognizes organizations for creative approaches in resolving environmental challenges and setting goals that exceed
compliance levels under existing regulations.  Sand Hill Enerpy Center, Austin Energy Laboratory Services and the
Kramer Tane Service Center are “Bronze” level members in Clean Texas and have cstablished goals for reducmng
environmental impacts.

Austin Energy will continue 10 make the necessary changes 1o assure future compliance with the evolving regulatory
requirements.  Non-compliance with environmental standards or deadlines could result in reduced operating levels.
Further compliance with environmental standards or deadlines could increase capital and operating costs.

Nuclear Regulation
‘The City is a participant and co-owner of the South Texas Project (“5TDP”), a nuclear electric generation facility.

Nuclear generation facilities are subject to regulation by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (“NRC”) and are required
to obtain liability insurance and a United States Government indemnity agreement in otder for the NRC to issue
operating licenses. This primary insurance and the retrospective assessment discussed below are to insure against the
maximum lability under the Price-Anderson Act for any public clatms arising from a nuclear incident, which occurs at
any of the licensed nuclear reactors located in the United States.

STP is protected by provisions of the Price-Anderson Act, a comprehenstve statutory arrangement providing limitations
on nuclear liability and governmental indemnities even though the statutory protections for many non-commercial
reactors. The Price-Anderson Act expires on December 31, 2025. The limit of liability under the Price-Anderson Act
for licensees of nuclear power plants remains at $12.59 billion per unit per incident. The maximum amount that cach
licensee may be assessed following a nuclear incident at any insured facility is $174.95 million per unit, subject to
adjustment for inflation, for the number of operating nuclear units and for each licensed reactor, payable at $17.55
million per year per reactor for each nuclear incident. The City and each of the other partcipants of STP are subject to
such assessments, which will be shared based on their respective ownership interests in STP. For purposes of the
assessments, S1P has two licensed reactors. The participants have purchased the maximum limits of nuclear liabilicy
insurance, as required by law, and have executed indemnification agreements with the NRC, in accordance with the
financial protection requirements of the Price-Anderson Act.
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A Master Worker Nuclear Liability policy, with a maxinum limit of $300 million for the nuclear industry as a whole,
provides protection from nuclear-related claims of wotkers employed in the nuclear industry after January 1, 1988 who
do not use the workers” compensation system as sole remedy and bring suit against another party. The limit increased to
$375 million effective January 1, 2010.

NRC regulations require licensees of nuclear power plants to obtain on-site property damage insurance in 2 minimum
amount of $1.06 billion. NRC regulations also require that the proceeds from this insurance be used first to ensure that
the licensed teactor is in a safe and stable condition to prevent any significant tisk to the public health or safety, and then
to complete any decontamination operations that may be ordered by the NRC. Any funds remaining would then be
avatlable for covering direct Josses to property.

The owners of 8TP currently maintain $2.75 billion of nuclear property insurance, which is above the legally required
amount of $1.06 billion, but is less than the rotal amount available for such losses. The $2.75 billion of nucleat property
msurance consists of $500 million in prmary property damage insurance and $2.25 billion of excess property damage
msurance, both subject to a retrospective assessment being paid by all members of Nuclear Electric Insurance Limited
{"NEIL”). In the event that property losses because of an accident ar any nuclear plant insured by NEIL exceed the
accumulated fund available to NYIL, a retrospective assessment could occur. The maximum aggregate assessment
under current policies for both primary and excess property damage insurance is $29.9 million during any one-policy
year.

On March 11, 2011, a region of Japan sustained significant loss of hife and destruction because of a major earthquake
and resulting tsunami. Included in the damage areas were the Fukushima nuclear units, which lost power to components
of the backup and safety control systems and began emitting radiation into the surrounding environment. Following the
mcident, the NRC began looking into the safety aspects of nuclear plant operations in the United States with the
objective of assuting that events such as those at the Fukushima plant do not oceur in this country. While the NRC's
assessments were tentatively due by July 19, 2011, and because the review process is just beginning, it is unknown what
the exact implications will be to safety standards at existing and proposed nuclear operations in the United States.

The NRC regulations set forth mmimum amounts required to demonstrate reasonable financial assurance of funds for
decommuissioning of nucleat reactors. Beginning in 1990, each holder of an operating license is required 1o submit to the
NRC a bi-annual report indicating how reasonable assurance would be provided. The City provides the required repost
on their share of STP to the NRC, which is based on the minimum amount for decommissioning excluding waste
disposal as required by the NRC regulations of $105 million per unit (January 1986 dollars). "This minimum is required to
be adjusted annually in accordance with the adjustment factor formula set forth in the regulations. The 2008 report
provided by the City based rcasonable assurance on the minimum amount {January 1986 dollats) as adjusted by the
adjustment factor formula set forth in the regulations, The City has established an external irrevocable trust for
decommussioning with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. The City has been collecting for its share of anticipated
decommissioning activitics, which may begin as early us 2027 through its rates since Fiscal Year 1989. ‘The
decommissioning trust market value on March 31, 2011, was $168,313,175.87. For Fiscal Year 2011, Austin linergy
estimates that it wall continue to collect approximately $5 milhon for decommissioning expense. In 2007 dollars, the
minimum amount for decommissioning the City’s share of STP is $221 million.

Effective September 1, 2005, the City, as the owner of a municipal electric utility that is engaged in the sale of clectric
energy to the public, may invest funds held in a “decommissioning trust” in any investment authorized by Subtitle B,
Title 9, Texas Property Code {commonly referred to as the “lexas Trust Code”). The Texas Trust Code provides that a
trustee shall invest and manage trust assets as a prudent investor would, by considering the purposes, terms, distribution
requirements, and other circumstances of the trust. In satisfying this standard, the trustee shall exercise reasonable care,
skill, and caution. See “INVESTMENTS — Legal Investments™.
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Administration

Incorporated 1n 1839, the City operates under a Council-Manager form of government under its home rule charter. The
City Council 1s comprised of a Mayor and six council members elected ar-large for three year staggered terms,

By chatter, the City Council appoints a City Manager for an indefinite term who acts as the chief administrative and
executive officer of the City. The duties include, among others, the supervision of all City departments, the preparation
and administration of an annual budget and the preparation of a report on the finances and administrative activities of
the City. Marc Ott was appointed City Manager in January 2008.

City Manager — Marc A. Ot

Mr. Marc A, Ot was selected as City Manager for the City of Austin by the Austin City Council in January 2008. Ot is
the 17" person in city history to be appointed City Manager in a full-ime capacity. Ott previously served 2s Assistant
City Manager for infrastructure services for the City of Fort Worth. In thar role, he was responsible for Fort Worth’s
mnfrastructure opcrations carried out by the departments of Water, Transportation and Public Works, Engineering and
Avaation.  Ott was also responsible for implementing one of the City Council’s top strategic proritics: promoting
orderdy growth. Prior to his position in Fort Worth, Ott was City Administrator for the City of Rochester Hiils,
Michigan, where he had administrative and managestal oversight of all municipal operatdons. In addition, Ott was City
Manager of Kalamazoo, Michigan, from 1993 to 1997, Tle also served as that city’s Deputy City Manager for two years
and as an Assistant City Manager for almost a year. Ott earned his bachelor’s degree in management with a
concentration in economics from Michigan’s Oakland University and master’s in public administration from the same
university. He s also a graduate of the Program for Senior Execulives in State and Local Government at the John F.
Kennedy School of Government, Harvard University.

Chief Financial Officer — Leslie Browder, CPA

Ms. Leshie Browder received her BB AL jn Accounting from The University of T'exas at Austin. Her carcer with the City
spans more than 16 years. Ms Browder assumed the positton of Chief Financial Officer in September 2007, Prior to her
appointment as Chief Financial Officer, she served as the City’s Deputy Chief inancial Officer. During her tenure at
the City of Austin, she has also setved in other financial capacities, including the Chief Financial Officer for the airport.
Ms. Browder has also been employed in Chicf Financial Officer roles for Austin’s Public Transportatdon Authority, $an
Diego County’s Public Pension System and the City of Encinitas, California.

Services Provided by the City

The City’s major activities include police and fire protcction, emcrgency medical services, patks and libraries, public
health and social services, planning and zoning, general administrative services, solid waste disposal, and maintenance of
bridges, streets and storm drains. The City owns and operates several major enterprises including an electric utility
system, water and wastewater utility system, an airport and two public event facilites.

Employees

Municipal employees are prohibited from engaging in strikes and collective bargaining under State law. An exception
allows firc and policc employees to cngage in collective bargaining (but not the right to strike) after a favorable vote of
the electorate.  The volers have approved collective bargaining for fire fighters but not for police officers.
Approximately 15% of the City’s employees are members of the American Federaton of State, County and Municipal
Employees, 8% are members of the Amencan Police Association and 7% are members of the International Association
of Fire Fighters.

The City does not have automatic escalators i payroll or in its retirement systems. The retirement systems may grant
cost-of-living increases up to 6% for the municipal employees and 6% for police officers and a percentage based on the
amount of increase in the Consumer Price Index for the firemen only if recommended by the independent actuary and
approved by the retirement boards.
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Annexation Program

‘T'he City annexes termtory on a regular basis. Chapter 43 of the Texas Local Government Code regulates annexation of
terftory by the City. Prior to annexing tetritory, the City must develop a service plan descrbing the municipal
services - police and fire protection, sanitation, proviston and maintenance of public facilities such as water and
wastewater facilities, roads, streets, and parks - to be provided to the annexed area. Generally, those services may not
be at a lower level of service than provided in other arcas of the City with similar characteristics, The City is not
obligated to provide a uniform level of service to all areas of the city where differing characteristics of population,
topography, and land use provide a sufficient basts for different service levels.

Under current Texas law, there arc basically two processes for the annexation of termory into a city. The three-year
Munietpal Annexation Plan (“MAP”) process applies generally to populated annexation ateas, i.e., those that include 100
of mote propertics with a house on each lot. Unpopulated areas, areas that are annexed by consent, and areas that meet
certain other criteria follow the “exempt area process”. The processes involve staff ceview, development of a service
plan {or regulatory plan for a hmited purpose annexation), property owner notification, publication of a newspaper
notice, two public hearings, and ordinance approval. The MAD process also includes an inventory of cxisting services
and a period 1n which residents appointed by the county commissionets negotiate with city staff on the service plan.

If the annexation service plan for an annexation area mcludes a schedule for the provision of full municipal services, the
City has two and one-half years from the date of the annexation to substantially complete the capital improvements
necessaty to provide services to the area. However, if necessary, the City may proposc a longer schedule. A wide range
of services - police and fire protection, sanitation, and maintenance of public facilities such as water and wastewater
facilities, roads, streets, and parks — mmst be provided immediately following annexation. Fatlure to provide municipal
services in accordance with the service plan may provide grounds for a petition and court actton for compliance with the
service plan or for disannexation of the area, and may also result in a refund of taxes and fees collected for services not
provided. The City may not reannex for ten years any arca that was disannexed for failure to provide services; however,
the City has never been forced to disannex due to such fatlure,

Some of the arcas which may be considered for annexation will mnclude developed areas for which water, sewer, and
drainage services are being provided by udlity districts created for such purposes. Existing utility districts, as well as new
districts that may be created from time to time, may issue bonds for their own improvements. Such bonds are generally
payable from the receipts of ad valorem taxes imposed by the district and, in some cases, are further payable from any
net revenues derived from the operation of its water and sanitary sewer systems. Texas law generally requires that if a
city is annexing a district, the district must be annexed in its entirety. Upon annexation by a city, a district is dissolved
and the aty assumes the distact’s outstanding bonds and other obligations and levies and collects ad valorem taxes on
taxable property within the corporate limits of the city ad valorem taxes sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on
such assumed bonds.

The City also assumes liabilities when it annexes land in an Emergency Services District (“ESD™) and that terdtory is
disannexed from the ESDD. This hability, however, 1s limited to assumption of a pro-rata share of debt and assumption
of those facilities directly used to provide service to the area,

The City Charter and the State’s annexation laws provide the City with the ability to undertake two types of annexation.
“Full purpose” annexation, discussed above, annexes territory into the City for all purposes, including the assessment
and collection of ad valorem taxes on taxable property. The second type of annexation 1s known as “limited purpose”
annexation by which territory may be annexed for the limited purposes of “Planning and Zoning” and “Health and
Safety.” Tetritory so annexed is subject 10 ordinances achieving these purposes: chicfly, the City’s zoning ordinance,
building code, and related ordinances regulating land development. Taxes may not be imposed on property annexed for
limited purposes; municipal services are not provided; and residents of the area are restricted to voting only in City
elections for City Council and Charter amendments. The City believes that limited putpose annexation is a valuable
growth management tool. Since 1999 the City has annexed over 11,000 acres of territory for limited purposes. Strategic
Annexation Programs are developed annually, These progeams priontize areas to be considered for annexation, usually
at the end of the calendar year, thereby minimizing the fiscal impact to the City due to annexation.
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The following table sets forth (in acres) the annual results of the City’s annexations since 2000

Calendar Year Full Purpose Acres (1) Limited Purpose Acres
2000 4,057 4,184
2001 3,908 15
2002 2,019 1,957
2003 3,253 0
2004 1,114 7,030
2005 1,914 1,234
2006 351 621
2007 2,466 1,266
2008 2,262 14
2009 295 984
2010 1,129 2,495
2011 (2) 0 0

(1} Includes acres converted from hmited purpose to full purpose status,
{2) Annexations effective through July 18, 2011.

Recent Annexation

The 2010 annual program included full purpose annexation of several developed residential and commercial areas,
planned residential areas, and public right-of-way. T'ogether the City’s full and Limited purpose annexations included
approximately 8,500 residents and 3,624 acres. In accordance with the terms of the amended Strategic Partnership
Agrecment {“SPA”) between the City and the Springwoods Municipal Utilicy District, this area was annexed for limited
and later full purposcs. In addition, the city annexed the adjacent Springwoods Municipal Annexation Plan (“MAP™)
area. City Council also approved the creation and limited purpose annexation of two new Public Improvement Distrct
(“PIDs™), Whisper Valley and Indian Hills. Future full purpose annexation of these areas will occur in accordance with
the terms of the development agreement.

In accordance with the terms of a SPA between the City and the River Place Municipal Utility District (the “River Place
MUDY}, all of the territory in the River Place MUD not previously annexed by the City was annexed for limited
putposes of planning and zoning in 2009. In addition, the 2009 annual program mcluded full purpose annexation of
three small developed residential areas, a commercial and industrial arca, and city owned property. Austin surpassed 300
square miles in incorporated area in 2010 and the city’s estimated population grew to 778,560 people. Austin remains
the 15th most populous city in the United States.

In 2008, Austin annexed the largest population since 1997, approximately 13,400 people. The largest of the 2008
annexations was Anderson Mill Municipal Utlity District, which is more than 1,000 actes in size. This annexation
resulted from a 1998 strategic partnership agreement between the City and the district. Other populated areas annexed
for full purposes in 2008 include Notth Actes and Anderson Mill Fstates, most of which were already in the City’s
limited purpose jurisdiction duc to 1984 annexations. The City also annexed commercial propetties and several new
subdivisions under development. The taxable assessed value (TAV) annexed in 2008 was over $1.1 billion.

2007 saw the conversion of Watersedge, Ribelin Ranch, and approximately one-half of Goodnight Ranch from limited
purposes to full putposes. In addition, the final remaining portions of Avery Ranch, annexed for limited putposes in
2000, were converted to full purposes. Several planned residential subdivisions in the ET] were annexed. In total, 2,466
full purpose acres and 322 million in TAV were annexed in 2007.

The Pearce Lane/Ross Road atea, located in southeast Travis County, was converted to full purpose annexation status in
December 2006. This annexation area was added to the City of Austin’s MAP in 2003 and includes two Del Valle
Independent School District sites. Approximatcly $83 million in TAV and over 2,500 residents were added to the City.
Sunfield Municipal Utlity District No. 2 includes 575 acres southeast of Austin and was annexcd for limited purposes in
2006.

In 2005, full purpose annexation of the Springfield and Walnut Creek MAP areas added over $123 million in TAV and
375 acres to the City of Austin. Neaddy all the remaining Avery Ranch subdivision areas in Williamson County were
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converted from limited to full purpose annexation status in 2005, A total of 1,914 fuil purpose acres und over §140
million in TAY were annexed in 2005. Limited purpose arcas annexed included Goodnight Ranch, Watersedge and the
Woods at Greenshorcs.

Approximately §50 million in TAV was anncxed for full purposes in 2004. Over 6,000 acres northwest of the City,
known as the Robinson Ranch area, and the 748 acte Ribelin Ranch area, were annexed for limited purposes in June
2004.

Future Anncxation

Duc to reduced land development acuvity, fewer areas are scheduled to be annexed under this year’s annual program.
However, in the next several years, special districts are scheduled for annexation under proposed or approved
agreements, as descabed helow:

—  Lost Creek Municipal Unlity District — commercial area was annexed in 2008 while annexation of the
remaining residential property is scheduled to take place n 2015 under the terms of the SPA.

~  River Phace MUY — full purpose annexation 1s scheduled to take place in December 2017 in accordance wrth
the terms of the SPA.

Pension Plans

There ate three contnbutory defined benefit retivement plans for the Municipal, Fire, and Police ecmployees. State faw
requires the City to make contributions to the funds in an amount at least equal ro the contributton of the employee
group.

The Police Officers contribute 13.0% and the City contributes 20.63% of payroll as of October 1, 2011. The Municipal
employees and the City each contribute 8.0%. The Firefighters (who are not members of the Social Sccurity System)
contribute 16.2% of payroll, and the City contributes 20.05% as of October 1, 2011.

" The contabutions to the pension funds are designed to fund current service costs and to amortize the unfunded
actuarial accrued hability. As of December 31, 2010, the amortization pertod of the unfunded actuanal accrued liability
for the Police Officer’s T'und was 23.2 years and for the Municipal limployees Fund it was infinite. T'he Firefighters
Fund did not perform a December 31, 2010 actuarial study. The amortization period of the unfunded actuarial accrued
liability fur the Firefighters IFund was 20.5 years as of [December 31, 2009,

The actuarial accrued liability for the Municipal Employces I'und as of December 31, 2010 was $2,460,664,794 and the
funded ratio was 69.6%. The actvarial accrued liability for the Police Officers’ Fund as of December 31, 2010 was
$776,231,027 and the funded ratio was 70.5%. The actuarial accrued hability for the Firefighters Pension Fund as of
December 31, 2009, was $664,185,240 and the funded ratio was 88.7%.

As reported in the actuanal valuaton of the Municipal Employces Fund prepared for the period ending
December 31, 2009, cutrent contrbutions to the Municipal Employees IFund are not sufficient to adequatcly fund the
current benefit structure.  Although the Municipal Employees Fund has had an infinite funding period since
December 31, 2002, investment losses in 2008 of -25.9% led 10 a significant decrease in the actuarial funded matio and a
significant increase to the unfunded actuarial accrued liability. 1n 2005, a Supplemental Funding Plan (“SFP”) was
approved that increased the City’s annual contribution rate to a maximum of 12%, but even this additional funding was
not sufficient to restore the longterm financial health of the Municipal Employees Fund. Tn FY 2011, City Council
approved an amendment to the SFP that increased the City contributions by 2% annually, with a maximum rate of 18%
of pay to be contributed by 2013. The City contributed an addittonal 6% in FY 2011 and will contribute an additional
8% in I'Y 2012 pursuant to the terms of the SFP. In addition, a new benefit tier for new employees hired on or after
January 1, 2012, has been approved by the Municipal Employees Fund Board of Trustees, the City Council and the
Texas Legislatre. The new benefit tier increases the age and service criteria necessary to reach retirement cligibility. Tt
also decreases the pension multiplier, which is used to determine the final pension amount paid to future retirees. These
two actions are cxpected to substantially improve the long-term financial health of the Municipal Employees Iund over
tune,

Sce Note 8 to the City’s Financial Statements for additional information on the City’s Pension Plans.
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Other Post-Employment Benefits

In addition to providing pension benefits, the City provides certain health care and msurance benefits to its retirees. Any
retivee who is eligible to reccive retirement benefits under any of the City’s three pension plans is eligible for these
benefits. Post retirernent benefits include health, dental, viston, and $1,000 of lifc insurance. The City pays a portion of
the retirec’s medical insurance premiums and a portion of the retiree’s dependents’ medical insurance premium. The
portion paid by the City varics according to age, coverage sclection and years of service. The City pays the entire cost of
the premium for life insurance for the retiree.

The City recognizes the cost of providing these benefits as payroll cxpenscs/expenditures in an operating fund with
corresponding revenue in the Employee Benefis Fund and are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. The cstimated cost of
providing these benefits for 3,118 retirees was $21.7 million in 2010 and $19.6 million in 2009 for 3,115 retirees.

As of September 30, 2010, the Ciry’s unfunded actuarial accrued hability is approximately $1.1 billion; the net OPLB
obligation 13 $270.1 milhon. The City has worked with a task force consisting of employees and retirees to determine
which elements of the retiree health care plan they value most highly. Using their input and information from other
sources, the City has run alternate scenarios 1o assess the effect these would have on reducing retrce benefits or
developing other cost-sharing strategies. Cost reduction strategies have also been implemented.

Insurance

The Liabihty Reserve Fund s the insurance fund of the City for settled claims, cxpenses, and teserves relating to fifth
party hability claims for injury and property damage, including professional kability. The Lialnhty Reserve 1und 1s used
to pay for actual claims incurred and related expenscs for scttling these claims, for budgered admintstrative costs for the
fund’s operations, and to estimate incurred, but not reported claums. The Liability Reserve Fund had accrued liabilitics
of approximately $7.5 million for claims and damages at the end of fiscal year 2010. Employee injuries are covered by
the Workers” Compensation Fund, and health claims are protected by the Emplovee Benefits Fund.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION

In the Ordinances, the City has made the following agreement for the benefit of the Holders and heneficial owners of
the Bonds. The City is required to cbserve the agreement for so long as it remains obligated to advance funds to pay the
Bonds. Under the agreement, the City will be obligated to provide certain updated financial information and operating
data annually, and timely notice of certain specified cvents, to the Municipal Scouritics Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”).

Annual Reports

The City will provide certain updated financial information and operating data to the MSRB annually. Thc information
to be updated includes all quantitative financial information and operating data with respect to the City of the general
type 1ncluded in the main text of the Official Statement within the vatious tables and in APPENDIX B. The City will
update and provide this information as of the end of each fiscal year within six months after the end of each fiscal year.
The City will provide the updated information to the MSRB through its Electronic Municipal Markets Access
(“EMMA™) information system.

The City may provide updated information in full text or may incorporate by reference certain other publicly available
documents, as permitted by Rule 15¢2-12 (the “Rule”), promulgated by the United States Securities and Fxchange
Commission (the “SEC”). 'The updated information will include audited financial statements, if the City commissions an
audit and 1t is completed by the required time. If audited financial statements are not provided by that time, the City will
provide audited financial statements when and if they become available. Any such financial statements will be prepared
in accordance with the accounting principles descrbed in APPENDIX B or such other accounting principles as the City
may be required to employ from time to time pursuant to State law or regulation.

The City’s current fiscal year is October 1 to September 30. Accordingly, it must provide updated information by

March 31 of each vear unless the City changes its fiscal year. If the City changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB of
the change.
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Disclosure Event Notices

The City shall noufy the MSRB, in a timely manner not in excess of ten Business Days after the occurrence of the event,
of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds: (1) principal and interest payment delinquencies; (2) non-
payment related defaults, if matenal; (3) unscheduled draws on debt service rescrves reflecting financial difficulties; (4)
unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; (5) substitution of credit or liquidity
providers, or theit failure to perform; (6) adverse tax opintons, the issuance by the Intemal Revenue Service of proposed
or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issuc (IRS Form 5701-TEHB) or other material notices or
determinations with respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds;
(7) modifications to rights of holders of the Bonds, if material; (8) Bond calls, if material, and tender offers; (9
defeasances; {10) release, substitution, or sale of property sccuring repayment of the Bonds, if matenal; (11) rating
changes; {12} bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the City; (13) the consummation of a merger,
consolidation, or acquisition involving the City or the sale of all or substanually all of the assets of the City, other than in
the ordinary course of busingss, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a
definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if matenal; and (14} appointment of a
successor Paying JApgent/Registrar or change in the name of the Paying Agent/Registrar, if materdal. (Neither the Bonds
not the Ordinances make any provision for debt service reserves or credit or bquidity enhancement.) As used in clause
12 above, the phrase “bankruptcy, insolvency, recetvership or similar event” means the appointment of a recciver, fiscal
agent or similar officer for the City in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankeuptey Code or in any other proceeding under
state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the
assels ot business of the City, or if jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the City Council and official or officers of
the City in possession burt subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an
order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or hquidation by a court or governmental autherty having
supervision or jutisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the City. The term “Business Day™ means a
day other than a Saturday, Sunday, a legal holiday, or a day on which banking institutions are authonized by law or
executive order to close tn the City or the city where the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying
Agent/Registrar is located.

Availability of Information

In conneciion with its continuing disclosure agrcement entered into with zespect to the Bonds, the City will file all
required information and documentation with the MSRB in electronic format in accordance with MSRB guidelines.
Access to such filings will be provided, without charge to the general public, by the MSRB at www.emma.msrb.org.

Limitations and Amendments

The City has agreed to update information and to provide notices of certain specified events only as described above.
The City has not agreed to provide other information that may be relevant or material to a complete presentation of its
financial results of operations, condition, or prospects or agreed to update any information that is provided, except as
descrbed above. The Ciry makes no representation or warranty concerning such information or concerming its
usefulness to a deciston to mvest in or sell Bonds at any future date. The City disclaims any contractual or tort lability
for damages resulting in whole or in part from any breach of its continuing disclosure agreement or from any statement
made pursuant to its agreement, although Holders of Bonds may seek a writ of mandamus to compel the City to comply
with its agreement.

‘The City may amend its continuing disclosure agreement from time to time to adapt to changed circumstances that arise
from a change in legal requirements, a change 1n law, or a change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of
the City, if (i) the agreement, as amended, would have permitted an underwriter to purchase or sell Bonds in the offering
described herein in compliance with the Rule, taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the rule to the
date of such amendment, as well as such changed circumstances, and (i1) either (a} the holders of a majonty in aggregate
principal amount of the outstanding Bonds consent to the amendment or (b) any person unaffiliated with the City (such
as nationally recognized bond counsel) determines that the amendment will not matenally impair the interests of the
holders and beneficial owners of the Bonds. The City may also amend or repeal the provisions of this continuing
disclosure agreement if the SEC amends or repeals the applicable provisions of the Rule or a court of final jurisdiction
enters judgment that such provisions of the Rule are invalid, but only if and to the extent that the provisions of this
sentence would not prevent an underwriter from lawfully purchasing or selling Bonds in the primary offering of the
Bonds. If the City so amends the agreement, it has agreed to include with the next financial information and operating
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data provided in accordance with its agreement. described above under “Annual Reports” an explanation, in narrative
form, of the reasons for the amendment and of the impact of any change in the type of financial information and
operating data so provided.

Compliance with Prior Undertakings

During the last five (5) years, the City has complied 1 all material respects with all continuing disclosure agrcements
made by it in accordance with the Rule. On October 24, 2007, the Ciry filed its andited financial statements for the fiscal
yeat ended September 30, 2006, in accordance with the Rule. Prior to this datc the City had filed unaudited financial
statements, in accordance with the Rule, pursuant to its continuing disclosure agreements.

TAX MATTERS

THE FOLLOWING DISCUSSION, WHICH WAS WRITTEN TO SUPPORT THE PROMOTION OR
MARKETING OF THE SALE OF THE BONDS, IS NOT INTENDED OR WRITTEN TO BE USED, AND
CANNOT BE USED BY ANY TAXPAYER, TO AVOID PENALTIES THAT MIGITI BE IMPOSED ON THE
TAXPAYER IN CONNECTION WITH THE MATTERS DISCUSSED BELOW. INVESTORS SHOUILD
CONSULT THEIR OWN TAX ADVISORS CONCERNING TIE TAX IMPLICATIONS OF THE PURCHASE,
OWNERSHIP OR DISPOSITION OF THE BONDS UNDER APPLICABLE STATE OR LOCAL LAWS, OR
ANY OTHER TAX CONSEQUENCE.

Certain Federal Income Tax Considerations

General. ‘1he following discussion 1s 4 summary of certain expected marenal federal income tax consequences of the
purchase, ownership and disposition of the Bonds and 1s based on the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the
“Cade”), the regulations promulgated thereunder, published rulings and pronouncements of the Intemal Revenue
Service (“IR5”) and court decisions currently in effect. There can be no assurance that the IRS will not take a contrary
view, and no ruling from the IRS, has been, or1s expected to be, sought on the issues discussed herein, .\ny subsequent
changes or interpretations may apply retroactively and could affect the opinion and summary of federal income tax
consequences discussed herein.

The following discussion is not a complcte analysis or description of all potential U.S. federal tax considerations that
may be relevant to, or of the actual tax effect that any of the matters described herein will have on, particular holders of
the Bonds and does not address U.S. federal gift or estatc tax or (as otherwisc stated hetein) the alternative minimum
tax, state, local or other tax consequences. This summary does not address special classcs of taxpayers (such as
partnerships, or other pass-thru entities treated as a partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purposes, S corporations,
mutual funds, insurance companics, financial 1nstitutions, small business investment companies, regulated investment
companies, real estate investment trusts, grantor trusts, former citizens of the U.S,, broker-dealers, traders in securities
and tax-exempt organizations, individual recipients of Social Security or Railroad Retirement benefits, taxpayers who
may be subject to ot personal holding company provisions of the Code) that ate subject to special treatment under U.S.
federal mcome tax laws, or persons that hold Bonds as a hedge against, or that are hedged against, currency risk or that
are part of hedge, straddle, conversion or other integrated transaction, or persons whose functional currency is not the
“U1.S. dollas”. This summary is further limited to investors who will hold the Bands as “capital assets” (generally,
praperty held for investment) within the meaning of section 1221 of the Code. This discussion is based on existing
statutes, regulations, published rulings and court decisions, all of which are subject to change or meodification,
retroactively.

As used herein, the term “U.S, Holder” means a beneficial owner of a Bond who or which is: (i} an individual citizen ot
resident of the United States, (ii) a corporation ot partnership created or organized under the laws of the United States
or any political subdivision thereof or therein, (i) an estate, the income of which is subject to 11.S. federal income tax
regardless of the source; or (iv) a trust, if (1) a court within the U.S. is able to exercise primary supervision over the
administraton of the trust and one or more U.S. persons have the authorty to control all substantial decisions of the
trust, ot (b} the trust validly elects to be treated as a U.S, person for U.S, federal income tax purposes. As used herein,
the term “Non-U.S. Holder” means a beneficial owner of a Bond that is not 2 U.S. Holder.

THIS SUMMARY IS INCLUDED HEREIN FOR GENERAL INFORMATION ONLY AND DOES NOT
DISCUSS ALL ASPECTS OF THE U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAXATION THAT MAY BE RELEVANT TO A
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PARTICULAR HOLDER OF BONDS IN LIGHT Ol THE HOLDER’S PARTICULAR CIRCUMSTANCES AND
INCOME TAX SITUATION. PROSPECTIVE HOLDERS O 'I'TIE BONDS SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN
TAX ADVISORS AS TO TTIE TAX TREATMENT WHICH MAY BE ANTICIPATED TO RESULT FROM THE
PURCHASE, OWNERSHIP AND DISPOSITION OF THE BONDS BEFORY. DETERMINING WHETHER TO
PURCHASE BONDS.

FOREIGN INVESTORS SHOULD ALSO CONSULT THEIR OWN TAX ADVISORS REGARDING TIIE TAX
CONSEQUENCES UNIQUE T'O NON-U.S. HOLDERS.

Future and Proposed Legislation

Tax legislation, administrative actions taken by tax authorities, or court decisions, whether at the federal or state level,
may adversely affect the tax cxempt status of interest on the Senes 2011A Bonds under federal or state law and could
affect the market price or marketability of the Series 2011A Bonds. Any such legislation, action or court decision could
limit the value of certain deductions and exclusions, including the exclusion for tax-exempt mnterest. The likelihood of
any such legislation, action or court decision being enacted or becoming effective cannot be predicted.  Prospeetive
purchasers of the Series 2011 A Bonds should consult their own tax advisors regarding the foregoing matters.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

Subject to certain exceptions, information repoits desenibing interest income, including original issue discount, with
respect to the Bonds will be sent to each registered holder and to the IRS. Payments of mnterest and principal may be
subject to backup withholding under section 3406 of the Code if 4 recipient of the payments fails to furnish to the payor
such owner's social security number or other taxpayer 1dentification number (“TIN”), furnishes an incorrect TIN, or
otherwise fails to establish an exemption from the backup withholding tax. Any amounts so withheld would be allowed
as a credit agatnst the recipient’s federal income tax. Special rules apply to partnerships, cstates and trusts, and in certain
circumstances, and in respect of Non-U.S, Holders, certiftcations as lo foreign status and other matters may be required
to be provided by partners and beneficiaries thereof,

Tax-Exempt Bonds
Opinion

On the date of initial delivery of the Series 2011A Bonds, McCall, Parkhurst & Horton LL.P., Bond Counsel, will render
its opinion that, in accordance with statutes, regulations, published rulings and court decisions existing on the date
thereof (“Existing Law™), (1) for federal income tax purposes, interest on the Senes 20114 Bonds will be excludable
from the “gross income” of the holders thereof and (2) the Series 2011A Bonds will not be treated as “specified private
activity bonds”, the mterest on which would be included as an altemative minimum tax preference item under section
57(a)(5) of the Code. Except as stated above, Bond Counsel will cxpress no opinion as to any other federal, state or
local tax conscquences of the purchase, ownership or disposition of the Sertes 2011A Bonds. See APPENDIX C -
Forms of Bond Counsel’s Opinions.

In rendering its opinions, Bond Counsel will rely upon (a) certain information and representations of the Issuer,
including information and representations contained in the City’s federal tax certificate related to the Series 2011A
Bonds, and (b) covenants of the City contamned in the Series 2011A Ordmance relating to certain matters, including
arbitrage and the use of the proceeds of the Series 2011A Bonds and the property financed or refinanced thercwith.
Failure by the City to observe the aforementioned representations or covenants could cause the interest on the Sedes
2011A Bounds of any series to become taxable retroactively to the date of issuance.

The Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder contain a number of requrements that must be satisfied
subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order for interest on the Series 2011A Bonds to be, and to remain,
excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Failure to comply with such requirements may cause
intercst on the Seres 2011A Bonds to be included in gross income retroactively to the date of issuance of the Series
2011A Bonds. The opinion of Bond Counsel is conditioned on comphiance by the City with such requirements, and

Bond Counsel has not been retained to monttor comphiance with these requirements subsequent to the issuance of the
Series 2011A Bonds.
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Bond Counsel’s opinion regarding the Series 2011A Bonds represents its legal judgment based upon its review of
Existing Law and the rellance on the aforementoned mnformation, representations and covenants. Bond Counsel’s
opinion refated to the Series 2011A Bonds is not a guarantee of a resnlt. Existung Law is subject to change by the
Congress and to subsequent judicial and administrative interpretation by the courts and the Department of the Treasury.
There can be no assurance that Existing Law or the interpretation thereof will not be changed in a2 manner which would
adversely affect the tax treatment of the purchasc, ownership or disposition of the Seres 2011A Bonds.

Federal Lncome Tax Acconnting Treatment of Orzginal Lisue Disconnt

The inmnal public offering price to be paid for one or more maturities of the Series 2011.A Bonds may be less than the
principal amount thereof or one or more periods for the payment of interest on the bonds may not be equal to the
accrual period ot be in cxeess of one year (the “Original Issuc Discount Bonds™). In such event, the difference between
(1) the “stated redemption prce at maturity” of each Onginal Issue Discount Bond, and (if) the initial offering price to
the public of such Onginal Issuc Discount Bond would consttute onginal issue discount. The “stated redemption pnce
at maturity” means the sum of all payments to be made on the bonds less the amount of all periodic interest payments.
Periodic inferest payments are payments which are made during equal accrual periods (or during any uncqual period if it
is the initia] or final period) and which are made during acerual perdods which do not exceed one year.

Under Fxisting Law, any U.8. Holder who has purchased a Series 2011A Bond as an Qriginal Issue Discount Bond in
the initial public offering is eatitled 10 exclude from gross income {as defined in section 61 of the Code) an amount of
income with respect to such Original Issue Iiscount Bond equal to that portion of the amount of such onginal tssue
discount allocable to the accrual period. For a discussion of certain collateral federal tax consequences, sec discussion
sct forth below. In the event of the redemption, sale or other taxable disposition of such Onginal Issne Discount Bond
prior to stated maturity, however, the amount realized by such U.S. Haolder in excess of the basis of such Orginal Issue
Discount Bond 1n the hands of such U.5. Holder (adjusted upward by the portion of the onginal 1ssue discount allocable
to the period for which such Original Issue Discount Bond was held by such initial owner) is includable in gross income.

Under Lixisting Law, the onginal issuc discount on each Original Issue Discount Bond is accrued datly to the srared
maturity thercof (in amounts calculated as described below for each accrual period and ratably within each such accrual
period) and the accrued amount is added 1o an imtal owner’s basis for such Onginal Issue Piscount Bond for purposes
of determining the amount of gain or loss recognized by such owner upon the redemption, sale or other disposition
thercof. ‘The amount to be added to basis for each accrual period is equal to (a) the sum of the issue price and the
amount of original issue discount accrued in prior pertods multiphied by the yield to stated marurity (determined on the
basis of compounding at the close of each accrual period and properly adjusted for the length of the accrual period) less
() the amounts payable as current interest during such accrual period on such Original Issue Discount Bond.

All U8, Holders of Original Issue Discount Bonds should consult their own ¢ax advisors with respect to the
determination for federal, state and local income tax purposes of the treatment of interest accrued upon redemption, sale
or other disposition of such Onginal Issuc Thscount Bonds and with respect to the federal, state, local and forcign tax
consequences of the purchase, ownership, redemption, sale or other disposition of such Original Issue Discount Bonds.

Collateral I'ederal Income Tax Consequences

Interest on the Series 2011A Bonds will be includable as an adjustment for “adjusted current earnings™ to calculate the
alternative mimimum tax imposed on corporations by section 55 of the Code.

Under section 6012 of the Code, U.5. Holders of tax-exempt obligations, such as the Series 20114 Bonds, may be
required to disclose interest recetved or accrued during each taxable year on their returns of federal income taxation.

Section 1276 of the Code ptovides for ordinary income tax treatment of gain recognized upon the disposition of a tax-
exempt obhigation, such as the Series 2011A Bonds, if such obligation was acquired at a “market discount” and if the
fixed maturity of such obligation 1s equal to, or exceeds, one year from the date of issue. Such treatment applies to
“market discount bonds” to the extent such gain does not exceed the accrued market discount of such bonds; although
for this purpose, a de minimis amount of market discount is ignored. A “matket discount bond” is one which is
acquired by the holder at a purchase price which is less than the stated redemption ptice at maturity or, in the case of a
bond issued at an onginal issuc discount, the “revised issue price” (ie., the issue price plus accrued original issue
discount). The “accrued market discount” is the amount which bears the same ratio to the market discount as the
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number of days during which the holder holds the obligation bears to the number of days between the acquisition date
and the final marurity date.

Taxable Bonds

Certain U.S. Federal Tncome Tase Consequences to US. FHolders

Perodic Interest Payments and Original Issue Discount. ‘The Seres 2011B Bonds are not obligations described in
section 103(a) of the Code. .\ccordingly, the stated interest paid on the Series 2011B Bonds or original issue discount, if

any, accruing on the Sertes 2011B Bonds will be includable in “gross income” within the meaning of section 61 of the
Code of cach owner thercof and be subject to federal income taxation when received or accrued, depending upon the
tax accounting method applicable to such owner.

Disposition of Bonds. An owner will recognize gain or loss on the redemption, sale, exchange or other disposition of a
Series 2011B Bond equal to the difference between the redemption or sale price (exclusive of any amount paid for
accrved interest) and the owner's tax basis in the Senes 2011B Bonds. Generally, a U.S. Holder's tax basis in the Scrics
20118 Bonds will be the owner's initial cost, increased by income reported by such 11.8. Holder, including original issue
discount and market discount income, and reduced, but not below zero, by any amortized premium. Any gain ot loss
generally will be a capital gain or Joss and cither will be long-term or short-term depending on whether the Series 2011B
Bonds has been held for more than one year.

Defeasance of the Taxable Bonds. Defeasance of any Series 2011B Bond may result in a reissuance thereof, for 1.5,
federal income tax purposes, in which event a U.S. Holder will recognize taxable gain or loss as described above.

Certain ULS. Federal Incore Tax Conseguencer to Non-US. Holders

A Non-U.S. Holder that is not subject to U.S. federal income tax as a result of any direct or indirect connection to the
L.S. in addition to its ownership of a Series 2011B Bond, will not be subject 1o U1.5. federal income or withholding tax in
respect of such Series 201118 Bond, provided that such Non-U.S. Holder comphies, to the extent necessary, with
identification requirements including delivery of a signed statement under penalties of perjury, certifying that such Non-
U.S. Holder 1s not a US. person and providing the name and addtess of such Non-U.S. Holder. Absent such
exempiion, payments of interest, including any amounts paid or accrued in respect of accrued original issue discount,
may be subject to withholding taxes, subject to reduction under any applicable tax treaty. Non-U.S. Holders are urped to
consult their own tax advisors regarding the ownership, sale or other disposition of a Sertes 2011B Bond.

The foregoing rules will not apply to exempt a U.S. shareholder of a controlled foreign corporation from taxation on the
U.S. shareholder’s allocable portion of the interest income received by the controlled foreign corporation.

OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION
Ratings

The Bonds have recetved ranngs of “AAA” by Standard & Poor’s Rating Services, a Standard & Poor’s Financial
Services LLC business (“S&P”), “AAA” by Fitch Raungs, Inc. (“Fitch”) and “Aaa” by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.
(“Moody’s”). The presently outstanding ad valorem tax supported debt of the City is rated “AAA” by S&P, “AAA” by
Fitch and “Aaa” by Moody’s. An explanation of the significance of such ratings may be obtained from the company
furnishing the rating. The ratings reflect only the respective views of such organizations and the City makes no
tepresentation as to the appropratencss of the ratings. There is no assurance that such ratings will continue for any
given period of time or that they will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by such rating companies, if in the
judgment of one or all such companies, circumstances so warrant. Any such downward revision or withdrawal of such
ratings, ot by any onc of them, may have an adverse effect on the marker price of the Bonds. The City will undertake no
responsibility to notify the owners of the Bonds of any such revisions or withdrawal of ratings.

In addition, due to the ongoing uncertainty regarding the economy and debt of the United States of America, including,

without limitation, general economic conditions and poltical developments that may affect the financial condition of the
United States government, the United States debt himit, and bond and credit ratngs of the United States and its
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mstrumentalities, the ranngs of obligations 1ssued by state and local governments (such as the Bonds) could be adversely
affected.

Litigation

A number of claims aganst the City, as well as certain other matters of litigation, ate pending with respect to various
matters arising in the normal course of the City’s operations. The City Attomey and the City Management are of the
opinion that resolution of the claims pending (including the matters described below)} will not have a matenal effect on
the City’s operations or financial condition or the financial condition of the Lilectric Utility System and/or the Water and
Wastewater System.

Electric Utility System Litigation

The City is in litigation with the owner of a block of land in downtown Austin, which is the site of a municipal parking
garage and utihty-owned chilled-water plant site. The chilled-water plant 1s one of two currently providing chilled-water
services to some of Austin Energy’s commercial customers in the downtown arca. The City initated a condemnation
proceeding against the land on August 9, 2001 in Travis County Probate Court as Cause No. 2403, City of Austin ».
Whittinglon, et al. "Vhe trial court granted the City summary judgment upholding the City’s nght to condemn the land, and
a jury awarded the condemnee a price of $7.75 million. The condemnee appealed the condemnation procecding. it also
brought a related suit for declaratory judgment in the 250th Travis County District Court, Cause No. GN302752,
W hittington, ef al v. City of Anstin, alleging the City had failed to include an alleyway crossing the land in its condemnadon
proceeding, and thus had not taken title 10 the entire block. In the onginal condemnation proceeding, the Third Court
of Appeals (Case No. 03-03-00496-CV) reversed the tnal court’s summary judgment, holding that the City had failed to
meet its burden to show the Ciy Counall made proper determiations of public purpose and necessity in deciding to
condemn the Jand. The Texas Supreme Court declined to review the appellate court’s decision. In the separate alleyway
case, the trial court entered judgment agamst the City, finding that the City had failed to include the alleyway in its
condemnation proceeding and thus did not hold ntle to the alleyway portion of the land. The cascs were consolidated
and tried to a jury in Apnl 2007, The jury found against the City on its affitmative defense, and valued the property at
$10.5 milhon. The City appealed. The Third Court of Appeals upheld the wial court verdict. The City has filed a
petition for review with the Texas Supreme Court. The City is unable to predict the outcome of the appeal.

Registration and Qualification

The sale of the Bonds has not been registered under the Federal Secunties Act of 1933, as amended, in rcliance upon the
exemption provided thereunder by Secton 3(a)(2); and the Bonds have not been qualified under the Securities Act of
Texas in reliance upon vatious exemptions contained therein; nor have the Bonds been qualified under the secutities acts
of any jurisdiction. The City assumes no responsibility for qualification of the Bonds under the securities laws of any
jutisdiction in which thc Bonds may be sold, assigned, pledged, hypothecated or otherwise transferred. This disclaimer
of responsibility for qualification for sale or other disposition of the Bonds shall not be construed as an interpretation of
any kind with regard to the availability of any exemption from securities registration provisions.

Legal Investments and Eligibility to Secure Public Funds in Texas

Under the Texas Public Security Procedures Act (Texas Government Code, Chapter 1201), the Bonds ate (i) negotiable
instruments, (i) investment securities to which Chapter 8 of the Texas Uniform Commercial Code apphes, and (iti) Jegal
and authorized investments for (A) an insurance company, (B) a fiduciary or trustee, or (C) a sinking fund of a
municipality or other political subdivision or public agency of the State of Texas. The Bonds are eligible to secure
deposits of any public funds of the State, its agencies and political subdivisions, and are legal secunty for those deposits
to the extent of their market value. For political subdivisions in Texas which have adopted investment policies and
gwidelines in accordance with the PFIA, the Bonds may have to be assigned a rating of at least “A” or its equivalent as to
investment quality by a national rating agency before such obligations arc eligible investments for sinking funds and
other public funds. In addition, vanous provisions of the Texas Finance Code provide that, subject to a prudent
investor standard, the Bonds are legal investments for state banks, savings banks, trust companies with at least $3 miilion
of capital and savings and loan associattons.

The City has made no investigation of other laws, rulcs, regulations or investment criteria which might apply to such
institutions or entitics or which might limir the suitability of the Bonds for any of the foregoing purposcs or limit the
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authonty of such mstitutions or entities to purchase or invest in the Bonds for such purposes. The City has made no
review of laws in other states to determine whether the Bonds arce legal investments for various nstitutions in those
states.

Legal Opinions and No—Litigation Certificate

The City will furnish a complete transcript of procecdings had incident to the authorization and issuance of the Bonds
including the unqualified approving legal opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas approving the Bonds
and to the effect that the Bonds are valid and legally binding obligations of the City, and based upon examination of
such mranscript of proceedings, the approving legal opinion of Bond Counsel, to like cffect and to the cffect that the
interest on the Bonds will be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103(a) of the
Code, subject to the matters described under “TAX MATI'LRS” herein. The customary closing papers, including a
certificate 1o the cffect that no litigation of any nature has been filed or is then pending to restrain the issuance and
delvery of the Bonds or which would affect the provision made for their payment or sccurity or in any manner
questioning the validity of the Bonds will also be furnished. Bond Counsel was not requested to participate, and did not
take part, in the preparation of the Official Statement, and such firm has not assumed any responsibility with respect
thereto or underraken independently to verify any of the information contained therein, excepr that, in ifs capacity as
Bond Counsel, such firm has reviewed the information under the captions “PLAN Ol FINANCING” (exclusive of the
subcaption “Sources and Uses of Funds™), “BONI INFORMATION™ (exclusive of the subcaptions “Remedies™ and
“Book-Lntry-Only Systern”), “CONTINUING DISCILOSURE OF INFORMATION” (exclusive of the subcaption
“Compliance with Prior Undertakings™), “TAX MATTERS” and the subcapuons “OTHER RELEVANT
INFORMATION - Registration and Qualification,” “OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION  Legal Investments and
liligibility to Secure Public Funds m Texas” and “OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION - Legal Opinmons and No-
Litigation Cettificate” in the Official Statement and such firm 15 of the opmion that the informaton relating to the
Bonds and the legal issues contained under such captions and subcaptions 1s an accurate and fair descnption of the laws
and legal issues addressed therein and, with respect to the Bonds, such information conforms to the Ordinances. The
legal fees to be paid Bond Counsel for services rendered in connection with the issuance of each senies of the Boads are
contingent on the sale and delivery of the Bonds. The legal opinions will accompany the Bonds deposited with DTC or
will be printed on the Bonds in the cvent of the discontinuance of the Book- Lintry-Only System. Certain lepal matters
will be passed upon for the Underwriters by their counsel, Andrews Kurth LLP, Ausun, Texas. In connection with the
transactions described in this Official Statement, Bond Counsel represents only the City.

Financial Advisor

Public Imancial Management, Inc. (“PFM™), Austin, Texas, 1s employed as Financial Advisor to the City in connection
with the issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds. The payment of the fee for services rendered by PFM with respect to
the sale of the Bonds is contingent upon the issuance and delivery of the Bonds. PFM, in its capacity as Financtal
Advisor, has not verified and does not assume any responsibility for the information, covenants and representations
contained inn any of the bond documentation with respect to the federal income tax status of the Bonds.

Independent Auditors

The financial statements of the City included in APPENDIX B to this Official Statement have been audited by Deloitte
& Touche LLP, independent auditors, to the extent and for the period indicated in their report.

Underwriting

Ramirez & Co., Inc,, as the representative of the Undcrwriters for the Series 2011A Bonds, has agreed, subject to cettain
customary conditions to delivery, to purchase the Seres 2011A Bonds from the City at a purchase prnce of
$75,161,299.20 (representing $68,285,000.00 original prindpal amount thereof, plus a net onginal issue premium of
$6,901,148.90, less an underwriting discount of $249,854.81 plus mterest accrued on the Seres 2011A Bonds from the
dated date thereof to the closing). The Underwriters for the Series 2011A Bonds will be obligated to purchase all of the
Sertes 2011A Bonds if any Sentes 2011 Bonds are purchased.

Ramirez & Co., Inc., as the Underwriter for the Seres 20118 Bonds, has agreed, subject to certain customary conditions

to delivery, to purchase the Series 2011B Bonds from the City at a purchase price of $2,991,520.65 (representing
$3,000,000.00 onginal principal amount thereof, less an underwriting discount of $11,309.99 plus interest accrued on the
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Series 20118 Bonds from the dated date thereof to the closing). The Underwriter for the Series 2011B Bonds will be
obligated to purchase all of the Senes 2011B Bonds if any Series 20118 Bonds are putchased.

Bonds may be offered and sold to certain dealers and others at prices lower than such public offering prices, and such
public prices may be changed, from time to time, by the Underwriters.

Morgan Stanley and Citigroup Inc., the respective parent companies of Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC and Citigroup Global
Markets Inc., each an underwriter of the Senies 2011\ Bonds, have entered into a retail brokerage joint venture. As part
of the joint venture, each of Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC and Citigroup Global Markets Inc. will distribute municipal
secunties to retail investors through the financial advisor network of a new broker-dealer, Morgan Stanley Smith Barney
LLC. This distribution arrangement became effective on June 1, 2009. As part of this arrangement, each of Morgan
Stanley & Co. LLC and Citigroup Global Markets Inc. will compensate Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC for its selling
efforts in connection with their respective allocations of the Senes 2011\ Bonds.

Verification of Arithmetical and Mathematical Calculations

The Arhitrage Group, Inc. (the “Verification Agent™), a firm of independent ceritified public accountants, upon delivery
of the Bonds, will deliver to the City its report indicating that they have examined the mathematical accuracy of
computations prepared by PEM relating o (a} the sufficiency of the antcipated receipts from the Securities and on the
Bonds and (b) language regarding yields.

The report of the Verfication Agent will include the statement that the scope of their engagement was limited to
verifying the mathematical accuracy of the computations contained in such schedules provided to them and that they
have no obligation 10 update their report because of events occurring, ov data or information coming to their atiention,
subsequent to the date of their report. The report of the Vernfication Agent will be rclied upon by Bond Counsel in
rendering their opinion with respect to the excluston of interest on the Series 2011A Bonds for federal income tax
purposes and with respect to the defeasance of the Refunded Oblgations.

Authenticity of Financial Data and Othet Information

The financial data and other informadon contained hetein have been obtained from the City’s records, audited financial
statements and other sources which are believed to be reliable. There is no guarantee that any of the assumptions or
estimates contained herein will be realized. All of the summanes of the statutes, documents and resolutions contained in
this Official Statement are made subject to all of the provisions of such statutes, documents and resolutions. These
summarnes do not purport to be complete statemnents of such provisions and reference 1s made to such documents for
further information. Reference is made to original documents in all respects.

This Official Statement, and the execution and delivery of this Official Statement was authorzed by the Ordinances
adopted by the City Council on August 25, 2011.

/s/ Lee Leffingwell
Mayor
City of Austin, Texas
ATTEST:
/s/ Shitley A. Gentry
City Clerk
City of Austin, Texas
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APPENDIX A
General Information Regarding the City
The following information has been presented for informational purposes only,
AUSTIN’S GOVERNMENT, ECONOMY AND OUTLOOK

General Information

The Ciuty of Austin, chartered in 1839, has a2 Council-Manager form of government with a Mayor and six
Councilmembers. The Mayor and Councilmembers are elected at large for three-year stagpered terms with a maximum
of two consecutive terms. The City Manager, appointed by the City Council, 15 responsible to them for the management
of all City employees and the administration of all City affairs.

Austin, the capital of Texas, is the fourth largest city in the State (behind Houston, Dallas, and San Antonio), with an
estimated population of more than 778,000 m 2010. Over the past ten years, Austin’s population has increased by
approximately 117,000 residents, or 17.7 percent. Geographically, Austin consists of approximately 300 square miles.
The current estimated median household income and per capita income for the City 15 §48,460 and $35,798, respectively.

Austin 15 nationally recognuzed as a great place to live due i part to its diverse and cclectic population, as well as its
promotion of a year-round outdoor active lifestyle. Ausnn offers a wide variety of entertainment, with music as a special
element. Known as the “Live Music Capital of the World”, Austin has more than 120 live music venues and 15 host to
the annual South by Southwest and Austin City Limits music festivals.

During 2010, Austin was ranked as the number one place i the United States in which to open a small business by
Portfolio.com. Approximately 94 percent of small businesses located in Austin employ 50 or fewer employees, which is
much larper than the national average of 86 percent. .\ccording to Portfolio.com, Austun’s 19.5 percent population
growth between 2003 and 2008 attributed to the region’s ability to weather the receat national economic downturn. The
number of small business started between 2006 and 2007 outpaced other metropolitan areas with a 5.6 percent increase.

Fotbes.com ranked Austin first on its list of Amenca’s Best Cities for Young Adults, cinng Austin’s bustling tech
community 2nd trendseting music scene as contnbuting factors. The cntenia for a great aty included assessment of job
matkets, average salaries for college-educated adults ages 20 — 29, cost of maintaining a2 household, medtan age, and
evaluation of nightlifc opportumities. Forbes.com also recognized Austin as being one of “Amenca’s Most Innovative
Cities”, stating that Aunstin’s culture of innovation may be boosted by well-known tech credentials like the South by
Southwest Web startup and music festival held annually in March, as well as the nearby headquarters of hardware
industey gants Dell and Freescale Semiconductor. The article also cited the University of Texas’s Cockrell School of
Engineering and IBM’s Austin research lab as being contributors to Austin’s innovation arsenal. Austin also ranked in
the top 10 “Best Places for Mihtary Retirement” in a first-of-its-kind ranking by USAA, a leading financial services
provider focused on serving the military, and Military.com, the country’s largest military and veteran membership
organization.

In Apnl 2009, the Austin Water Utility received the Directors Award from the Partnership for Safe Water for its
ongoing safc water practices of both water treatment plant facilitics. The Partnership for Safe Water is a national
volunteer initiative developed by the United States Environmental Protection Agency and other water organizations
representing water suppliers striving to provide their communities with drinking water quality that surpasses the required
federal standards. Participation in the program includes a rigorous review of water ireatment practices developed by
national experts, and also includes a four-step self-assessment and peer-review process. The Albert H. Ullrich Water
Treatment Plant has maintained the Directots Award for ten years, an honor achieved by only 16 other water utlities
across the country. The Albert R. Davis Water Treatment Plant has maintained the Directors Award for five years, an
honot achieved by only 148 other water utilities across the country. Maintaming Directors Award status for both Austin
Water treatment plants demonstrates its philosophy of constant vigilance to improve water quality of the citizen of
Austin.

The City of Austin is fortunate to offer a broad range of educational opportunities for those individuals with a desire to
learn. Austin is a highly educated city, with approximately 43.5 percent of adults twenty-five years or older holding a
bachelor’s or advanced degree, compared to 27.5 percent for the U.S. as a whole. With its seven institutions of higher
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learning and more than 136,000 students, education is a significant aspect of life in the Austin area. The University of
Texas at Austin (“UT™), the fifth largest public university in the nation, is known as a world-class center of education
and research and was natonally ranked 13 among public universities in 2010 by US New and World Report. As of
2010, US News and World Report ranked 43 UT graduate programs and specialties 1n the top 10 nauonally, and 53
others ranked in the top 25,

Recent Economic Performance

During 2010, Austin’s economy was able to sustain and build upon the improvement thai began in 2009. Newsweek
compiled a list of the 10 American citics best situated for cconomic recovery and according to the article, “lor sheer
economic promise, no place beats Texas.” Austun boasted the strongest job growth in Newsweek’s Top 10, both last
year and over the decade. Newsweck noted Austin’s private sector growth, both from an expanding roster of
homegrown firms and outside companies, including an increasing array of multinational firms such as Samsung, Nokia,
Stemens, and Fujitsu. In May 2010, Kiplinger's Personal Finance magazine named Austin the “Best City for the Next
Decade” because of the City’s innovative and dynamic thinking that leads 1o job creation. In picking the top cities,
Kiplinger’s looked for livability and a good business environment for entreprencurs and job seekers.

The 2010 Milken Instimate Best-Performing Cities Index ranks 1.5, metropolitan areas by how well they are creaung and
sustaining jobs and economic growth. The components include job, wage and salary, and technology growth. Five of
the top ten metropolitan areas on the list were located in the State of Texas. Austin ranked second in 2010, behind the
first place Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) of Killeen-Temple-Fort Hood, Texas. Austin previously ranked first in
both 2000 and 2009, the first metropolitan area to ever be ranked number one twice on the index.

The Texas economy outperformed the U.S. economy during 2010. According to the Monthly Review of the Texas Economy
report for June 2011 published by The Real Estate Center at Texas A&M University, the U.S. employment growth rate
was (.7 percent from May 2010 to May 2011, while Texas experienced 1.9 percent employment growth during the same
period. 'The same report indicates the annual employment growth rate for the Austin-Round Rock metropolitan area
from May 2010 to May 2011 as sixth in the Srate of Texas at 1.8 percent. According to the Bureau of Labor Statistics,
Texas experienced no change in the unemployment rate during the same time period, at 7.9 percent, while the U.S. rate
in May was 8.7 percent, a decrcase from 9.3 percent in May 2010. The Souttwest Econonty, published by the Federal
Reserve Bank of Dallas, attributes the performance of the Texas economy compared to the rest of the nation to Texas’
business friendly environment which helped keep alive firms that might have succumbed to the recession elsewhere, a
slower than the national average in state spending, high energy prices and Texas’ reliance on sales taxes rather than
income taxes. Southiwest Economy states that income is impacted greater than consumption during economic downturns
because people try to maintain their living standards while enduring temporary wage cuts or unemployment spells. So
income tax revenue tends to fall further that sales tax revenue during recessions, leaving income-tax-reliant states facing
deeper shortfalls.

The natonal economy continued a very slow recovery process this year from the recession that began in December
2007. The recession was caused by a combination of the housing market collapse, credit crunch and financial turmoil.
The Burcau of Labor Statistics reports that the nattonal unemployment rate fluctuated between 9.4 and 9.8 percent
during the year, ending the year at 9.4 percent. The Texas Consumer Price Index (“CPI-U”), as reported by the Texas
Comptroller, shows a slight increase of 3.8 percent from May 2010 to 2011, which compares to the increase of 3.6
percent for the same period at the national level, as reported by the U.S. Department of Labor, For the year ending
December 31, 2010, the national economy expetienced a 1.6 percent increase, with a sharp rise in the index for foel oil
being the latgest contributor to this increase.

Home sales are an important indicator of the local and national economy. Data compiled by the Real Estate Research
Center at Texas A&M shows Austin Home sales declined 4.2 percent in 2010 with an ending inventory of 6.6 months
compared to a 7 percent decline in 2009, with ending inventory of 5.4 months. Texas sales also showed improvement
during 2010, Annual home sales declined 4.6 percent 10 2010 with an ending inventoty of 7.4 months compared to a 7
percent decline in 2009 with an ending inventory of 6.3 months, National sales of existing homes experienced a 4.9
percent annual sales loss during 2010. Sales during 2008 experienced the lowest sales volume since 1997 with a decline
of 13.1 percent from 2007 sales volume, The total nationwide housing inventory at the end of 2010 was a 9.4 month
supply compared to a 7.2 month supply in 2009.



Economic Outlook

The U.S. economy continued to suffer from significant job losses in 2010, with unemployment at 9.6 percent. The
Federal Reserve has predicted that the pace of recovery will be slow in 2011 and will gain momentum n 2012, One of
the region’s leading economists, Angelos Angelon stated in his 2010-2011 Economic Addtess that the significant job
losses realized during 2009 could take 6 — 8 years to recoup. 'The Texas econoty, the wodd’s 117 largest economy,
suppotted by sector-diversity in Houston, Dallas-Ft. Worth, San Antonio and Austin, continued to outperform the 1.5,
economy in 2010,

The Texas Comptroller’s Office reports that despite the state’s economy contracting in 2009, Texas’ relative cconornic
advantage should continue as the state and U.S. economies tum around and expand again in 2010. The Comptroller’s
Office estimates that the Texas” Gross State Product will grow by 2.6 percent during 2010 and the 1).S. economy should
grow at a slower rate of 2.0 percent during the year.

Long-term Financial Planning

A key City financial policy requires annual preparation of a five-year financial forecast projecting revenues and
expenditures for ail operating funds. This forecast 15 used as a planning tool in developing the following year’s operating
budget. The City’s budget approach emphasizes fiscal responsibility by limiting spending in a given year to projected
revenue collecdons. Standard and Poor’s recognized Austin’s sound financial management when the rating agency
upgraded the City’s gencral obligation bond rating to “AAA” status in January 2008 and reaffirmed Austin’s “AAA”
long-term rating for the City’s 2010 public improvement bunds offered to sale this past August. Standard and Poor’s
upgraded the Austin Warer Utility’s bond rating two levels from “A+” t0 “AA” in December 2008,

The Fiscal Year 2010-2011 Approved Budget totals 32.8 billion and includes $650.2 million for the (General Fund to
provide public saferv, recreation, culture, and other nceded services to the Austin commumty. [t 1s a structurally
balanced budget, mamntainung the high quality core services that our restdents expect and contribute to Austin’s top
ranked quality of life. In keeping Austin’s property tax rate the lowest of any of the major Texas cides, tough decisions
made over the last two years have addressed budgetary shortfalls by making structural budget reductions mnstcad of
relying on one-time fixes.

‘The 2010-2011 Budget was developed in a2 manner true to the City’s unwavering commitment (o openness, (ranspatercy,
and public engagement. Input was gathered and evalvated to address the many issues, concerns, and priorities identified
by Austin’s citizens, cmployees, and Council Members. Those top prionties, as identified through public engagement
efforts, are addressed in the FY 2010-2011 Budget and nclude enhanced hunding for public safety, librantes, and
homeless services. Also included arc moderate pay increases for employees, supplemental funding for the municipal
employec retirement system to help ensure long-term viability, and additional funding to pay for rising health care costs.
The FY 2010-2011 Budget also authorizes the use of approximately $14.4 million of the budget stabilization reserves to
address capital replaccment and other critical needs. The Approved Budget projects budget reserves of $33.3 million at
the end of FY 2010-2011.

Austin includes several enterptise activities, including a municipal owned electric utility, water/wastewater utility, airport,
and other miscellaneous operations. The Ciry’s largest enterprise department, Austin Encrgy, is the ninth largest
community-owned electrc utility in the United States in terms of customers served. Austin Energy serves more than
400,000 customers with a service territory of approximately 437 square miles and an approved budget for Fiscal Year
2010-2011 of $1.23 billien in annuval revenues. The utility has a diverse gencration mix that includes nuclear, coal,
natural gas, and renewable energy sources. Austin Energy’s capital improvement spending plan of $237 million includes
projects for power production and delivery of reliable energy services, completion of the scrubber installation at Fayette
Power Plant, upgrades at Decker Power Plant, and replacement of the Customer Information Billing System.

The City’s enterprise activities also mnclude the Austin Water Unlity, which provides water and wastewater services to
more than 211,000 customers within Austin and surrounding areas. The FY 2010-2011 budget projects revenues from
the sale of water and wastewater service along with miscellaneous other revenue to be $428.9 million. This budget
includes a 4.5 percent combined water and wastewater rate increase which was included in the Utility’s 5-year rate plan
to help fund system capital improvements, including new service extensions and rehabilitation of aging infrastructure.

Other enterprise funds and their FY 2010-2011 expense budgets include Aviation ($98.2 million), Convention Center
($53.4 million), and Solid Waste Services (§82 million).



Major Initiatives

The City of Austin’s vision of being the most livable city in the country means that Austin must also be the best
managed city in the country wheee all residents can patticipate in its oppottunities, its vibrancy, and #ts fchness of
culture and diversity.

Austin’s City Council began defining its policy prositics in the eatly 1990s. Adopted in April 2007 and amended in 2009,
the Council established the following prosties:
- Rich Social and Cultural Community
-~ Vibrant Urban Fabric
Healthy, Safe, and Family-Frendly City
Sustainable Economic Development 2nd Financial Health

‘These Council prionties serve as an otganizing framework for how the City docs business, providing the continuity and
direction needed to develop business plans that build upon each other, year after year, to help achieve longer-ranging
goals. ‘The current status of a few key initiatives are described below:

Waller Creek Tunnel Project. This project began as an underground storm water bypass tunnel to alleviate nsk of severe
flooding along a stretch of Waller Creck from Waterloo Park to Lady Bird Lake. After an intense design process that
included survey and geotechmcal work, computer model analysis, public input, and presentations to City Council, the
project has been divided into 12 smaller projects, including the wnnel itsetf, a boathouse, inlet, outlet, and the creek side
mnlets. On February 17, 2011, the Austin City Council approved the award of a $49.5 million construction contract to
build the main shaft of the Waller Creek Tunnel Project. Ground breaking is planned for April 2011; project completion
1s expected in 2014, The tunnel project is primardy funded through the Waller Creek Tax Increment Financing Zone.

Comprehenstve Plan.  According to the City Charter, the Comprehensive Plan contains the Council’s policies for
growth, development and beauufication of the land within the corporate limits and the extratertitoral jutisdiction of the
Citv. “Imagine Austin™ is a two-year process designed to help shape community mput to lay out a vision for what
Austin will look like in the future. The process will create the new Comprehensive Plan and address key themes
currently at the center of civic debate such as growth and development, sustainability and climatc change, environmental
protection, neighborthood preservation, affordable housing, economic development, and local and regional mobility.
Phase One kicked off in August 2009 and Phase 'I'wo, which consists of the vision and plan framework, was recently
approved by the City Council on March 10, 2011. Phase 3, which began in March 2011, will define specific strategies
and actions to implement the framework. Stakeholders will begin meeting to develop the policies to fulfill the framework
objectives and will be organized around the following areas: land usc and transportation, cconomy, housing and
neighborhoods, conservation and environmental resources, City facilities and services, society, and culture.

Aceelerate Austin. Accelerate Austin, which began in Aprl 2009, is 2 major transportation initiative aimed at addressing
Austin’s critical transportation infrastructure issues while assisting in jump-starting Austint’s econotny by creating up to
300 jobs locally. Accelerate Austin will bring forward $65.1 million in road improvement projects ahead of schedule
within eighteen months, accelerating the timelines called for in the 2006 bond program approved by Austin voters.
Major projects recently under way include the reconstruction of Rio Grande Street from Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd. to
24th Street and the reconstruction of 32nd Street from Red River to Duval.

Affordable Housing, The Rental Housing Development Assistance {(RHDA) program provides funding for nonprofit
and for-profit developers to acquite, rehabilitate, or construct affordable rental housing for low-income households. On
November 7, 2006, Austin voters approved $55 million in General Obligation Bonds to be 1ssued for the development
and retention of affordable housing, §33 million of which is expected to be used in the RHDA Program. The program
exceeded its annual goal in Fiscal Year 2009-2010 by 12 percent. A major factor in exceeding the goal included the
preservation of 130 project-based Section 8 units using Prvate Activity Bonds and General Obligation Bond funding,
Accomplishments include completion of 262 unitts expending $19.7 million in GO Bond funding and $1.8 million n
grant and other funding sources.

CityWorks Academy. In December of 2009, 28 Austin residents graduated in the inaugural class of CityWorks
Academy, a 10-week program created with the idea of providing Austin residents 2 unique opportunity to learn about
the City’s governmental processes, its procedures, the services it provides, and the people who deliver those services.
The program has proven to be a huge success. The aty received approximately 200 applicatons from residents
interested in participating in a second session. Thirty-two Austinites, representing a cross-scction of the community,




were chosen for the sccond CityWorks Academy that began September 7, 2010. The City plans to offer the academy
each year in the fall.

American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA)

In 2009, the City established a Recovery Office to coordinate its efforts in applying for and reporting on funding
recetved through ARRA. As of March 2011, the City of Austn has been awarded $83 milion in sttmulus funds across
multiple federal government programs and has either expended or encumbered approximately §53 million of those
awarded funds.

In February of 2010, Austin Water broke ground on green infrastructure improvements at the Hotnshy Bend Biosolids
Management Plant with $31.8 million of ARRA funding, The first phase of the project, the composting pad expansion,
achieved substantal completion in January 2011 — one year ahead of schedule and accounted for approximately 15 — 20
full-time equivalent positions monthly.

Austin Energy was awarded $5.8 mallion for its Weatherizaton Assistance for Low-Income Persons Program. The
program’s goal is to address issues with 4 personal residence that may impacr the energy, health or safety of the dwelling
and its occupants. As of Februaty 2011, 741 toral units have been reported as completed to Texas Department of
Housing and Community Affairs.

The Health Department received $1.4 mullion mn Community Services Block Grant funds to support acuvities and
services designed to address the needs of low-income communities through neighborhood centers and community
partners. In total, 230 households actively participated in the case management program; a rotal of 1,274 households
received rent and udlity assistance, 467 individuals rectived some level of workforce development services and 20
children reccived childeate services.

Other approved ARRA-funded projects include road, traffic signal and sidewalk improvements, police department
technology improvements, crime victims assistance service enhancements, financial assistance for new homeowners,
clean energy and energy cfficiency, and homeless prevention.

Financial Policies

The City has adopted a comprehensive set of Financial Policics to ensurc that the City’s financial resources are managed
in a prudent manner. These policies dictate that current revenue will be sufficient to suppott current expenditures
(defined as “structural balance™). Unreserved fund balances in cxcess of what is required shall normally be used to fund
capital items in the operating and capital budgets. The City maintains the goal of a structurally balanced budget 10
achieve long-term financial stability for the Austin commuuity. These polictes are reviewed as part of the annual budgert
ptocess and are published in the Approved Budget.

Internal Controls

City management is responsible for cstablishing, implementing, and maintaining a framework of internal controls
designed to ensure that City assets are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data
is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP. The system of internal
control is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and the
evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

Budgetary Control

The annual operating budget 15 proposed by the City Manager and approved by the City Council after public discussion.
Annual updates to the Capital Improvements Program budgets follow a similar process. Primary responsibility for fiscal
analysis of budget to actual cxpense or revenue and overall program fiscal standing rests with the department operating
the program. As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the City’s 2010 CAFR, the City continues to
meet its responsibility for sound financial management.

Cash Management

The City’s investment policy is to minimize credit and market risk while maintaining 2 competitive portfolio yield. Cash
balances of all City funds are invested in consideration of five factors: safety, term, liquidity, market exposure, and rate
of retutn. Cash balances of most funds, except for debt service and other legally restricted funds, are pooled for
investment pugposes. The City’s investments are made in accordance with the T'exas Public Funds Investment Act and



the City of Austin Investment Pohcy, Durng 2010, the City’s cash resources were mnvested in local government
investment pools and U.S. Treasury and Agency issues.

Risk Management

"The City maintains internal service funds to account for its risk of loss assoctated with torts and employee and workers’
compensation benefits. In addition, the City continues to be sclf-insured for habilities for most health benefits, third-
party claims, and workers® compensation.

Pensions
The City participates in three contnbutory, defined benefit retirement plans for City employees. The plans arc
authorized by State Legislaton, which governs the benefit and contribution provisions.

[The remainder of this pape is intentionally left blank. ]
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Employment by Industry in the Austin Metropohitan Area (a)

Employment Characteristics

2
Industrial Classification
Manufacturing 60,600
Government 158,400
Trade, transportation & udlities 159,800
Services and miscellaneous 290,100
Finance, insurance and real estate 45,200
Natural resources, mining 8& construction _49.200
Total 263300

7 2008 2009

% of % of % of

Total Total Tatal
7.9% 55000  7.0% 49,500 6.5%

20.8% 163,700  21.0% 167,900 22.1%

21.0% 163,700  21.0% 152,500 20.1%

38.0% 300,500 383% 304,000 40.0%
5.9% 47,200 6.0% 43,900 5.8%
6.4% 50,800 6.5% 42,000 3.5%

47,300
170,500
134,200
333,200

42300

INF
e}

% of
Total

6.2%
22.2%
17.5%
43.3%

5.5%

_3.1%

100,00%

June 2011

% of

Total
48,500 6.2%
171,200 21.9%
137,900 17.6%
341,700 43.7%¢
43,300 5.5%
39,600 51%
182200 100.00%

(a) Austin-Round Rock MSA includes Travis, Bastrop, Caldwell, Hays and Williamson Counties. Information is updated perodically, data contained herein is the

latest provided. Based on calendar year.

Source: Texas Labor Market Review, July 2011, Texas Workforce Commuission.
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Period
1-1-07
2-1-07
31-07
4-1-07
5-1-07
6-1-07
7-1-07
8-1-07
9-1-07
10-1-07
11-1-07
12-1-07

Average Annual Unemployment Rate

11.5% AVERAGE ANNUAL UNEMPLOYMENT RATE
10.5%
9.5%
8.5%
7.5%
—H— Austin MSA
o,
6.5% —&— Texas
5.5% —A— USA
4.5%
3.5%
2.5%
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2000 2010 2011
June
Source: Texas Workforce Commissionn, non-seasonally adjusted
Austin MSA Lexas u.s.
2001 4.9% 5.3% 4.7%
2002 5.7% 6.2% 5.4%
2003 5.9% 6.6% 5.8%
2004 4.8% 5.8% 5.1%
2005 4.3% 5.3% 4.8%
2006 3.2% 4.1% 4.3%
2007 3.6% 4.3% 4.8%
2008 5.2% 5.7% 7.1%
2009 7.0% 8.0% 10.6%
2010 7.1% 8.2% 9.0%
2011 June 7.6% 8.8% 9.3%
Note:  Information 1s updated penodically, data conrained herein is latest provided.
Source: Texas Labor Market Review, July 2011, Texas Workforce Commission,
City Sales Tax Collections (In Millions)
Amount Period Amount Period Amount Period Amount Yeriod
$i1.422 1-1-08  3$11.639 1-1-09 $10.864 1-1-1¢ $10.215 1-1-11
16.371 2-1-08 16.569 2-1-09 14.289 2-1-10 15.921* 2.1-11
11.080 3-1-08 12.109 3-1-09 10.528 3-1-10 10.736 3-1-1
11.414 4-1-08 11.355 4-1-09 9.724 4-1-10 10.290 4-1-11
14.611 5-1-08 13.882 5-1-09 12.612 5-1-10 14.145 5-1-11
11.748 6-1-08 12.185 6-1-09 11.213 6-1-10 11.533 6-1-11
12.011 7-1-08 12.129 7-1-09 10.752 7-1-10 11.569 7-1-11
14.101 8-1-08 14.486 8-1-09 13.4953 8-1-10 12.799
11.883 0-1-08 12.349 9-1-09 10.673 9-1-10 11.427
12.257 10-1-08 11.781 10-1-069 11.037 10-1-10 11.562
14.774 11-1-08 13.595 11-1-09 12.419 11-1-10 13.347
12.365 12-1-08 12,190 12-1-09 11.165 12-1-10 11.216

*Includes a $1.5 milion one-time sales tax correction.
Source:  City of Austin, Budget Office.
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$11.492
16.149
11.117
10.311
14.022
11.941
11.927



Ten Largest Employers (As of September 30, 2010}

Employer Product or Scrvice Employees
State Government State Government 38,538
The University of Texas at Austin Education 24,864
Drell Computer Corporation Computers 14,000
City of Austin City Government 11,815
Austin Independent School District Education 11,570
Scton Healthcare Network Healthcare 11,500
Federal Govetnment Government 11,100
HEB Grocexy Grocery/Retail 10,904
St. David’s Healthcare Partnership [ealthcare 6,600
IBM Corporation Computers 6,239
Source: 20110 Comprebenstve Annual Financial Report.
Transportation
Passenger Activity Air Cargo Activity
(in Millions) Pounds (in Millions)
9 -
8
7
6
5 _
4
3
o .
1 l
01 ‘02 '03 '04 '05 '06 '07 08 09 10 11 '01 02 '03 '04 '05 06 '07 08 09 10
Source: COA Aviation Department. 2011 Activity through June - Source: COA Aviation Department. 2011 Activity through June -
Calendar Year basis. Calendar Y ear basis.

Auvstin-Bergstrom International Airport

‘The City of Austin’s Austin-Bergstrom International Alrport, which opened for passenger service on May 23, 1999 and
replaced Robert Mueller as the City’s commercial passenger service airport, is served by eight signatory airlines:
American Airlines, Continental, Delta, Frontier, JetBlue, Southwest, United and US Airways.
available to 36 U.S. destinations.

Non-stop service 1s

Rail facilitics are furnished by Union Pacific and Longhorn Railway Company, Amtrak brought passenger trains back to
the City in January 1973, as one of the infrequent stops on the Mexico City-Kansas City route. Bus setvice 1s provided
by Greyhound and Kerrville Bus-Coach USA.

On January 19, 1985, the atizens of Austin and several surrounding areas approved the creation of a metropolitan transit
authority {(“Capital Metro™} and adopted an additional one percent sales tax to finance a transit system for the area which
was later reduced to thtee quarters of a percent, effective Aprl 1, 1989. On June 12, 1995, the Capital Metro board
approved a one quarter percent increasc in the sales tax thus returning to one percent effective October 1, 1995,

Wealth Indicators

The Austin-Round Rock MSA has experienced growth in median household income and per capita personal income.




Demographic and Economic Statistics - Last Ten Years

Median Capital
Area of Income (MSA) Fousehold Personal
City of Austin Incorporation Population (thousands Income Income Unemployment
Year Population (1) (Square Miles) (1)  MSA (2) (3) of dollars} (2) MSA (3 MSA (2) Rate (MSA) (4)
2001 661,639 266 1,325,305 $42,489,015 $39,811 $32,060 4.9%
2002 671,044 273 1,355,241 41,908,425 47,089 30,923 5.8%
2003 674,719 276 1,385,723 43,104,097 41,909 31,106 6.0%
2004 683,551 291 1,423,161 40,134,871 39,227 32,417 4.9%
2005 695,881 204 1,464,563 51,058,588 40,335 34,863 4.5%
2006 714,237 296 1,528,958 56,105,872 40,888 36,695 4.0%
2007 732,381 297 1,594,525 59,758,105 42,263 37,477 3.9%
2008 746,105 298 1,654,100 61,800,403 46,340 37,362 4.7%
2009 770,296 302 1,705,075 60,568,377 47,520 35,522 7.2%
2010 778,560 306 1,703,994 60,999,640 (5) 48,460 38,798 (5) 06.8%
2001-2010
Change 17.67% 15.04% 28.57% 43.57% 21.73% 11.66%

Note: Prior year statistics are subject to change as more precise numbers become available.

(1)  Sowurce: City Demographer, City of Ausun, Neighborhood Planning and Zoning Department based on full
putpose atea as of September 30.

(2) Source: Bureau of Economic Analysis for all years except 2010 which will not be available untl first quarter 2011.

(3)  Source: Claritas, a Nielson Company.

(4)  Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics; United State IDepartment of Labor as of September 30.

(5)  Data not available for 2010. Figures are estimated.
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Connections and Permits

Udality Connections Building Permits

Year Electric Water Gas Taxable Federal, State and Municipal Total

2001 349,671 178,608 172,177 $1,625,508,854 $71,189,116 $1,696,697,970
2002 359,358 182,977 193,278 1,261,868,130 38,727,017 1,300,595,147
2003 363,377 184,659 199,042 1,189,489,001 17,084,652 1,206,573,743
2004 369,458 188,441 203,966 1,280,385,298 20,533,975 1,300,919,273
2005 372,735 192,511 207,686 1,405,471,887 40,484,950 1,446,356,837
2006 380,696 197 511 213,009 2,353,171,746 16,526,040 2,369,697,786
2007 388,626 199,671 188,101 2,529,648,915 14,272,851 2,543,921,766
2008 396,791 206,695 198,718 1,468,699,801 4,099,000 1,472,798,801
2009 407,926 209,994 208,232 834,498,480 6,988,999 841,487 479
2010 419,355 210,901 204,823 1,413,989,503 4,252,978 1,418,242,481

Source: Varous including the City of Austin, Texas (Gas Services and Atmos Energy.
Housing Units

‘T'he average two-bedroom apartment in the Austin M8A was $983 per month, with an occupancy rate of 94.7% for the
second quarter 2011, per Austin Investor Interests, LLC,

Residential Sales Data

Year Number of Sales  Total Volume Average Price
2002 18,716 $3,695,947,381 $197.475
2003 19,793 3,899.018,519 196,990
2004 22,567 4,487 464,528 198,851
2005 26,905 5,660,934.916 210,405
2006 30,278 0,960,536,304 229,888
2007 28,047 6,910,684,916 246,397
2008 22,438 5,4701,241,896 243,783
2009 20,747 4,924,240,373 237,347
2010 10,872 4,906,445,110 246,792
2011 Juae 10,224 2,603,773,781 252,183

Note:  Information 1s updated periodically, data contained herein is latest provided.
Soutce: Real Estate Center at Texas A&M University.

City-Wide Austin Office Occupancy Rate

Year Occupancy Rate
2002 77.1%
2003 76.7%
2004 80.8%
2005 84.2%
2006 87.5%
2007 85.6%
2008 80.6%
2009 77.7%
2010 80.0%
2011 (20 Qtr) 80.9%

Source; Oxford Commercial.



Education

The Austin Independent School District had an enrollment of 85929 for the 2010/2011 school year. This reflects an
increase in enrollment from the end of the 2010 school year. The District includes 110 campus buildings.

School Year Average Daildy Membership  Average Daily Attendance
2001/02 76,347 71,638
2002/03 77,009 72,494
2003/04 77,313 73,085
2004 /05 77,937 73,572
2005/06 79,500 74,860
2006/07 82,003 74,212
2007/08 82,739 74,622
2008709 83,730 75,606
2009/10 84,996 76,658
2010/11 85,029 30,198

Source: Austin Independent School District.

The following institutions of higher education are locared in the City: The University of Texas, St. Edward’s University,
Huston Tillotson College, Concordia Lutheran College, Austin Presbyterian Theological Seminary, Episcopal
Theological Seminary of the Southwest and Austin Community College.

The University of Texas at Austin has total enrollment of 51,195 for the fall semester of 2010 and is 2 major research
university with many nationally ranked academuc programs at the graduate level. It is also known for its library
collections and research resources. The present site has expanded more than 300 acres since classes began on the
original 40 acres near downtown Austin.  Additionally, University owned propetty located in other areas of Austin
includes the Pickle Research Center and the Brackenndge T'ract, partially used for married student housing. The
McDonald Observatory on Mount Locke in West Texas, the Marine Science Insttute at Port .Aransas and the Institute
for Geophysics (Galveston) on the Gulf Coast operate as specialized rescarch units of The University of Texas at Austin.

Tourism

The impact of tourism on the Austin economy is significant. There are more than 257 hotels available within the Austin
Mectropolitan Area and year to date occupancy through June 2011 1s 68.8%.

Existing City convention and meeting facilities include a Convention Center, which is supported by hotel/motel
occupancy tax collections and revenues of the facility and the new Lester 1. Palmer Events Center with 70,000 square
feet of exhibit space. Other facilities in Austin include the Frank Eroin Center, a 17,000-seat arena at The University of
Texas, the Texas Exposition and Heritage Center, the Austin Music Hall, and The Long Center for Performing Arts.
The Texas Exposition and Hetitage Center offers 6,000 seat arena seating and 20,000 square feet of banquet/exhibit hall
facilities. The Austin Music Hall has a concert seating capacity of 3,000 and 32,000 square feet of exhibit space. The
Long Center for the Performing Arts, a $77 million venuc, opened in March 2008, The Center contains two theaters;
the 2,300-seat Michael and Susan Dell Hall and the flexible 240-seat Debra and Kevin Rollins Studio Theater.  This
venue belongs to the City, while a private nonprofit operates the building,

[The rematnder of this page is intentionally left blank.]
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Deloitte.

Suite 1700

400 West 15th Street
Austin, TX 7870
Usa

Tel: +1 512 691 2300
Fax: +1 512 708 1035

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT . deloitte.com

The Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council,
City of Austin, Texas

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activitics, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregatc remaining fund information of the City of Austin, Texas (the
“City™), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2010, which collgctively comprise the City’s basic
{inancial statements. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Qur
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
Amnerica. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedurcs that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the cffectiveness of the City’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant ¢stimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statcment presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basts for our
opinions.

Tn our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major tfund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of September 30, 2010, and the respective changes in
financial position and cash {lows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Notes 2 and 14, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 51 “Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Intangible Assets” and GASB Statement No. 53 “Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Derivative Instruments™ and restated the beginning net assets of the Austin Water and Waster Fund and total
Business-Type Activities to reflect the retroactive impact of implementing GASB Statement No. 51.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the General Fund - Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual-Budget Basis, the Retirement Plans - Trend Information, and
the Other Post Employment Benefits — Trend Information are not a required part of the basic financial
statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. This supplementary information is the responsibility of the City’s management. We
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not
audit the information and express no opinion on it.

I D elodt & Toudhe LLP

March 30, 2011

Membes of
Deloitte Touche YTohmatsu
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis City of Austin, Texas
September 30, 2010

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section of the City of Austin’s (the City) Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report presents a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2010.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for logal
governments as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The City has implemented GASB
Statements No. 1 through No. 53, and No. 55 through No. 58.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Government-wide financial statements

The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the end of the fiscal year 2010, resulting in $4.5 billion of net assets, Net assets
associated with governmental activities are approximately $1.6 billion, or 35% of the total net assets of the City. Net assets
associated with business-type activities are approximately $2.9 hillion, or 65% of the total net assets of the Cily. The largest
portion of net assets consists of investment in capital assets, net of related debt, which is $3.5 billion, or 79% of total net
assels.

Unrestricted net assets, which may be used to mest the City's future obligations, are $345.3 million, or 8% of the City's total
net assets. Unrestricted net assets for governmental activities are a deficit of $58.0 million, while unrestricted net assets for
business-type activities are approximately $403.3 million, or 14% of total business-type net assets. The deficit in governmental
unrestricted net assets is largely due to the recognition of $169.4 million in other post employment benefit liabilities for
governmental activities in accordance with GASB Statement No. 45,

During fiscal year 2010, total net assets for the City of Austin decreased $11.3 million or 0.3% before a restatement of Water
and Wastewater Fund water rights and accounting for regulated operations associated with the implementation of GASB
Statement No. 51 (see Note 2}. Of this amount, governmenta)l activities decreased $25.3 milfion, or 1.6% from the previous
year and business-type activities increased $14 million, or 0.5% from the previous year.

Total revenues for the City decreased $75.9 million; revenues for governmental activities decreased $2.8 million; revenues for
business-type activities decreased $73.1 million. Total expenses for the City decreased $2.3 million; expenses for
governmental activities increased $15.3 million; expenses for business-type activities decreased $17.6 million.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements, consisting of three
components:

« government-wide financial statements,

« fund financial statements, and

« notes to the financial statements.
This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements, including information on
individual funds.

a -- Government-wide financial statements
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with & broad overview of the City’s finances, in a
manner comparable to a private-sector business. The two government-wide financial statements are, as follows:

+ The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the
two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the City of Austin is improving or deteriorating.
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued

« The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed during the most recent fiscal
year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reporied in this statement for some items that will only
result in cash flows in future fiscal periods, such as revenues for uncollected taxes and expenses for future general
obligation debt payments. The stalement includes the annual depreciation for infrastructure and governmental assefs.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Cily that are principally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues {governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant
portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include
general government; public safely; transporiation, planning and sustainability; public health; public recreation and culture; and
urban growth management. The business-type activities include electric, water, wastewater, airport, convention, environmental
and heaith services, public recreation, and urban growth management.

The government-wide financial statements include the City as well as blended component unils: the Austin Housing Finance
Corporation (AHFC), the Austin Industrial Development Corporation (AIDC), and the Mueller Local Government Corporation
(MLGC). The aperations of AHFC, AIDC, and MLGC are included within the governmental activities of the government-wide
financial statements. AHFC is reported as the Housing Assistance Fund. Although legally separate from the City, these
component units are blended with the City because of their governance or financial relationships to the City.

b -- Fund financial statements

The fund financial statements are designed to report information about groupings of related accounts used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments,
uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the
City can be divided into the following three categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds. Within the
governmental and proprietary categories, the emphasis is on the major funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the City's basic services are reported in governmental funds.
These funds focus on current sources and uses of liquid resources and on the balances of available resources at the end of
the fiscal year. This information may be useful in determining what financial resources are available in the near term to finance
the City’s future obligations. Other governmental funds are referred to as nonmajor governmental funds and are presented as
aggregated data.

Because the focus of governmental fund level statements is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it
is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with simitar information presented in the government-
wide statements. In addition to the governmental fund balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balance, separate statements are provided that reconcile between the government-wide and fund level financial
statements.

The City's General Fund is reported as a major fund and information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance
sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances. In addition, the City maintains several
individual governmental funds organized according to their type {(special revenue, debt service, capital projects, and permanent
funds). Data from these governmental funds are combined into a single column labeled nonmajor governmental funds.
Individual fund data for the funds is provided in the form of combining statements in the supplementary section of this report.

Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are generally used to account for services for which the City charges customers — either
outside customers or internal units or departments of the City. Proprietary fund statements provide the same type of
information shown in the government-wide financial stalements, only in more detail. The City maintains the following two types
of proprietary funds:

» Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-lype activities in the government-wide
financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for the operations of three of the City's major funds,
Electric, Water and Wastewater and Austin-Bergstrom International Airport {(Airport), as well as the nonmajor enterprise
funds.
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. continued

» Internal Service funds are used to report activities that provide supplies and services for many City programs and activities.
The City's internal service funds include: Capital Projects Management; Combined Transportation, Emergency and
Communications Center; Employee Benefits; Fleet Maintenance; information Systems; Liability Reserve; Support Services;
Wireless Communication; and Workers’ Compensation. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental
operations rather than business-type functions, they have been included in governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements.

The nonmajor enterprise funds and the internal service funds are combined into separately aggregated preseniations in the
proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the funds are provided in the form of combining statements in
the supplementary secticn of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside City government.
Since the resources of fiduciary funds are not available to support the City’s own programs, they are not reflected in the
government-wide financial statements. The accounting policies applied to fiduciary funds are much fike those used for
proprietary funds.

Comparison of government-wide and fund financial components. The foliowing chart compares how the City's funds are
included in the government-wide and fund financial statements:

Government-

Fund Types / Other wide Fund Financials
General Fund Governmental  Governmental - Major
Special revenue funds Governmental  Governmental - Nonmajor
Debt service funds Governmental  Governmental - Nonmajor
Capital project funds Governmental  Governmental - Nonmajar
Pemmanent funds Governmental  Governmental - Nenmajor
Intemal service funds Governmental Proprietary
Govermnmental capital assets, including

infrastructure assets Governmental  Excluded
Govemmental liabilities not expected

to be liquidated with available

expendable financial resources Governmental  Excluded
Electric Business-type Proprietary - Major
Water and wastewater Business-type Proprietary - Major
Aimport Business-type Proprietary - Major
Convention Business-type Proprietary - Nonmajor
Environmental and health services Business-type Proprietary - Nonmajor
Public recreation Business-type Proprietary - Nonmajor
Urban growth management Business-type Proprietary ~ Nonmajor
Fiduciary funds Excluded Fiduciary

Basis of reporting - The government-wide statements and fund-level proprietary statements are reported using the flow of
economic resources measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting. The governmental fund financial statements
are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.

¢ - Notes to the financial statements
The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to fully understanding the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements.

d -- Other information

The Required Supplementary Information {RSI) section immediately follows the basic financial statements and related notes
section of this report. The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for the General Fund. The RSI provides a comparison
of revenues, expenditures and other financing sources and uses to budget and demonsfrates budgetary compliance. In
addition, trend information related to the City's relirement and other post employment benefits plans is presented in RSI.
Following the RSI are other statements and schedules, including the combining statements for nonmajor governmental and
enterprise funds, internal service funds, and fiduciary funds.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS

a -- Net assets
The following table reflects a summary statement of net assets compared to prior year (in thousands):

Condensed Statement of Net Assets
as of September 30
{in thousands)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Current assets $ 606,064 674,926 1,094,991 1,463,251 1,701,055 2,138,177
Capital assets 2,372,210 2,303,263 6,576,192 6,339,459 8,948 402 8,642,722
Other noncurrent assets 10,566 5,669 848 606 507 636 859,172 513,305
Deferred outflows of resources - - 212,884 - 212,884 -
Total assets and deferred outflows 2,988,840 2,983,858 8,732,673 8,310,346 11,721,513 11,294,204
Current liabilities 279,013 272,454 618,289 479,524 897 302 751,978
Noncurrent liabilities 1,151,279 1,127,518 5,202,364 4 944 693 6,353,643 6,072,211
Deferred inflows of resources - - 7,710 - 7.710 -
Total liabilities and deferred inflows 1,430,292 1,399,972 5,828,363 5,424,217 7,258,655 6,824,189
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt 1,544,834 1,545,216 1,998,753 1,902,398 3,543,587 3,447 614
Restricted 71,716 95.641 502,211 488,413 673,927 584,054
Unrestricted (deficit) {58,002) (56,97 1) 403,246 495 318 345,344 438,347
Total net assets $ 1,558,548 1,583,886 2,904,310 2,886,129 4,452 858 4,470,015

In the current fiscal year, total assets and deferred outflows of the GCity increased by $427.3 million before restatement (see
Note 2). Total liabilities and deferred inflows increased by $434.5 million. GovernmentaHype total assets increased by $5.0
miflion and business-type increased $422.3 million, while governmental-type liabilities increased by $30.3 million and business-
type increased $404.2 mitlion.

Significant factors in the increase of governmental total assets and deferred outflows include a decrease in cash and
investments of $80.1 million, an increase in capital assets of $68.9 million, and the recognition of a net pension asset of $4.9
million. Factors in the increase of governmental-type liabilities and deferred inflows include increases in the pension obligation
payable of $10.7 million and other post employment benefits of $59.6 million offset by a decrease in general obligation bonds
payable of $53.2 million.

Significant factors in the increase of business-type total assets and deferred outflows include an increase in capital assets of
$236.7 million and the addition of deferred outflows of resources of $212.9 million with the implementation of GASB Statement
No. 53. Significant increases in total liabilities and deferred inflows include revenue bonds payable of $200 million, the addition
of derivative instruments of $212.9 million with the implementation of GASB Statement No. 53, and other post employment
benefits of $35.4 million. Significant decreases include commercial paper notes payable of $40.2 million, and capital
appreciation bonds payable of $41.6 million.

As noted earlier, net assets may serve as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. For the City, assets
exceeded liabilities by $4.5 billion at the end of the current fiscal year. However, the largest portion of the City’s net assets are
invested in capital assets, net of related debt (e.g. land, building, and equipment), which are $3.5 billion, or 79% of the total
amount of the City's net assets. The Cily uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens. Capital assets are generally
not highly liquid; consequently, they are not considered future available resources. Although the City's investment in its capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources since the capital assets themselves cannot be liquidated for these liabilities.

An additional portion, $573.9 million of the City's net assets, represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on
how they may be used in the future. The remaining balance, $345.3 million of unrestricted net assets, may be used to meet the
government's future obligations. Unrestricted net assets decreased $93.0 million in the current fiscal year. A significant portion
of the decrease in unrestricted net assets is due to the recognition of $95.0 million in other post employment benefit expense in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 45.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS, continued

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net assels for the
government as a whole, as well as for business-type activities; however unrestricted net assets for governmental activities are
a deficit of $58.0 million.

b -- Changes in net assets

Total net assets of the City decreased by $7.2 mitlion in the current fiscal year after restatement {see Note 2}. Governmental
net assets decreased $25.3 million. The decrease is atiributable to expenses exceeding revenues by $121.4 million before
transfers from other funds of $96 million. Business-type net assets increased by $14.0 million due to revenues exceeding
expenses by $110.1 miltion, before fransfers to other funds of $96 million and restatement adjustment of $4.1 million.

Changes in Net Assets
Septemher 30
(in thousands)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2010. 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 109,136 140,989 1,814,907 1,833,856 1,924,043 1,974,845
Operating grants and contributions 66,831 54 022 - - 66,831 54,022
Capitat grants and contributions 50,546 85,085 31,703 71,819 82,249 156,904
General revenues:
Property tax 341,812 309,888 - - 341,812 309,888
Sales tax 144710 139,795 - - 144 710 139,795
Franchise fees and gross receipts tax 87,996 85,183 - -- 87,996 85,183
Interest and other 31,960 20,827 13,935 27,938 45,895 48,765
Total revenues 832,991 835,789 1,860,545 1,933,613 2,693,536 2,768,402
Program expenses:
General government 89,315 80,818 - - 89,315 80,819
Public safety 455,760 442 690 - - 455,760 442,690
Transportation, planning and sustainability 65,565 79,840 - - 65,565 79,840
Pubtic health 63,215 81,773 - - 63,215 81,773
Public recreation and culture 91,732 80,307 - - 91,732 90,307
Urban growth management 143,884 121,237 - - 143,884 121,237
Interest on debt 44 889 42,435 -- - 44 889 42,435
Electric - - 1,086,470 1,089,632 1,086,470 1,088,632
Water - - 169,708 200,162 169,708 200,162
Wastewater - -- 166,979 160,962 166,879 160,962
Airport - - 92,780 98,403 82,780 98,403
Convention - - 51,818 52,219 51,818 52,219
Environmental and health services - - 66,380 67,097 66,380 67.097
Public recreation - - 9,715 10,274 9,715 10,274
Urban growth management — - 106,618 89,306 106,618 88,306
Total expenses 954,360 939,101 1,750,468 1,768,065 2,704,828 2,707,156
Excess (deficiency) before transfers {121,369) {103,312} 110,077 165,558 (11,292) 62,246
Transfers 96,031 82,686 (96,031) (82,686) - —
Increase {decrease) in net assets (25,338) (20,626) 14,046 82,872 {11,202) 62,248
Beginning net assets, as previously reported 1,583,886 1,604,512 2,886,129 2,882,151 4,470,015 4,486,663
Restatement adjustment - - 4,135 (78,894) 4,135 (78,894)
Beginning net assets, as restated 1,683,886 1,604,512 2,890,264 2,803,257 4,474,150 4,407,769
Ending net assets $ 1,558,548 1,583,886 2,904,310 2,886,129 4,462 858 4,470,015




Management Discussion and Analysis
September 30, 2010

City of Austin, Texas
{Continued)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS, continued

¢ -- Program revenues and expenses -- governmental activities
Governmental activities decreased the City's net assets by $25.3 million in fiscal year 2010, a 1.6% decrease of governmental

net assets from the previous year.

Key factors for the change from fiscal year 2009 to 2010 are as follows:

Charges for services decreased $31.9 million primarily due to the transfer of hospital district activities to the Travis
County Hospital District ($17.6 million). Capital grants and contributions decreased $34.5 million primarily due to
decreases in contributed and annexed infrastructure.

The City's property tax revenue increased by $31.9 million from the previous year as a result of an increase in
assessed property values and an increase in the City's tax rate from 40.12 cents to 42.09 per $100 valuation.

Sales tax collections for fiscal year 2010 were $4.9 million more than fiscal year 2009. Franchise fees and gross
receipts faxes increased $2.8 million due largely to an increased service area for cable franchise fees.

General government expenses increased $8.5 million primarily due 1o increases in payments to internal service funds
for services provided and public safety expenses increased $13.1 miflion due to increases in salaries and contractual
expenses. Transporiation, planning and sustainability expenses decreased $14.3 million, while public health
expenses decreased $18.6 million due to the transfer of hospital district activities 1o the Travis County Hospital
District. Urban growth management expenses increased $22.6 million.

The chart below illustrates the City’s governmental expense and revenues by function: general government; public safety;
transportation, ptanning and sustainability; public health; public recreation and cullure; urban growth management; and interest

on debt.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS, continued

General revenues such as property taxes, sales taxes, and franchise fees are not shown by program, but are used to support
all governmental activities. Property taxes are the largest source of governmental revenues, followed by sales taxes and
charges for goods and services.

Government-wide Revenues by Source -- Governmental Activities

Franchise fees
and gross Other
receipts tax 10%
11%

Charges for
Services
13%

Operating Grants
and Contributions
8%

Sales tax
17%

Property tax
41%

d - Program revenues and expenses -- business-type activities
Business-type activities increased the City's net assets by approximately $14 million, accounting for a 0.3% increase in the
City's total net assets. Key factors include:

+ Electric net assets decreased approximately $25.2 million. Revenues decreased 1.3% largely due to lower fuel costs,
which are passed through as fuel revenue. Expenses increased 2.1% as lower fuel costs were offset by an increase
in other operating expenses.

»  Water and Wastewater net assets increased approximately $1.7 million. Revenues decreased 8.0% due primarily to
greater than usual rainfall and mandatory water conservation during the period of wastewater winter averaging.
Water revenue for 2010 decreased by approximately 12.3% and Wastewater revenue decreased 3.7% from the prior
year,

» Airport net assets increased approximately $16.7 million. Revenues increased 3.0% due to an increase in passenger
traffic and expenses increased 6.2% due to an increase in operations and maintenance costs.

» Convention net assets decreased approximately $1.9 million. Revenues and transfers from the Hotel Occupancy Tax
Fund decreased 9.3% due primarily o fewer events and the slowed economy. Expenses increased due to increases
in operations and maintenance costs.

»  Environmental and health services aclivities are comprised of nonmajor enterprise funds that include the Solid Waste
Services Fund and Hospital Fund. Net assets increased by approximately $8.4 million. This increase is primarily
attributed to increased revenues derived from an approved rate increase and customer growth.

» Public recreation activities are comprised of nonmajor enterprise funds that include the Golf Fund and Recreation
Program Fund. Net assets increased by $3.0 million as a result of the transfer of a portion of the Golf Fund debt to
governmental activities.

» Urhan growth management activities are comprised of nonmajor enterprise funds that include the Drainage Fund and
Transportation Fund. Net assets increased by approximately $9.8 million. Drainage revenues increased 6.6%
primarily due to an approved rate increase while Drainage expenses remained steady.

As shown in the following chart, the electric utility, with expenses of $1.09 billion, is the City's largest business-type activity,
followed by water ($170 million), wastewater ($167 million), urban growth management ($107 million), airport ($93 million),
environmental and health services ($66 million), convention ($52 million), and public recreation ($10 million). For the fiscal
year, operating revenues exceeded operating expenses for all business-type activities except convention.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS. continued

Government-wide Expenses and Program Revenues -- Business-type Activities

(Excludes General Revenues and Transfers)
(in thousands)
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For all business-type activities, charges for services provide the largest percentage of revenues (97%), followed by capital

grants and contributions (2%), and interest and other revenues {1%).
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’'S FUND LEVEL STATEMENTS

In comparison to the government-wide statements, the fund-level statements focus on the key funds of the City. The City uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

a -- Governmental funds

The City reports the following types of governmental funds: the general fund, special revenue funds, debt service funds, capital
projects funds, and permanent funds. The focus of the City's governmentai funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and available resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing requirements. In
particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available at the end of
the fiscal year.

At the end of the fiscal year, the City of Austin's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $370.4
million, a decrease of $81.5 million from the previous year. Approximately $191.5 million represemts unreserved ending
balance, which is available for future use. The remainder of fund balance is reserved and only available for commitments for
the purchase of goods and services, receivabies, property held for resale, legally restricted permanent fund resources, and
certain debt service amounts. Reserved fund balance increased $40.3 million in comparison to the prior year, primarily due to
an increase in the reservation for encumbrances of $37.0 million in capital projects funds authorized in 2006.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Cily. At the end of the current fiscal year, the unreserved fund balance of
the General Fund was $104.6 million, while totat fund balance was $108.7 million. As a measure of the General Fund's
liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to {otal fund expenditures.
Unreserved fund balance represents 17.6% of total General Fund expenditures of $595.6 million, and total fund balance
represents 18.3% of expenditures. The City's financial policies provide that surplus fund balance be designated for budget
stabilization. This amount is a component of unreserved fund balance. The fund balance designated for budget stabilization
was $58.6 million, The balance designated for budget stabilization may be appropriated to fund capital or other one-time
expenditures in the subsequent fiscal year, but such appropriation will not normally exceed one-third of the total designated
amount, with the other two-thirds designated for budget stabilization in future years.

The General Fund fund balance increased $16.5 million during the fiscal year, while unreserved fund balance increased $16.9
million. Significant differences from the previous year include:
+ Property tax revenues increased $25.7 million due to an increase in assessed property values and the City's property
tax rate increased from 40.12 cents to 42.09 cents per $100 valuation.
¢  Sales tax revenues increased $4.9 million, while licenses, permits and inspections decreased $4.8 million due to a
decline in building permits.
General fund expenditures increased $24.7 million, due primarily to an increase in public safety expenditures of $13.8 million
and general government expenditures of $13.1. The increase in public safety expenditures is primarily due to increases in
salaries and contractual expenditures. The increase in general government expenditures is due to increases in payments to
intemat service funds for services provided.

b -- Proprietary funds

The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the business-type activities of the government-wide
financial statements, but in more detail. Overall, net assets of the City's enterprise funds increased by $9.0 million before
consolidation of the internal service funds aclivities.

Factors that contributed to the increase in net assets are discussed in the business-type activities section of the government-
wide section.

"



Management Discussion and Analysis City of Austin, Texas
September 30, 2010 {Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION

a -- General Fund budgetary highlights
The original expenditure budget of the General Fund was amended during fiscal year 2010 to increase public safety costs for
the purchase of two ambulances.

During the year, revenues were $12.9 million more than budgeted. Sales tax collections were $12.7 million more than
budgeted.

Actual General Fund budget-basis expenditures were $13.9 million less than budgeted. Transportation, planning and
sustainability expenditures exceeded budget by $13 thousand and general city responsibilities exceeded budget by $66
thousand; while all other General Fund departments were under hudget. The total budget-basis fund balance at year-end was
$99.9 million.

b -- Capital assets

The City's capital assets for governmental and business-type activilies as of September 30, 2010, total $8.9 billion (net of
accumulated depreciation). Capital assets include land, buildings and improvements, equipment, vehicles, infrastructure,
construction in progress, nuclear fuel, plant held for future use, and water rights. The total increase in the City's capital assets
for the current fiscal year was $307 million (3.6%), with an increase of 3.0% for governmental activities and an increase of
3.8% for business-type activities. Additional information on capital assets can be found in Note 7. Capital asset balances are
as follows:

Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation

September 30
{(in millions}
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Land and improvements $ 332 324 464 449 796 773
Other assets not depreciated 20 20 1 1 21 21
Building and improvements 442 450 1,363 1,392 1,805 1,842
Equipment 64 73 3,867 3,555 3,931 3628
Vehicles 35 36 63 58 98 94
Infrastructure 1,237 1,255 - - 1,237 1,255
Construction in progress 242 145 667 747 909 892
Nuclear fuel, net of amortization - - 34 33 34 33
Ptant held for future use - - 28 28 28 28
Water rights, net of amortization - - 89 75 89 75
Total net capital assets $ 2372 2,303 6,576 6,338 8,848 8,641

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year include the following:

«  Governmental capital assets increased $69 million primarily due to additions of new and on-going projects for facility
and system improvements. Construction progressed on 2006 bond funded projects, which included flood mitigation,
affordable housing, recreation center and park improvements, and a training facility for fire, police and EMS
personnel. Other projects included a digital video system for police, street and pedestrian improvements, a new fire
station, and infrastructure additions for the Mueller redevelopment.

+ Business-lype activities purchased or completed construction on capital assets of $238 million. The increase was
largely due to plant and equipment additions and land acquisitions for the Electric, Water and Wastewater,
Convention Center, Drainage and Transportation funds. The Electric fund added power plant improvements,
improvements to electric distribution and metering systems, and various substations. The Water and Wastewater fund
continued rehabilitation and replacement aclivities under the Austin Clean Water Program and continued work on the
Water Treatment Plant #4 projects. The Water and Wastewater fund also received ARRA funds for biosolids
management and compost operations projects. Wastewater improvements included service extensions to annexed
areas. Work also continued on the Convention Center Waller Creek Tunnel project and the parking meter
replacement program.

12
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OTHER INFORMATION, continued

¢ -~ Debt administration
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City reported $5.0 billion in outstanding debt. The table below reflects the outstanding
debt at September 30. Additional information can be found in Note 10.

Outstanding Debt
General Obligation and Revenue Debt
{in millions)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
General obligation bonds and
other tax supported debt, net $ 900 933 125 131 1,025 1,084
Commercial paper notes, net -- - 300 340 300 340
Revenue notes - - 28 28 28 28
Revenue bonds, net - - 3,643 3,443 3,643 3,443
Capital lease obligations 1 - 2 2 3 2
Total $ 901 953 4,007 3,044 4,998 4,897

During fiscal year 2010, the City’s total outstanding debt increased by $101 million. The City issued new debt and refinanced
portions of existing debt to achieve lower borrowing costs. Debt issues include the following;

* Bond debt for governmental activities decreased $52 million due to debt service payments made during the year.

« Qutstanding debt for business-type functions increased $153 million. The City issued $220.3 million of Electric Utility
System separate lien revenue refunding bonds and $166.6 million of Water and Wastewater Fund separate lien revenue
refunding bonds to refund commercial paper ($316 million) and existing debt ($74 million).

During the year, the City’s general obligation bonds and other tax supported debt received favorable bond rating upgrades
from Moody's Investors Services, Inc and Fitch, [nc. The Water and Wastewater Utility revenue bonds received favorable bond
rating upgrades from Moody's Investors Services, inc. All other bond ratings were unchanged. Ratings of the City's oblfigations
for various debt instruments at September 30, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

Moody's
Investors Standard
Debt Service, Inc & Poor’s Fitch, Inc.

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

General obligation bonds and other

tax supported debt Aaa Aal AAA AAA ARA AA+
Commercial paper nctes P-1 P-1 A-1+ A-1+ F1+ F1+
Commercial paper notes - taxable P-1 P-1 A1+ A1+ F1+ F1+
Utility revenue bonds - prior lien A1 Al AA AA AA- AA-
Utility revenue bonds - subardinate lien A1 Al AA AA AA- AA-
Utility revenue bonds - separate lien:

Electric Al Al A+ A+ AA- AA-
Water and Wastewater Aa2 Aa3 AA AA AA- AA-
Airport system revenue bonds NUR{(1) NUR(1) A- A- NUR{1} NUR(1)
Airport variable rate bonds NUR(1} NUR(1} A- A- NUR{1) NUR(?1)
Conventien Center revenue bonds A2 AZ A- A- NUR(1) NUR(T)

(1) No undetlying rating
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Management Discussion and Analysis City of Austin, Texas
September 30, 2010 {Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION, continued

d -- Economic factors and next year’s budget and rates

The local economy experienced signs of recovery in 2010; a key indicator being an increase in sales tax revenues of 3.5
percent, compared 1o 2 9.5 percent decline in the previous year. Austin's diverse economic base and national reputation as a
great place to live continues to attract talented individuals and new employment opportunities. The Austin metro area ranked
highest in employment growth of the five major metro areas in Texas, which includes Dallas-Fort Worth, Houston, Sarn Antonio,
El Paso, and Austin, and experienced the third highest growth rate in the state, gaining nearly 8,200 jobs in 2010.

The City's 2011 budget was developed in a manner true to the City Manager's unwavering commitment to openness,
fransparency, and public engagement. Input from Council, City employees, and Citizens played a major role in the
development of a variety of structural applications designed to positively affect our City's fiscal sustainability over the long term
and present a balanced budget for the City Council's review. The Austin City Councit has adopted a comprehensive set of
financial policies to provide the foundation for long-range financial sustainability. These financial policies are directly aligned
with the City Council's priority of budget stability while at the same time maintaining affordability, investment in future economic
development, infrastructure needs, and quality of life. These policies are also crucial in maintaining the City's favorable bond
ratings. City management will continue to monitor the economy and take corrective actions to help mitigate any unfavorable
economic events. The assessed taxable property values within the City decreased by 3.8% for 2010. The property tax rate for
fiscal year 2011 is 45.71 cents per $100 valuation, up from 42.09 cents per $100 valuation in 2010. The tax rate consists of
32.62 cents for the General Fund and 13.09 cents for debt service.

Each 1 cent of the 2010 (Fiscal Year 2011) property tax rate is equivalent to $7,789686 of tax levy, as compared to
$8,096,541 in the previous year. Fiscal Year 2011 rate increases for the Water and Wastewater Fund are; 5.4% for Water and
3.6% for Wastewater for a combined increase of 4.5%. Austin Energy customer base rates remain unchanged.

e -- Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a general overview
of the City's finances and to demonstrate the City's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this
report or need additional financial information, contact the Financial and Administrative Services Department of the City of
Austin, P.O. Box 2920, Austin, Texas 78768, or (512) 974-2600 or on the web at http://www.ci.austin.tx.us/controller/.

14


http://www.ci.austin.tx.us/controller/

STATEMENTS







15



Statement of Net Assets City of Austin, Texas
September 30, 2010 Exhibit A-1
(in thousands}

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total {1)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash $ 75 65 141
Pooled investments and cash 443 957 309,790 753,747
Pooled investments and cash - restricted - 159,829 159,929
Total pooled investments and cash 443 957 469,719 913,676
Investments, at fair vaiue 21,901 8,023 29,924
Investments, at fair value - restricted - 231,561 231,581
Cash held by trustee - restricted 2,512 101 2613
Working capital advances - 6,554 6,554
Property taxes receivable 14,283 - 14,283
Less allowance far uncollectible taxes {4,258} - (4,298)
Net property taxes receivable 9,985 -- 9,985
Accounts and other receivables 181,671 205,840 387,511
Less allowance for doubtful accounts {82,358) (3,797) (86,155}
Met accounts receivable 99,313 202,043 301,356
Receivables from other governments 15,359 - 15,359
Notes receivable, net of allowance of $22,263 12,367 - 12,367
Internat balances (8.060) 32,663 24 603
lnternal balances - restricted (189) (24,414) (24,603)
Inventories, at cost 1,951 79,160 81,111
Real property held for resale 5,419 - 5,419
Prepaid items 244 2,825 3,069
Other assets 1,229 27.764 28,993
Other receivahles -- 6,209 6,209
Deferred costs and expenses, net of amortization - 52718 52,718
Total current assets 606,064 1,094,991 1,701,055
Noncurrent assets:
Pooled investments and cash - restricted - 149,301 149,301
Investments, at fair value - restricted -- 161,150 161,150
Investments held by trustee - restricted - 168,033 168,033
Interest receivable - restricted - 1,121 1.121
Capital assets
Land and other nandepreciable assets 352,760 465,609 818,369
Property, plant, and equipment in service 2,864,249 8,675,336 11,539,585
Less accumulated depreciation {1,086,457) (3,382,591) (4,469,048)
Net praperty, plant, and equipment in service 1,777,792 5,292,745 7,070,537
Construction in progress 241,658 666,564 808,222
Nuclear fuel, net of amortization - 34,355 34,355
Plant held for future use - 27,783 27,783
Water rights, net of amortization - 89,136 89,136
Total capital assets 2,372,210 6,576,192 8,948,402
Derivative instruments - energy risk management - 7,710 7.710
Net pension asset 4,943 -- 4,943
Other long-term assets - 62 62
Deferred costs and expenses, net of amortization 5,623 361,229 366,852
Total noncurrent assets 2,382,776 7,424,798 9,807,574
Total assets 2,988,840 8,519,789 11,508,629
Deferred outflows of resources - 212,884 212,884
Total assets and deferred outflows $ 2,088,840 8,732,673 11,721,513
{t) After internal receivables and payables have been eliminated, {Continued)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of Net Assets

City of Austin, Texas

September 30, 2010 Exhibit A-1
{In thousands) {Continued)
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total (1)
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 41,582 62,060 103,642
Accounts and retainage payable from restricted assets - 45 852 45 852
Accrued payroll 32,010 17,951 49,961
Accrued compensated absences 47 127 23,021 70,148
Claims payable 17.865 - 17,865
Accrued interest payable from restricted assets - 96,317 96,317
interest payable on capital appreciation bonds and other debt 3,730 50,318 54,048
Commercial paper notes payable - 44 377 44 377
General obligation bonds payable and ather tax supparted debt,
net of discount and inclusive of premium 66,233 11,493 77,726
General obligation bonds payable and other tax supported debt
payable from restricted assets, net of discount and inclusive of premium - 4,931 4,931
Revenue bonds payable from restricted assets - 147,804 147,804
Capital lease abligations payable 283 369 652
Customer and escrow deposilts payable from restricted assets -- 36,662 36,662
Accrued landfill closure and postclosure costs - 765 . 765
Deferred credits and other current liabtlities 70,183 76,369 148,552
Total current liabilities 279,13 618,289 897,302
MNoncurrent liabilities, net of current portion:
Accrued compensated absences 65,371 1,338 66,709
Claims payable 15,570 - 15,570
Capital appreciation bond interest payable - 103,295 103,295
Commercial paper notes payable, net of discount - 255,420 255,420
Revenue notes payable -- 28,000 28,000
General obligation bonds payable and other tax supported
debt, net of discount and inclusive of premium 833,267 108,220 941,487
Revenue bonds pavable, net of discount and
inclusive of premium -- 3,495,307 3,495,307
Pension obligation payable 53,736 52,640 106,376
Other post employment benefits payable 169,432 100,716 270,148
Capital lease obligations payable 433 1,259 1,692
Accrued landfill closure and postclosure costs - 7,175 7,175
Decommissioning liabifity payable from restricted assets - 150,591 150,581
Derivative instruments - energy risk management - 113,480 113,480
Derivative instruments - interest rate swaps - 99,473 98,473
Deferred credits and other liabilities 13,470 684,519 697,989
Cther liabilities payable from restricted assets -- 931 931
Total noncurrent liabifities 1,151,279 5,202,364 6,353,643
Total liabilities 1,430,292 5,820,653 7,250,945
Deferred inflows of resources - 7,710 7.710
Total liabilities and deferred inflows 1,430,292 5,828,363 7,258,655
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 1,544,834 1,098 753 3,643,587
Restricted for:
Degbt service 18,228 87,404 105,632
Strateqgic reserve - 148,519 148,519
Capital projects 29,559 154,435 183,994
Renewal and replacement - 10,948 10,048
Bond Reserve - 62,283 62 283
Passenger facility charges - 26,808 26,808
Operating reserve - 11,814 11,814
Perpetual Care:
Expendable 764 - 764
Nonexpendable 1,040 - 1,040
Other purposes 22,125 - 22125
Unrestricted (deficit) (58,002) 403,346 345 344
Total net assets $ 1,658,548 2,804,310 4,462 858

(1) After internal receivables and payables have been eliminated.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of Activities

For the year ended September 30, 2010

{In thousands)

City of Austin, Texas

Functions/Programs

Governmental activities
General government
Public safaty
Transportation, planning, and sustainability
Pubiic heaith
Public recreation and culture
Urban growth management
Interest on debt
Total governmental activities

Business-type activities

Electric

Water

Wastewater

Airport

Convention

Environmental and health services

Public recreation

Urban growth management
Total business-type activities
Total

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Changes in Net Assets

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental  Business-type
Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Activities Activities Total

$ 89,315 7,902 169 3,760 {77,484) - (77,484)
455,760 47,530 9,593 12 (398,625) - (398,625)
65,565 3,792 - 14,136 (47,637) - (47,637
63,215 7.561 23,313 3,495 {28,846) -- (28,848)
91,732 3,456 1,473 4,607 {82,196} -- (82,196)
143,884 38,895 32,283 24,536 (48,170) - (48,170)
44,889 — - -- (44,889 - (44,889)
954,380 109,136 66,831 50,546 (727,847) - (727.847)
1,086,470 1,147,676 - 4,856 -- 66,062 66,062
169,708 171,457 - 9,461 - 11,210 11,210
166,979 189,192 - 1,433 - 23,648 23,646

92,780 100,223 - 7,799 - 15,242 16,242

51,818 14,784 - -- - (37.034) (37,034)

66,380 74,389 - B34 -- 8,653 8.653

9715 8,864 -- 3,645 -- 3,094 3,094

106,618 108,312 -- 3,575 -- 5268 5,269
1,750,468 1,814,807 -~ 31,703 -- 96,142 96,142

$ 2,704,828 1,824,043 66,831 82,249 {727,847) 96,142 (631,705)

General revenues:

Praperty tax 341,812 - 341,812
Sales tax 144,710 - 144,710
Franchise fees and gross receipts tax 87,096 - 87,996
Interest and other 31,860 13,935 45 895
Transfers-internat activities 96,031 (96,031) —
Total general revenues and transfers 702,508 (82,096) 620,413
Change in net assets (25,338) 14,046 (11,292)
Beginning net assets, as restated (see Note 2) 1,683,836 2,890,264 4,474 150
Ending net assets $ 1,558,548 2,804,310 4,462 B58

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet
September 30, 2010
{In thousands)

City of Austin, Texas

Exhibit B-1

ASSETS
Cash
Paoled investments and cash
Investments, at fair value
Cash held by trustee-restricted
Property taxes receivable
Less allowance for uncollectible taxes
Net property taxes receivable
Accounts and other receivables
Less aliowance for doubtful accounts
Net accounts receivable
Receivables from other governments
Notes receivable, net of aliowance
Due from other funds
Advances to other funds
Inventories, at cost
Real praperty held for resale
Prepaid items
Other assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Accounts payable

Accrued payroll

Accrued compensated absences

Due to other funds

Deferred revenue

Advances from other funds

Deposits and other liabilities

Totai liabilities

Fund balances
Reserved:
Encumbrances
Inventories and prepaid items
Notes receivable
Advances receivable
Real property held for resale
Debt service
Permanent funds
Unreserved, designated:
Emergencies
Contingencies
Budget stabilization
Unreserved, undesignated:
Special revenue
Capital projects
Permanent funds
Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

Nonmajor Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
56 5 61
102,327 240,391 342718
- 21,901 21,901
160 1,758 1,918
9,025 5,258 14,283
(2,789) (1,509) {4,298)
6,236 3,749 9,885
133,570 41 441 175,011
(82,099 (259} (82,358)
51,471 41,182 92,653
- 15,359 15,359
- 12,367 12,367
227 57,746 57.973
. 4,539 4,539
916 - 916
- 5,419 5,419
86 81 167
60 1,169 1,229
161,539 405 666 567,205
4,768 30,699 35,467
26,028 144 26,172
768 - 768
- 57,984 57.984
18,664 6,779 25,443
- 407 407
2,601 47,928 50,529
52,829 143,941 196,770
3133 129,416 132,549
1,002 81 1,083
-- 12,367 12,367
-- 4,539 4,539
-- 5,419 5,419
- 21,958 21,958
- 1,040 1,040
40,000 -- 40,000
5,958 -- 5,858
58,617 -- 58,617
- 57,694 57,694
- 28,447 28,447
-- 764 764
108,710 261,725 370,435
161,539 405,666 567,205

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Assets

September 30, 2010

{in thousands)

City of Austin, Texas
Exhibit B-1.1

Totai fund balances - Governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore
are not reported in the funds.

Governmental capital assets 3,381,634

Less: accumulated depreciation (1,048,019)

Other long-term assets are not available as current-period resources and are not
reported in the funds.

Accounts and other taxes receivable 16,985
Deferred revenue - property taxes and interest 5,804
Deferred costs and expenses 5619
Net Pension Asset 4,843

Long-term liabilities are not payable in the current period and are not reported

in the funds.
Bonds and other tax supported debt payable, net {894,434)
Pension obligation payable (53,736)
Other post employment benefits payable (169,432)
Compensated absences {104,444)
Interest payable (3,710)
Deferred credits and other liabilities {20,730)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of capital project
management, combined emergency communication center, employee benefits, fleet
maintenance, information systems, liability reserve, support services, wireless
communication, and workers' compensation to individual funds.

Certain assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included
in governmental activities in the statement of net assets.

Total net assets - Governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Governmental Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

For the year ended September 30, 2010
{In thousands)

City of Austin, Texas
Exhibit B-2

REVENUES
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Franchise fees and other taxes
Fines, forfeitures and penalties
Licenses, permits and inspections
Charges for services/goods
Intergovernmental
Property owners' participation and contributions
fnterest and other
Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current;
General government
Public safety
Transportation, planning and sustainability
Pubtic health
Public recreation and culture
LUrban growth management
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Fees and commissions
Capital outtay-capital project funds
Total expenditures
Deficiency of revenues over
expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of tax supported debt
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances at beginning of year
Fund balances at end of year

Nonmajor Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Furkis Funds
k3 236,302 104,502 340,804
144,710 - 144 710
41,013 47,308 88,321
18,692 5,879 24,571
15,716 -- 15,716
33,394 31,200 64,594
- 86,557 86,557
- 6,837 6,937
3,059 27,504 35,563
497 886 309,887 807,773
59,727 6,560 66,287
417,798 4 160 421,958
916 9,718 10,634
37,929 15,300 53,229
61,311 12,778 74,089
17,875 82,343 100,218
- 70,424 70,424
- 44 590 44 590
- 17 17
- 166,491 166,491
595 556 412,381 1,007,937
(97.670) {102,494) (200,164}
- 15,000 15,000
130,233 67,436 187 669
(16,014) (77.943) (93,957)
114,219 4,493 118,712
16,549 (98,001) {81,452)
92,161 359,726 451,887
3 108,710 261,725 370,435

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities

For the year ended September 30, 2010

{In thousands)

,and

City of Austin, Texas
Exhibit B-2.1

Net change in fund balances - Governmental funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital cutlays exceeded depreciation
in the current period.

Capital outlay
Depreciation expense
Loss on disposal of capital assets

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current available financial
resources are not reporled as revenues in the funds.

Property taxes

Charges for services
Interest and other

Capitat assets contribution

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources

to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes

the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has

any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred
and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences
in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

tssuance of long-term debt
Principal repayment on long-term debt

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Compensated absences
Pension obiigation

Other post employment benefits
Interest and other

171,734
(93,994}

(24,725)

1,008
287

(365)
14,999

{15,000)
70,424

{3.082)

(5,741)

(59,581)
3,099

Internal services. A portien of the net revenue (expense) of the internal service funds is reported with

the governmental activities.
Change in net assets - Governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

23

(81,452)

53,015

15,929

55,424

(65,305)

(2,949)

(25,338)



Proprietary Funds
Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2010

{In thousands}

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash

Pooled investments and cash
Pooled investments and cash - restricted
Total paoled investments and cash
Investments, at fair value
investments, at fair value - restricted
Cash held by trustee - restricted
Werking capital advances
Accounts receivable

Less allowance for doubtful accounts
Net accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Due from ather funds - restricted
Inventories, at cost
Prepaid expenses

Other assets

Other receivables - restricted
Deferred costs and expenses, net of amartization
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Paaled investments and cash - restricted
Advances to other funds
Advances to other funds - restricted
Investments, at fair value - restricted
Investments held by trustee - restricted
interest receivable - restricted
Capital assets
Land and other nondepreciable assets
Property, plant, and equipment in service
Less accumulated depreciation
Net property, plant, and equipment in service
Construction in progress
Nuclear fuel, net of amortization
Plant held for future use
Water rights, net of amortization
Total capital assets
Derivative instruments - energy risk management
Gther long-term assets
Deferred costs and expenses, net of amortization
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources
Total assets and deferred outflows

Business-Type Activities

Water and
Electric Wastewater Airport
$ 18 9 8
133,578 27675 1,800
68,041 39,159 32,363
201,617 66,874 34,183
100,568 106,247 14,174
-- 101 -
5,554 -- -
134,988 53,040 3,638
(2,270) (514) {648)
132,718 52,526 2,990
442 - -
- 27 -_—
75,011 1,565 1,396
2,581 15 9
27,764 - --
1,670 423 1612
29,656 23,062 --
578,599 250,848 54,352
14,874 -- 134,427
26,376 -- -
-- n 107
161,150 -- -
168,033 - -
1,121 - -
65,200 212,841 95,914
4,019,644 3,439,485 690,294
{1,895,660) (1,121,365) (191,785}
2,123,984 2,318,120 498 509
328,196 253,410 29,133
34,355 - -
27,783 - -
- 89,136 -
2,679,518 2,873,507 623,556
7,710 - --
62 -- -
170,713 183,280 2,929
3,130,057 3,056,787 761,019
3,708,656 3,307,636 815,371
113,411 34,606 48,227
$ 3,822,067 3,342,242 863,598

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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City of Austin, Texas
Exhibit C-1

Business-Type Activities Governmental
Nonmajor Activities-
Enterprise Internal Service
Funds Total Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash 30 65 15
Fooled investments and cash 146,739 309,790 101,239
Pooled investments and cash - restricted 20,326 159,929 -
Total pooled investments and cash 167,065 469,719 101,239
Investments, at fair value 8,023 8,023 --
Investments, at fair value - restricted 10,5672 231,561 -
Cash held by trustee - restricted - 101 594
Working capital advances -- 6,554 -
Accounts receivable 14,174 205,840 2,015
Less allowance for doubtful accounts {365) (3,797) --
Net accounts receivable 13,809 202,043 2,015
Due from other funds 717 1,159 11
Due from other funds - restricted -- 27 -
Inventories, at cost 1,188 79,160 1,035
Prepaid expenses 220 2,825 77
Other assets - 27,764 --
Other receivables - restricted 2,504 6,209 -
Deferred costs and expenses, net of amortization - 52,718 --
Total current assets 204,128 1,087,928 104,986
Noncurmrent assets:
Pooled investments and cash - restricted -- 149,301 -
Advances to gther funds 30 26,906 34
Advances to other funds - restricted 55 162 -
Investments, at fair value - restricted -- 161,150 -
Investments held by trustee - restricted -- 168,033 -
Interest receivable - restricted - 1,121 -
Capital assets
Land and other nondepreciabie assets 91,654 465,609 751
Property, plant, and equipment in service 526,913 8,675,336 74,782
Less accumulated depreciation (173,781) (3,382,581) (38,438)
Net property, plant, and equipment in service 352,132 5,292,745 36,344
Construction in progress 55,825 666,564 1,600
Nuclear fuel, net of amortization - 34,365 -
Plant held for future use - 27,783 -
Water rights, net of amortization -- 89,136 -
Total capitai assets 499,611 6,576,192 38,695
Derivative instruments - energy risk management - 7,710 -
Other long-term assets -- 62 -
Deferred costs and expenses, nat of amortization 4,307 361,229 4
Total nencurrent assets 504,003 7,451,866 38,733
Total assets 708,131 8,539,794 143,719
Deferred outflows of resources 16,640 212,884 —
Total assets and deferred outflows 724,771 8,752,678 143,719
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements, (Continued)
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Proprietary Funds
Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2010

{In thousands)

Business-Type Activities

Water and
Electri¢ Wastewater Airport
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable % 52,528 3,082 1,724
Accounts and retainage payable from restricted assets 11,425 27,521 3,763
Accrued payroll 8,181 4,011 1,179
Accrued compensated absences 10,681 5,520 1,500
Claims payable -- - --
Due to other funds - -- -
Accrued interest payable from restricted assets 49,694 42 698 1,851
Interest payable on capital appreciation bonds and other debt 29,690 20,000 1
Commercial paper notes payable 8,603 35,774 -
General obligation bonds payable and other tax supported debt -- - 28
General obligation bonds payable and other
tax supported debt payable from restricted assets 152 4779 -
Revenue bonds payable from restricted assets 75,084 50,660 13,515
Capital lease obligations payable 38 - 331
Customer and escrow deposits payable from restricted assets 24 686 8,405 417
Accrued landfill closure and postclosure costs - -- -
Deferred credits and other liabilities 51,003 24,252 1,071
Total current liabilities 321,665 226,702 25,380
Noncurrent labilities, net of current portion:
Accrued compensated absences 895 - 61
Claims payable - - --
Advances from other funds - 3,505 --
Advances from other funds payable from restricted assets - 24,603 -
Capital appreciation bond interest payable 18,717 84,578 --
Commercial paper notes payable, net of discount 76,552 178,868 -
Revenue notes payable - - 28,000
General obligation bonds payable and other tax supported
debt, net of discount and inclusive of premium 1.040 22,600 234
Revenue bonds payable, net of discount and
inclusive of premium 1,251,199 1,761,237 281,768
Pension obligation payable 23617 11,823 3,570
Other post employment benefits payable 41,078 25,386 7477
Capital lease obligations payable 1,259 - -
Accrued landfill closure and postclosure costs - - -
Decommissioning Hability payable from restricted assets 150,591 -- -
Derivative instruments - energy risk management 113,480 - --
Derivative instruments - interest rate swaps - 34,606 48,227
Deferred credits and other liabilities 214,709 465,587 -
Other liabilities payable from restricted assets -- 307 62
Total noncurrent tiabilities 1,893,137 2,613,100 369,399
Total liabilities 2,214,802 2,839,802 394,779
Deferred inflows of resources 7,710 - -
Total liabilities and deferred inflows $ 2,222512 2,839,802 384,779

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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City of Austin, Texas

Exhibit C-1

(Continued}

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities;
Accounts payable
Accounts and retainage payable from restricted assets
Accrued payroll
Accrued compensated absences
Claims payable
Due to other funds
Accrued interest payable from restricted assets
Interest payable on capital appreciation bonds and other debt
Commercial paper notes payable
General obligation bonds payable and other tax supported debt
General obligation bonds payable and other
tax supported debt payable from restricted assets
Revenue bonds payable from restricted assets
Capital lease obligations payable
Customer and escrow deposits payable from restricted assets
Accrued tandfifl closure and postclosure costs
Deferred credits and other liabilities
Total current liabilittes
Noncurrent liabilities, net of current portion:
Accrued compensated absences
Claims payable
Advances from other funds
Advances from other funds payable from restricted assets
Capital appreciation bond interest payable
Commercial paper notes payable, net of discount
Revenue notes payabie
General obligation bonds payable and other tax supported
debt, net of discount and inclusive of premium
Revenue bonds payable, net of discount and
inclusive of premium
Pension obligation payable
Other post employment benefits payable
Capital lease obligations payable
Accrued {andfill closure and postclosure costs
Decommissioning liability payable from restricted assets
Derivative instruments - energy risk management
Derivative instruments - interest rate swaps
Deferred credits and other liabilities
Other liabilities payable from restricted assets
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liahitities
Deferred inflows of resources
Total liabilities and deferred inflows

Business-Type Activities Governmental
Nonmajor Activities-
Enterprise Internal Service

Funds Total Funds
4,726 62,060 6,115
3,143 45,852 -
4,580 17,951 5,838
5,320 23,021 6,725

- - 17,865

1,023 1,023 163
2,174 96,317 -
627 50,318 20

- 44,377 -
11,465 11,493 480
- 4,931 -

8,545 147,804 -

- 368 283

3,154 36,662 -
765 765 -

43 76,369 5,005

45 565 619,312 42,584
382 1,338 561

- - 15,570

2,640 6,145 486

- 24,603 -

- 103,285 -

- 255,420 -

- 28,000 -
84,346 108,220 4 586
201,103 3,485,307 -
13,630 52,640 -
26,775 100,716 -
- 1,259 433

7.175 7,175 --

- 150,591 -

- 113,480 -
16,640 99,473 -
4,223 684,519 -
562 931 -
357,476 5233112 21,636
403 041 5,852,424 64,220
- 7,710 --
403,041 5,860,134 64,220
(Continued}

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Proprietary Funds
Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2010

(In thousands)

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Debt service
Strategic reserve
Capital projects
Renewal and replacement
Bond reserve
Passenger facility charges
Operating reserve
Unrestricted
Total net assets

Reconciliation to government-wide Statement of Net Assets

Adjustment to consolidate internal service activities
Total net assets - Business-type activities

Business-Type Activities

Water and

Electric Wastewater Airport
$ 1,118,770 379,995 302,606
50,974 20,721 13,634
141,695 - --
33,634 - 110,397
64 - 10,000
19,455 42,828 -
- -- 26,808
- - 9,158
235,063 58,896 {3,784)
$ 1,598,555 502,440 468,819
5,309 2,480 1,006
$ 1,604,864 504,920 469,825

The accompanying notes are an integraf part of the financial statements.
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Exhibit C-1

{Continued}

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Debt service
Slrategic reserve
Capital projects
Renewal and replacement
Bond reserve
Passenger facility charges
Operating reserve
Unrestricted
Total net assets

Reconciliation to government-wide Statement of Net Assets
Adjustment to consolidate internal service activities
Tatal net assets - Business-type activities

Business-Type Activities Governmental
Nonmajor Activities-
Enterprise Internal Service

Funds Total Funds

197,382 1,998,753 32,917

2,075 87,404 -

6,824 148,519 -

10,504 154,435 1,952

884 10,948 -

- " 62,283 -

- 26,808 -

2,656 11,814 -

101,405 391,580 44 630

321,730 2,892 544 79,499
2,971 11,766
324,701 2,904 310

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Proprietary Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
For the year ended September 30, 2010

{in thousands)

Business-Type Activities

Water and
Electric Wastewater Airport
OPERATING REVENUES
Utility services $ 1,147,676 360,649 -
User fees and rentals - - 83,277
Billings to departments = - -
Employee contributions - - -
Operating revenues from other governments - - -
Other operating revenues - . -
Total operating revenues 1,147 676 360,649 83,277
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating expenses before depreciation 887.152 171171 60,843
Depreciation and amortization 121,570 85,705 14,154
Total operating expenses 1,008,722 256,876 79,997
Operating income (loss) 138.954 103,773 3,280
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and other revenues 9,740 287 1.452
Interest on revenue bonds and other debt {80,029) {94,468) (14,396)
Interest capitalized during construction - - 1,370
Passenger facility charges - -~ 16,946
Amertization of bond issue cost (1,027) (717) (229)
Cost (recovered) to be recovered in future years (428) 18,375 --
Other nonoperating revenue (expense) 1,593 {4,057) 235
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) {70.151) (80,580) 5,378
Income (loss} before contributions and transfers 68,803 23,183 8,658
Capital contributions 4,856 10,894 7,799
Transfers in - - -
Transfers out {101,000) (33,429) --
Change in net assets (27.341) 658 16,457
Total net assets - beginning, as restated {See Note 2) 1,626,896 501,782 452,362
Total net assets - ending $ 1,599,555 502,440 468,819
Reconciliation to government-wide Statement of Activities
Change in net assets {27.341) 658 16,457
Adjustment to consolidate internal service activities 2,143 1,056 237
Change in net assets - Business-type activities 3 {25,198) 1.714 16,694

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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City of Austin, Texas

Exhibit C-2

OPERATING REVENUES
Utility services
User fees and rentals
Billings to deparments
Employee contributions
Operating revenues from other governments
Other operating revenues
Total operating revenues

QOPERATING EXPENSES
Operating expenses before depreciation
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and other revenues
Interest on revenue bonds and other debt
Interest capitalized during construction
Passenger facility charges
Amortization of bond issue cost
Cost (recovered) to be recovered in future years
Other nonoperating revenue {expense)

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses}

Income (loss} before contributions and transfers

Capital contributions

Transfers in

Transfers out
Change in net assets

Total net assets - beqinning, as restated (See Note 2)

Total net assets - ending

Reconciliation to government-wide Statement of Activities
Change in nef assets
Adjustment to consolidate internal service activities

Change in net assets - Business-type activities

Business-Type Activities Governmental
Nonmajor Activities-
Enterprise Internal Service

Funds Total Funds

-- 1,508,325 -
206,359 289,636 --
- - 291,411
- -- 36,888
- -- 2,643
- - 3,478
206,359 1,797,961 334,420
195,132 1,314,298 31292
22,054 248,483 8,516
217,186 1,562,781 321,428
{10,827) 235,180 12,992
2,456 13,935 409
{14,367) (203,260) (299)
2,559 3,928 --
- 16,946 -
(304) (2.277) 8
- 17,947 -
{6,834) {9,063) (6,921}
{16,490) {161,843) {6.803)
(27,317) 73,337 6,189
8,154 31,703 3,580
41,928 41,828 -
(3,530) (137,959) {7 681)
19,235 9,009 2,088
302,495 2,883,535 77.411
321,730 2,882,544 79,499
19,235 9,009
1,601 5,037
20,836 14,046

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Proprietary Funds

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended September 30, 2010
{In thousands}

Businass-Type Activities

Water and
Electric Wastewater Airport

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers $ 1203742 359,640 85,838
Cash payments to supgpliers for goods and services (728,298) (81,894) {34.,843)
Cash payments to employees for services (151,914) (77,059) (22,427}
Cash payments to claimants/beneficiaries - - --
Taxes collected and remitted to other governments {35,269) - -
Net cash provided by operating activities 288,261 200,687 28,568
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL

FINANCING ACTIVITIES: ’
Transfers in - - -
Transfers out {101,000) (33,429} -
Interest paid on revenue notes and other debt (221} -- -
Increase in deferred assets (970} - -
Loans to other funds {12) - -
Loans from other funds -- 24,603 -
Loan repayments to other funds -- (380} -
Loan repayments from other funds 442 27 11
Collections from other governments -- -- 724
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital

financing activities (101,761) (9,179) 735
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from the sale of commercial paper notes 94,130 181,350 -
Proceeds from the sale of revenue bonds -- 10,840 -
Principal paid on long-term debt (66,073) (59,753} {13,449)
Purchased interest received 1,157 710 --
Interest paid on revenue bonds and other debt (99,910) (104,438) (13,632)
Passenger facility charges - - 16,946
Acquisition and construction of capital assets {205,299) (199,435) {13,885)
Contributicns to municipality - - --
Contributions in aid of construction 4,856 5,635 7.799
Bond issuance costs (2,205) (1,476) --
Bond discounts (59) - --
Bond premiums 7,620 6,695 -
Bonds issued for advanced refundings of debt 220,245 166,575 -
Cash paid for bond refunding escrow (226,150} (171,795) -
Cash paid for nuclear fuel inventory {14,801) - -
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related

financing activities $ (286,489) {165,092} {16,221)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services

Cash payments to claimants/beneficiaries

Taxes coltected and remitted to other governments
Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Transfers in

Transfers out

Interest paid on revenue notes and ather debt

Ingrease in deferred assets

Loans to other funds

Loans from other funds

Loan repayments to other funds

Loan repayments from other funds

Collections from other governments

Net cash provided (used} by noncapital
financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from the sale of commercial paper notes

Proceeds from the sale of revenue bonds

Principal paid on long-term debt

Purchased interest received

Interest paid on revenue bonds and other debt

Passenger facility charges

Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Contributions to muricipality

Contributions in aid of construction

Bond issuance costs

Bond discounts

Bond premiums

Bonds issued for advanced refundings of debt

Cash paid for bond refunding escrow

Cash paid for nuclear fuel inventory

Net cash provided {(used) by capital and related
financing activities

Business-Type Activities Governmental
Nonmajor Activities-
Enterprise Internal Service

Funds Total Funds

206,260 1,855,480 334,943
(102,647) (947 682) (71,230}
(90,335) {341,735) {107,114)
- -- {130,783)

-- (35,269) --

13,278 530,794 25 816
41,928 41,928 --
(3,530} {137,959) (7.681)
(4} (225) -

- (970) --

(7 {19) -

40 24,643 -
(8598) (1,278) (253}

as 565 -

24 748 -
37,638 (72,567) (7,934)
-- 275,480 --

-- 10,840 -
{18,608) (157,883) 280
- 1,867 -
(13,206) (231,186) (301)
- 16,946 --
{39,048) (457,667} (8.619)
(15) (15} -
1.897 20,187 -

- (3.681) -

- (59) -

-- 14,315 -

- 386,820 -

- (397,945) -

- {14,801) -
{68,980) (536,782) (8,640)
{Continued}

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Proprietary Funds

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended September 30, 2010
{In thousands)

Business-Type Activities

Water and
Electric Wastewater Airport

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investment securities 3 {464,157) (158,182) (30,298)
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investment

securities 391,201 131,957 30,692
Interest on investments 8,269 287 1,452
Net cash provided {used) by investing activities (64,687) (25,938) 1,846
MNet increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {164,676} 478 14,928
Cash and cash equivalents, October 1 381,185 66,506 153,670
Cash and cash equivalents, September 30 216,509 66,984 168,598

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME {LOSS5) TO NET

CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating inceme (loss) 138,954 103,773 3,280
Adjustments to reconcite operating income to net cash

provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 121,570 84 717 14,154
Amortization -~ 988 --
Change in assets and liabilities:
Increase in working capital advances (3,161) - -
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (982) (226} 1,736
Increase (decrease) in allowance for doubtful accounts 55 (201} 121
Decrease in due from other funds - = -
(Increase) decrease in inventory 13,603 219 213
Decrease in prepaid expenses and
other assets 5,668 (2) 19
(Increase) decrease in deferred costs and other expenses (8.491) 25 -
(Increase) decrease in other long-term assets 5 - -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (5,482) 4 {379)
Increase in accrued payroll and compensated
absences 885 197 135
Decrease in claims payable - -- --
Increase in pension obligations payable 5,793 2,843 835
Increase in other post employment benefits payable 14,445 8927 2,629
Increase {(decrease) in deferred credits and
other liabilities 2,154 {1,766) 846
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 3,155 1,189 21)
Total adjustments 149,307 96,914 25,288
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 288,261 200,687 28,568

The accompanying notes are an integral pant of the financial statements.
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
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(Continued)

Exhibit C-3
{Continued)
Business-Type Activities Governmental
Nonmajor Activities-
Enterprise Internal Service
Funds Total Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investment securities {20,810) (673,447) -
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investment
securities 19,294 573,144 --
Interest on investments 2.456 12,464 409
Net cash provided {used) by investing activities 940 (87,839} 409
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {(17.,124) (166,394) 9,651
Cash and cash equivalents, October 1 184,219 785,580 92,197
Cash and cash equivalents, September 30 167,095 619,186 101,848
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME {(LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
COperating income (loss} {10,827) 235,180 12,892
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 22,054 247 495 8,516
Amortization - 988 -
Change in assets and liabilities:
Increase in working capital advances - {3,161} --
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable {118) 410 138
Increase {decrease) in allowance for doubtful accounts 74 49 (222)
Decrease in due from cther funds -- - 11
{Increase) decrease in inventory (758) 13,367 179
Decrease in prepaid expenses and
other assets 488 6,173 461
{Increase) decrease in deferred costs and other expenses -- (8,466} 276
{Increase) decrease in other long-term assets -- 5 -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable {13} (5,870) (622)
Increase in accrued payroll and compensated
absences 284 1,501 655
Decrease in claims payable -n - 3,158
Increase in pension obligations payable 3,210 12,681 -
Increase in other post employment benefits payable 9,416 35,417 -
Increase {decrease) in deferred credits and
ather liahilities (10,564) (9,330) 274
Increase {decrease) in customer deposits 32 4,355 -
Total adjustments 24,105 295,614 12,824
Net cash provided by operating activities 13,278 530,794 25,816



Proprietary Funds

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended September 30, 2010
{In thousands)

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:

(Increase)} decrease in deferred assets/expenses

Canpital appreciation bonds interest accreted

Capital assets contributed from other funds

Increase in contributed facilities

Increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments

Amortization of bond issue costs

Amortization of bond discounts and premiums

Amortization of deferred gain (loss) on refundings

Gain {loss} on disposal of assets

Deferred gain (loss) on bond refunding

Bond issuance costs, discounts, premiums, and accrued
interest written off due to refunding

Deferred costs (recovered) to be recovered

Increase (decrease) in deferred credits and other liabilities

Capital lease obligations

Bonds assumed with debt transfer

Contributions

Debt obligatians transferred to other funds

Business-Type Activities

Water and
Electric Wastewater Airport

3 {9,807} 6,142 -
7,304 11,970 -

- 5,259 -

{1,238) (406) 427
1.027 (717) (229)
(5,077 (3,709} 260
0,986 3,804 {1,085}
1,593 (4,057) (490}
(2,792) - --
1,357 - -
3,487 18375 --
150,705 (32,999) -
1,258 - 486

- (8.046) --

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Exhibit C-3
{Continued)
Business-Type Activities Governmental
Nonmajor Activities-
Enterprise Internal Service
Funds Total Funds
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
{Increase) decrease in deferred assets/expenses 221 (3.444) -
Capital appreciation bonds interest accreted - 19,274 -
Capital assets contributed from other funds 173 173 2,254
Increase in contributed facilities - 5,259 -
Increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments (967) (2,184} -
Ameortization of bond issue cosls (304) (223) 4
Amortization of bond discounts and premiums (789) (9,315) -
Amortization of deferred gain (loss} on refundings 1,612 14,317 -
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets (2,748} (5,702) {102)
Deferred gain {loss) on bond refunding -- {2,792) -
Bond issuance costs, discounts, premiums, and accrued
interest written off due to refunding - 1,357 -

Beferred costs (recovered) to be recoverad -~ 21,862 -
Increase {decrease} in deferred credits and other liabilities - 117,706 323
Capital lease obligations .- 1,744 -
Bonds assumed with debt transfer (4,522} (12,568) -
Contributions 375 375 -
Debt obligations transferred to other funds 3,338 3,338 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
September 30, 2010

{in thousands)

City of Austin, Texas
Exhibit D-1

ASSETS
Pooled investments and cash
OCther assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other governments
Deposits and other liabilities
Total liahilities

NET ASSETS
Held in trust
Total net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Private-purpose
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Trust Agency
$ 1,410 3.644
121 -
1,631 3,644
-- 11
-- 2,799
663 834
663 3,644
868
$ 868



Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
For the year ended September 30, 2010

{in thousands)

City of Austin, Texas
Exhibit D-2

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Interest and other

Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Benefit payments
Total deductions

Net additions {deductions)
Total net assets - beginning

Total net assets - ending

Private-purpose
Trust

$ 431
19
450

396
396
54

814

$ 868

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements City of Austin, Texas
September 30, 2010

1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Austin, Texas (the City) is a municipal corporation incorporated under Article XI, Seclion 5 of the Constitution of the
State of Texas (Home Rule Amendment). The City operates under a Council-Managet form of government. The City Council is
composed of a Mayor and six Councilmembers, all of whom are elected at iarge for three-year staggered terms and may serve
a maximum of two consecutive terms. A petition signed by 5% of the registered voters waives the term limit for a
Councilmember.

The City's major activities or programs include general government; public safety; transportation, planning, and sustainability;
public health; public recreation and cuilture; and urban growth management. in addition, the City owns and operates certain
major enterprise activities including an electric utility, water and wastewater utility, airport, and non-major enterprise activities
including convention, environmental and health services, public recreation, and urban growth management activities. These
activities are included in the accompanying financial statements.

The City of Austin’s charter requires an annual audit by an independent certified public accountant. These financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for local governments as prescribed
by the Governmenial Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The City has implemented GASB Statements No. 1 through No.
53, and No. 55 through No. 58. in fiscal year 2010, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 51 enlitled “Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets” (see Note 2 for impact), GASB Statement No. 53 entitled *Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Derivative Instruments” (see Note 14 for impact), GASB Statement No. 57 entitled "OPEB Measurements by
Agent Employers and Agent Multiple Employer Plans”, and GASB Statement No. 58 entitled "Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Chapter 9 Bankruptcies®. Implementation of the GASB Statement No. 57 and No. 58 did not have a significant
impact on the City's financial statements. The more significant accounting and reporting policies and practices used by the
City are described below.

As a local government, the City is not subject to federal income taxes, under the Internal Revenue Code Section 115.
Furthermore, it is not subject to state sales tax.

a -- Reporting Entity

As required by GAAP, these financial statements present the City's primary government, its component units, and other
entities for which the City is considered financially accountable. Blended componemt units, although legally separate entities,
are, in substance, part of the City's operations; therefore, data from these units are combined with data of the City.

Blended Component Units - The Austin Housing Finance Corporation (AHFC) and Austin Industrial Development
Corporation (AIDC) are legally separate entities from the City. AHFC and AIDC serve all the citizens of Austin and are
governed by a board composed of the City Councilmembers. The activities are reported in the Housing Assistance Fund and
Austin Industrial Development Corporation Fund, which are nonmajor special revenue funds.

The Mueller Local Government Corporation {(MLGC) is a non-profit local government corporation created by the City under
Subchapter D of Chapter 431 of the Texas Transporiation Code. MLGC was created for the purpose of financing infrastructure
projects required for the development of the former site of Mueller Airport. The Austin City Council acts as the board of
directors of the corporation and members of the City staff serve as officers of the corporation. The entity is reported as a
nonmajor special revenue fund in the City’s financial statements.

Related Organizations -- The City Council appoints board members, but the City has no significant financial accountability for

the following related organizations:

+  Capital Metropolitan Transit Authority (Capital Metro) - The City's accountability for this organization does not extend
beyond appointing board members.

* Austin-Bergstrom International Airport (ABIA) Development Corporation - City Councilmembers appoint themselves as
members of the board, but their function on the board is ministerial rather than substantive.

«  Austin-Bergstrom Landhost Enterprises, Inc. and Ausiin Convention Enterprises, Inc. - City Councilmembers appoint
members of these boards. Debt issues by these entities do not constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit of the
City.

»  Austin Travis County Mental Health Mental Retardation Center - The nine board members are appointed by the City,
Travis County, and the Austin Independent School District.

= Urban Renewal Agency - The Mayor, with consent of the City Council, appoints the board of commissioners for this
agency, whose primary responsibility is to oversee the implementation and compliance of urban renewal plans adopted by
the City Council.

¢ Austin Housing Authority - The Mayor appoints the persons to serve as commissioners of this organization.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements City of Austin, Texas
September 30, 2010 (Continued)

1 -~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
a -- Reporting Entity, continued

« Travis County Hospital District - City Councilmembers appoint four board managers, Travis County appoints four board
managers, and the City and County mutually appoint one board manager. Travis County reports the Hospital District as a
compenent unit on their financial statements.

All of these entities are separate from the operating activities of the City. Related organizations are not included in the City's
reporting entity.

The City of Austin retirement plans (described in Note 8) and the City of Austin Deferred Compensation Plan are not included
in the City's reporting entity since the City does not exercise substantial control over these plans.

b -- Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include both government-wide and fund financial statements. The government-wide financial
statements {i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report information on alt governmental and
business-type activities of the primary government and its component units. Fiduciary aclivities are not included in the
government-wide statements. Internal service fund asset and liability balances that are not eliminated in the statement of net
assets are reported in the governmental aclivities column on the government-wide statements. Governmental activities, which
nommally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reporied separately from business-type activities, which
rely to a significant extent on fees and charges to external customers.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a function are offset by program
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. Cenrain indirect costs are included in
the program expenses of most business-type activities. Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers who purchase,
use, or direclly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function and 2) grants and conlributions that are
restricted to meet the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not properly included
among program revenues are reported as general revenues.

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds. The fund level statements focus on the governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary funds. Each fund was established to account for specific activities in accordance with applicable
regulations, restrictions, or imitations. Major funds are determined by criteria specified by GASB Statement No. 34; the City
has efected to present the Airport Fund as a major fund even though it does not meet the minimum criteria. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.
Al other funds are aggregated intc nonmajor governmental, nonmajor enterprise, or internal service fund groupings.

The City's fiduciary funds are presented in the fund financiai statements by type (private-purpose and agency). By definition,
fiduciary fund assets are held for the benefit of a third party and cannot be used to address activities or obligations of the
primary government; therefore, they are not included in the government-wide statements. Reconciliation of the fund financial
statements to the government-wide financial statements is provided in the financial statements to explain the differences
created by the integrated approach of GASB Statement No. 34.

¢ -- Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the flow of economic respurces measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenue is recorded when earmed and expenses
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenue in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility
requirements have been met.
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1~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
¢ -- Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation, continued

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. This basis of accounting recognizes revenues in the accounting period in which they
become susceptible to accrual {i.e. both measurable and available). Revenues, other than grants, are considered available
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to liquidate liabilities of the current peried (defined
by the City as collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year). Revenues billed under a contractual agreement with
another governmental entity, including federal and state grants, are recognized when billed or when all eligibility requirements
of the provider have been met, and they are considered to be available if expected to be collected within one year.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is due. However, expenditures related to compensated absences and
arbitrage are recorded when payment is due. Debt service expenditures are recognized when payment is due. The reported
fund balance of governmental funds is considered a measure of available spendable resources.

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, hotel occupancy taxes, vehicle renta! taxes, municipal court fines, development
permits and inspections, building safety permits and inspections, public health charges, emergency medical service charges,
and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized
as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered measurable and available in the fiscal period
the City receives cash.

Governmental Funds: Consist of the general fund, special revenue funds, debt service funds, capital projects funds, and
permanent funds.

The City reports the following major governmental fund:

General Fund: The primary operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial resources that are not
required to be accounted for in another fund. It includes the following activities: general government; public safety,
transportation, planning, and sustainability; public health; public recreation and culture; and urban growth
management.

In addition, the City reports the folfowing nonmajor governmental funds:

Special Revenue Funds: Account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to
expenditures far specified purposes, including grant funds.

Debt Service Funds: Account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general tong-term debt and
HUD Section 108 loan principal, interest, and related costs.

Capital Projects Funds: Account for financial resources for the acquisition or construction of major capital facifities
{other than those reported within proprietary fundsy; they are funded primarily by general obligation debt, other tax
supported debt, interest income, and other intergovernmental revenues. A 1981 ordinance requires the establishment
of a separate fund for each bond proposition approved in each bond election.

Permanent Funds: Account for resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings (not principal) may
be used for purposes that support the City’s programs. Permanent funds account for the public recreation and culture
activity,

Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal
ongoing operations, such as providing electric or water-wastewater services. Other revenues or expenses are nonoperating
items.
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1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
¢ -- Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation, continued

Proprietary Funds: Consist of enterprise funds and internal service funds.
Enterprise Funds: Account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner simitar to private business enterprises.
Costs are financed or recovered primarily through user charges. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, the City applies
all applicable GASB pronouncements as well as Financial Accounting Standards Board {FASB) pronouncements issued on or
before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

Electric Fund: Accounts for the activities of the City-owned electric utility, doing business as Austin Energy™.

Water and Wastewater Fund: Accounts for the activities of the City-owned water and wastewater utility, doing
business as Auslin Water™.

Airport Fund: Accounts for the operations of the Austin-Bergstrom International Airport {ABIA).
The City reports the following nonmajor business-type activities in Exhibit A-2;

Convention: Accounts for convention center and public events activities.

Environmental and health services: Accounts for hospital and solid waste services activities.
Public recreation: Accounts for golf and parks and recreation activities.

Urban growth management: Accounts for drainage and transportation activities.

Internal Service Funds: Account for the financing of goods or services provided by one city department or agency to
other city departments or to other governmental units on a cost-reimbursement basis. These activities include, but are
not limited to, capital projects management, combined emergency center operations, employee health benefits, fleet
services, information services, liability reserve (city-wide self insurance) services, support services, wireless
communication services, and workers’ compensation coverage.

Fiduciary Funds: Account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations,
or other governments:

Private-purpose Trust Funds: Account for trust arrangements under which principal and income benefit individuals,
private organizations, or other governments. Private-purpose trust funds account for various purposes: general
government, transportation, public recreation and culture, and urban growth management.

Agency Funds: Account for resources held by the City in a custodial capacity for permit fees; campaign financing
donations and fees; Municipal Court service fees; and escrow deposits and payments to loan recipients.

d -- Budget

The City Manager is required by the City Charter to present a proposed operating and capital budget to the City Council no
later than thirty days before the beginning of the new fiscal year. The final budget shall be adopted no later than the twenty-
seventh day of the last month of the preceding fiscal year. During the final adoption process, the City Council passes an
appropriation ordinance and a tax-levying ordinance.

Annuzal budgets are legally adopted for the General Fund, certain special revenue funds, and debt service funds. Additional
information related to special revenue funds with legally adopted budgets can be found in Exhibit E-13. Annual budgets are
also adopted for enterprise and internal service funds, aithough they are not legally required. Multi-year budgets are adopted
for capital projects and grant funds, where appropriations remain authorized for the life of the project, irrespective of fiscal
year. Expenditures are appropriated on a medified accrual basis, except that commitments related to purchase orders are
treated as expenditures in the year of commitment. Certain payroll accruals, employee training, and other fund-level
expenditures are budgeted as generat city responsibilities.

Formal budgetary control is employed during the year at the fund and department level as a management controf device for
annually budgeted funds.
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1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
d -- Budget, continued

Budgets are modified throughout the year. The City Manager is authorized to transfer appropriation balances within a fund and
department of the City. The City Council approves amendments to the budget and transfers of appropriations from one fund
and department to another. The original and final budgets for the General Fund are reported in the required supplementary
information. Unencumbered appropriations for annual budgets lapse at fiscal year end.

e -- Financial Statement Elements

Pooled Investments and Cash -- Cash balances of all city funds (except for certain funds shown in Note § as having non-
pooled investments) are pooled and invested. Investments purchased with pooled cash, consisting primarily of U.S.
government obligations and U.S. agency obligations, are stated at fair value. Interest earned on investments purchased with
pooled cash is allocated monthly to each participating fund based upon the fund's average daily balance. Funds that carry a
negative balance in pooled cash and investments are not allocated interest earnings nor charged interest expense.

Investments -- Certain investments are required to be reported at fair value, based on quoted market prices. Realized gains
or losses resulting from the sale of investments are determined by the specific cost of the securities sold. The City carries all of
its investments in U.S. government and agency debt securities and money market mutual funds at fair value as of September
30, 2010. Investments in local government investment pools are carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.

Accounts Receivable -- Balances of accounts receivable, reported on the government-wide statement of net assets, are
aggregations of different components such as charges for services, fines, and balances due from taxpayers or other
governments. [n order to assist the reader, the following information has been provided regarding significant components of
receivable balances as of September 30, 2010 (in thousands):

Charges Other
for Govern-
Services Fines Taxes ments Cther Total
Governmental activities
General Fund $ 79,001 3907 33,307 - -- 138,215
Nonmajor govemmental funds 589 16 11,751 28,356 719 41,441
Intemal service funds 2015 - - - -- 2,015
Allowance for doubfful accounts (70,487) {11,612) - (259) - (82,358)
Total $ 11,128 14,311 45058 28,007 719 93,313

Receivables reported in business-type activities are primarily comprised of charges for services.

Elimination of Internal Activities -- The elimination of internal service fund activity is needed in order to eliminate duplicate
activity in making the transition from the fund level financial statements to the government-wide financial statements. In
addition, the elimination of internal service fund activity requires the City to “look back” and adjust the internal service funds’
internal charges. A posiiive change in net assets derived from internal service fund activity results in a pro-rata reduction in the
charges made to the participatory funds. A deficit change in net assets of internal service funds requires a pro-rata increase in
the amounts charged to the participatory funds.

Internal Balances -- In the government-wide statement of net assets, internal balances are the receivables and payables
between the governmental and business-type activities.

Interfund Receivables and Payables -- During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual
funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as “due from other funds” or
“due to other funds" on the fund-level staterments when they are expected to be liquidated within one year. If receivables or
payables are not expected to be liquidated within one year, they are classified as “advances to other funds” or “advances from
other funds.”
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1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
e - Financial Statement Elements, continued

Inventories -- Inventories are valued at cost, which is determined as follows:

Fund Inventory Valuation Method
General Fund Average cost; postage first-in, first-out
Electric:
Fuel oil and coa! Last-in, first-out
Other inventories Average cost
All others Average cost

Inventories for all funds are accounied for using the consumplion method and expenditures are recorded when issued.
Inventories reported in the General Fund and certain special revenue funds are offset by a fund balance reserve, which
indicates that they do not represent "available spendable resources.”

Restricted assets -- Restricted assels are assels whose use is subject to constraints that are either (a) externally imposed by
creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or (b) imposed
by law through constitutional provisions or enabiing legislation. Since the Electric Fund and Water and Wastewater Fund
report in accordance with accounting for regulated operations (formerly FASB Statement No. 71), enabling legislation also
includes restrictions on asset use established by its governing board which is the City Council.

The balance of restricted assets in the enterprise funds are as follows (in thousands):

Total
Water and Nonmajor  Restricted
Electric Wastewater Airport Enterprise Assets

Strategic reserve $ 141695 - - - 141,695
Capital projects 44 960 31,038 121,054 10,154 207,206
Customer and escrow deposits 24,686 8,405 417 3,154 36,662
Debt service 100,568 106,247 13,634 2,130 222,579
Federal grants - 307 1,612 2,480 4,399
Plant decommissioning 184,029 - -- -- 184,029
Revenue bond reserve 19,455 - - 8,497 27,952
Operating reserve account - - 9,158 6,158 15,316
Passenger facility charge account - - 26,808 - 26,808
Renewal and replacement account 64 -- 10,000 884 10,948

$ 515457 145,997 182,683 33,457 877,594

Capital assets -- Capital assets, which primarily include land and improverments, buildings and improvements, plant and
equipment, vehicles, water rights, and infrastructure assets, are reported in the proprietary funds and the applicable
governmental or business-type activity columns of the government-wide statement of net assets; related depreciation or
amortization is allocated to programs in the statement of activities. Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial
individual cost of $1,000 or more and an estimated useful life of greater than one year. Assets purchased, internally generated,
or constructed are capitalized at historical cost. Contributed or annexed capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at
the time received. Capital outlay is recorded as an expenditure in the General Fund and other governmental funds and as an
asset in the government-wide financial statements and proprietary funds. Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations
as incurred. Improvements and betterrments that extend the useful lives of capital assets are capitalized in the government-
wide and proprietary statement of net assets and expended in governmental funds.

The City obtains public domain capital assets (infrastructure) through capital improvement projects (CIP) construction or

through annexation or developer contribution. Infrastructure assets include streets and roads, bridges, pedestrian facilities,
drainage systems, and traffic signal systems acquired after September 30, 1980.
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1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
e -- Financial Statement Elements, continued

Interest is not capitalized on governmental capital assets. Enterprise funds, with the exception of the Electric Fund and Water
and Wastewater Fund, capitalize interest paid on long-term debt when it can be atiributed to a specific project and when it
materially exceeds the interest revenue generated by the bond proceeds issued to fund the project. Interest is not capitalized
on Electric Fund and Water and Wastewater Fund asseis in accordance with accounting for regulated operations.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives (in years):

Business-type Activities

Governmental Water and Nonmajor

Assets Activities (1) Electric Wastewater Airport Enterprise
Buildings 5-40 15-50 15-50 15-40 12-40
Plant and equipment 5-50 6-40 5-60 4-50 5-40
Vehicles 3-20 340 3-20 3-20 3-30
Communication equipment 7-15 7-18 7 7 7
Furniture and fixtures 7-12 12-40 12 10-12 7-12
Computers and EDP equipment 3-7 3-7 3-7 3-7 3-7
Water rights - - 101 -- -~

Infrastructure

Streets and roads 30 - -- -- -
Bridges 50 - -- -- -
Drainage systems 50 -- -- -- -
Pedestrian facilities 20 - - - -
Traffic signals 25 - -- -- --

{1} Includes internal service funds

Depreciation of assets is classified by functional component. The City considers land, arts and treasures, and library
collections to be inexhaustible; therefore, these assets are reported as nondepreciable. The true value of arts, treasures, and
library collections is expected to be maintained over time and, thus, is not depreciated.

In the government-wide and proprietary fund statements, the Cily recognizes a gain or loss on the disposal of assets when it
retires or otherwise disposes of capital assets.

Water rights represent the amortized cost of a $100 million contract, net of accumulated amortization of $10.9 million between
the City and the Lower Colorado River Authority (LCRA) for a fifty-one year assured water supply agreement, with an oplion to
extend another fifty years. The City and LCRA entered into the contract in 1999. The asset amortization period is 101.25
years.

Deferred Expenses or Credits -- In accordance with accounting for regulated operations, certain utility expenses that do not
currently require funding are deferred to fulure periods in which they are intended to be recovered by rates. Likewise, certain
credits to income are deferred to periods in which they are matched with related costs. These expenses or credits include
changes in fair value of investments, contribulions, and debt issuance costs, pension, other post employment benefits,
interest, decommission, fuel recovery, etc, Deferred expenses will be recovered in these future periods by setting rates
sufficient to provide funds for the requirements. if deferred expenses are not recoverable in future rates, the deferred
expenses will be subject to write off. Retail deregulation of electric rates in the future may affect the City's current accounting
treatment of its electric utility revenues, expenses, and deferred amounts.
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1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
e -- Financial Statement Elements, continued

Deferred {Inflows) Outflows of Resources - In accordance with GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Derivative Instruments, derivative instruments are reported in the statement of net assets at fair value, as either
assets or liabilities. Changes in fair value of hedging derivative instruments are recognized through the application of hedge
accounting as either deferred inflows or outflows in the statement of net assets, as an offset to the related hedging derivative
instrument.

Compensated Absences - The amounts owed to employees for unpaid vacation, exception vacation and sick leave
liabilities, including the City's share of employment-related taxes, are reported on the accrual basis of accounting in the
applicable governmental or business-type activity columns of the government-wide statements and in the proprietary activities
of the fund financial statements. The liabilities and expenditures are reported on the modified accrual basis in the
governmental fund financial stalements; the estimated liability for governmental funds is the amount of sick and vacation paid
at termination within 60 days of fiscal year-end.

Accumulated feave payouts are limited to the lower of aclual accumulated hours or the hours listed below:

Non-Civil Civil Civil
Work- Service Service Service
week Employees (1) Police {2) Fire (3)
Vacation 0-40 240 240 240
42 270 N/A NfA
48 309 N/A N/A
53 N/A N/A 360
Exception vacation (4) 0-40 160 160 176
42 160 N/A N/A
48 160 N/A N/A
53 N/A N7A 264
Sick leave 0-40 720 1,400 720
42 756 N/A N/A
48 926 N/A N/A
53 N/A N/A 1080

(1) Non-civil service employees are eligible for accumulated sick leave payout if hired before October 1, 1986.

{2) Civil service police employees with 10 years of actual service are eligible for accumulated sick leave payout.
(3) Civil service fire employees are eligible for accumulated sick leave payout regardless of hire date.

(4) Exception vacation hours are hours accumulated by an employee when the employee works on a City holiday.

Other Post Employment Benefits -- The City provides certain health care benefits for its retired employees and their families
as more fully described in Note 16. The City implemented GASB Statement No. 45 and reporis the actuarially determined cost
of these post-employment benefits, other than pensions. At September 30, 2010, the City's total actuarial accrued liability for
these retiree benefits was approximately $1.1 billion. The City funds the costs of these benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis.

Long-Term Debt -- The debt service for general obligation bonds and other general obligation debt (including loans), issued 1o
fund general government capital projects, is paid from tax revenues, interfund transfers, and intergovernmental revenues.
Such general obligation debt is reported in the government-wide statements under governmental activities.

The debt service for general obligation bonds and other general obligation debt issued to finance proprietary fund capital
projects is normally paid from net revenues of the applicable proprietary fund, although such debt will be repaid from tax
revenues if necessary. Such general obligation debt is shown as a specific liability of the applicable propriefary fund, which is
appropriate under generally accepled accounting principles and in view of the expectation that the proprietary fund will provide
resources to service the debt.

Revenue bonds issued to finance capital projects of certain enterprise funds are to be repaid from net revenues of these
funds. The corresponding debt is recorded in the applicable fund. Operating revenues and interest income that are used as
security for revenue bonds are reported separately from other revenues.
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1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
e -- Financial Statement Elements, continued

The City has certain contractual commitments with several municipal utility districts (MUDs) for the construction of additions
and improvements to the City’s water and wastewater system that serve the MUDs and surrounding areas. These additions
and improvements are funded by contract revenue bonds, whose principal and interest are payable primarily from the net
revenues of the Water and Wastewater Fund.

For proprietary funds and for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements, the City defers and
amortizes gains and losses realized on refundings of debt and reports both the new debt liability and the related deferred
amount on the statement of net assets. The Electric Fund and Water and Wastewater Fund recognize gains and fosses on
debt defeasance in accordance with accounting for regulated operations.

Other Long-Term Liabilities -- Capital appreciation bonds are recorded at net accreted value. Annual accretion of the bonds
is recorded as interest expense during the life of the bonds. The cumulative accretion of capital appreciation bonds, net of
interest payments on the bonds, is recorded as capital appreciation bond interest payable.

Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs -- Municipal solid waste landfill costs are reported in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 18, “Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs”. The liability for landfill
closure and postclosure costs is reported in the Solid Waste Services Fund, a nonmajor enterprise fund.

Operating Revenues -- Revenues are recorded net of allowances, including bad debt, in the government-wide and
proprietary fund-level statements. The funds listed below report revenues net of bad debt expense, as follows (in thousands):

Bad Debt

Expense
Electric $ 4,166
Water and Wastewater 1,469
Airport 120
Nonmajor Enterprise 1,184

Electric, water, and wastewater revenue is recorded when earmed. Customers' electric and water meters are read and bills are
rendered on a cycle basis by billing district. Electric rate schedules include a fuel cost adjustment clause that permits recovery
of fuel costs in the month incurred or in future months. The City reports fuel costs on the same basis as it recognizes revenue.
Unbilled revenue is recorded in the Electric Fund by estimating the daily power generation and allocating by each billing district
meter read dates as of September 30, 2010. The amount of unbilled revenue recorded, as of September 30, 2010, for the
Electric Fund was $40.4 milion. The Water and Wastewater Fund records unbilled revenue as earned based upon the
percentage of Cctober's billing that represented water usage through September 30, 2010. The amount of unbilled revenue
recorded as of September 30, 2010 was $11.2 million for water and $10.7 million for wastewater.

Interfund Revenues, Expenses, and Transfers -- Transactions between funds that would be treated as revenues,
expenditures, or expenses if they involved organizations exiemal to the governmental unit are accounted for as revenues,
expenditures, or expenses in the funds involved, such as billing for utility services. Transactions between funds that constitute
reimbursements for expenditures or expenses are recorded as expenditures or expenses in the reimbursing fund and as
reductions of the expenditure or expense in the fund that is reimbursed. Transfers between funds are reported in the
operations of governmentat and proprietary funds. In the government-wide statement of activities, the effect of interfund
activity has generally been removed from the statements. Exceptions include the chargeback of services, such as utilities or
vehicle maintenance, and charges for central administrative costs. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs
and program revenues of the various functions reporied. The City recovers indirect costs that are incurred in the Support
Services Fund, which is reported as an internal service fund. Indirect costs are calculated in a citywide cost allocation plian or
through indirect cost rates, which are based on the cost allocation plan.

Intergovernmental Revenues, Receivables, and Liabilities -- Intergovernmental revenues and related receivables arise
primarily through funding received from Federal and State grants. Revenues are earned through expenditure of money for
grant purposes. Intergovernmental liabilities arise primarily from funds held in an agency capacity for other local governmental
units.
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1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
e -- Financial Statement Elements, continued

Federal and State Grants, Entitlements, and Shared Revenues - Grants, entittements, and shared revenues may be
accounted for within any City fund. The purpose and requirements of each grant, entitlement, or shared revenue are analyzed
to determine the appropriate fund statement and revenue category in which to report the related transactions. Grants,
entitternents, and shared revenues received for activities normally recorded in a particular fund may be accounted for in that
fund, provided that applicable legal restrictions can be satisfied.

Revenues received for activities normally accounted for within the nonmajor governmental fund groupings include: Federal
grant funds, State grant funds, and other special revenue grant funds. Capital grants restricted for capital acquisitions or
construction, other than those assocciated with proprietary type funds, are accounted for in the applicable capital projects
funds. Revenues received for operating activities of proprietary funds or revenues that may be used for either operations or
capital expenditures are recognized in the applicable proprietary fund.

Restricted Resources -- If both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy o use
restricted resources first and unrestricted resources as needed.

Reservations of Fund Equity -- Reservation of fund balances of the governmental funds indicate the portion of fund equity
that is not availabie for appropriation for expenditure or is legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose.
Designations of fund balance are the representations of management for the utilization of resources in future periods.

Cash and Cash Equivalents -- For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers cash and cash equivalents to
be currency on hand, cash held by trustee, demand deposits with banks, and all amounts included in pooled investments and
cash accounts. The City considers the investment pool to be highly liquid, similar to a mutual fund.

Pension Costs -- State law governs pension contribution requirements and benefits. Pension costs are composed of normal
cost and, where applicable, amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liability and of unfunded prior service cost (see Note 8).

Risk Management -- The City is exposed to employee-related risks for health benefits and workers' compensation, as well as
to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets; fraud; and natural disasters. The City is
self-insured for legal liabilities, workers’ compensation claims, and employee health benefits.

The City does not participate in a risk pool but purchases commercial insurance for coverage for property loss or damage,
commercial crime, fidelity bonds, airport operations, and contractors working at selected capital improvement project sites. It
complies with GASB Statement No. 10, “Accounting and Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues” (see
Note 15).

Austin Energy has established an energy risk management program. This program was authorized by City Council and led by
the risk oversight commitiee. Under this program, Austin Energy enters into futures contracts, options, and swaps to reduce
exposure to natural gas and energy price fluctuations. For additional details see Note 14.

f -- Comparative Data

Governments are required to present comparative data only in connection with Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). Comparative data has been utilized within the MD&A to more fully understand the City’s financial statements for the
current period.

g -- Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions

that affect the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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2 — RESTATEMENT AS A RESULT OF THE IMPLEMENTATION OF A NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARD

During fiscal year 2010, the City impiemented a new accounting standard, GASB Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Intangible Assets, which established standards of accounting and reporting for intangible assets. GASB
Statement No. 51 requires a restatement of prior financial statements for prior period impacts of implementation. The
statement addresses the basis of the useful life of an intangible asset. The City assessed the useful life of the Water and
Wastewater Fund’s water rights agreement and determined that the useful life should be adjusted from 40 years 1o 101.25
years to reflect the time period of the contract, including the renewal period. In accordance with accounting for regulated
operations, the City also assessed the effect of the implementation of GASB Statement No. 51 on the regulatory accounting
for the portion of the water rights funded by debt. The City has restated the beginning net assets in 2010 for the Water and

Wastewater Fund and Business-type activities to reflect this implementation as follows:

Exhibit A-2 Exhibit C-2
Business-Type Water and Business-Type
Activities Wastewater Activities
Net assets at September 30, 2009, as previously reported $ 2,886,129 497 647 2,879,400
Adjustments to properly record:
Implementation of GASB Stalement No. 51 15,125 15,125 15,125
Implementation effect on accounting for regulated operations {10,990) (10,990} (10,990)
Net assets at September 30, 2009, as restated $ 2,890,264 501,782 2,883,535

3 — DEFICITS IN FUND BALANCES AND NET ASSETS

At September 30, 2010, the foliowing funds reported deficits in fund balances/net assets (in thousands). Management intends

to recover these deficits through future operating revenues, transfers, or debt issues.

Nonmajor Governmental Deficit
Special Revenue Funds:

Medicaid Administrative Claims $ 696
PARD Police Asset Forfeitures 2
Senior Nutrition 10
Performance Contracting 1,051
City Hall 117
Mueller Tax Increment Financing 212
One Texas Center 600
RMMA Reimbursement 18
Rutherford Lane Facility 792

Capital Projects Funds:
Street & traffic signals 8
Parks and recreation facilities 288
Libraries 17
Radio Trunking 537
Affordable Housing 22,038
Central Library 225
TPSD general improvements 1,916
Build Austin 281
CMTA Mobility 458
Police and courts 5,584
Public Works 184
Watershed Protection 663
City Hall, plaza, parking garage 7,055
Conservation Land 15

Nonmajor Enterprise
Parks and recreation 326
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4 — POOLED INVESTMENTS AND CASH
The following summarizes the amounts of pooled investments and cash by fund at September 30, 2010 (in thousands):

Pooled Investments and Cash

Unrestricted Restricted

General Fund $ 102,327 -
Nonmajor governmental funds 240,391 -
Electric 133,576 82,915
Water and Wastewater 27,675 39,199
Airport 1,800 166,790
Nonmajor enterprise funds 146,739 20,326
Internal service funds 101,239 -
Fiduciary funds 5,054 -
Subtotal pooled investments and cash 758,801 309,230
Tolal pocled investments and cash $ 1,068,031

5 — INVESTMENTS AND DEPOSITS
a -- Investments

Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code (the Public Funds Investment Act) authorizes the City to invest its funds under a
written investment policy {the “Investment Palicy”} that primarily emphasizes safety of principal and liquidity, addresses
investment diversification, yield, and maturity; and addresses the quality and capability of investment personnel. The
investment policy defines what constitutes the legal fist of investments allowed under the policy, which excludes certain
investment instruments allowed under chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code,

The City's deposits and investments are invested pursuant to the Investment Policy, which is approved annually by the City
Council. The Investment Policy includes a list of authorized investment instruments, a maxirnum allowable stated maturity of
any individual investment, and the maximum average dollar weighted maturity allowed for pooled fund groups. In addition, it
includes an "Investment Strategy Statement” that specifically addresses each fund’s investment options and describes the
priorities of suitability of investment type, preservation, and safety of principal, liquidity, marketability, diversification, and vyield.
Additionally, the soundness of financial institutions in which the City will deposit funds is addressed.

The City Treasurer submits an investment report each gquarter to the investment committee. The report details the investment
position of the City and the compliance of the investment portfolioc as it relates to both the adopted investment strategy
statements and Texas state law.

The City is authorized to invest in the following investment instruments if they meet the guidelines of the invesiment policy:

1. Obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities;

2. Direct obligations of the State of Texas;

3. Other obligations, the principal and interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the State of
Texas or the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities;

4. (Qbligations of other states, cities, counties or other political subdivisions of any state having been rated as to
investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm and having received a rating of not less than
A or its equivalent;

5. Bankers' acceptances so long as each such acceptance has a stated maturity of 270 days or less from the date
of its issuance, will be liquidated in full at maturity, is eligible collateral for borrowing from a Federal Reserve
Bank and is accepted by a domestic bank whose short-term obligations are rated at least A-1, P-1, or the
equivalent by a nationally recognized credit rating agency or which is the largest subsidiary of a bank holding
company whose short-term obligations are so rated;

6. Commercial paper with 2 stated maturity of 270 days or less from the date of its issuance that is either rated not
fess than A-1, P-1 or the equivalent by at least two nationally recognized credit rating agencies or is rated at least
A-1, P-1 or the equivalent by at least one nationally recognized credit rating agency and is fully secured by an
irrevocable letter of credit issued by a bank organized and existing under the laws of the United States or any
state thereof,
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5 — INVESTMENTS AND DEPOSITS, continued
a -- Investments, continued

7. Collateralized repurchase agreements having a defined termination date and described in more detail in the
Investment Policy;

8. Cerlificates of deposit issued by state and national banks domiciled in Texas that are guaranteed or insured by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or its successor or as further described in the Investment Policy;

9. Cerlificates of deposit issued by savings banks domiciled in Texas;

10. Share certificates issued by a state or federal credit unions domiciled in Texas;

11, Money market mutual funds; and

12. Local government investment pools (LGIPs).

The City participates in three local government investment pools: TexPool, TexasDAILY, and TexStar. The State Comptroller
oversees TexPool, with Federated Investors managing the daily operations of the pool under a contract with the State
Comptrolter. Although there is no regulatory oversight over TexasDAILY, an advisory board consisting of participants or their
designees maintains oversight responsibility for TexasDAILY. PFM Asset Management LLC manages the daily operations of
the pool under a coniract with the advisory board. JPMorgan Investment Management, Inc. and First Southwest Asset
Management, Inc. serve as co-administrators for TexStar under an agreement with the TexStar board of directors.

The City invests in TexPool, TexasDAILY, and TexSiar to provide its liquidity needs. TexPool, TexasDAILY, and TexStar are
local government investment pools that were established in conformity with the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 of the
Texas Government Code and the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256 of the Code. TexPool, TexasDAILY, and
TexStar are 2(a)7-lke funds, meaning that they are structured similar to a money market mutual fund. Such funds allow
shareholders the ability to deposit or withdraw funds on & daily basis. Interest rates are also adjusted on a daily basis. Such
funds seek to maintain a constant net asset value of $1.00, although this cannot be fully guaranteed. TexPool, TexasDAILY,
and TexStar are rated AAAmM and must maintain a dollar weighted average maturity not to exceed a 60-day limit. At
September 30, 2010, TexPool, TexasDAILY, and TexStar had a weighted average maturity of 30 days, 52 days and 46 days,
respectively. The City considers the holdings in these funds to have a weighted average maturity of cne day, due to the fact
that the share position can usually be redeemed each day at the discretion of the shareholder, unless there has been a
significant change in value.

The Cily did not participate in any reverse repurchase agreements or security lending agreements during fiscal year 2010.

All city investments are insured, registered, or held by an agent in the City's name; therefore, the City is not exposed to
custodial credit risk.

The following table includes the portfolio balances of all non-pooled and pooled investments of the City at September 30, 2010
(in thousands):

Governmental Business-type Fiduciary

Activities Activities Funds Total

Non-pooled investments:

Local Gavernment Investment Pools $ 21,901 291,270 - 313,171

Money Market Funds - 54,276 - 54,276

US Treasury Notes - 79,344 - 79,344

US Agency Bonds - 138,882 - 138,882

US Agency Bonds-Step - 4,995 - 4,995
Total non-pooled investments 21,901 568,767 -- 590,668
Pooled investments:

Local Govermment Investment Pools 204,394 284 992 2,327 491,713

US Agency Bonds 239,453 333,921 2,680 576,054

LS Agency Bonds-Step 4,156 5,794 47 9,997
Total pooled investments 448,003 624,707 5,054 1,077,764
Total investments $ 469,904 1,193,474 5,054 1,668,432
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5 - INVESTMENTS AND DEPQSITS, continued
a -- Investments, continued

Concentration of Credit Risk

At September 30, 2010, the City of Austin was exposed to concentration of credit risk since it held investments with mare than
five percent of the total investment portfolio balances of the City in securities of the following issuers {in millions): Federal
Farm Credit Bank ($176.6 or 11%), Federal Home Loan Bank ($168.6 or 10%), Federal Home Loan Morlgage Corporation
{$205.3 or 12%), and Federal National Mortgage Association ($181.4 or 11%).

b -- Investment categories

The risk exposures for governmental and business-type activities, individual maijor funds, nonmajor funds in the aggregate,
and fiduciary fund types of the City are not significantly greater than the deposit and investment risk of the primary
government. The Investment Policy segregates the portfolios into strategic categories including;

1. Operating funds excluding a special project fund;

2. Debt service funds;

3. Special project fund;

4. Special purpose funds.
Complying with the City's Investment Policy, which includes qualification of the brokers and financial institutions with whom the
City will transact, sufficient collateralization, portfolio diversification, and maturity limitations, controls the City's credit risk.

Operating Funds
As of September 30, 2010, the City operating funds had the following investments:

Fair Value {in thousands)

Governmental Business-type  Fiduciary Weighted Average
Investment Type Activities Activities Funds Total Maturity (days)
Local Government Investment Pools $ 204,394 284,002 2,327 491,713 1
US Agency Bonds 239,453 333,921 2,680 576,054 538
US Agency Bonds-Step 4,156 5794 47 9,997 1,067
Total $ 448,003 624,707 5,054 1,077,764 296

Credit Risk
None of the portfolio consists of direct obligations of the US government. As of September 30, 2010, Standard and Poor's
issued the following ratings for other investments:

Local Government Investment Pools 46% AAAM
US Agencies 54% AAA

Concentration of Credit Risk

At September 30, 2010, the operating funds held investments with more than five percent of the total in securities of the
following issuers (in milliens): Federal Farm Credit Bank ($141.5 or 13%), Federal Home Loan Bank ($117.1 or 11%), Federal
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation ($166.2 or 15%), and Federal National Morigage Association ($161.3 or 15%).

Interest Rate Risk

As a means of minimizing risk of ioss due to interest rate fluctuations, the Investment Policy requires that investment maturities
will not exceed the lesser of a dollar weighted average maturity of 365 days or the anticipated cash flow requirements of the
funds. Quality short-to-medium term securities should be purchased, which complement each other in a structured manner
that minimizes risk and meets the City's cash flow requirements. Three years is the maximum period before maturity.

At September 30, 2010, less than half of the Investment Pool was invested in AAAm rated LGIPS (2{a) 7-like pools), with the
remainder invested in short-to-medium term US Agency obligations. Term limits on individual maturities did not exceed three
years from the purchase date. The dollar weighted average maturity of all securities was 296 days, which was less than the
threshold of 365 days.
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5 — INVESTMENTS AND DEPOSITS, continued
b -- Investment categories, continued

Debt Service Funds

As of September 30, 2010, the City’s debt service funds had the following investments:

Fair Value {in thousands}

Governmental Business-type Final
investment Type Activities Activities Maturity
General Obligation Debt Service
Local Government Investment Pools $ 21,901 - N/A
Enterprise-Utility (1)

Local Government Investment Pools - 182,213 N/A
Enterprise-Airport

Local Government Investment Pools -- 14,097 N/A
Nonmajor Enterprise-Convention Center

Local Government Investment Pools - 18,596 N/A
Total 3 21,901 214,906

{1) Includes combined pledge debt service

Credit Risk

As of September 30, 2010, Standard and Poor’s rated TexPool AAAmM.

Interest Rate Risk

Investment strategies for debt service funds have as the primary objective the assurance of investment liquidity adequate to
cover the debt service obligation on the required payment date. As a means of minimizing risk of loss due to interest rate
fluctuations, securities purchased cannct have a stated final maturity date which exceeds the debt service payment date.

Special Proiect Fund
Airport Construction

As of September 30, 2010, the City’s special project fund had the following investments:

Fair Value
{(in thousands)
Business-type Final
Investment Type Activities Maturity
Local Government Investment Pools 3 76 N/A

Credit Risk

As of September 30, 2010, Standard and Poor's rated TexPool AAAM.

Interest Rate Risk

As a means of minimizing risk of loss due to interest rate fluctuations, the Investment Policy requires that investment maturities
in this category not exceed the anticipated cash flow requirements of the funds.

Special Purpose Funds
Austin Energy Strategic Reserve Fund

As of September 30, 2010, the City’s Special Purpose Fund (Austin Energy Strategic Reserve Fund} had the following

investments:
Fair Value Weighted Average
Investment Type {in thousands} Maturity {days)
Local Government Investment Pools $ 32,231 1
US Treasury Notes 32,719 1,030
US Agency Bonds 71,747 1,002
US Agency Bonds-Step 4,998 990
Total $ 141,695 773
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5-INVESTMENTS AND DEPOSITS, continued
b -- Investment categories, continued

Credit Risk

At September 30, 2010, the Austin Energy Strategic Reserve Fund held an investment in TexPool, an LGIP rated AAAmM by
Standard and Poor's, with the remainder invested in short-to-medium term US Agency and Treasury obligations. Standard and
Poor's rated the US Agency Bonds AAA. The remaining securities are direct obligations of the US government.

Concentration of Credit Risk

At September 30, 2010, the Austin Energy Strategic Reserve Fund held investments with more than five percent of the total in
securities of the following issuers (in millions): Federal Farm Credit Bank ($15.2 or 11%), Federal Home Loan Bank ($21.4 or
15%), Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation ($20.0 or 14%), and Federal National Mortgage Association ($20.1 or 14%).

Interest Rate Risk
As a means of minimizing risk of loss due to interest rate fluctuations, the Investment Policy requires that investment maturities
in this category not exceed the anticipated cash flow requirements of the funds.

At September 30, 2010, the portfolios held investments in TexPool (AAAmM rated LGIP), US Treasuries, and US Agencies with
maturities that will meet anticipated cash flow requirements and an overall dollar weighted average maturity of 773 days (2.12
years).

Austin Energy Nuclear Decommissioning Trust Funds
As of Septemnber 30, 2010, the City’s Special Purpose Fund (Nuclear Decommissioning Trust Funds, NDTF) had the following
investments:

Fair Value Weighted Average

Investment Type {in thousands) Maturity (years)
US Treasury Notes $ 46,625 4.06
US Agency Bonds 67,132 3.14
Money Market Funds 54,276 1 day
Total $ 168,033 2.52

Credit Risk
As of September 30, 2010, Standard and Poor's rated the US Agency Bonds AAA and the Money Market Fund AAAmM. The
remaining securities are direct obligations of the US government.

Concentration of Credit Risk

At September 30, 2010, the NDTF held investments with more than five percent of the total in securities of the following
issuers {in millions): Federal Farm Credit Bank ($19.8 or 12%), Federal Home Loan Bank ($28.2 or 17%), and Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corporation ($19.1 or 11%).

Interest Rate Risk

As a means of minimizing risk of loss due to interest rate fluctuations, the Investment Policy for the Nuclear Decommissioning
Trust Funds portfolios requires that the dollar weighted average maturity, using final stated maturity dates, shall not exceed
seven years, although the portfolio’s weighted average maturity may be substantially shorter if market conditions so dictate. At
September 30, 2010, the dollar weighted average maturity was 2.52 years.

Combined Utility Reserve
As of September 30, 2010, the City's special project fund had the following investments:

Fair Value
(in thousands)
Business-type Final
Investment Type Activities Maturity
Local Government Investment Pools $ 44,057 N/A

Credit Risk
As of September 30, 2010, Standard and Poor's rated TexPool AAAm.
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5 — INVESTMENTS AND DEPOSITS, continued

b -- Investment categories, continued

Interest Rate Risk

As a means of minimizing risk of loss due to interest rate fluctuations, the Investment Policy requires that investment maturities
in this category not exceed the anticipated cash flow requirements of the funds.

¢ -- Investments and Deposits

Investments and deposits portfolio balances at September 30, 2010, are as follows (in thousands):

Non-pooled investments and cash
Pooled investments and cash
Total investments and cash

Unrestricted cash

Restricted cash

Pooled investments and cash
Investments

Total investments and cash

Governmental Business-Type Fiduciary

Activities Activities Funds Total
24 489 568,933 -- 593,422
451,379 629,415 5,054 1,085,848
475,868 1,198,348 5,054 1,679,270
76 65 - 1441
2,512 101 -- 2,613
451,379 629 415 5,054 1,085,848
21,901 568,767 -- 590,668
475,668 1,198,348 5,054 1,679,270

A difference of $17.8 million exists between portfolio balance and book balance, primarily due to deposits in transit offset by

outstanding checks.

Deposits

The September 30, 2010, carrying amount of deposits at the bank and cash on hand are as follows (in thousands):

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

Cash

Unrestricted % 76 65 141
Cash held by trustee

Restricted 2,512 101 2,613
Pooled cash 3,376 4,708 8,084
Total deposits $ 5,964 4,874 10,838

All bank accounts were either insured or collateralized with securities held by the City or its agents in the City's name at

September 30, 2010.

6 — PROPERTY TAXES

The City's property tax is levied each October 1 on the assessed value listed as of January 1 for ail real and personal property
located in the City. The adjusted assessed value for the roll as of January 1, 2009, upon which the 2010 levy was based, was

$80,960,540,976.

Taxes are due by January 31 following the October 1 levy date. During the year ended September 30, 2010, 98.97% of the
current tax levy (October 1, 2009) was collected. The statutory lien dale is January 1.

The methods of property assessment and tax collection are determined by Texas statutes. The statutes provide for a property
tax code, countywide appraisal districts, a State property tax board, and certain exemptions from taxation, such as intangible

personal property, household goods, and family-owned automobiles.
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6 — PROFPERTY TAXES, continued

The appraisal of property within the City is the responsibility of the Travis Central Appraisal District, the Williamson Central
Appraisal District, and the Hays Central Appraisal District. The appraisal districts are required under the Property Tax Code to
assess all real and personal property within the appraisal district on the basis of 100% of its appraised value and are
prohibited from applying any assessment ratios. The value of property within the appraisal district must be reviewed every two
years; however, the City may require more frequent reviews of appraised values at its own expense. The Travis Central
Appraisal District and the Hays Central Appraisal District have chosen to review the value of property in their respective
districts every two years, while the Williamson Central Appraisal District has chosen to review the value of property on an
annual basis. The City may challenge appraised values established by the appraisal district through various appeals and, if
necessary, legal action.

The City is authorized to set tax rates on property within the city limits. However, if the effeclive tax rate, excluding tax rates for
bonds, certificates of obligation, and other contractual obligations, as adjusted for new improvements and revaluation, exceeds
the rate for the previous year by more than 8%, State siatute allows qualified voters of the City to petition for an election to
determine whether to limit the tax rate increase to no more than 8%.

The City is permitted by Article XI, Section 5 of the State of Texas Constitution to levy taxes up to $2.50 per $100 of assessed
valuation for general governmental services, including the payment of principal and interest on general obligation leng-term
debt. Under the city charter, a limit on taxes levied for general governmental services, exclusive of payments of principal and
interest on general obfigation long-term debt, has been established at $1.00 per $100 assessed valuation. A practical limitation
on taxes levied for debt service of $1.50 per $100 of assessed valuation is established by state statute and city charter
limitations. Through confractual arrangements, Travis, Williamson, and Hays Counties bill and collect property taxes for the
City.

The tax rate to finance general governmental functions, other than the payment of principal and interest on general obligation
long-term debt, for the year ended September 30, 2010, was $.2950 per $100 assessed valuation. The City has a tax margin
for general governmental purposes of $.7050 per $100 assessed valuation, and could levy approximately $570,771,814 in
additional taxes from the assessed valuation of $80,960,540,976 before the legislative limit is reached.

The City has reserved a portion of the taxes collected for lawsuits filed by certain taxpayers against the appraisal districts
challenging assessed values in the government-wide financial statements.

7 — CAPITAL ASSETS AND INFRASTRUCTURE

The City has recorded capitalized interest for fiscal year 2010 in the following funds related to the construction of various
enterprise fund capital improvement projects (in thousands):

Enterprise Funds

Major fund:
Airport $ 1370
Nonmajor enterprise funds;
Convention Center 962
Drainage 1,278
Golf 3
Solid Waste Services 220
Transportation 96

Interest is not capitalized on governmental capital assets. In accordance with accounting for regulated operations, interest is
also not capitalized on electric and water and wastewater capital assets.
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7 — CAPITAL ASSETS AND INFRASTRUCTURE, continued
Governmental Activities
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2010, was as follows (in thousands):
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases (1) Decreases (1) Balance
Capital assets not depreciated
Land and improvements $ 324,546 13,262 (5,351 332,457
Arts and treasures 5,724 201 (11) 5,914
Library collections 14,069 340 (20) 14,389
Total 344,339 13,803 (5,382) 352,760
Depreciable property, plant, and equipment in service
Building and improvements 633,147 14,719 (3.221) 644,645
Plant and equipment 153,341 9,427 (6,187} 156,581
Vehicles 94,017 6,730 (7,485) 93,262
Infrastructure 1,930,110 39,833 (182} 1,969,761
Total 2,810,615 70,709 (17,075) 2,564,249
Less accumulated depreciation for
Building and improvements (183,644) (18,901} 5 (202,540)
Plant and equipment (80,293) (17,933) 5188 (93,038)
Vehicles (57,522) (8.096) 7,089 (58,529}
Infrastructure (674,838} (57,580) 68 (732,350)
Total {996,297} (102,510) (2) 12,350 (1,086,457)
Net property, plant, and equipment in service 1,814,318 (31,801) (4,725) 1,777,792
Other capital assets
Construction in progress 144,606 170,085 (73,043) 241,658
Total capital assets $ 2,303,263 152,087 {83,150) 2,372,210

(1) Increases and decreases do not include transfers (at net book value) between Governmental Activities.

(2) Depreciation expense was charged to functions and internal service funds as follows (in thousands):

Gaovernmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Transportation, planning, and sustainability
Public health
Public recreation and culture
Urban growth management
Internal service funds
Totai increases in accumulated depreciation
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7 — CAPITAL ASSETS AND INFRASTRUCTURE, continued

Business-type Activities: Electric Fund

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2010, was as follows (in thousands):

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Capital assets not depreciated

Land and improvements $ 54,007 1,193 - 65,200
Total 64,007 1,183 -- 65,200
Depreciable property, plant, and equipment in service

Buitding and improvements 652,394 2,981 (102} 655,273

Plant and equipment 3,111,288 251,791 (27,871 3,335,202

Vehicles 28,190 3,081 {2,102) 29,169
Total 3,791,872 257,853 {30,081) 4,019,644
Less accumulated depreciation for

Building and improvements (343,288) (17,826} o8 {361,016)

Plant and equipment {1,438,308) (101,136) 21,756 (1,517,688)

Vehicles (16,385) (2,608) 2,037 {16,958)
Total {1,797,981) (121,570) (1) 23,891 (1,895,660)
Net property, plant, and equipment in service 1,893,891 136,283 (6,190) 2,123,984
Other capital assets

Construction in progress 385,600 201,877 (259,281) 328,196

Nuclear fuel, net of amortization 33,117 14,800 (13,562) 34,355

Plant held for future use 27,783 -~ -- 27,783
Total capital assets $ 2,504,398 354,153 (279,033) 2,579 518
(1) Components of accumulated depreciation increases:

Current year depreciation $ 121,570
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7 — CAPITAL ASSETS AND INFRASTRUCTURE, continued
Business-type Activities: Water and Wastewater Fund
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2010, was as follows (in thousands):
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases (1) Decreases (1) Balance
Capital assets not depreciated
Land and improvements $ 205,569 7,375 (103) 212,841
Total 205,569 7,375 (103) 212,841
Depreciable property, plant, and equipment in service
Building and improvements 536,428 11,089 (180} 547,337
Plant and equipment 2,629,053 235,230 (5173) 2,859,110
Vehicles 30,923 3,738 (1,623) 33,038
Total 3,196 404 250,057 (6,976) 3,439,485
Less accumulated depreciation for
Building and improvements (174,704) (12,041) -- (166,745)
Plant and equipment (848,338) (70,038) 2,782 {915,594)
Vehicles {17,879) (2,638) 1,491 (19,026)
Total (1,040,921) (84,717) (2) 4,273 (1,121,365)
Net property, plant, and equipment in service 2,155,483 165,340 {2,703) 2,318,120
Other capital assets
Construction in progress 288,694 210,681 {245,965) 253,410
Water rights, net of amortization 90,124 -- (988) (3} 89,136
Total capital assets $ 2,739,870 383,396 (249,759) 2,873,507

(1) Increases and decreases do not include transfers (at net book value) between Water and Wasiewater activities.

{2) Components of accumulated depreciation increases:
Current year depreciation

Water $ 35,566
Wastewater 49,151
3 84,717

(3) Components of water rights, net of amortization decreases:

Current year amortization - Water $ 988
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7 -~ CAPITAL ASSETS AND INFRASTRUCTURE, continued
Business-type Activities: Airport Fund
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2010, was as follows (in thousands):
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets not depreciated
Land and improvements $ 94,155 937 -- 95,092
Arts and treasures 822 -- -- 822
Total 04,977 937 -- 95,914
Depreciable property, plant, and equipmentin sefvice
Building and improvements 649,650 12,473 - 662,123
Plant and equipment 23,341 1476 (2,187) 22,630
Vehicles 5,678 473 (610) 5,541
Total 678,669 14422 (2,797) 690,294
Less accumulated depreciation for
Building and improvements (160,720) (17,175) -- {177,895)
Plantand equipment (10,160} {1,587) Ba8& {10,861}
Vehicles (3,108) (392) 471 (3,029)
Total {173,988) (19.154) (1) 1,357 {191,785)
Net property, plant, and equipment in service 504,681 4,732} (1,440) 498,509
Other capital assets
Construction in progress 27,054 15315 {13,236) 29,133
Total capital assets $ 626,712 11,520 {14,676) 623,556
{1} Components of accumulated depreciation increases:
Current year depreciation

$ 19,154
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(Continued)
7 — CAPITAL ASSETS AND INFRASTRUCTURE, continued
Business-lype Activities: Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2010, was as follows (in thousands):
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases (1) Decreases (1) Balance

Capital assets not depreciated

Land and improvements $ 84,822 6,120 -- 91,042

Anrts and treasures 612 -- — 612
Total 85,534 6,120 - 91,654
Depreciable property, plant, and equipment in service

Building and improvements 320,777 301 (315) 320,763

Plant and equipment 121,709 13,321 (2,247) 132,783

Vehicles 65,682 10,674 (3,989) 72,387
Total 508,168 24,296 (6,551) 525,913
Less accumulated depreciation for

Building and improvements (88,058) (9,392) 134 (97,316)

Plant and equipment {33,151) {5,615) 519 (38,247)

Vehicles {34,840} (7,047) 3,669 {38,218)
Total {156,049} {22,054) (2) 4,322 {173,781)
Net property, plant, and equipment in service 352,119 2,242 {2,229) 352,132
Other capital assets

Construction in progress 45,950 37,578 (27,703) 55,825
Total capital assets $ 483,603 45,940 (29,932) 499 611

{1) Increases and decreases do not include transfers (at net book value) between nonmajor enterprise funds.

{2) Components of accumulated depreciation increases:
Current year depreciation

Convention Center $ 8,307
Environmental and health services 6,157
Public recreation 669
Urban growth management 6,921
Total increases in accumulated depreciation $ 22,054
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7 — CAPITAL ASSETS AND INFRASTRUCTURE, continued

Business-type Activities: Total

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2010, was as follows (in thousands):

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases (1) Decreases (1) Balance

Capital assets not depreciated

Land and improvements $ 448,653 15,625 (103) 464,175

Arts and treasures 1,434 -- -- 1,434
Total 450,087 15,625 (103) 465,609
Depreciable property, plant, and equipment in service

Building and improvements 2,159,249 26,844 (587) 2,185,496

Plant and equipment 5,885,391 501,803 (37,469) 6,349,725

Vehicles 130,473 17,951 {8,309) 140,115
Total 8,175,113 546,598 (46,375) 8,675,336
Less accumulated depreciation for

Building and improvements (768,77Q) {56,434) 232 (822,972)

Plant and equipment (2,329,957) {178,376) 25,943 (2,482,380)

Vehicles (72,212) {12,685) 7,668 (77,229)
Total {3,168,839) {247 495) (2) 33,843 (3,382,591}
Net property, plan, and equipment in service 5,006,174 299,103 {12,632) 5,292,745
Gther capital assets

Construction in progress 747,298 465,451 (546,185) 666,564

Nuclear fuel, net of amortization a3 17 14,800 (13,562} 34,355

Plant held for future use 27,783 - - 27,783

Water rights, net of amortization 90,124 -- ~(988) (3) 89,136
Total capilal assets $ 6,354,583 794,979 {573,370) 6,576,192

(1) Increases and decreases do not include transfers (at net book value) between business-type activities.

(2) Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows (in thousands):
Business-type activities:

Electric $ 121,570
Water 35,566
Wastewater 49,151
Airport 19,154
Convention Center 8,307
Environmental and health services 6,157
Public recreation 669
Urban growth management 6,921
Total increases in accumulated depreciation $ 247,495

(3) Components of water rights, net of amortization decreases:
Current year amaortization - Water $ 988
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8 — RETIREMENT PLANS
a -- Description

The City participates in funding three contributory, defined benefit retirement plans: City of Austin Employees' Retirement and
Pension Fund, City of Austin Police Officers’ Retirement and Pension Fund, and Fire Fighters’ Relief and Retirement Fund of
Austin, Texas. An independent board of trustees administers each plan. These plans are Citywide single employer funded
plans that cover substantially all ful-time employees. The fiscal year of each pension fund ends December 31. The most
recently available financial statements of the pension funds are for the year ended December 31, 2009. Membership in the
plans at December 31, 2009, is as follows:

City Police Fire
Employees Officers Fighters Total
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving henefits
and terminated employees entitled to benefits but not
yet receiving them 5,061 534 539 6,134
Current employees 8,142 1,651 1,025 10,818
Total 13,203 2,185 1,564 16,952

Each plan provides service retirement, death, disability, and withdrawal benefits. State law governs benefit and contribution
provisions. Amendments may be made by the Legislature of the State of Texas.

Financial reports that include financial statements and supplementary information for each plan are publicly available at the
locations shown below.

I

Plan Address Telephone

Employees' Retirement and Pension Fund 418 E. Highland Mall Blvd. {512)458-2551
Austin, Texas 78752
Www.coaers.org

Police Officers’ Retirement and Pension Fund 2520 S. |H 35, Ste, 205 (512)416-7672
Austin, Texas 78704
WWW.ausprs.org

Fire Fighters' Relief and Retirement Fund 4101 Parkstone Heights Dr., Ste. 270 (512)454-9567
Austin, Texas 78746
www.afrs.org

b -- Funding Policy

City of Austin City of Austin
Employees’ Retirement Police Officers’ Retirerment Fire Fighters' Relief
And Pension Fund and Pension Fund and Retirement Fund
Authority establishing
contributions obligation State Legistation State Legislation State Legisfation
Frequency of contribution Biweekly Biweekly Biweekly
Employee's contribution
(percent of earnings) 8.0% 13.0% 15.7%
City's contribution
(percent of earnings) 12% (1) 18.63% (2) 18.05% (3)

(1) The City contribution includes an 8% employee match plus a subsidy contribution of 4%. The City contributes two-thirds of
the cost of prior service benefit payments.

(2) A rate of 18.63% was effective October 1, 2009. This rate increased to 19.63% effective October 1, 2010,

(3) This rate increased to 19.05% effective October 1, 2010.


http://www.coaers.org
http://www.ausprs.org
http://www.afrs.org

Notes to Basic Financial Statements City of Austin, Texas
September 30, 2010 {Continued}

8 - RETIREMENT PLANS, continued
b -- Funding Policy, continued

While the contribution requirements are not actuarially determined, state law requires that a qualified actuary approve each
plan of benefits adopted. Contributions for fiscal year ended September 30, 2010, are as follows (in thousands):

City Police Fire
Employees  Officers Fighters Total
City 5 50,877 22,878 13,621 87,376
Employees 33,784 15,959 11,847 61,590
Total contributions $ 84,661 38,837 25,468 148,966

¢ - Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation (Asset)}

The City's annual pension cost of $109,226,000 for fiscal year ended September 30, 2010, was $21,850,000 more than the
City's actual contributions. Three-year trend informaticn is as follows {in thousands):

City Police Fire

Employees Officers Fighters Total
City's Annual Pension Cost (APC):
2008 $ 56,848 19,872 14,835 91,555
2009 59,067 19,909 10,102 89,078
2010 78,559 20,609 10,058 109,226
Percentage of APC contributed:
2008 65% 100% 87% N/A
2009 69% 97% 135% N/A
2010 69% 112% 133% N/A
Net Pension Obligation (Asset);
2008 $ 63,740 - 3,709 67.449
2009 82,146 646 218 83.010
2010 106,376 {1,799) (3,144) 101,433

The Net Pension Obligation associated with the City Employees’ Retirement and Pension Fund, the Police Officers’
Retirement and Pension Fund, and the Fire Fighters' Relief and Retirement Fund is as follows (in thousands):

City Police Fire
Employees  Officers Fighters
Annual reguired contribution $ 77163 20,600 10,051
Interest in net pension obligation 6,099 37 32
Adjustment to annual required contribution (4,703) (28) {25)
Annual pension cost 78,559 20,609 10,058
Employer contributions (54,329) (23,054) {13,420)
Change in net pension obligation 24,230 (2,445) (3,362)
Beginning net pension obligation 82,146 546 218
Net penston obligation (asset) $ 106,376 (1,799) (3,144)
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September 30, 2010 {Continued)

8 — RETIREMENT PLANS, continued
¢ -- Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation, continued

The latest actuarial valuations for the City Employees’ Retirement and Pension Fund, the Police Officers’ Retirement and
Pension Fund, and the Austin Fire Fighters’ Relief and Retirement Fund were completed as of December 31, 2009. The
actuarial cost method and significant assumptions underlying the actuarial calculations are as follows:

City Employees Police Officers Fire Fighters
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal Entry Age Entry Age Normal
Asset Valuation Basis 5-year smoothed market 5-year adjusted market value 20% of market value plus
80% of expected actuarial
value
Inflation Rate 3.25% 4% 3.5%
Projected Annual Salary
Increases 5% to 6% 6.8% average 1% 10 13.1%
Post retirement
benefil increase None None 1% per year
Assumed Rate of
Return on Investments 7.75% 8% 7.75%
Amorlization method Level percent of projected Level percent of projected Level percent of projected
pay, open payroll, open pay, open
Remaining Amortization
Period 30 years 30 years 30 years

d - Schedule of funding progress

information pertaining to the schedule of funding progress for each plan is as follows (in thousands):

Percentage
Actuarial Actuarial Annual of UAAL
Valuation Date, Value of Accrued Funded Covered to Covered
December 31st Assets Liability UAAL(1) Ratio Payroll Payroll
City Employees
2009 $1.672,470 2,330,937 658,467 71.8% 442,539 148.8%
Police Officers
2009 518,112 733,635 215,523 70.6% 122,928 175.3%
Fire Fighters (2)
2009 589,261 664,185 74,924 88.7% 78,980 94.9%

(1) UAAL — Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability
{2) The actuarial study for the Fire Fighters’ plan is performed biannually.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI, presents multivear trend information regarding the ratio of the actuarial
value of assets and actuarial accrued liabilities.
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9 - SELECTED REVENUES
a -~ Major enterprise funds

Electric and Water and Wastewater

The Texas Public Utility Commission (PUC) has jurisdiction over electric utility wholesale transmission rates. On June 9, 20086,
the PUC approved the City's most recent wholesale transmission rate of $1.002466/kW. Transmission revenues totaled
approximately $60.7 million in 2010. The City Councit has jurisdiction over all other electric utility rates and over all water and
wastewater utility rates and other services. The Council determines electric utility and water and wastewater utility rates based
on the cost of operations and a debt service coverage approach.

Under a bill passed by the Texas Legislature in 1998, municipally-owned electric utilities such as the City's utility system have
the option of offering retail competition after January 1, 2002. As of September 30, City management has elected not to enter
the retail market, as aliowed by State law.

Electric rates include a fixed rate and a fuel recovery cost-adjustment factor that allows recovery of coal, gas, purchased
power, and other fuel costs. If actual fuel costs differ from amounts billed to customers, deferred or unbilled revenues are
recorded by the electric utiity. Any over- or under-collections are applied to the cost-adjustment factor. The fuel factor is
reviewed annually on a calendar year basis or when over- or under-recovery is more than 10% of expected fuel costs.

Airport

The City has entered into certain lease agreements as lessor for concessions at the Airport. These lease agreements qualify
as operating leases for accounting purposes. In fiscal year 2010, the Airport Fund revenues included minimum concession
guarantees of $5,458,463.

The following is a schedule by year of minimum future rentals on noncancelable operating leases with remaining terms of up to
fifteen years for the Airport Fund as of September 30, 2010 (in thousands):

Enterprise
Fiscal Year Airport
Ended Lease
September 30 Receipts

2011 3 11,568
2012 11,425
2013 11,420
2014 8,745
2015 3,559
2016-2020 5,182
2021-2023 209
Totals $ 52,078

Projection of minimum future rentals for the Austin-Bergstrom Landhost Enterprises, Inc. is based on the current adjusted
minimum rent for the period May 1, 2009 through April 30, 2014. The minimum rent is adjusted every five years commensurate
with the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index — Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers, U.S. Owner Average,
(CPI) published by the U.S. Department of Labar Bureau of Labor Statistics over the five-year period.

10 - DEBT AND NON-DEBT LIABILITIES
a -- Long-Term Liabilities

Payments on bonds for governmental activities will be made from the general obligation debt service funds. Accrued
compensated absences that pertain to governmental activities will be liquidated by the General Fund, special revenue funds,
and internal service funds. Claims payable will be liquidated by internal service funds. Deferred revenue and other liabilities
that pertain to governmental aclivities will be liquidated by the General Fund, special revenue funds, general governmental
capital improvement projects funds, and internal service funds.

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures, The City is in compliance with all
limitations and restrictions.

Internal service funds predominately serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilities for them are included in
governmenial aclivities.
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10 - DEBT AND NON-DEBT LIABILITIES, continued
a -- Long-Term Liabilities, continued

The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations. Certain long-term obligations provide financing 1o both
governmerital and business-type activities. Balances at September 30, 2010 (in thousands):

October 1, September 30, Amounts Due
Description 2009 Increases Decreases 2010 Within One Year
Governmental activities (1}
General gbligation bonds, net % 845741 - (56,122) 789,619 53,247
Certificates of obligation, net 78,525 - {6,939) 71,586 7.750
Contractual obligations, net 28,456 15,000 (5,161) 38,295 5,236
General obligation bonds
and other tax supported debt total 952 722 15,000 {68,222} 899,500 66,233
Capital lease obligations 468 248 -- 716 283
Debt service requirements total 953,190 15,248 (68,222) 900,216 66,516
Other long-term obligations
Accrued compensated absences 109,460 3,258 (220) 112,498 47 127
Claims payable 30,277 4,162 (1,004} 33,435 17,865
Pension obligation payable 43,052 10,684 -- 53,736 -
Other past employment henefits 109,851 59,581 -- 169,432 -
QOther liabiiities 90,266 1,644 (8,257) 83,6563 70,183
Governmental activities total 1,335,096 94,577 (77,703} 1,352,870 201,691
Business-type activities:
Electric activities
General obligation bonds, net 1,186 - (73) 1,143 73
Contractual obligations 231 - (152) 79 79
General obligation bonds
and other tax supported debt total 1,417 -- {225) 1,192 152
Commercial paper nates, net 140,707 94,448 (150,000} 85,155 8,603
Revenue bonds, net 1,236,140 220,245 {130,102) 1,326,283 75,084
Capital lease obligations 1,164 133 - 1,297 38
Debt service requirements total 1,379,428 314,826 (280,327) 1,413,927 83,877
Other long-term obligations
Accrued compensated absences 11,644 776 {844) 11,576 10,681
Decommissioning expense payable 167,001 -- (16,410) 150,581 --
Pension obligation payable 17,824 5,793 - 23,617 -
Other post employment benefits 26,633 14,445 - 41,078 -
Deferred credits and other liabilities 231,569 58,829 - 200,398 75,689
Electric activities total 1,834,099 394,669 (297,581) 1,931,187 170,247
Water and Wastewater activities
General obligation bonds, net 1,682 -- (503) 1,178 569
Contractual obligations, net 15312 - {2,941) 12,371 3,189
Other tax supported debt, net 6,650 8,122 (943) 13,829 1,021
General obligation bonds
and other tax supported debt total 23,644 8,122 (4,387) 27,379 4779
Commercial paper notes, net 199,292 181,350 (166,000} 214,642 35,774
Revenue bonds, net 1,682,182 177,415 (47,700} 1,811,897 50,660
Caontract revenue bonds, net 914 -- (914) - -
Debt service requirements total 1,906,032 366,887 {219,001) 2,053,918 91,213
Other long-term cohbligations
Accrued compensated absences 5,701 464 (645} 5,520 5,520
Pension obligation payable 8,980 2,843 - 11,823 -
Other post employment benefits 16,459 8,927 - 25,386 -
Deferred credits and other liabilities 515,393 17,621 (34,463) 498,551 32,657
Water and Wastewater activities total 2,452 565 396,742 {254,109) 2,595,198 129,390

(1) Internal service funds predominately serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilities for these funds are
included in governmental activities.
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10— DEBT AND NON-DEBT LIABILITIES, continued
a -- Long-Term Liabilities, continued
Business-type activities {continued):

October 1, September 30, Amounts Due
Description 2009 Increases Decreases 2010 Within One Year
Airport activities
General obligation bonds, net 289 - (27) 262 28
General obligation bonds
and other tax supported debt total 289 -- (27) 262 28
Revenue notes 28,000 - - 28,000 -
Revenue bonds, net 307,365 - (12,082) 295,283 13,515
Capital lease obligations arv - {486) 33 331
Debt service requirements total 336,471 - (12,595) 323,876 13,874
Qther long-term obligations
Accrued compensated absences 1,572 114 (125) 1,561 1,500
Pensicn obligation payable 2,736 834 - 3,570 -
Other post employment benefits 4,848 2,629 - 7477 -
Deferred credits and other liabilities 746 846 {42) 1,550 1,488
Airport activities total 346,373 4,423 (12,762) 338,034 16,862
Nonmajor activities
General obligation bonds, net 18,353 - {4,674} 13,679 1,546
Certificates of obligation, net 42,877 - (2,708} 40,169 2,319
Contractual obligations 44 652 - (7,038) 37,614 7,360
Other tax supported debt, net - 4,564 {215} 4,349 240
General obligation bonds
and other tax supported debt total 105,882 4,564 (14,635) 95,811 11,465
Revenue bonds, net 216,655 -- {7.007) 209,648 8,545
Debt service requirements total 322,537 4,564 (21,642) 306,459 20,010
Other long-term obligations
Accrued compensated absences 5,811 265 (374) 5,702 5,320
Accrued landfill closure and postclosure costs 18,212 - (10,272) 7.940 765
Pension obligaticn payable 10,418 3212 -~ 13,630 -
Other post employment benefits 17.360 9,415 - 26,775 -
Deferred credits and other liabilities 7,682 698 (398) 7,982 3,197
Nonmajor activities total 382,020 18,154 (32.686) 367,488 20,752
Total business-type activities
General obligation bonds, net 21,510 - (5,277) 16,233 2,216
Certificates of obligation, net 42877 -- (2,708) 40,169 2,319
Contractual obligations, net 60,195 - (10,131) 50,064 10,628
Other tax supported debt, net 6,650 12,686 (1,158) 18,178 1,261
General obligation bonds
and other tax supported debt total 131,232 12,686 (19,274} 124,644 16,424
Commercial paper notes, net 339,999 275,798 (316,000} 299,797 44 377
Revenue notes 28,000 - -- 28,000 -
Revenue bonds, net 3,442 342 397,660 (196,891) 3,643,111 147,804
Contract revenue bonds, net 914 - (914) - -
Capital lease obligations 1,981 133 {486) 1,628 369
Debt service requirements total 3,944 468 686,277 {533,565) 4,097 180 208,974
Other long-term obligations
Accrued compensated absences 24,728 1,619 {1,988) 24,359 23,021
Accrued kandfill closure and postclosure costs 18,212 -- (10,272) 7,940 765
Decommissioning expense payable 167,001 - {16.410) 150,591 -
Pension obligation payable 39,958 12,682 - 52,640 -
Other post employment benefits 65,300 35,416 - 100,716 -
Deferred credits and other liabilities 755,390 77,994 (34,903) 798,481 113,031
Business-type activities total 5,015,057 813,988 (597,138) 5,231,907 345,791
Total liabilities {2) $ 6351153 908,565~ (674,841) 6,584,377 547 482

(2) This schedule excludes select short-term liabilities of $77,322 for governmental activities; and for business-type activities,
select short-term liabifities of $272,493, capital appreciation bond interest payable of $103,295, and derivative instruments of
$212,.953.
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10 ~ DEBT AND NON-DEBT LIABILITIES, continued
b -- Governmental Activities Long-Term Liabilities

General Gbligation Bonds -- General obligation debt is collateralized by the full faith and credit of the City. The City intends
to retire its general obligation debt, plus interest, from future ad valorem tax levies and is required by ordinance to create from
such tax revenues a sinking fund sufficient to pay the current interest due thereon and each instaliment of principal as it
becomes due. Generai obligation debt issued to finance capital assets of enterprise funds is reported as an obligation of these
enterprise funds, although the funds are not obligated by the applicable bond indentures to repay any portion of principal and
interest on outstanding general obligation debt. However, the City intends for the enterprise funds to meet the debt service
requiremenis from program revenues.

The following table summarizes significant facts about general obligation bonds, cerificates of obligation, contractual
obligations, and assumed municipal utility district (MUD) bonds outstanding at September 30, 2010, including those reported in
certain proprietary funds (in thousands):

Original Aggregate Interest  Interest Rates
Amount Principal Requirements of Debt Maturity Dates

Series Date Issued Issue Outstanding Qutstanding Qutstanding of Serial Debt
Assumed MUD Debt December 1997 § 33,135 18,790 6,691 (1){(3)(4) 3.00-7.00% 9/01/2011-2026
Series 2000 September 2000 6,060 295 15 (1) 5.00% 9/1/2011
Series 2001 Refunding June 2001 123,445 18,825 3,222 (1) 4.75 - 5.50% 9/1/2011-2022
Series 2001 Augusi 2001 79,650 8,530 656 (1) 5.00-525% 9/1/2011-2012
Series 2001 August 2001 65,335 18,920 4,412 (1) 4.38 - 5.00% 9/1/2011-2021
Series 2002 Refunding June 2002 12,180 9,745 1,571 (1) 4.13-500% 3M/2011-2017
Series 2002 August 2002 299,615 61,800 19,972 {1} 3.63 - 5.00% 9M1/2011-2022
Series 2002 August 2002 34,095 17,500 4,952 (1) 3.63 - 538% 9/1/2011-2022
Series 2003 Refunding May 2003 62,585 10,005 881 (1) §.00% 9/1/2011-2013
Series 2003 Refunding September 2003 68,855 56,395 20,732 (1) 3.75 - 5.00% 9/1/2011-2023
Series 2003A Refunding  September 2003 2,530 995 100 (1) 4.75 - 5.00% 9/1/2011-2013
Series 2003 September 2003 4,450 3,335 1,159 (1} 4.00 - 4.80% 9/1/2011-2023
Series 2003 September 2003 8,610 705 12 (2} 3.38% 111142010
Series 2004 Refunding September 2004 87,835 57,040 21,008 (1} 3.50 - 5.00% 9M1/2011-2024
Series 2004A Refunding September 2004 2,430 1,315 172 (1) 4.40-4.75% 9M1/2011-2014
Series 2004 September 2004 25,000 18.400 7,575 (1) 463 - 5.00% 9/4/2011-2024
Series 2004 September 2004 21,830 5,505 186 (2) 3.10-3.35% 111/2010-2011
Series 2005 Refunding February 2005 145,345 137,785 37.827 (1) 5.00% 9/1/2011-2020
Series 2005 Refunding August 2005 19,535 14,240 6,876 (1) 4.00 - 4.50% 9/1/2011-2025
Series 2005 August 2005 7.185 6,010 2212 () 3.50 - 5.85% 9/1/2011-2025
Serigs 2005 August 2005 14,940 5,550 308 (2} 3.50-3.75% 11/1/2010-2012
Series 2006 August 2006 31,585 31,385 16,670 (1) 4.00 - 5.38% 9M1/2011-2026
Series 2006 August 2006 24,150 21,005 8,629 (1) 4.00 - 5.00% 9/1/2011-2026
Series 2006 August 2006 14,120 7,635 642 (2) 4.00-4.25% 11/11/2010-2013
Series 2006 August 2006 12,000 11,080 4,685 (1)(5) 4.00 - 6.00% 9/1/2011-2026
Series 2007 August 2007 97,525 93,425 58,801 (1) 4.64% 9/1/2011-2027
Series 2007 Augusf 2007 3,820 3,460 1,717 (1) 4.88% 9/1/2011-2027
Series 2007 August 2007 8,755 7,090 855 (2) 3.66% 11/1/2010-2017
Series 2008 Refunding January 2008 172,505 137,675 37167 (1) 5.00% 9/1/2011-2021
Series 2008 August 2008 76,045 65,045 40,069 (1) 3.50 - 5.00% 9/1/2011-2028
Series 2008 August 2008 10,700 10,070 4926 (1) 3.00 - 5.00% 9/1/2(11-2028
Series 2008 August 2008 26,715 21,785 2,291 (2) 3.00% - 3.50%  11/1/2010-2015
Series 2009A September 2009 20,905 11,450 1,960 (1) 3.00 - 5.00% 9/1/2011-2016
Series 2009B September 2009 78,460 78,460 52,545 (1) 415-531% 911/2017-2029
Series 2009 September 2009 12,500 11,935 6,794 (1) 3.00-4.75% 91/2011-2039
Series 2009 September 2009 13,800 13,150 1,639 {2) 2.00% - 3.25% 11/1/2010-2019
Series 2009 October 2009 15,000 15,000 6,693 (1)(5) 2.50 - 4.25% 9M1/2011-2029

1

(1) Interest Is paid semiannually on March 1 and September 1.

{2) Interest is paid semiannually on May 1 and November 1.

{3) Interest is paid semiannually on May 15 and November 15.

{4) Includes Water and Wastewater principal ($13,806) and interest ($4,726) and Drainage principal ($4,321) and interest ($1,822).
(5) Included with contractual obligations are Mueller Locat Government Corporalion contract revenue bonds.
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10 - DEBT AND NON-DEBT LIABILITIES, continued
b -- Governmental Activities Long-Term Liabilities, continued

In October 2009, the City issued $15,000,000 of Mueller Local Government Corporation Tax Increment Contract Revenue
Bonds, Series 2009. The Mueller Local Government Corporation is a not-for-profit local government corporation acting on
behalf of the City of Austin, Texas. The proceeds from the issue will be used to provide funds for certain public infrastructure

improvermnents within the Reinvestment Zone Number Sixteen, City of Austin, Texas, a tax increment reinvestment zone .

created by the City. These bonds will be amortized serially on September 1 of each year from 2011 to 2029. Interest is
payable on March 1 and September 1 of each year, commencing March 1, 2010. Total interest requirements for these bonds,
at rates ranging from 2.5% to 4.25%, are $7.221,066.

General obligation bonds autherized and unissued amounted to $369,180,000 at September 30, 2010. Bond ratings at
September 30, 2010, were Aaa (Moody's Investor Services, Inc.), AAA (Standard & Poor's), and AAA {Fitch).

Build America Bonds. The City issued $78,460,000 of Public Improvement Bonds, Taxable Series 2009B in August 2009,
These bends are Build America Bonds (BABs) and are part of the Federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009,
Upon the City's request each year, the U.S. Treasury Department will make a direct payment to the City in an amount equal to
35% of the interest payment on the BABs, lowering the City's net borrowing cost. In 2010, the City recorded $1,290,686 of tax
credits for subsidies received from the U.S. Treasury Department. in order for the City to continue to receive the subsidy, the
bonds have to maintain their Build America Bonds status, the City has to comply with the investment of the proceeds and the
use of the property financed there from, and the City has to file the necessary tax return no later than 45 days prior to the
interest payment date. The City was in compliance with these requirements as of September 30, 2010.

¢ -- Business-Type Activities Long-Term Liabilities

Utility Debt - The City has previously issued combined debt for the Electric and Water and Wastewater utilities. The City
began issuing separate debt for electric and water and wastewater activities in 2000. The following paragraphs describe both
combined and separate debt.

Combined Utility Systems Debt -- General - The City's Electric Fund and Water and Wastewater Fund comprise the
combined utility systems, which issue combined utility systems revenue bonds fo finance capital projects. Principal and
interest on these bonds are payable solely from the combined net revenues of the Electric Fund and Water and Wastewater
Fund.

The total combined utility systems revenue bond obligations at September 30, 2010, exclusive of discounts, premiums, and
loss on refundings consists of $168,211,746 prior lien bonds and $236,454,512 subordinate lien bonds. Aggregate interest
requirements for all prior lien and subordinate lien bonds are $397,046,479 at September 30, 2010. Revenue bonds
authorized and unissued amount to $1,492,642 660 at that date. Bond ratings at September 30, 2010, for the prior lien and
subordinate lien bonds were, respectively, A1 and A1 (Moody's Investor Services, Inc.), AA and AA (Standard & Poor’s), and
AA- and AA- (Fitch).

Combined Utility Systems Debt -- Revenue Bond Refunding Issues - The combined utility systems have refunded various
issues of revenue bonds, notes, and certificates of obligation through refunding revenue bonds. Principal and interest on these
refunding bonds are payable solely from the combined net revenues of the City's Electric Fund and Water and Wastewater
Fund. The prior lien bonds are subordinate only to the prior lien revenue bonds outstanding at the time of issuance, while the
subordinate lien bonds are subordinate to prior lien revenue bonds and to subordinate lien revenue bonds outstanding at the
time of issuance.

Some of these bonds are callable prior to maturity at the option of the City. The term bonds are subject to a mandatory
redemption prior to the maturity dates as defined in the respective official statements.

The net proceeds of each of the refunding bond issuances were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those
securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service. As a result, the
refunded bonds are considered to be legally defeased and the liability for the refunded bonds has been removed from the
financial statements. The accaunting gains and losses due to the advance refunding of debt have been deferred and are being
amortized over the shorier of the life of the refunding bonds or the life of the bonds refunded by the straight-ine method.
However, a gain or loss on refunded bonds is recognized when funds from current operations are used.
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10 - DEBT AND NON-DEBT LIABILITIES, continued
¢ -- Business-Type Activities Long-Term Liabilities, continued

Combined Utility Systems Debt -- Revenue Bond Retirement Reserve Account - In January 2010, the City established a
City of Austin Combined Utility Reserve Account with a transfer of $44 million from Austin Energy operating funds to satisfy its
bond ordinance requirements. As allowed by the bond ordinance provision for the Bond Relirement Reserve Fund, the City
had previously funded the required reserve with an insurance policy issued by an insurance company rated in the highest
rating category by the rating agencies. As a result of the financial market distress in late 2008 and 2009, the credit rating of
the insurance company holding the City's policy fell below the rating required by the bond ordinance. As of February 2009,
there were no insurance companies with the required rating, therefore, the City had twelve months to remedy the provision of
the bond ordinance by funding a cash reserve. The required reserve of $44 million is based on the average annual debt
service and will decline as the bonds are paid off.

Of the $44 million, approximately $19 million is allocated to Austin Energy and $25 millicn is allocated to Austin Water based
on their portion of the autstanding combined utility system revenue bonds. Austin Energy funded the entire reserve and an
interfund payable from Austin Water to Austin Energy was created for Austin Water's portion.

Combined Utility Systems Debt -- Bonds Issued and Outstanding - The following schedule shows the original and
refunding revenue bonds outstanding at September 30, 2010 (in thousands):

Original Aggregate Interest Interest Rates
Amount Principal Requirements of Debt Maturity Dates
Series Date Issued Issued Qutstanding Outstanding Outstanding of Seriat Debt
19908 Refunding February 1990 § 236,009 3,668 20,502 (1}{3} 7.35% 11/15/2014-2017
1992 Refunding March 1992 265,806 21,752 59,348 (143} 6.85% 11/15/2010-2¢12
1992A Refunding May 1992 351.706 22,530 57,105 (143} 6.80% 11/15/2010-2011
1993 Refunding January 1993 203,166 36,564 6,038 (1)3} 6.13-6.30% 11/15/2010-2013
1993A Refunding June 1993 263,410 1,763 3121 (1)(3} 5.95% 11/15/2010
1994 Refunding September 1894 142,559 26,894 96,961 (1)(3) 6.60% 0515720172019
1998 Refunding July 1996 180,000 £5,040 5,739 (1}2) 6.75% 11115/2010-2012
1998 Refunding Oclober 1998 139,965 135,980 75175 (1) 5.25% 5M152011-2025
1998A Refunding October 1898 105,350 95.125 72,235 (143} 4.25 - 5.00% 5/15/2011-2028
19988 August 1998 10,000 5,350 822 (1} 3.35-3.75% 11/15/2010-2017
$ 404 666

(1) Interest is paid semiannually on May 15 and November 15.
{2) Series 1998 Refunding had a delayed delivery.
{3) Interest requirements include accreted interest.

Combined Utility Systems Debt -- Commerciat Paper Notes - The City is authorized by ordinance to issue commercial
paper notes in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $350,000,000 cutstanding at any time. Proceeds from the notes
are used to provide interim financing for capital project costs for additions, improvemenis, and extensions to the City’s electric
system and the City's water and wastewater sysiem and to refinance, renew, or refund maturing notes and other obligations of
the systems. Note ralings at September 30, 2010, were P-1 {Moody’s Investor Services, Inc.), A-1+ (Standard & Poor’s}, and
F1+ (Fitch), The notes are in denominations of $100,000 or more and mature not more than 270 days from the date of
issuance. Principal and interest on the notes are payable from the combined net revenues of the City's Electric Fund and
Water and Wastewater Fund.
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At September 30, 2010, the Electric Fund had outstanding commercial paper notes of $51,615,000 and the Water and
Wastewater Fund had $214 642,000 of commercial paper notes outstanding. Interest rates on the notes range from 0.29% to
0.36%, which are adjusted daily. Subsequent issues cannot exceed the maximum rate of 15%. The City intends to refinance
maturing commercial paper notes by issuing additional commercial paper notes or by issuing long-term debt. The notes have
the following terms:

Note Commitment Credit Remarketing Remarketing
Series  Liquidity Provider Fee Rate Fee Rate Agent Fee Rate Qutstanding Expiration
various JP Morgan Chase 1.16% 1.25%  Goldman Sachs 0.075% $ 108,981 3/28/2011
various Bank of America 1.15% 1.25%  Goldman Sachs 0.075% 68,381 3/28/2011
various  State Street 1.15% 1.25%  Goldman Sachs 0.075% 88,895 3/28/2011

3 266,257

These notes are subject to purchase on the demand of the holder at a price equal to principal plus accrued interest with proper
notice and delivery to the corresponding remarketing agent. |f the remarketing agent is unable to successfully remarket the
notes, the notes will be purchased by the respective liquidity providers and become bank notes with principat to be paid in 12
equal, quarterly installments. Bank notes bear an interest rate based on the bank rate which is the lesser of the base rate plus
any applicable excess interest or the maximum rate.

Combined Utility Systems Debt -- Taxable Commercial Paper Notes - The Cily is authorized by ordinance to issue taxable
commercial paper notes (the “taxable notes®) in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $50,000,000 outstanding at any
time. Proceeds from the taxable notes are used to provide interim financing for capital project costs for additions,
improvements, and extensions to the City’s electric system and the City's water and wastewater system and to refinance,
renew, or refund maturing notes and other obligations of the systems. Note ratings at September 30, 2010, were P-1 (Moody's
Investor Services, Inc.), A-1+ {(Standard & Poor's), and F1+ (Fitch).

The taxable notes are issued in denominations of $100,000 or more and mature not more than 270 days from the date of
issuance. Principal and interest on the taxable notes are payable from the combined net revenues of the City's Electric Fund
and Water and Wastewater Fund.

At September 30, 2010, the Electric Fund had outstanding taxable commercial paper notes of $33,568,000 (net of discount of
$28,266), and the Water and Wastewater Fund had no taxable notes cutstanding. Interest rates on the taxable notes range
from 0.33% to 0.43%. The City intends to refinance maturing commercial paper notes by issuing long-term debt. The notes
have the following terms:

Note Commitment Remarketing Remarketing
Series Liguidity Provider Fee Rate Agent Fee Rate Qutstanding  Expiration
Landesbank Hessen-
various  Thuringen Girazentrale 0.50% Goldman Sachs 0.075% 5 33,568 12/3172015

These notes are subject to purchase on the demand of the holder at a price equal to principal plus accrued interest with proper
notice and delivery to the corresponding remarketing agent. If the remarketing agent is unable to successfully remarket the
notes, the notes will be purchased by Landesbank Hessen-Thuringen Girczentrale and become bank notes with principal due
immediately. Bank notes bear an interest rale based on the bank rate which is the lesser of the base rate plus any applicable
excess note interest or the maximum rate.

The Nates are secured by a direct-pay Lelter of Credit issued by Landesbank Hessen-Thuringen Girozentrale which permits

draws for the payment of the Notes. Draws made under the Letter of Credit are immediately due and payable by the City from
the resources more fully described in the Ordinance. No term foan feature is provided by the Agreement.
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10 — DEBT AND NON-DEBT LIABILITIES, continued
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Electric Utility System Revenue Debt -- General - The City is authorized by ordinance to issue electric utility system
revenue obligations. Proceeds from these obligations are used only to fund electric capital projects or to refund debt issued to
fund these capital projects, Principal and interest on these obligations are payable solely from the net revenues of the Electric
Fund. Bond ratings at September 30, 2010, were A1 {Moody's Investor Services, Inc.), A+ (Standard & Poor's), and AA-
(Fitch).

Electric Utility System Revenue Debt —- Revenue Bond Refunding Issues - In June 2010, the City issued $119,255,000 of
Electric Utility System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2010A. Praceeds from the bond refunding were used to refund
$50,000,000 of the City's outstanding commercial paper issued for the electric utility system; Combined Utility System
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1993 in the amount of $5,190,0300; and Electric Utility System Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2001 in the amount of $69,200,000. The debt service requirements on the refunding bonds are $208,317,117, with
interest rates ranging from 2% to 5%. The City realized an economic gain of $4,014,573 on this transaction. The change in
net cash fiows that resulted was a decrease of $6,179,632. An accounting loss of $2,791,807, which will be deferred and
amortized in accordance with FASB Siatement No. 71, was recognized on the refunding.

In June 2010, the Cily issued $100,990,000 of Electric Utility System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 20108. Proceeds
from the bond refunding were used to refund $100,000,000 of the City’s outstanding commercial paper issued for the electric
utility system. The debt service requirements on the refunding bonds are $221,496,231, with interest rates ranging from
4.54% to 5.72%. Na change in net cash flows resulted from this transaction, and no gain or loss was recognized on this
refunding. These bonds are Build America Bonds (BABs) and are part of the Federal American Recovery and Reinvestrment
Act of 2008. Upan the City’s request each year, the U.S. Treasury Department will make a direct payment to the City in an
amount equal 35% of the interest payment on the BABs, lowering the City's net borrowing cost. The City did not receive
subsidies for Series 2010B from the U.S. Treasury Department during the fiscat year. In arder for the Cily to receive the
subsidy, the bonds have to maintain their Build America Bonds status, the City has to comply with the investment of the
proceeds and the use of the property financed there from, and the City has to file the necessary tax return no later than 45
days prior to the interest payment date. The City was in compliance with these requirements as of September 30, 2010.

Electric Utility System Revenue Debt -- Bonds Issued and Qutstanding - The foliowing table summarizes all electric
system originai and refunding revenue bonds outstanding at September 30, 2010 (in thousands):

Original Aggregate Interest Interest Rates
Amount Principal Requirements of Deht Maturity Dates
Series Date Issued Issued Outstanding QOutstanding Outstanding of Serial Debt
2001 Refunding January 2001 $ 126,700 3,100 112 (1 7.25% 111512010
2002 Refunding February 2002 74,750 52,770 8,022 (1) 4.00 - 5.50% 11115/2010-2014
2002A Refunding July 2002 172,880 91,135 21,389 (1) 4.00 - 5.50% 11/15/2010-2016
2003 Refunding February 2003 182,100 144,300 79,448 (1) 5.00 - 5.25% 11/15/2010-2028
2006 Refunding May 2006 160,000 144,100 110,668 (1) 5.00% 11/45/2010-2035
2006A Refunding October 2006 137,800 120,730 35444 (1) 5.00% 11/15/2010-2022
2007 Refunding August 2007 146,635 143,320 32,849 (1) 5.00% 11/15/2010-2020
2008 Refunding March 2008 50,000 48,915 41,971 (1) 3.23-6.26% 11/15/2010-2032
2008A Refunding July 2008 175,000 175,000 177,742 (1) 4.00 - 6.00% 11/15/2010-2038
2010A Refunding June 2010 119,255 119,255 89,062 (1) 2.00 - 5.00% 11/15/2012-2040
20108 Refunding June 201¢ 100,990 100,990 120,506 (1) 4.54 - 572% 11/15/2019-2040
1,143,615

{1) Interest is paid semiannually on May 15 and November 15.
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Electric Utility System Revenue Debt - Pledged Revenues - The net revenue of the Electric Fund was pledged to service
the outstanding principal and interest payments for revenue debt outstanding. The table below represents the pledged
amounts at September 30, 2010 {in thousands):

Gross Operating Debt Service  Revenue Bond
Revenue (1) Expense (2)(3} Net Revenue Requirement Coverage
5 1,159,295 866,914 292,381 165,609 176.5%

(1) Gross revenue includes revenues from operations and interest income.
(2} Excludes depreciation.
(3) Excludes unfunded other post employment benefit and pension obligation expenses.

Water and Wastewater System Debt -- Northwest Austin Municipal Utility District Number One - in February 2010, the
City Council voted to approve the abolishment of the Northwest Austin Municipal Utility District Number One (the District). The
City had the authority to abolish the District under Section 43.074 as the District was created from an area that, at the time of
the Districts creation, was located wholly within the municipal boundaries of the City of Austin. Upon abolition of the District,
the City assumed all of the assets and liabilities of the District, including the District’s debt service for utility bonds.

$110,000 of Northwest Austin MUD No. 1 Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2001 were assumed. The debt service requirements
on the bonds are $128 565, with interest rates ranging from 4.5% to 5.15%. Principal and interest payments are due March 1
and September 1 of each year from 2010 1o 2016.

$2,215,000 of Northwest Austin MUD No. 1 Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2004 were assumed. The debt service
requirements on the bonds are $2,761,594, with interest rates ranging from 3.125% 1o 4.3%. Principal and interest payments
are due March 1 and September 1 of each year from 2010 to 2020.

$7.677,403 of Northwest Austin MUD No. 1 Unlimited Tax Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2006 were assumed.
The debt service requirements on the bonds are $12,140,683, with interest rates ranging from 3.9% to 4.262%. Principal and
interest payments are due March 1 and September 1 of each year from 2010 to 2026.

$2,760,000 of Northwest Austin MUD No. 1 Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2009 were assumed. The debt service
requirements on the bonds are $3,202,400, with interest rates ranging from 3% to 4.25%. Principal and interest payments are
due March 1 and September 1 of each year from 2010 to 2018.

Of the $12,762,403 total debt assumed, 64.02% is allocated 1o water and wastewater systems and 35.98% is allocated to
drainage. Water and wastewater systems allocation by series is $70,422 for Series 2001, $1,418,043 for Series 2004,
$4,915,073 for Series 2006, and $1,766,952 for Series 2009. The debt service requirement on the bonds for water and
wastewater systems is $11,672,921.

Water and Wastewater System Revenue Debt -- General - The City is authorized by ordinance to issue water and
wastewater system revenue obligations. Proceeds from these obligations are used only to fund water and wastewater capital
projects or to refund debt issued to fund these capital projects. Principal and interest on these obligations are payable solely
from the net revenues of the Water and Wastewaler Fund.

Water and Wastewater System Revenue Debt -- Revenue Bond Refunding Issues — In November 2009, the City issued
$166,575,000 of Water and Wastewater System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2009A. Proceeds from the bond refunding
were used to refund $166,000,000 of the City's outstanding commercial paper issued for the water and wastewater utility
system. The debt service requirements on the refunding bonds are $317,854,463, with interest rates ranging from 4% to 5%.
No change in net cash flows resulted from this transaction, and no accounting gain or loss was recognized on this refunding.
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In January 2010, the City issued $31,815,000 of Water and Wastewater System Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 as a private
placement with the Texas Water Development Board. This zero-inlerest issuance is part of the American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act. Proceeds from the issuance will be used for green infrastructure improvements at the Hornsby Bend
Biosolids Management Plant. The debt service requirements on the bonds are $31,815,000. Principal payments are due

November 15 of each year from 2012 to 2041. As of September 30, 2010, the City has drawn $10,840,000 on the bonds.

Band ratings at September 30, 2010, were Aa2 (Moody's Investor Services, Inc.}), AA (Standard & Poor’s), and AA- (Fitch).

Water and Wastewater System Revenue Debt -- Bonds Issued and Qutstanding - The following table summarizes all
water and wastewater system original and refunding revenue bonds outstanding at September 30, 2010 (in thousands):

Original Aggregate Interest Interest Rates
Amount Principal Requirements of Debt Maturity Dates
Series Date Issued Issued Outstanding CQutstanding Outstanding of Serial Debt
2001A Refunding April 2001 § 152,180 13.055 7.692 (1) 4.50-575%  11/15/2010-2031 (3)
2001B Refunding April 2001 73.200 9,595 6,731 (1) 5.13-575% 5/156/2011-2031
2001 C Refunding November 2001 95,380 14,610 2,311 (1) 4.20-538%  11/15/2010-2015 (3}
2002A Refunding July 2002 139,695 71,705 18,397 (1) 4.00-550% 11/115/2010-2016
2003 Refunding February 2003 121,500 79,400 48,700 (1) 4.00-525%  11/15/2010-2028
2004 Refunding August 2004 132,475 115,375 28,750 (2) 0.19% - .40% 5/16/2011-2024
2004A Refunding September 2004 165,145 152,580 88,473 (1) 5.00% 11/15/2010-2029
2005 Refunding May 2005 198,485 198,485 96,890 (1) 4.00 - 5.00% 5/15/2012-2030
2003A Refunding October 2005 142,335 127,375 92.807 (1) 4.00 - 5.00% 5/15/2011-2035
2006 Refunding August 2006 63,100 51,440 22.867 () 5.00% 11/15/2010-2025
2006A Refunding November 2006 135,000 130,650 94,136 (1) 3.50-500%  11M15/2010-2036
2007 Refunding November 2007 135,000 132,765 111,985 (1) 4.00-5.25% - 11M15/2010-2037
2008 Refunding May 2008 170,605 166,875 68,466 (2) 0.16% -0.45% 11/15/2010-2031 (3}
2009 Refunding January 2009 175,000 175,000 102,243 (1) 3.00-5.13% 11/15/2011-2029
2009A Refunding November 2009 166,575 166,575 146,973 (1) 4.00-5.00% 11/15/2011-2039
2010 January 2010 10,840 10,840 - 0.00% 11/15/2012-2022
$ 1616325

(1) Interest is paid semiannually on May 15 and November 15.

(2) Interest is paid monthly and is based on a variable rate. Aggregate interest requirement is calculated utilizing the rate in effect
at the end of the fiscal year.

(3) Series matures on May 15th of the final year

The Series 2004 and 2008 refunding bonds are vatiable rate demand bonds. The bonds have the following terms (in
thousands):

Bond Sub- Commitment Remarketing Remarketing
Series Liguidity Provider Fee Rate Agent Fee Rate 0utstandiﬂg_ Expiration
2004 Landesbank Baden-Wurttemberg 0.75% JP Morgan 0.075% 5 116,375  12/29/2015
2008 DEXIA 0.35% Goldman Sachs 0.050% 166,875 5/15/2011
$ 282250

These bonds are subject 1o purchase on the demand of the holder at a price equal to principal plus accrued interest with
proper notice and delivery to the corresponding remarketing agent. If the remarketing agent is unable to successfully remarket
the bonds, the bonds will be purchased by the respective liquidity providers and become bank bonds with principal to be paid
in equal semi-annual installments over a 5-year amortization period. Bank bonds bear an interest rate based on the bank rate
which is the lesser of the base rate plus any applicable excess inferest or the maximum rate.
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Water and Wastewater System Revenue Debt -- Pledged Revenues - The net revenue of the Water and Wastewater Fund
was pledged to service the outstanding principal and interest payments for revenue debt outstanding. The table below
represents the pledged amounts at September 30, 2010 (in thousands):

Operating
Gross Expense Debt Service  Revenue Bond
Revenue (1) {2K3) Net Revenue Requirement Coverage
$ 361,342 159,402 201,940 155,678 129.7%

(1) Gross revenue includes revenues from operations and interest income.
(2) Excludes depreciation,
(3) Excludes unfunded other post employment benefit and pension obligation expenses.

Airport -- Revenue Bonds - The City's Airport Fund issues airport system revenue bonds 1o fund Airport Fund capital
projects. Principal and interest on these bonds are payable solely from the net revenues of the Airport Fund. At September 30,
2010, the total airport system obligation for prior lien bonds is $308,530,000 exclusive of discounts, premiums, and loss on
refundings. Aggregate interest requirements for ali prior lien bonds are $110,255,210 at September 30, 2010. Revenue bonds
authorized and unissued amount to $735,795,000.

The bond rating at September 30, 2010, for the pricr lien bonds is A- (Standard & Poor's).

The following table summarizes all airport system original and refunding revenue bonds outstanding at September 30, 2010 (in
thousands):

Original Aggregate Interest Interest Rates
Amount Principal Requirements of Debt Maturity Dates
Series Date Issued Issued Qutstanding Qutstanding Qutstanding of Serial Debt
2003 Refunding December 2003 $ 54,250 48,680 14513 (1) 4.00 - 5.25% 11/15/2010-2018
2008 Remarketing April 2008 281,300 259,850 95,742 (2) 0.18 - 0.50% 11/15/2010-2025

3308530

(1) Interest is paid semiannually on May 15 and November 15.

(2) Interest is paid monthly and is based on a variable rate. Aggregate interest requirement is calculated utilizing the rate in
effect at the end of the fiscal year,

The Series 2008 remarketing bonds are variable rate demand bonds. These bonds are separated into 4 subseries with a total
principal amount of $259,850,000. The bonds have the following terms (in thousands):

Bond Sub- Commitment Remarketing Remarketing
Series Liquidity Provider Fee Rate Agent Fee Rate Outstanding  Expiration
2005-1 DEXIA 0.60% Morgan Stanley 0.10% $ 64,950 522011
2005-2 DEXIA 0.60% Morgan Stanley 0.10% 64,925 5/2/201
2005-3 DEXIA 0.60% Morgan Stanley 0.10% 64,975 5/2/12011
2005-4 DEXIA 0.60% Morgan Stanley 0.10% 65,000 5/212011

3 259,850

These bonds are subject to purchase on the demand of the holder at a price equal to principal plus accrued interest with
proper notice and delivery to the corresponding remarketing agent. [f the remarketing agent is unable to successfully remarket
the bonds, the bonds will be purchased by Dexia and become bank bonds with principal to be paid in annual installments over
the remaining life of the bond series. Bank bonds bear an interest rate based on the bank rate which is the lesser of the base
rate plus any applicable excess interest or the maximum rate.
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Airport Debt -- Variable Rate Revenue Notes - The City is authorized by ordinance to issue airport system variable rate
revenue notes. At September 30, 2010, the airport system had outstanding variable rate revenue notes of $28,000,000. The
debt service fund required by the bond ordinance held assets of $10,935,526 including accrued interest, at September 30,
2010, and was restricted within the airport system. During fiscal year 2010, inlerest rates on the notes ranged from .16% to
0.33%, adjusted weekly al market rates; subsequent rate changes cannot exceed the maximum rate of 15%. Principal and
interest on the notes are payable from the net revenues of the airport system.

The Series 1998 revenue notes are variable rate demand notes. The notes have the following terms (in thousands):

Bond Sub- Commitment Remarketing Remarketing
Series Liquidity Provider Fee Rate Agent Fee Rate Qutstanding  Expiration
1588 State Street 1.75% Citi 0.125% 3 28,000 212042012

These notes are subject to purchase on the demand of the holder at a price equal to principal plus accrued interest with proper
notice and delivery to the corresponding remarketing agent. If the remarketing agent is unable to successfully remarket the
notes, the notes will be purchased by State Street and become bank notes with principal to be paid in 12 equal, quarterly
instaliments. Bank notes bear an interest rate based on the bank rate which is the lesser of the base rate plus any applicable
excess note interest or the maximum rate.

The bond rating at September 30, 2010, for the airport variable rate notes was A- (Standard & Poor's).
Airport Revenue Debt -- Pledged Revenues - The net revenue of the Airport Fund was pledged to service the outstanding
principal and interest payments for revenue debt outstanding (including revenue bonds and revenue noles). The table below

represents the pledged amounts at Seplember 30, 2010 {in thousands):

Net Revenue and Debt Service

Gross Other available Operating Other Availabte Requirement  Revenue Bond
Revenue (1) funds (2) Expense (3)(4} Funds (5) Coverage
$ 85,156 7.930 57,379 35,707 14,690 243.1%

{1} Gross revenue includes revenues from operations and interest income.

{2) In addition to gross revenue, the Airport is authorized by bond ordinance to use "other available
funds” in the calculation of revenue bond coverage.

(3) Excludes depreciation.

(4) Excludes unfunded other post employment benefit and pension obligation expenses.

(5) Excludes debt service amounts paid with passenger facility charge revenues.

Nonmajor fund:

Drainage -- Northwest Austin Municipal Utility District Number One - In February 2010, the City Council voted to approve
the abolishment of the Northwest Austin Municipal Utility District Number One (the District). Upon abolition of the District, the
City assumed all of the assets and liabilities of the District, including the District’s debt service for utility bonds.

Of the $12,762 403 total debt assumed, 64.02% is allocated to water and wastewater systems and 35.98% is allocated to

drainage. Drainage aliocation by series is $39,578 for Series 2001, $796,957 for Series 2004, $2,762,330 for Series 2006,
and $993,048 for Series 2009. The debt service requirement on the bonds for drainage is $6,560,320.
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Convention Center -- Prior and Subordinate Lien Revenue Bonds - The City’s Convention Center Fund issues convention
center revenue bonds and hotel occupancy tax revenue bonds to fund Convention Center Fund capital projects. Principal and
interest on these bonds are payable solely from pledged hotef occupancy tax revenues and the special motor vehicle rental tax
revenues. At September 30, 2010, the total convention center obligation for prior and subordinate lien bonds is $224 015,000,
exclusive of discounts, premiums, and loss on refundings. Aggregate interest requirements for all prior and subordinate lien
bonds are $89,903,235 at September 30, 2010. Revenue honds authorized and unissued amount to $760,000 at September
30, 2010,

Bond ratings at September 30, 2010, for the revenue bonds were A2 (Moody's Investor Services, Inc.), and A- (Standard &
Poor's).

The foliowing table summarizes Convention Center original and refunding revenue bonds ouistanding at September 30, 2010
{in thousands):

Original Aggregate interest Interest Rates
Amount Principal Requirements of Debt Maturity Dates
Series Date Issued Issued Qutstanding Qutstanding Outstanding of Serial Debt
1999A June 1999 $ 25,000 21,450 13,707 {1} 505-550% 11/15/2010-2029
2004 Refunding February 2004 52,715 43,880 11,831 (1} 3.00-500% 11/15/2010-2019
2005 Refunding May 2005 36,720 36,720 21.796 (1) 3.30-5.00% 11/15/2011-2029
2008AB Refunding August 2008 125,280 121,955 42,570 (2) 0.15% - 0.55% 11/15/2010-2029
5 224,015

(1) Interest is paid semiannually on May 15 and November 15,
{2) Interest is paid monthly and is based on a variable rate. Aggregate interest requirement is calculated utilizing the rate in effect
at the end of the fiscal year.

The Series 2008 A and B refunding bonds are variable rate demand bonds. The bonds have the foliowing terms (in
thousands):

Bond Sub- Commitment Remarketing Remarketing
Series Liquidity Provider Fee Rate Agent Fee Rate Qutstanding  Expiration
2008-A DEXIA 0.70% Morgan Keegan 0.060% % 60,975 8/15/2011
2008-B DEXIA 0.70% BofA/Merrill Lynch 0.050% 60,980 8/15/2011

5 121,06

These bonds are subject to purchase on the demand of the holder at a price equal to principal plus accrued interest with
proper notice and delivery to the corresponding remarketing agent. If the remarketing agent is unable to successfully remarket
the bonds, the bonds will be purchased by Dexia and become bank bonds with principal to be paid in equal semi-annual
installments over a 5-year amortization period. Bank bonds bear an interest rate based on the bank rate which is the lesser of
the base rate plus any applicable excess interest or the maximum rate.
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d -- Debt Service Requirements
Governmental Activities
(in thousands)
Fiscal Year General Obligation Contractual
Ended Bonds Certificates of Obligation Obligations
September 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2011 $ 53,247 36,603 7,750 3,136 5,236 1,444
2012 48,423 34,147 7.839 2,785 3,735 1,276
2013 50,345 31,877 3,549 2,437 2,165 1,169
2014 48,685 29,478 5,116 2,302 2,161 1,097
2015 50,519 27,190 3,529 2,100 2,688 1,009
20186-2020 256,556 100,423 18,956 8,125 8,551 3,809
2021-2025 165,772 45,989 19,898 3,489 8,400 2,199
2026-2030 103,555 10,200 4,830 350 5,060 484
777,106 315,907 71,487 24,724 37,996 12,487
Less: Unamortized bond discounts {932) -- - - - --
Unamortized gain{loss) on bond refundings (12,001} - - - -- -
Add: Unamortized bond premiums 25,446 -- 119 — 299 -
Net debt service requirements 789,619 315,807 71,586 24,724 38,295 12 487
Fiscal Year Capital Lease Total Governmental
Ended Obligations Debt Service Requirements
September 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Total
2011 283 1 66,516 41,194 107,710
2012 274 8 60,271 38,216 98,487
2013 159 3 56,222 35,486 91,708
2014 - - 55,962 32,877 88,839
2015 - - 56,736 30,299 87.035
2016-2020 - - 284,083 112,357 396,420
2021-2025 - - 194,070 51,677 245747
2026-2030 - - 113,445 11,034 124,479
716 22 887,285 353,140 1,240,425
Less: Unamortized bond discounts - - (932) - (932)
Unamortized gain(loss} on bond refundings -- -- {12,001} - {12,001)
Add: Unamortized bond premiums -- -- 25,864 - 25,864
Net debt service requirements $ 716 22 900,216 353,140 1,263,356
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10 - DEBT AND NON-DEBT LIABILITIES, continued
d -- Debt Service Requirements, continued
Electric Business-Type Activities
{in thousands)
Fiscal Year General Obligation Contractual Commercial Paper
Ended Bonds Obligations Notes {1)
September 30 Principal Interest  Principal Interest Principal Interest
2011 $ 73 53 79 1 85,183 35
2012 79 49 - - -- -
2013 125 48 -- - -- -
2014 131 39 - - - -
2015 139 33 - - - -
2016-2020 509 71 - - - -
2021-2025 4 — - -- - -
1,060 291 79 1 85,183 35
Less: Unamortized bond discount {2) - - - (28) -
Unamortized gain(loss) on bond refundings - - -- - - -
Add: Unamortized bond premium 55 - -- -- - -
Net debt service requirermnents 1,113 291 79 1 85,155 35
Fiscal Year Capital Lease Total Electric
Ended Revenue Bonds Obligations Debt Service Requirements
September 30 Principal Interest  Principal Interest Principal Interest Total
2011 75,084 98,704 38 78 160,457 98,871 258,328
2012 75,773 92,959 40 76 75,892 93,084 168,976
2013 105.092 69.013 42 74 105,259 69,133 174,392
2014 123,006 53,912 44 72 123,181 54,023 177.204
2015 79,754 50,964 a7 69 79,940 51,066 131,006
2016-2020 227490 208,792 272 308 228,271 209,171 437,442
2021-2025 227,345 144,169 349 231 227,698 144,400 372,098
2026-2030 194,010 87,416 448 133 194,458 §7.549 282,007
2031-2035 136,130 43,521 17 2 136,147 43523 179,670
2036-2040 91,860 12,586 - - 91,860 12,586 104,446
20412045 8,325 232 - -- 8,325 232 8,557
1,343,869 862,268 1,297 1,043 1,431,488 863,638 2,295,126
Less: Unamortized bond discounts (2,734) - - -- {(2,764) - (2,764)
Unamortized gain(loss) an bond refundings {54,402) - - - (54,402) -- (54,402)
Add: Unamortized hond premiums 39,550 - - - 38,605 - 39,605
Net debt service requirements $ 1,326,283 862,268 1,297 1,043 1,413,927 863,638 2,277,565

(1) The City intends to refinance maturing commercial paper notes by issuing additional commercial paper notes or by
issuing long-term debt. The underlying liquidity agreement expires within one year; therefore, the financial statements
reflect amounts due in one year in accordance with GASB Interpretation No. 1.
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September 30, 2010 {Continued)
10 — DEBT AND NON-DEBT LIABILITIES, continued
d -- Debt Service Requirements, continued
Water and Wastewater Business-Type Activities
{in thousands)
Fiscal Year General Obligation Other Tax  Supported
Ended Bonds Contractual Obligations Debt
September 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal interest
201 $ 569 138 3,189 393 1,021 626
2012 533 107 3,011 282 1,069 582
2013 593 79 2,627 182 1,128 532
2014 165 47 1,809 90 1,327 475
2015 174 39 805 38 1,389 410
2016-2020 548 89 725 22 4,453 1,582
2021-2025 55 3 -- - 2,840 494
2026-2030 - -- - -~ 629 24
2,637 502 12,266 1,007 13,856 4,725
Less: Unamortized bond discounts {13) - - -- (27) -
Unamortized gain{loss} on bond refundings {1,538) - - -- - -
Add: Unamortized bond premiums 93 - 105 -- - -
Net debt service requirements 1,179 502 12,371 1,007 13,829 4,725
Fiscal Year Commercial Paper Revenue Total Water and Wastewater
Ended Notes (1) Bonds (2)(3) Debt Service Requirements
September 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal interest Total
201 214,642 52 50,660 101,110 270,081 102,319 372,400
2012 -- - 67,296 97,761 71,909 98,732 170,641
2013 -- - 81,481 88,321 85,829 89,114 174,943
2014 - - 103,799 73,610 107,200 74,222 181,422
2015 -- - 95,237 78,079 97,605 78,566 176,171
2016-2020 - - 397 801 400,962 403,617 402 655 806,272
2021-2025 - - 405,624 195,854 408,519 196,351 604,870
2026-2030 - - 389,600 102,414 390,229 102,438 492,667
2031-2035 - -- 128,010 40,831 128,010 40,831 168,841
2036-2040 - - 101,140 10,468 101,140 10,468 111,608
214,642 52 1,820,738 1,189410 2,064,138 1,195696 3,259,835
Less: Unamartized bond discounts - - (7,808) - (7.848) - (7,848)
Unamortized gain{loss) on bond refundings - - (48,510) - (48,048) - (48,048)
Add: Unamortized bond premiums -- - 45477 - 45,675 - 45,675
Net debt service requirements $ 214642 52 1,811,897 1,189,410 2,053918 1,195696 3,249,614

(1) The City intends to refinance maturing commercial paper notes by issuing additional commercial paper notes or by
issuing long-term debt. The underlying liquidity agreemenl expires within one year; therefore, the financial statements
reflect amounts due in one year in accordance with GASB Interpretation No. 1.

{2) Portions of these bonds are variable rate bonds with rates of 0.16% to 0.45%.

(3) The underying liquidity agreement expires within one year; therefore, the financial statements reflect amounts due in one year in
accordance with GASB Interpretation No. 1. This schedule reflects the debt schedules as of September 30, 2010.
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10 —- DEBT AND NON-DEBT LIABILITIES, continued
d -- Debt Service Requirements, continued
Airport Business-Type Activities
{in thousands)
Fiscal Year General Obligation
Ended Bonds Revenue Notes (1) Revenue Bonds (2)
September 30 Principal Interest Principat Interest Principal Interest
2011 3 28 13 - 980 13,515 12,609
2012 30 11" - 980 14,165 12,033
2013 39 10 - 980 14,795 11,466
2014 26 8 - 980 15,610 10,699
2015 27 6 - 980 16,345 10,043
2016-2020 98 14 28,000 2,450 98,450 38,040
2021-2025 3 - - -- 110,900 15,159
2026-2030 -- -- - - 24,750 208
251 62 28,000 7,350 308,530 110,255
Less: Unamortized bond discounts (N - - - {840) -
Unamortized gain(loss) on bond refundings 1 - - -- {14,419) -
Add: Unamortized bond premiums 11 - - -- 202 -
Net debt service requirements 262 62 28,000 7,350 295,283 110,255
Fiscal Year Capital Lease Total Airport
Ended Obligations Debt Service Requirements
September 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Total
2011 3 4 13,874 13,606 27,480
2012 - - 14,195 13.024 27.219
2013 - -- 14,834 12,456 27,290
2014 - - 15,636 11,687 27,323
2015 - -- 16,372 11,029 27,401
2016-2020 - - 126,548 40,504 167,052
2021-2025 - - 110,903 15,159 126,062
2026-2030 - -- 24,750 206 24,956
331 4 337,112 117,671 454 783
Less: Unamortized bond discounts - - {841) - (841)
Unamortized gain(loss} on bond refundings - -- (14,418) - (14,418)
Add: Unamortized bond premiums - - 2,023 - 2,023
Net debt service requirements $ 331 4 323,876 117,671 441,547

(1) These are variable rate notes with rates ranging from 0.16% to 0.33%.

(2) Portions of these bonds are variable rate bonds with rates ranging from 0.18% to 0.50%.
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10 — DEBT AND NON-DEBT LIABILITIES, continued
d -- Debt Service Requirements, continued
Nanmajor Business-Type Activities
{in thousands)
Fiscal Year General Obligation Certificates of Contractual
Ended Bonds Obligation Obligations
September 30 Principal  Interest Principal  Interest Principal  Interest
2011 $ 1,546 689 2,319 1,803 7,360 1,176
2012 1,458 610 2,436 1,698 7,358 926
2013 1,595 537 1,936 1,587 6,653 681
2014 1,383 456 2,684 1,501 5,460 466
2015 1,314 387 2,131 1,382 4,737 296
2016-2020 5,994 910 11,024 5,597 5,590 271
2021-2025 432 22 11,861 2,441 - -
2026-2030 - - 2,245 940 - -
2031-2035 - - 1,405 543 - -
2036-2040 -- -- 1,420 173 - -
13,722 3,611 39,461 17,665 37,158 3,816
Less: Unamortized bond discounts (46} - - - - -
Unamortized gain{loss) on band refundings (1.010) -- - -- - --
Add: Unamortized bond premiums 1,013 -- 708 -- 456 -
Net debt service requirements 13,679 3,611 40,169 17,665 37,614 3,816

Fiscal Year Other Tax Supported Total Nenmajor
Ended Debt Revenue Bonds (1)}{2) Debt Service Requirements
September 30 Principal interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Total
20M 240 173 8,545 8,817 20,010 12,658 32,668
2012 248 164 9,450 8,483 20,950 11,881 32,831
2013 255 155 10,555 8,077 20,994 11,037 32,031
2014 263 144 11,000 7,635 20,790 10,202 30,992
2015 272 134 11,485 7,164 19,909 9,363 29,272
2016-2020 1,123 760 65,040 27,929 88,7714 35,467 124,238
2021-2025 1,595 278 48,700 16,196 62,588 18,937 81,525
2026-2030 353 14 59,270 5,603 61,868 6,557 68,425
2031-2035 - -- - -- 1,405 543 1,948
2036-2040 -- - - -- 1,420 173 1,593
4,349 1,822 224,015 88,904 318,705 116,818 435,523
Less: Unamaortized bond discounts - - (679} -- (725) - (725)
Unamaortized gain{loss) on band refundings - - (16,948} -- (17,958) - (17,958)
Add: Unamortized bond premiums - - 3,260 - 5437 -- 5,437
Net debt service requirements $ 4,349 1,822 209,648 89,904 305,459 116,818 422,277

{1) A porttion of these bonds are variable rate bonds with rates ranging from 0.15 to 0.55%.

{2) The underlying liquidity agreement expires within one year; therefore, the financial statements reflect amounts due in cne year
in accordance with GASB Interpretation No. 1. This schedule refiects the debt schedules as of September 30, 2010.
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{Continued)

DEBT AND NON-DEBT LIABILITIES, continued
d -- Debt Service Requirements, continued

Business-Type Activities
(in thousands)

Fiscal Year General Obligation
Ended Bonds Certificates of Obligation _ Contractual Obligations
September 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2011 $ 2,216 893 2,319 1,803 10,628 1,570
2012 2,100 777 2,436 1,698 10,369 1,208
2013 2,352 672 1,936 1,687 9,280 863
2014 1,705 550 2,684 1,501 7,369 556
2015 1,654 464 2131 1,382 5,542 334
2016-2020 7.149 1,084 11,024 5,597 6,315 293
2021-2025 494 25 11,861 2,441 - --
2026-2030 - - 2,245 940 - --
2031-2035 - - 1,405 543 - -
2(36-2040 -- - 1,420 173 - --
17,670 4,466 39,461 17,665 49,503 4,824
Less: Unamortized bond discounts (62) - - - -- -
Unamartized gain{lass) on bond refundings (2,547) -- - - - -
Add: Unamortized bond premiums 1,172 - 708 -- 561 -
Net debt service requirements 16,233 4,466 40,169 17,665 50,064 4,824
Fiscal Year Other Tax Supported Commercial Paper Notes Revenue
Ended Deht {1) Notes (2)
September 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
201 1,261 799 299,825 87 -- 980
2012 1,317 746 - - -- 980
2013 1,383 687 - - - 380
2014 1,580 619 -- - - 980
2015 1,661 544 - - -- 980
2016-2020 5,676 2,342 - - 28,000 2,450
2021-2025 4,435 772 -- - -- --
2026-2030 932 38 -- - -- -
2031-2035 - - - - - -
2036-2040 - -- -- - -- -
18,205 6,547 289,825 87 28,000 7,350
Less: Unamortized bond discounts (27) -- (28) - - -
Unamortized gain{loss) on bond refundings -- -- -~ -- -- -
Add: Unamortized bond premiums -- -- -- - -- -
Net debt service requirements $ 18178 6,547 289,797 87 28,000 7,350

{1} The City intends to refinance maturing commercial paper notes by issuing additional commercial paper notes or by
issuing long-term debt. The underlying liquidity agreement expires within one year; therefore, the financial statements
reflect amounts due in one year in accordance with GASE Interpretation No. 1.

{2) These are variable rate notes with rates ranging from 0.16% to 0.33%.
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10 — DEBT AND NON-DEBT LIABILITIES, continued
d -- Debt Service Requirements, continued

Business-Type Activities
{in thousands)

Fiscal Year Revenue Capital Lease Total Business-Type Activities
Ended Bonds {3){4) Obligations Debt Service Requirements
September 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal interest Total
2011 § 147,804 221,240 69 g2 464,422 227 454 691,876
2012 166,684 211,236 40 76 182,946 216,721 399,667
2013 211,923 176,877 42 74 226,816 181,740 408,656
2014 253,415 145,856 44 72 266,807 150,134 416,941
2015 202,79 146,250 47 69 213,826 150,024 363,850
2016-2020 788,871 675,723 272 308 847,207 687,797 1,535,004
2021-2025 792,569 371,378 49 231 809,708 374,847 1,184,555
2026-2030 567,630 195,639 448 133 671,305 196,750 868,055
2031-2035 264,140 84,352 17 2 265,562 84,897 350,459
2036-2040 193,000 23,054 - -- 194 420 23,227 217,647
2041-2045 8,325 232 - - 8,325 232 8,557
3,697,152 2,251 837 1,628 1,047 4151444 2293 823 6,445,267
Less: Unamortized bond discounts {12,061) - - -- (12,178) - (12,178)
Unameortized gain{loss) on bond refundings (132,279) - - - (134,826} - (134,826)
Add: Unamorlized bond premiums 90,299 — — - 92,740 - 92,740
Net debt service requirements $ 3,643,111 2251837 1,628 1,047 4097,180 2,203 823 6,391,003

{3) A portion of these bonds are variable rate bonds with rates ranging from 0.15 to 0.55%.

(4) The underlying liquidity agreement expires within one year, therefore, the financial statements reflect amounts due in one year in
accordance with GASB Interpretation No. 1. This schedule reflects the debt schedules as of September 30, 2010.

e -- Defeased Debt

Qver time, the City has issued refunding bonds to advance refund certain public improvement bonds, certificates of obligation,
and enterprise revenue bonds. The proceeds of the sale of the refunding bonds were deposited with an escrow agent in an
amount necessary to accomplish the discharge and final payment of the refunded obligations. These funds are held by the
escrow agent in an escrow fund and used to purchase direct obligations of the United States of America to be held in the
escrow fund. The escrow fund is irrevocably pledged to the payment of the principal and interest on the refunded obligations.

On September 30, 2010, defeased bonds remaining unredeemed or unmatured are provided below (in thousands):

Escrow
Refunded Bonds Maturity Balance

General Obligation

Certificates of Obligations, Series 2001 911/2011 & 13,685

Public Improvement Bonds, Series 2001 9M/2011 51,280

Certificates of Obligations, Series 2002 aMizz 6,750

Public Improvement Bonds, Series 2002 9/1/2012 13,100

Certificates of Obligations, Series 2004 9/1/2014 1,355
Electric

Series 2001 11/15/2010 117,700

Series 2003 5/15/2013 18,800
Water and Wastewater

Series 2001A 5/15/2011 118,265

Serigs 20018 511572011 53,605

Series 2003 5/15/2013 29,100

$ 423,640
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11 - CONDUIT DEBT

The City has issued several series of housing and industrial development revenue bonds to provide for low cost housing and
for acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial facilities. These bonds are secured by the property financed and
are payable solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Prior to September 30, 1997, the City issued
several series of bonds. The aggregate principal amount outstanding of these bonds could not be determined; however, their
original issue amounts totaled $310.2 million. Subsequent to September 30, 1997, the City has issued $104 miflion in varicus
series of housing revenue bonds that have an outstanding balance of $101.4 million as of September 30, 2010,

Revenue bonds have been issued by various related entities to provide for facilities located at the international airport and
convention center. These bonds are special limited obligations payable solely from and secured by a pledge of revenue to be
received from agreemenis between the entities and various third parties. As of September 30, 2010, $350.3 million in revenue
and revenue refunding bonds was outstanding that had an original issue value of $382.2 million.

The above bonds do not constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit of the City and accordingly have not been reparted
in the accompanying financial statements.

12 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

Interfund receivables, payables, and advances at September 30, 2010, are as follows (in thousands):

Amount

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Current Long-Term

Governmental funds: B
General Fund Nenmajor governmental funds 3 227 --
Nonmajer governmental funds Nonmajor governmental funds 57,746 -
Water and Wastewater - 3,505
Nonmajor enterprise funds - 1,006
Internal service funds -- 28
Intemal Service funds Nonmajor governmental funds 11 34

Business-type funds:

Electric Internal service funds 136 458
Nonmajor enterprise funds 306 1,634
Water and Wastewater - 24,603
Nonmajor governmental funds - 181
Water and Wastewater (restricted) Internal service funds 27 -
Airport (restricted) Nonmajor governmental funds - 107
Nonmajor enterprise funds (restricted) Nenmajor governmental funds - 55
Nonmajor enterprise funds Nonmajor governmental funds - 30
Nonmajor enterprise funds 717 -
5 59,170 31,641

Interfund receivables, payables, and advances reflect loans between funds. Of the above current amgunt, $15.1 million is an
interfund loan from the Fiscal Surety Fund, a special revenue fund, to other special reveme funds (primarity grant funds) to cover
deficit pooled investments and cash. The above current amount also includes $42.6 million in interfund loans between capital
project funds to cover deficit pooled investments and cash.
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12 — INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS, continued
Interfund transfers during fiscal year 2010 were as follows (in thousands):

Transfers In

General Nonmajor Nonmajor

Transfers Out Fund Governmental Enterprise Total

General Fund $ -- 9,716 6,298 16,014
Nonmajor governmental funds - 42 313 35,630 77,943
Electric 101,000 - - 101,000
Water and Wastewater 28,967 4,462 -- 33,429
Nonmajor enterprise funds 266 3,264 -- 3,530
Internal service funds - 7,681 - 7,681
Total transfers out $ 130,233 67,436 41,928 238,697

Interfund transfers are authorized through City Council approval. Significant transfers include the electric and water and
wastewater transfers to the General Fund, which are comparable to a return on investment to owners, and the transfer of hotel
occupancy and vehicle rental tax collections from the Hotel-Motel Occupancy Tax and the Vehicle Rental Tax funds to other
nonmajor governmental funds and the Convention Center Fund.

13 - LITIGATION

A number of claims against the City are pending with respect to various matters arising in the normal course of the City's
operations. Legat counsel and city management are of the opinion that settliement of these claims and pending litigation will not
have a material effect on the City's financial statements. The City has accrued liabilities in the Liability Reserve Fund for claims
payable at September 30, 2010. These liabilities include amounts for tawsuits settled subsequent to year-end, which are
reported in the government-wide statement of net assets.

14 - DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The City has derivatives in two hedging programs: Energy Risk Management Progtam and Variable Rate Debt Management
Program.

The City implemented Statement 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, in fiscal year 2010, which
addresses the recognition, measurement, and disclosure related to derivative instruments. In accordance with GASB
Statement No. 53, the City is required to report the fair value of all derivative instruments on the statement of net assets. In
addition, GASB Statement No. 53 requires that all derivatives be categorized into two basis types — (1) hedging derivative
instruments and (2) investment derivative instruments. Hedging derivative instruments significantty reduce an identified
financial risk by substantially offsetting changes in cash flows or fair values of an associated hedgeable item. Investment
derivative instruments are entered into primarily for income or profit purposes or they are derivative instruments that do not
meet the criteria of an effective hedging derivative instrument. Changes in fair value of hedging derivative instruments are
deferred on the stalement of net assets; and changes in fair value of investment derivative instruments are recognized as
gains or losses on the statement of activities.

a -- Energy Risk Management Program -

In an effort to mitigate the financial and market risk associated with the purchase of natural gas and energy price volatility,
Austin Energy has established a Risk Management Program. This program was autherized by the Austin City Council and is
led by the Risk Oversight Committee. Under this program, Austin Energy enters into futures contracts, options, and swaps for
the purpose of reducing exposure to natural gas and energy price risk. Use of these types of instruments for the purpose of
reducing exposure to price risk is performed as a hedging activity. These contracts may be settled in cash or delivery of
certain commodities. Austin Energy typically settles these contracts in cash.
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14 — DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS, continued
a -- Energy Risk Management Program, continued

Hedging Derivative Instruments

Nalural Gas Derivatives

Austin Energy purchases financial contracts on the New York Mercantile Exchange (NYMEX) to provide a hedge against the
physical delivery price of natural gas from its various hubs. Austin Energy enters into basis swaps to protect delivery price
differences between Henry Hub and its natural gas delivery points, Weslern Area Hub Association (WAHA), Katy, and the
Houston Ship Channel (HSC}).

The fair value of fulures, swaps, and basis swap contracts is determined using the NYMEX closing settlement prices as of the
last day of the reporting period. The fair value is calculated by deriving the difference between the closing fulures price on the
last day of the reporting period and purchase price at the time the positions were established. The fair value of the options are
calcutated using the Black/Scholes valuation method ulilizing implied volatility based on the NYMEX closing setllement prices
of the options as of the last day of the reporling period, risk free interest rate, time to maturity, and the NYMEX forward price of
the underlier as of the last day of the reporting period.

Premiums paid for options are deferred until the contract is settled. As of September 30, 2010, $12.7 miltion in premiums was
deferred. As of September 30, 2010, the fair value of Austin Energy’s futures, oplions, swaptions, and swaps, was an
unrealized loss of $105.7 million, of which $113.4 million is reported as derivative instruments in liabilities and $7.7 million is
reported as derivative instruments in asseis. The fair values of these derivative instruments are deferred until future periods
on the balance sheet using deferred outflows and deferred inflows.

Congestion Rights Derivatives

Preassigned Congestion Rights (PCRs) and Transmission Congestion Rights (TCRs) function as financial hedges against the
cost of resolving zonal congestion in the Electric Reliability Council of Texas (ERCOT) markel. These instruments allow Austin
Energy to hedge expected future congestion that may arise during a certain period. TCRs are purchased al auction, annually
and monthly at market value. Municipally owned utilities are granted the right to purchase PCRs annually at 15% of the cost of
TCRs. The instruments exhibit all three characteristics - setllement, leverage, and net settlement - to classify them as
derivative instruments.

As of September 30, 2010, PCRs had a fair value of $247 thousand and TCRs had a fair value of $1.3 million and are reported
as derivative instruments. The market value for TCRs and PCRs is calculated using the implied market value (the difference
between future zonal prices of the applicable zones) multiplied by the number of open positions. The difference in the zonal
prices represents what the expecled cost of congestion will be for that given point in time.

89



Notes to Basic Financial Statements City of Austin, Texas
September 30, 2010 (Continued)

14 — DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS, continued
a -- Energy Risk Management Program, continued

On September 30, 2010, Austin Energy had the following cutstanding hedging derivative instruments (in thousands):

Fair Value at September 30, 2010

Reference Notional Change in Premiums
Type of Transaction Index Maturity Dates Volumes Fair Value Fair Value Deferred
Long OTC Call Options  Henry Hub Oct 2010 - Oct 2013 20,445,013 (1) % 1,819 {8,555) 19,159
Lang Options Henry Hub Apr 2013 - Oct 2013 2,140,000 (1) 373 (875) -
Loeng Basis Swaps WAHA Oct 2010 - Dec 2013 8,980,000 (1) 3,939 1,482 -
n/a  Congestion Righis ICE (2) Oct 2010 - Dec 2010 560,117 (3) 1,579 (364) -
) Derivative instruments (assels) 7,710 (8.312) 19,159
Short OTC Call Options  Henry Hub Oct 2010 - Jun 2012 (6,410,000) (1) {702) 1,874 -
Short OTC Put Options  Henry Hub Oct 2010 - Dec 2014 (24,885,000) (1) (49,286) {27,115) (6,440)
tong Futures Henry Hub Apr 2011 - Jul 2013 1,375,000 (1) (4,050) {2,300) -
Short  Options Henry Hub Apr 2013 - Oct 2014 (2,140,000 (1) (4,827) {2.012) -
Long OTC Swaps Henry Hub Oct 2010 - Jun 2015 35,427,500 (1) (47.,600) (46,446) -
Short OTC Swaptions Henry Hub Apr 2011 - Oct 2011 (3,210,000) (1} {6.946) {4,054) -
Derivative instruments (liabilities) (113,411) (80,053) (6.440)
Total $ (105,701) {88,365) 12,719

(1) Volume in MMBTUs
(2) IntercontinentalExchange
{3) Volume in MWHSs

Austin Energy routinely purchases derivative instruments. The outstanding hedging derivative instruments were purchased at
various dates.

The realized gains and losses related to the hedging activity derivative instruments are netted to fuel expense in the period
realized.

Risks

Credit Risk. Credit risk is the risk of loss due to a counterparty defaulting on its obligations. Austin Energy's fuel derivative
contracts expose Austin Energy to custodial credit risk on Exchange Traded derivative positions. In the event of default or
nonperformance by brokers or the exchange, Austin Energy's cperations will not be materially affected. However, Austin
Energy does not expect the brokerages to fail to meet their obligations given their high credit ratings and the strict and deep
credit requirements upheld by NYMEX, which these brokerage houses are members. At September 30, 2010, the brokerages
had credit ratings of A and BBB.

The over-the-counter agreements expose Austin Energy to credit risk. In the event of default Austin Energy's operations will
not be materially affected. However, Austin Energy does not expect the counterparties to fail to meet their obligations given
their high credit rating. At September 30, 2010, the two counterparties had credit ratings of AA- and A. The contractual
provisions under the ISDA (International Swaps and Derivatives Association) agreement applied to these contracts include
collateral provisions. At September 30, 2010 no collateral was required under these provisions.

The congestion rights expose Austin Energy to custodial credit risk in the event of default or nonperformance by ERCOT. In

the event of default of nonperformance Austin Energy's operations will not be materially affected. However, Austin Energy
does not expect ERCOT to fail in meeting their obligations as they are a regulatory entity of the State of Texas.
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14 - DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS, continued
a -- Energy Risk Management Program, continued

Termination Risk. Termination risk is the risk that a derivative will terminate prior {o its scheduled maturity due to a contractual
event. Contractual events include illegality, tax and credit events upon merger and other events. Termination risk for
exchange-traded instruments is greatly reduced by the strict rules and guidelines set up by the exchange, which is governed by
the Commodity Futures Trade Commission. Austin Energy's exposure to termination risk for over-the counter agreements is
minimal due to the high credit rating of the counterparties, and the centractual provisions under the ISDA (International Swaps
and Derivatives Association) agreement applied to these contracts. Termination risk is associated with ali of Austin Energy's
derivatives up to the fair value of the instrument.

Netting Arrangements. Austin Energy enters into netting arrangements whenever it has entered into more than one derivative
instrument transaction with a counterparty. Under the terms of these arrangements, should one parly become insolvent or
otherwise default on it's obligations, close-out netting provisions permit the non-defaulting parly to accelerate and terminate all
outstanding transactions and net the transactions’ fair values so that a single sum will be owed by or owed to the non-
defaulting party.

Basis Risk. Austin Energy is exposed to basis risk on its fuel hedges because the expected commodity purchases being
hedged will price based on a delivery point (WAHA/Katy/HSC) different than that at which the financial hedging contracts are
expected to settle NYMEX (Henry Hub). As of September 30, 2010, the NYMEX price was $3.81 per MMBTU, the WAHA Hub
price was $3.67 per MMBTU, Katy was $3.785 per MMBTU, and the HSC Hub price was $3.83 per MMBTU.

Investment Derivative Instruments

In fiscal year 2010, some derivative instruments were closed out resulting in an ineffective hedge classification, accordingly a
loss of $69 thousand was reported. However, this loss was deferred under the accounting requirements for reguiated
operations.

On September 30, 2010, Austin Energy had the following closed out investment derivative instruments (in thousands):

Fair Value at September 30, 2010

Reference Volumes in Change in

Type of Transaction Index Maturity Dates MMBTU Fair Value Fair Value

Long OTC Call Options  Henry Hub Apr 2011 - Oct 2011 3,210,000 % - -
Short OTC Call Options  Henry Hub Apr 2011 - Oct 2011 (3,210,000) - 890
Long Futures Henry Hub Aug 2013 - Oct 2013 230,000 (846) {397)
Short Futures Henry Hub Aug 2013 - Oct 2013 (230,000) 777 397
Long OTC Swaps Henry Hub Apr 2011 300,000 (750) {692}
Short OTC Swaps Henry Hub Apr 2011 (300,000) 750 692
$ (69) 890

At September 30, 2010, Austin Energy recorded an unrealized loss of $49 thousand on outstanding emission investment
instruments.

Risks

As of September 30, 2010, Austin Energy was not exposed to credit, interest or foreign currency risk on its investment
derivative instruments.

b -- Variable Rate Debt Management Program
Hedging Derivative Instruments
The intention of the City’s swap portfolio is to change variable interest rate bonds to synthetically fixed rate bonds. As a means

to lower its borrowing costs when compared against fixed rate bonds at the time of issuance, the City executed pay-fixed,
receive-variable swaps in connection with its issuance of variable rate bonds.
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14 - DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS, continued
b -- Variable Rate Debt Management Program, continued

As of September 30, 2010, the City has 4 outstanding swap transactions with initial and outstanding notional amounts totaling
$734.6 million and $664.1 million, respectively. The mark-to-market or fair value for each swap is estimated using the zero-
coupon method, This methed calculates the future payments required by the swap, assuming that the current forward rates
implied by the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) swap yield curve are the market's best estimate of future spot interest
rates. These payments are then discounted using the spot rates implied by the current yield curve for a hypothetical zero-
coupon rate bond due on the date of each future net settlement on the swaps.

On September 30, 2010, the City had the following outstanding interest rate swap hedging derivative instruments (in
thousands):

Effective  Maturity Notionai
item Related Variahle Rate Bonds Terms Date Date Amount  Fair Value
Business-Type Activities - Hedging derivatives:
Water & Wastewater Revenue Pay 3.657%, receive 68% of
WWH1 Refunding Bonds, Sertes 2004 LIBOR 8/27/2004 5/15/2024 % 115,375 (16,476}
Water & Wastewater Revenue Pay 3.600%, receive SIFMA
wWwz Refunding Bonds, Series 2008 swap index 5/15/2008  5/15/2031 166,875 (18,130)
Airport Systemn Subordinate Lien
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series Pay 4.051%, receive 71% of
AlR1 2005 LIBOR 8/17/2005 11/15/2025 259,850 (48,227)
Hotet Occupancy Tax Subordinate Pay 3.251%, receive SIFMA
Lien Variable Rate Revenue Refunding swap index until 11/15/09 and
HOT1 Bonds, Series 2008 67% of LIBOR thereafter 8/14/2008 11/15/2029 121,955 (16,640)
$ 664,055 {99,473)

All swaps are pay-fixed interest rate swaps. All were entered into with the objective of hedging changes in the cash flows on
the related variable rate debt.

The fair value of the City’s interest rate swap hedging derivative instruments is reported as derivative instruments in liabilities
with an offsetting adjustment to deferred outflow of resources. The table below provides for the fair value and changes in fair
value of the City's interest rate swap agreements as of September 30, 2010 {in thousands).

Fair Value and Classification as of Change in fair value for the year
September 30, 2010 ended September 30, 2010
Qutstanding
Notional Deferred Deferred
Item Amount Amount Classification Qutflows Inflows

Business-Type Activities:
Hedging derivative instruments (cash flow hedges):

WwW1 $ 115,375 (16,476) Non-current liability (4,368) -
Wwz2 166,875 (18,130) Non-current liability {7.918) -
AIR1 259,850 (48,227) Non-current liability (12,034} -
HOT1 121,955 (16,640) Non-current tiability {6,060) -

$ 664,055 (99,473) {30,380) -

Due to the continued decline in interest rales during fiscal year 2010, the City's interest rate swap hedging derivative
instruments had negative fair values as of September 30, 2010. The fair value takes into consideration the prevailing interest
rate environment, the specific terms and conditions of a given transaction, and any upfront payments that may have been
received.
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14 — DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS, continued
b -- Variable Rate Debt Management Program, continued

Risks

Credit risk. As of September 30, 2010, the City was not exposed to credit risk on any of its outstanding swap agreements
because each swap had a negative fair value. However, should interest rates change and the fair value of a swap becomes
positive, the City would be exposed to credit risk in the amount of the swap’s fair value. The City will be exposed to interest
rate risk only if the counterparty to the swap defaults or if the swap is terminated.

The counterparty credil ratings for the City's interest rate swap hedging derivalive instruments at September 30, 2010 are
included in the table below.

Counterparty Ratings

Moody's

Investors Standard &
Item  Related Variable Rate Bonds Service, Inc Poor's Fitch, Inc
Business-Type Activities:
Ww1t  Water & Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2004 Aat AA- AA-
WW2  Water & Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2008 Aa3 A A+
AIR1T  Airport System Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2005 A2 A A
HOT1 Hotel Occupancy Tax Subordinate Lien Variable Rate Revenue Refunding Aa3 A+ AA-

Bonds, Series 2008

Swap agreements for all four swaps contain coliateral agreements with the counterparties. These swap agreements reguire
collateralization of the fair value of the swap should the counterparty’s credit rating fall below the applicable threshoids in the
agreemenls. For Swap WW1, the City purchased swap insurance 1o mitigate the need to post collateral as long as the insurer,
Financia! Security Assurance, maintains a credit rating above A2/A by Moody's/Standard &Poor's (S&P). For Swap AIR1, the
City purchased swap insurance to mitigate the need to post collateral as long as the insurer, Financial Security Assurance,
maintains a credit rating above A2/A by Moody's/S&P. For Swap HOT1, the credit support provider of MKFP is Deutsche
Bank AG, New York Branch (DBAG). This swap requires collateralization of the fair value of the swap should DBAG's credit
rating fall below the applicable thresholds in the agreement.

Swap payments and associated debt. The net cash flows for the City's interest rate swap hedging derivative instrumenis for
the year ended September 30, 2010 are included in table beiow {in thousands).

Counterparty Swap Interest

Interest to Net Interest
Item Related Variable Rate Bonds Pay Receive Net Bondholders Payments

Business-Type Activities:

Water & Wastewater Revenue
Ww1 Refunding Bonds, Series 2004 $ (4,219) 213 (4,006) (367) {4.373)

Waler & Wastewater Revenue
Ww2 Refunding Bonds, Series 2008 (6,023) 438 (5,585) (498) (6,083)

Airport System Subordinate Lien
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series
AlR1 2005 (10,551} 503 {10,048) (857} {10,905)

Hotel Occupancy Tax Subordinate
Lien Variable Rate Revenue
HOT1 Refunding Bonds, Series 2008 (3,982) 246 {3,736} (370} {4,106)

$ {24,775) 1,400 {23,375) (2,092) (25,467)
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14 — DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS, continued
b -- Variable Rate Debt Management Program, continued

Basis and interest rate risk. Basis risk is the risk that the interest rate paid by the City on underlying variable rate bonds to
bondholders temporarily differs from the variable swap rate received from the applicable counterparty. The City does not bear
basis risk on Swap WW2. At September 30, 2010, the City bears basis risk on the three remaining swaps. These swaps have
basis risk since the City receives a percentage of LIBOR to offset the aciuai variable rate the City pays on the related bonds.
The City is exposed to basis risk should the floating rate that it receives on a swap drop below the actual variable rate the City
pays on the bonds. Depending on the magnitude and duration of any basis risk shortfall, the expected cost of the basis risk
may vary.

The City will be exposed to interest rate risk only if the counterparty to the swap defaults or if the swap is terminated.

Tax risk. Tax risk is a specific type of basis risk. Tax risk is a permanent mismatch between the interest rate paid on the City's
underlying variable rate bonds and the rate received on the swap caused by a reduction or elimination in the benefits of the tax
exemption for municipai bonds, e.g. a tax cut that results in an increase in the ratio of tax-exempt to taxable yields. The City is
receiving 68% of LIBOR (a taxable index) on Swap WWH1, 71% of LIBOR on AIR1t, and 67% of LIBOR on Swap HOT1 and
would experience a shortfall relative to the rate paid on its bonds if marginal income tax rates decrease relalive to expected
levels, thus increasing the overall cost of its synthetic fixed rate debt.

Termination risk. The City or the counterparties may terminate any of the swaps if the other party fails to perform under the
terms of the respective contracts. If any of the swaps are terminated, the associated variable rate bonds would no longer be
hedged to a fixed rate. If at the time of termination the swap has a negative fair value, the City would be liable to the
counterparty for a payment equal to the swap’s fair value. The additional termination events in the agreement are limited to
credit related events only and the ratings triggers are substantially below the current credit rating of the City. Additionally, the
City purchased swap insurance con the Swap WW1 and Swap AIR1 to further reduce the possibility of termination risk.

Roliover risk. The City is exposed to rollover risk on hedging derivative instruments that are hedges of debt that mature or may
be terminated prior to the maturity of the hedged debt. When these hedging derivative instruments terminate, the City will be
re-exposed to the risks being hedged by the hedging derivative instrument. The City is currently not exposed to roltover risk on
its hedging derivative instruments.

Investment Derivative Instruments

At September 30, 2010, the City did not have any investment derivative instruments related to interest rate swaps.

¢ - Swap Payments and Associated Debt

As of September 30, 2010, debt service requirements of the City's variable rate debt and net swap payments, assuming

current interest rates remain the same, for their term are as follows (as rates vary, variable rate bond interest payments and
net swap payments will vary):

Fiscal Year Variable-Rate Bonds
Ended {in thousands} Interest Rate Total
September 3¢ Principal Interest Swaps, Net Interest
2011 $ 22,890 624 23,387 24 011
2012 29,805 597 22,418 23,015
2013 23,750 574 21,507 22,081
2014 54,920 538 20,017 20,555
2015 43,465 490 17.539 18,029
2016-2020 154,910 1,833 72,418 74,251
2021-2025 210,235 869 41,434 42,303
2026-2030 110,000 85 10,892 10,977
2031 13,980 2 333 335
Total $ 664,055 5612 229,945 235,557
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15 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
a -- Fayette Power Project

Austin Energy's coal-fired electric generating units are located at the Fayette Power Project (FPP) and operate pursuant to a
participation agreement with LCRA. Austin Energy has an undivided 50 percent interest in Units 1 and 2, and LCRA wholly
owns Unit 3. A management commitiee of four members governs FPP: each participant administratively appoinis two
members. As managing partner, LCRA is responsible for the operation of the project and appoints project management.

FPP's Flexible Air permit received from the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality in 2002 requires that Austin Energy
and LCRA install new S0O2 scrubbers on FPP Units 1 and 2 by 2012. Itis estimated that the project cost will be in the range of
$225 million for Austin Energy's share. The scrubber on Unit 1 began operation in January 2011 and the Unit 2 scrubber is
expected to go online in the spring of 2011,

Austin Energy’s investment is financed with City funds, and its pro-rata share of cperations is recorded as if wholly owned.
Austin Energy’s pro-rata interest in FPP was $209.9 million as of September 30, 2010. The increase in the pro-rata interest
from 2009 is primarily due to the scrubbers. The pro-rata interest in the FPP is calculated pursuant to the parlicipation
agreement and is reported in various asset and liability accounts within the City's financial statements. The original cost of
Austin Energy's share of FPP’s generation and transmission facilities is recorded in the utility plant accounts of the City in
accordance with its accounting policies.

b -- South Texas Project

Austin Energy is one of three participants in the South Texas Project (STP), which consists of two 1,250-megawatt nuclear
generating units in Matagorda County, Texas. The other participants in the STP are NRG South Texas LP and City Public
Service of San Antonio. In-service dates for STP were August 1988 for Unit 1 and June 1989 for Unit 2. Austin Energy's 16
percent ownership in the STP represents 400 megawatts of plant capacity. At September 30, 2010, Austin Energy’s investment
in the STP was approximately $469 million, net of accumulated depreciation.

Effective November 17, 1997, the participation agreement among the owners of STP was amended and restated, and the STP
Nuclear Operating Company (STPNOC), a Texas non-profit non-member corporation created by the participants, assumed
responsibility as the licensed operator of STP. The participants share costs in proportion to ownership interests, including all
liabilities and expenses of STPNOC. Each participant is responsible for its STP funding. The City's portion is financed through
operations, revenue bonds, or commercial paper, which are repaid by the Electric Fund (see Note 10). In addition, each
participant has the obligation to finance any deficits that may occur.

Each participant appoints one member to the board of directors of STPNOC, as well as one other member to the management
committee. A member of the management committee may serve on the board of directors in the absence of a board member.
The City's portion of STP is classified as plant in service, construction in progress, and nuclear fuel inventory. Nuclear fuel
includes fuel in the reactor as well as nuclear fuel in process.

NRG South Texas LP has applied for an expansion at STP to include Units 3 and 4 at the STP site. While it is unknown
whether this application for expansion will be approved, Austin Energy recommended and City Council resolved not to
participate in the expansion as currently proposed.

c -- South Texas Project Decommissicning

Austin Energy began collecting in rates and accumulating funds for decommissioning STP in 1989 in an external trust. The
Decommissioning Trust assets are reported as restricted cash and restricted investments held by trustee. The related liability
is reported as decommissioning liability payable. Excess or unfunded liabilities related to decommissioning STP will be
adjusted in future rates so that there are sufficient funds in place to pay for decommissioning. At September 30, 2010, the
trust's assets were in excess of the estimated liability by $23.8 million which is reported as part of deferred revenue and cther
liabilities {in thousands):

Decammissioning trust assets $ 159,602
Pro rata decommissioning liability (135,765)
$ 23,837
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15 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES, continued
¢ -- South Texas Project Decommissioning, continued

STP is subject to regulation by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC). The NRC requires that each holder of a nuclear
plant-operating license submit a certificate of financial assurance to the NRC for plant decommissioning every two years or
upon transfer of ownership. The certificate provides reasonable assurance that sufficient funds are being accumulated to
provide the minimum requirement for decommissioning mandated by the NRC. The maost recent annual calculation of financial
assurance filed on December 31, 2008 showed that the trust assets exceeded the minimum required assurance by $38.6
million.

d -- Purchased Power

Austin Energy has commitments totaling $3.2 billion to purchase energy and capacity through purchase power agreements.
This amount includes provisions for wind power through 2027, landfill power through 2020, biomass through 2032, and solar
through 2035,

e -- Decommissioning and Environmental/Pollution Remediation Contingencies

Austin Energy may incur costs for environmental/pollution remediation of certain sites including the Holly, Fayette, and
Seaholm Power Plants. The financial statements include a liability of approximately $23 million at September 30, 2010. Austin
Energy anticipates payment of these costs in 2011 and future years. The amount is based on 2010 cost estimates to perform
remediation. Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations.

Austin Water closed the Green Water Treatment Plant (GWTP) on September 23, 2008. The estimated decommissioning cosl
to close the GWTP is $11 million. The financial statements include a liability of approximately $2.1 million at September 30,
2010. The amount is based on 2010 cost estimates. Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or
changes in regulations. Plant decommissioning reached substantial completion in February 2011, with final completion
expected to occur in fiscal year 2011,

f -- Texas Water Development Board

tn November 2009, the City delivered $31,815,000 of initial Water and Wastewater System Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 as a
private placement with the Texas Water Development Board (TWDB). This zero-interest issuance is part of the American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act. As part of that program, the initiai bonds, in $5,000 increments, are replaced with definitive
bonds as the City requests reimbursement for expendifures related to the approved project: green infrastruciure
improvements at the Homsby Bend Biosolids Management plant. The City recognizes a fiability once the definitive bonds have
been issued. The remaining commitment will be recognized as future definitive bonds are issued. At year end, the liability
recognized by the Water and Wastewater System Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 and the remaining commitment are as follows
(in thousands):

Totat bonds authorized $ 31,815
Definitive bonds issued to date (10,840)
Remaining commitment $ 20,975

The City intends to issue definitive bonds for the remaining commitment. If the full amount of bonds authorized is not
converted to definitive bonds, the TWDB and the City would agree to cancel any remaining initial bonds authorized but not
converted. The City's liability in the financial statements represents the amount of definitive bonds outstanding.

g -- Arbitrage Rebate Payable
The City’s arbitrage consultant has determined that the City has earned interest revenue on unused bond proceeds in excess
of amounts allowed by applicable Federal regulations. The City will be required to rebate the excess amounts to the federal

government. The estimated amounts payable at September 30, 2010, was $139 thousand for governmental activities, $7
thousand for water and wastewater, and $19 thousand for other nonmajor enterprise activities.
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15 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES, continued
h -- Federal and State Financial Assistance Programs

The City participates in a number of federally assisted and state grant programs, financed primarily by the U.S. Housing and
Urban Development (HUD) Department, L.S. Health and Human Services {HHS) Department, and U.S. Department of
Transportation (DOT). The City's programs are subject to program compliance audits by the granting agencies. Management
believes that no material liability will arise from any such audits.

i -- Capital Improvement Plan

As required by charter, the City has a Capital Improvements Program plan (capital budget) covering a five-year period which
details anticipated spending for projects in the upcoming and future years. The City's 2010 Capital Budget has substantial
contractual commitments relating to its capital improvement plan.

The key projects in progress include improvements to and development of the electric system, water and wastewater systems,
airport, transportation infrastructure, public recreation and culture activities, and urban growth management activities.
Remaining commitments represent current unspent budget and future costs required to complete projects.

Remaining
Project {in thousands) Commitment
Governmental activities:
General government $ 11,509
Transportation 25,034
Public recreation and culture 106,387
Urban growth management 1,134
Business-lype activities:
Electric 299,047
Water 585,811
Wastewater 426,193
Airport 189,325
Environmental and health services 42 402
Urban growth management 245,121
Total $ 1,931,963

i -- Landfill Closure and Postclosure Liability

State and federal regulations require the City to place a final cover on the City of Austin landfill site (located on FM 812) when it
stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after closure.
Although closure and postclosure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the landfili stops accepting waste, a
portion of these future closure and postelosure care costs are reported as an operating expense in each period as incurred in
the Solid Waste Services Fund, a nonmajor enterprise fund. Closure is expected to occur in May 2011. The amount of cosis
reported, based on landfill capacity as of the City’s fiscal year-end, is as follows (in thousands}:

Closure Postclosure Total
Total estimated costs $ 10,035 7,297 17,332
% capacily used through FY10 95.04% 99.04% 99.04%
Cumulative liahility accrued through FY10 9,938 7.227 17,165
Costs incurred through FY10 {9,225) -- (8,225)
Closure and post-closure liability at 9/30/10 713 7,227 7,940
Estimated FY11 costs 713 52 765
Estimated costs for remaining years 3 - 7.175 7,175

These amounts are based on the 2010 cost estimales to perform closure and postclosure care. Actual costs may be higher
due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regutations. State and federal laws require owners to demonstrate
financial assurance for closure, postclosure, andfor corrective action. The City complies with the financial and public notice
components of the local government financial test and government-guarantee of the test.
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15 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES, continued
k -- Risk-Related Contingencies

The City uses internal service funds to account for risks related to health benefits, third-party liability, and workers'
compensation. The funds are as follows:

Fund name Description

Employee Benefits City employees and retirees may choose a self-insured PPC or HMO for health coverage.
Approximatety 30% of city employees and 41% of retirees use the HMO option;
approximately 70% of city employees and 59% of retirees use the PPO. Costs are charged
to city funds through a charge per employee per pay period.

Liability Reserve This self-insured program includes losses and claims related to liability for bodily injury,
property damage, professional liability, and certain employment liability. Premiums are
charged to other city funds each year based on historical costs.

Workers' Compensation Premium charges for this self-insured program are assessed to other funds each year based
on the number of full-time equivalent (FTE) employees per fund.

The City purchases stop-loss insurance for the City's PPO and HMO. This stop-loss insurance covers individual claims that
exceed $500,000 per calendar year, up to a maximum of $2 million, In fiscal year 2010, six claims exceeded the stop-loss limit
of $500,000; during fiscal year 2008, five claims exceeded the stop-loss limit of $500,000; during fiscal year 2008, no claims
exceeded the stop-loss limit of $500,000. City coverage is limited to $2 million in lifetime benefits. The City does not purchase
stop-loss insurance for workers' compensation claims.

The City is self-insured for much of its risk exposure; however, the City purchases commercial insurance coverage for loss or
damage to real property, theft and other criminal acts committed by employees, and third party liability associated with the
airport, owned aircraft, and electric utiity operations. There have been no claims settlements in excess of the purchased
insurance coverage for the last three years. The City also purchases insurance coverage through a program that provides
workers' compensation, employer's liability, and third party liability coverage to contractors working on designated capital
improvement project sites.

Liabitities are reported when it is probable that a loss has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount
of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported
{{BNRs). The City utilizes acluarial information and historical claim settlement trends to determine the claim liabilities for the
Employee Benefits Fund and Workers' Compensation Fund. Claims liabilities for the Liability Reserve Fund are calculated
based on an estimate of outstanding claims, which may differ from the actual amounts paid. Possible losses are estimated to
range from $33.4 to $47.5 million. The City contributes amounts to an internal service fund based on an estimate of anticipated
costs for claims each year.

Changes in the balances of claims liability are as follows (in thousands):

Employee Liability Workers*
Benefits Reserve Compensation
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Liability balances, beginning of year $ 9,260 4,796 6,965 7,848 14,052 13,818
Claims and changes in estimates 9,480 9,807 3,270 2,784 3,908 3,391
Claim payments (8,182}  (5,343) (2,669) {3,667) (2,669) (3,157}
Liability balances, end of year $ 10,558 9,260 7.576 6,965 15,31 14,052

The Liability Reserve Fund claims liability balance at fiscal year end includes liabilities of $4.9 million discounted at 4.22% in
2010 and $5.0 million discounted at 4.45% in 2009.
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15— COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES, continued
| -- Redevelopment of Robert Mueller Municipal Airport

In December 2004, City Council approved a master development agreement with Catellus Development Group (Catelius) to
develop approximately 700 acres at the former site of the City's municipal airport into a mixed-use urban village near downtown
Austin. Catellus will develop and market the property. The Mueller Local Government Corporation (MLGC), created by the City
for this development, will issue debt to fund infrastructure such as streets, drainage facilities, public parks, and greenways,
which will be supported by taxes generated from this developrnent.

In September 2008, the MLGC issued debt in the amount of $12 million. Proceeds of the debt have been used to reimburse
the developer for eligible infrastructure such as streets, drainage, and parks. Debt service payments will be funded through an
economic development grant from the City of Austin, and supported by sales tax proceeds from the development.

In October 2009, the MLGC issued debt in the amount of $15 million. Proceeds of the debt have been used to reimburse the
developer for additional eligible infrastructure for the residential portion of the development. Debt service payments will be
funded through an economic development grant from the Cily of Austin, and supported by property tax proceeds from the
developrment.

The development contains Class A office space which hosts over 40 employers providing more than 3,000 jobs at Mueller. The
development has more than 350,000 sq. fi. of retail space. From the start of home sales in 2007, the community has been well
received. As of September 30, 2010, approximately 661 single-family homes were either complete or under construction. In
addition, 477 apartment units were complete, Catellus also completed the infrastructure for an additional 49 single-family
homes and initiated the development of 52 muiti-family residences.

m -- Other Commitments and Contingencies

The City is committed under various leases for building and office space, tracts of land and rights-of-way, and certain
equipment. These leases are considered operating leases for accounting purposes. Lease expense for the year ended
September 30, 2010, was $21.8 million. The City expects these leases to be replaced with similar leases in the ordinary course
of business. Future minimum lease payments for these leases will remain approximately the same.

The City has entered into certain lease agreements to finance equipment for both governmental and business-type activities.
These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and have been recorded at the present value of the
future minimum lease payments at their inception date. Refer to Note 10 for the debt service requirements on these leases.

The following summarizes capital assets recorded at September 30, 2010, under capital lease obligations {in thousands):

Business-type Activities

Governmental
Capital Assets Activities Electric Airport Total
Building and improvements $ -- 1,405 -- 1,405
Equiprment 1,051 - 2,320 2,320
Accumulated depreciation (297) {(281) (1,753) (2,034)
Net capilal assels 3 754 1,124 567 1,691
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16 ~ OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

in addition to the contributions made to the three pension systems, the City provides certain other post-employment benefits to
its retirees. Other post-employment benefits include access to medical, dental, and vision insurance for the retiree and the
retiree’s family and $1,000 of life insurance on the retiree only. All retirees who are eligible to receive pension benefits under
any of the City's three pension syslems are eligible for other post-employment benefits. Retirees may also enroll eligible
dependents under the medical, dental, and vision plan{s) in which they participate. The City's other post-employment benefits
plan is a single employer plan.

The City is under no obligation to pay any portion of the cost of other post-employment benefits for retirees or their
dependents. Allocation of city funds to pay other post-employment benefits is determined on an annual basis by the City
Council as part of the budget approval process on a pay-as-you-go basis.

The City recognizes the cost of providing these benefits as an expense and corresponding revenue in the Employee Benefits
Fund; no separate plan report is available. The City pays actual claims for medical and 100% of the retiree's life insurance
premium. Group dentat and vision coverage is available to retirees and their eligible dependents. The retiree pays the full cost
of the dental and vision premium.

Medical, dental, vision, and life insurance expenses are reported in the Employee Benefits Fund. The estimated pay-as-you-go
cost of providing medical and life benefits for 3,118 retirees was $21.7 million in 2010 and $19.6 millien in 2009 for 3,115
retirees.

Annual Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) Cost and Net OPEB (Obligation) Asset

The annual OPEB cost associated with the City’s retiree benefits for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010, is as follows
{in thousands):

OPEB
Annual required contribution $ 119,299
Interest on net OPEB obligation 7,374
Adjustment to annual required contribution (9,969)
Annual OPEB cost 116,704
Contributions made (21 ,707!
Change in net OPEB obligation 94,997
Beginning net OPEB obligation 175,151
Net OPEB obligation $ 270,148
Schedule of Funding Progress (in thousands):
Percentage
Actuarial Actuarial Annual of UAAL
Year Ended Value of Accrued Funded Covered to Covered
September 30 Assets Liability UAAL(1) Ratio Payroll Payroll
2010 $ -- 1,134,864 1,134,864 0.0% 620,526 182.9%

(1) UAAL — Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI, presents multiyear trend information regarding the ratio of the actuarial
value of assets and actuarial accrued labilities.

The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for
2010 and the two preceding years are as follows {in thousands):

Percentage of

Year Ended Annual OPEB Annual OPEB Net OPEB
September 30 Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
2008 $ 108574 19% 87,507
2009 107,207 18% 175,150
2010 116,704 18% 270,148
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements City of Austin, Texas
September 30, 2010 (Continued)

16 — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, continued

The actuarial cost method and significant assumptions underlying the actuarial calcutation are as follows:

OPEB
Actuarial Valuation Date October 1, 2008
Actuarial Cost Method Projected Unit Credit
Amortization method Level Percentage Open
Remaining Amonization Period 30 years
inflation Rate N/A
Salary Increase Nene
Payroll Increase None
Assumed Rate ot
Return on Investments 421%
Health Care Cost Trend Rate 10% in 2009, decreasing 1% per year for five

years to an ultimate trend of 5% in 2014

17 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
a -- General Obligation Bond Issue

In October 2010, the City issued $79,528,000 of Public improvement Bonds, Series 2010A. The proceeds from the issue will
be used as follows: street improvements ($16,998,000), sireets and signals ($15,800,000}, drainage improvements
($24,000,000), park improvements ($20,130,000), cultural arts {$100,000), central library ($1,000,000), and public safety
facility ($1,500,000). These bonds will be amortized serially on September 1 of each year from 2011 to 2030. Interest is
payable on March 1 and September 1 of each year, commencing March 1, 2011. Total interest requirements for these bonds,
al rates ranging from 2.00% to 4.00%, are $37,170,378.

In October 2010, the City issued $26,400,000 of Public Improvement Bonds, Taxable Series 2010B. The proceeds from the
issue will be used as follows: affordable housing ($26,400,000). These bonds will be amortized serially on September 1 of
each year from 2011 to 2030. Interest is payable on March 1 and September 1 of each year, commencing March 1, 2011.
Total interest requirements for these bonds, at rates ranging from 3.00% to 4.65%, are $16,225,123.

In October 2010, the City issued $22,300,000 of Certificates of QObligation, Series 2010. The proceeds from this issue will be
used as follows: public safety facilities ($3,850,000), solid waste services landfill closure ($8,100,000), public works
transportation projects ($9,000,000), and improvements ($1,350,000). These certificates of obligation will be amortized serially
on September 1 of each year from 2011 to 2030. Interest is payable on March 1 and September 1 of each year, commencing
March 1, 2011. Total interest requirements for these certificates of obligation, at rates ranging from 2.00% to 3.50%, are
$8,237,625.

In October 2010, the City issued $16,450,000 of Public Properly Finance Contractual Obligations, Series 2010. The proceeds
from this issue will be used as follows: solid waste services capital equipment ($8,600,000), parking meter pay stations
{$2,600,000), golf capital equipment {$1,070,000), public works transportation capital equipment ($2,505,000), wastewater
utility capital equipment {$1,016,000), and water ulility capital equipment ($659,000). These contractual obligations will be
amortized serially on May 1 and November 1 of each year from 2011 to 2017. Interest is payable on May 1 and November 1 of
each year, commencing May 1, 2011. Total interest requirements for these obligations, at rates ranging from 1.00% to 1.75%,
are $897,315.

101



Notes to Basic Financial Statements City of Austin, Texas
September 30, 2010 (Continued)

17 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS, continued
b -- Public Improvement Refunding Bond Issue

In November 2010, the City issued $91,560,000 of Public Improvement Refunding Bonds, Series 2010. The net proceeds of
$108,587,889 (after issue costs, discounts, and premiums) from the refunding were used to refund $41,500,000 of Public
Improvement Bonds, Series 2002; $31,785,000 of Public Improvement Refunding Bonds, Series 2003; $20,010,000 of
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2001 and 2002; $2,090,000 of Circle C MUD #3 and Circle C MUD #4 Waterworks and Sewer
System Combination Unlimited Tax and Revenue Bonds, Series 1996, $4,040,000 of Davenport Ranch MUD #1 Waterworks
and Sewer System Combination Unlimited Tax and Revenue Bonds, Series 1997 and Series 19978; and $70,000 of
Narthwest Austin MUD #1Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2001. The refunding resulted in future interest requirements to service
the debt of $40,480,158 with interest rates ranging from 4% to 5%. An economic gain of $9,426,174 was recognized on this
transaction. The change in net cash flows that resulted from the refunding was a decrease of $11,427,089.

¢ - Water and Wastewater System Revenue Bond Refunding Issue

In November 2010, the City issued $76,855,000 of Water and Wastewater System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2010A.
Proceeds from the bond refunding were used to refund $75,000,000 of the City’s outstanding tax-exempt commercial paper
issued for the water and wastewater utility system. The debt service requirements on the refunding bonds are $153,171,897,
with interest rates ranging from 4% to 5.125%. Interest payments are due May 15 and November 15 of each year from 2011 to
2040. Principal payments are due November 15 of each year from 2013 to 2040. No change in net cash flows resulted from
this transaction, and no accounting gain or loss was recognized on this refunding.

In November 2010, the City issued $100,970,000 of Water and Wastewater System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2010B.
These bonds are Build America Bonds (BABs) and are part of the Federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.
Proceeds from the bond refunding were used to refund $100,000,000 of the City’s outstanding tax-exempt commercial paper
issued for the water and wastewater utility system. The debt service requirements on the refunding bonds are $213,428,131,
with interest rates ranging from 2.494% to 6.018%. Interest payments are due May 15 and November 15 of each year from
2011 to 2040. Principal payments are due November 15 of each year from 2013 to 2040. No change in net cash flows
resulted from this transaction, and no accounting gain or ioss was recognized on this refunding.

d -- Texas Water Development Board
As of January 28, 2011, the City has converted an additional $9,130,000 of initial bonds to definitive Water and Wastewater

System Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 over six separate draw requests. With these issuances, the outstanding commitment
with the TWDB is now reduced to $11,845,000.
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General Fund City of Austin, Texas
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in RSl

Fund Balances--Budget and Actual-Budget Basis
For the year ended September 30, 2010

{In thousands)

Actual- Variance (3)
Adjustments Budget Budget Positive
Actual {1) {2) Basis ___ Original Final {Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 387,06t - 387,061 371138 371,138 15,923
Franchise fees 34,964 -- 34,964 34,082 34,082 882
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 18,692 (1y 18,691 18,999 18,999 (308}
Licenses, permits and inspections 15,716 - 15,716 18,028 18,028 (2312}
Charges for services/goods 33394 (84) 33,310 36,590 36,590 (3,280}
Interest and other 8,059 {1,191) 5,868 4,910 4,910 1,958
Total revenues 497 886 (1,276) 496,610 483,747 483,747 12,863
EXPENDITURES
General government
Municipal Court 11,768 41) 11,727 11,954 11,954 227
Public safety
Police 235,223 (1,403) 233,820 241,176 241176 7,356
Fire 119,575 (831) 118,744 120,246 120,246 1,502
Emergency Medical Services 44 132 (30) 44,102 43,777 44 107 5
Transportation, planning and sustainability
Transportation, Planning and Sustainability 363 - 363 350 350 (13)
Public health:
Health 37.464 172 37,636 38974 38,974 1,338
Public recreation and culture
Parks and Recreation 35945 (140) 35,805 36,810 36,810 1,005
Austin Public Library 24,095 9 24,104 24,543 24,543 439
Urban growth management
Neighborhood Planning and Zoning 17,588 (74) 17,514 19,604 19,604 2,090
Development Services and
Watershed Protection (63) 53 - - - -
General city responsibilities (4} 69,456 {62,630) 16,826 16,760 16,760 (66)
TFotal expenditutes 595,556 (54,915) 540641 554,194 554524 13,883
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (97.670) 53,639 (44,031) (70,447) (70.777) 26,746
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 130,233 1,182 131,415 131,167 131167 248
Transfers out {16,014) (56,052} ({72,066) (68,424) (68,424) (3,642)
Total other financing sources [uses) 114,219 (54,870) 59,349 62,743 62,743 {3,394)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures and other uses 16,549 (1,231) 15,318 (7,704) {8.034) 23,352
Fund balance at beginning of year 92,161 (7,560) 84,601 49,948 46,994 37,607
Fund balance at end of year $ 108,710 (8,791) 99,919 42,244 38,960 60,859

(1} Includes adjustments to expenditures for current year encumbrances, payments against prior year encumbrances,

accrued payroll, compensated absences, and amounts budgeted as operating transfers.

(2) Includes adjustments to revenues/transfers required for adjusted budget basis presentation.

(3) Variance is actual-budget basis to final budget.

(4) Actual expenditures include employee training costs and amounts budgeted as fund-level expenditures or operating transfers.
Actual-budget basis expenditures include employee training costs, budgeted payrell accrual, and amounts budgeted as fund-level
expenditures.
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Required Supplementary Information City of Austin, Texas
Notes to Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances--Budget and Actual-Budget Basis
September 30, 2010

1 - BUDGET BASIS REPORTING
a -- General

The City of Austin prepares its annual operating budget based on the modified accrual basis. Encumbrances constitute the
equivalent of expenditures for budgetary purposes. In order to provide a meaningful comparison of actual results to the
budget, the Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual-Budget Basis for the
General Fund presents the actual and actual-budget basis amounts in comparison with original and final budgets.

The General Fund budget includes other revenues and requirements, which are presented in the general city responsibilities
category. The expenditure budget for these general city requirements includes the following: tuition reimbursement ($340,000),
accrued payroll ($2,599,000), expenditures for workers’ compensation ($5,006,746), liability reserve ($1,740,000), and public
safety ($2,325,759).

b -- Reconciliation of GAAP Basis and Budget Basis Amounts

The primary differences between GAAP-basis and budget-basis reporting for the General Fund are the reporting of
encumbrances and the reporting of certain transfers. General Fund accrued payroll is recorded at the department level on a
GAAP basis and as an expenditure in the general city responsibilities aclivity on the budget basis. Adjustments necessary to
convert the excess revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses on a GAAP basis to a budget basis for the
General Fund are provided, as follows (in thousands):

General
Fund

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources

over expenditures and other uses - GAAP basis $ 16,549
Adjustments - increases (decreases) due to:

Unbudgeted revenues (78)

Net compensated absences accrual 30

Quistanding encumbrances established in current year (2,442)

Payments against prior year encumbrances 1,852

Other (695)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over

expenditures and other uses - budget basis 3 15,318

¢ -- Budget Amendments

The original expenditure budget of the General Fund was amended during fiscal year 2010 primarily for increased public
safety costs. The original and final budget is presented in the accompanying financial statements.
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Required Supplementary Information City of Austin, Texas
Retirement Plans and Other Post Employment Benefits Trend Information
September 30, 2010

RETIREMENT PLANS-TREND INFORMATION

Information pertaining to the latest actuarial valuation for each plan is as follows (in thousands):

Percentage
Actuarial Actuarial Annual of UAAL
Valuation Date, Value of Accrued Funded Covered to Covered
December 31st Assets Liability UAAL(1) Ratio Payroll Payroll
City Employees
2007 $1,653,500 2,112,800 459,300 78.3% 417,451 110.0%
2008 1,481,377 2,246,903 765,526 65.9% 448,740 170.6%
2009 1,872,470 2,330,937 658,467 71.8% 442 539 148.8%
Police Officers
2007 482,303 637,560 155,257 75.6% 111,809 138.9%
2008 464,230 693,202 228,972 67.0% 122,735 186.6%
2009 518,112 733,635 215,523 70.6% 122,928 175.3%
Fire Fighters (2)
2005 493 567 580,054 86,487 85.1% 65,885 131.3%
2007 584,420 586,802 2,382 99.6% 76,556 3.1%
2009 589,261 664,185 74,924 88.7% 78,980 94.9%

(1} UAAL - Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (Excess)
(2) The actuarial study for the Fire Fighters™ plan is performed biannually.

Information on where to oblain financial statements and supplementary information for each plan can be found in Foolnote 8.

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS-TREND INFORMATION

Under GASB Statement No. 45, the City is required to have an actuarial valuation of its other post employment benefits
program every other year. The Schedule of Funding Progress for other post employment benefits is as follows (in thousands):

Percentage
Fiscal Year Actuarial Actuarial Annual of UAAL
Ended Actuarial Value of Accrued Funded Covered to Covered
Sept. 30 Valuation Date Assels Liability UAAL(1) Ratio Payroll Payroll
2008 October 1, 2006 3 -- 1,035,766 1,035,766 0.0% 618,214 167.5%
2009 October 1, 2006 -- 1,035,766 1,035,766 0.0% 629,822 164.5%
2010 QOctober 1, 2008 - 1,134,864 1,134,864 0.0% 620,526 182.9%
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Proposed Form of Opinion of Bond Counsel

An opinion in substantially the following form will be delivered by
MceCall, Parkhurst & Horton L.L.P., Bond Counsel,
upon the delivery of the Bonds, assuming no material changes in facts or law.

CITY OF AUSTIN, TEXAS
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT REFUNDING BONDS,
SERIES 201 1A,
IN THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $68.285,000

AS BOND COUNSEL for the City of Austin, Texas (the "City"), the issuer of the bonds
described above (the "Bonds"), we have examined into the legality and validity of the Bonds,
which Bonds are issued in the aggregate principal amount of $68,285,000. The Bonds bear
interest from the datc and mature on the dates specified on the face of the Bonds, all in
accordance with the ordinancc of the City authorizing the issuance of the Bonds (the
"Ordinance"). Terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meaning given in the
Ordinance.

WE HAVE EXAMINED the applicable and pertinent provisions of the Constitution and
laws of the State of Texas, the charter of the City, certified copies of the proceedings of the City,
and other proofs authorizing and relating to the issuance of the Bonds, including one of the
executed Bonds (Bond No. R-1); however, we express no opinion with respect to any statement
of insurance printed on the Bonds.

BASED ON SAID EXAMINATION, IT IS OUR OPINION that the Bonds have been
authorized, issued and delivered in accordance with the Constitution and laws of the State of
Texas, and the Bonds constitute valid and legally binding obligations of the City; and that the ad
valorem taxes, upon all taxable property within the City, necessary to pay the interest on and
principal of said Bonds, have been pledged for such purpose, within the limits prescribed by the
Constitution and the charter of the City. The opinion hereinbefore expressed is qualified to the
extent that the obligations of the City, and the enforceability thereof, are subject to applicable
bankruptcy, reorganization or similar laws relating to or affecting creditors' rights generally, and
the exercise of judicial discretion in accordance with general principles of equity.

IT 1S FURTHER OUR OQPINION, except as discussed below, that the interest on the
Bonds is excludable from gross income of the owners for federal income tax purposes under the
statutes, regulations, published rulings, and court decisions existing on the date of this opinion.
We are further of the opinion that the Bonds are not "specified private activity bonds" and that,
accordingly, interest on the Bonds will not be included as an individual or corporate alternative
minimum tax preference item under section 57(a)(5) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the
"Code™). In addition, we have relied upon the report of The Arbitrage Group, Inc., independent
certified public accountants, with respect to certain arithmetical and mathematical computations
relating to the Bonds and the obligations refunded with the proceeds of the Bonds. In expressing
the aforementioned opinions, we have relied on certain representations, the accuracy of which
we have not independently verified, and assume compliance with certain covenants, regarding
the use and investment of the proceeds of the Bonds and the uwse of the property financed



therewith. We call your attention to the fact that if such representations are determined to be
inaccurate or upon a failure by the City to comply with such covenants, interest on the Bonds
may become includable in gross income retroactively to the date of issuance of the Bonds.

EXCEPT AS STATED ABOVE, we express no opinion as to any other federal, state or
local tax consequences of acquiring, carrying, owning or disposing of the Bonds.

WE CALL YOUR ATTENTION TO THE FACT that interest on tax-exempt obligations,
such as the Bonds, is included in a corporation’s alternative minimum taxable income for

purposes of determining the alternative minimum tax imposed on corporations under section 55
of the Code.

WE EXPRESS NO OPINION as to any insurance policies issued with respect to the
payments due for the principal of and interest on the Bonds, nor as to any such insurance policics
issued in the future.

OUR SOLE ENGAGEMENT in connection with the issuance of the Bonds is as Bond
Counsel for the City, and, in that capacity, we have been engaged by the City for the sole
purpose of rendering an opinion with respect to the legality and validity of the Bonds under thc
Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, and with respect to the exclusion from gross income
of the interest on the Bonds for federal income tax purposes, and for no other reason or purpose.
The foregoing opinions represent our legal judgment based upon a review of existing legal
authoritics that we deem relevant to render such opinions and are not a guarantee of a result. We
have not been requested to investigate or verify, and have not independently investigated or
verified, any records, data, or other material relating to the financial condition or capabilities of
the City, or the disclosure thereof in connection with the sale of the Bonds, and have not
assumed any responsibility with respect thereto. We express no opinion and make no comment
with respect to the marketability of the Bonds and have rclied solely on certificates executed by
officials of the City as to the current outstanding indebtedness of, and assessed valuation of
taxable property within the City. Our role in connection with the City's Official Statement
prepared for use in connection with the sale of the Bonds has been limited as described therein.

OUR OPINIONS ARE BASED ON EXISTING LAW, which is subject to change. Such
opinions are further based on our knowledge of facts as of the date hereof. We assume no duty
to update or supplement our opinions to reflect any facts or circumstances that may thercafter
come to our attention or to reflect any changes in any law that may thereafter occur or become
effective. Moreover, our opinions are not a guarantee of result and are not binding on the
Internal Revenue Service (the "Service"); rather, such opinions represent our legal judgment
based upon our review of existing law and in reliance upon the representations and covenants
referenced above that we deem relevant to such opinions. The Service has an ongoing audit
program to determine compliance with rules that relate to whether interest on state or local
obligations is includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes. No assurance can be
given whether or not the Service will commence an audit of the Bonds. If an audit is
commenced, in accordance with its current published procedures the Service is likely to treat the
City as the taxpayer. We observe that the City has covenanted not to take any action, or omit to
take any action within its control, that if taken or omitted, respectively, may rcsult in the
treatment of intercst on the Bonds as includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes.

Respectfully,



Proposed Form of Opinion of Bond Counsel

An opinion in substantially the following form will be delivered by
McCall, Parkhurst & Horton L.L.P., Bond Counsel,
upon the delivery of the Bonds, assuming no material changes in facts or law.

CITY OF AUSTIN, TEXAS
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT REFUNDING BONDS,
TAXABLE SERIES 2011B,
IN THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $3.000,000

AS BOND COUNSEL for the City of Austin, Texas (the "City"), the issuer of the bonds
described above (the "Bonds"), we have examined into the legality and validity of the Bonds,
which Bonds are issued in the aggregate principal amount of $3,000,000. The Bonds bear
interest from the date and mature on the dates specified on the face of the Bonds, all in
accordance with the ordinance of the City authorizing the issuvance of the Bonds (the
"Ordinance"). Terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meaning given in the
Ordinancc.

WE HAVE EXAMINED the applicable and pertinent provisions of the Constitution and
laws of the State of Texas, the charter of the City, certified copies of the proceedings of the City,
and other proofs authorizing and relating to the issuance of the Bonds, including one of the
executed Bonds (Bond No. R-1); however, we express no opinion with respect to any statement
of insurance printed on the Bonds.

BASED ON SAID EXAMINATION, IT IS OUR OPINION that the Bonds have been
authorized, issued and delivered in accordance with the Constitution and laws of the State of
Texas, and the Bonds constitute valid and legally binding obligations of the City; and that the ad
valorem taxes, upon all taxable property within the City, necessary to pay the interest on and
principal of said Bonds, have been pledged for such purpose, within the limits prescribed by the
Constitution and the charter of the City. The opinion hereinbefore expressed is qualified to the
extent that the obligations of the City, and the enforceability thereof, are subject to applicable
bankruptcy, reorganization or similar laws relating to or affecting creditors’ rights generally, and
the exercise of judicial discretion in accordance with general principles of equity.

IT IS OUR OPINION THAT THE BONDS ARE NOT OBLIGATIONS
DESCRIBED IN SECTION 103(a) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE OF 1986,

WE EXPRESS NO OPINION as to any insurance polictes issued with respect to the
payments due for the principal of and interest on the Bonds, nor as to any such insurance policies



issued in the future.

OUR SOLE ENGAGEMENT in connection with the issuance of the Bonds is as Bond
Counsel for the City, and, in that capacity, we have been engaged by the City for the sole
purpose of rendering an opinion with respect to the legality and validity of the Bonds under the
Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, and for no other reason or purpose. The foregoing
opinions represent our legal judgment based upon a review of existing legal authoritics that we
deem relevant to render such opinions and are not a guarantee of a result. We have not been
requested to investigate or verify, and have not independently investigated or verified, any
records, data, or other material relating to the financial condition or capabilities of the City, or
the disclosurc thercof in connection with the sale of the Bonds, and have not assumed any
responsibility with respect thereto. We express no opinion and make no comment with respect to
the marketability of the Bonds and have relied solcly on certificates executed by officials of the
City as to the current outstanding indebtedness of, and assessed valuation of taxable property
within the City. Our role in connection with the City's Official Statement preparcd for use in
connection with the sale of the Bonds has been limited as described therein.

Respectfully,



APPENDIX D

Summary of Refunded Obligations
(Refunded with Series 2011A Bond Proceeds)

Matanty Date crest Rate Par Amount  Call Dare Call 'na:
PublicImprovement Bonds, Series 2001 o/1/2012 5.000°% § 4,375,000 12/5/2011 100%

S 4,375,000

Public Improvement Refunding Bonds, Series 2001 9/t/2012 S.500%, S 4685000 12/5/2011 10
/1/2013 5.500"% 4,970,000 12/5/2011  100%
9/t/2014 4.75(F: 875,000 12/5/2011 100"
9/%/2015 473500 025000 127572011 100"
9/ /2018 5,000 LO104A0G 127572011 100%
9/1/2022%  5.125% 1355000 12/5/2001  100%

S 14,420,000

Public Improvement Bonds, Senes 2002 /172014 40080 o S 5500000 9/1/2012 1M1,

S 5500000

Publc imprmovement Refundimg Bonds, Senes 2002 3/1/214 4.2500 . S 13850 3/1/2012 100G
3/1/2015 4 375% 1450000 3/1/20412 T
3/1/2016 4. AR 1520000 37172012 100%
312017 4.500%y 1,595,000 3/1/2(12 10N,

S 5,950,000}

TubbeImprovement und Refunding Bonds, Serics 2003 /172015 4.125% S 3,845,000 9/1/2013 i,
2/1/ 216 4.125% 4,230,000 9/1/2013 161"
917217 4 751" 4410000 9/1/2013 10",

§ 12,485 000
Public Improvement and Refunding Bonds, Series 2004 07172022 5.000% 4.980,000  9/1/2014 100%
S 498010

Certifiaates of Obligation, Series 2001 9/1/202 50048 $ 5045000 12/5/2011  100%

S 5045000

Certifiates of Obligation, Sedes 2002 9/1/214 4.000% $§ 1775000 9/1/2M2  100%

_—

$ 1,775,000

Certifiates of Obligation, Sencs 2003 9/1/2015 4.100%, $ 230,000 97172013 100%
9/1/2016 4.200F% 240000 9/1/2013 100%%
9/1/2017 4300 255,000 9/1/2013 TEH
u/1/2018 EX 265,000 9/1/2013 100
9/1/2M19 4.5(K% 275,000 9/1/2013 0 WK%
v/ 1/2020 4.6k 290,000  9/1/2013 101
9/1/2021 4.700% 05000 YAE/2013 10
0/1/2022 4.800%% 320,000 9/1/2013 100%,
0/1/2023 4.800% 335,000 9/1/2013 106)%g
S 2,515,000

* Tenn Bond



Maturity Pate
Certificates of Obligation, Seaes 2004 9/1/2018
9/1/2019
9/1/2020
9/1/2021
9/1/2022
9/1/2023

HUD 108 Loan, Scrics 20024 8/1/2012
8/1/2013
8/1/204
8/1/2015
8/1/2016
8/1/2017
8/1/2018
8/1/2M9
8/1/2020
8/1/2021
8/1/2022

HULD> 108 Loan, Series 2003A 8/1/2012
8/1/2013
8/1/2014
8/1/2015
8/1/2016
8/1/2017
8/1/2018
8/1/2019
8/1/2020
8/1/2021

HUD 108 Loan, Sefics 2006A 8/1/2M2
8/1/2013
8/1/2014
8/1/2M5
8/1/2016
8/1/2017
8/1/2018
8/1/2019
8/1/2020
8/1/2021
8/1/2022
8/1/2023
8/1/2024
8/1/2025
8/1/2026

Total Refunded Obligations with Senes 2011A Proceeds

Interest Rate
5.000%
5.000%0
5.000%s
5.000%
3.000%
3.000%

4.990%
5.290%
3.430%
5.560%0
53670%
5.770%
5.850%
5.930%
6.000°

0.070" s
6.120%0

4.66(0%
4.830%
4.030
5.070%
5.190%
5.290%
5.380%
5.460%
5.530%a
5.590%

5.030%
5.050%
5.070%
5.090%
5.110%
5.300%
5.380%
5.450%
5.510%
5.570%
5.620%
5.660%
5.700%
5.740%
5.770%

Par Amount
1,420,000
1,485,000
1,555,000
1,630,000
1,710,000

1,790,000

$ 9,590,000

S 190,000
200,000
215,000
225,000
235,000
250,000
265,000
275,000
200,000
300,000
325,000

5 2,780,000

S 70,000
70,000
75,000
80,000
80,000
5,000
85,000
85,000

90,000
65,000

—_—

$ 785,000

§ 30,000
30,000
15,000
35,000
35,000
40,000
40,000
45,000
45,000
45,000
50,060
50,000
56,000
60,000
60,000

$ 655,000

$ 70,855,000

Call Date
9/1/2014
9/1/2014
9/1/2014
9/1/2014
9/1/2014
$/1/2014

8/1/72012
8/1/2012
B/1/2012
8/1/2012
87172012
8/1/2012
8/1/2012
8/1/20M2
8/1/2012
8/1/2012
8/1/2012

N/A
N/A
8/1/2013
8/1/2013
8/1/2013
8/1/2013
8/1/2013
8/1/2013
8/1/2013
8/1/2013

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
8/1/2016
8/1/2016
8/1/2016
B/1/2016
8/1/2016
8/1/2016
8/1/2016
8/1/2016
8/1/2016
8/1/2016

Call Prie

100%
100%%
0%
100%
100%
100%

100%%
100%
100%%
100%
100%
100%
100%%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%%0
100%%
100%
100%



APPENDIX D

Summary of Refunded Obligations
(Refunded with Scrics 2011B Bond Proceeds)

Maturity Date  Interest Rate

HUD 108 Loan, Serics 2010A 8/1/2012

8/1/2013
8/1/2014
8/1/2015
8/1/2016

Par Amount

Call Date Call Poce

0.860%
1.340%
1.800%

2.200%
2.660%

Total Refunded Obligations with Series 20118 Proweds

S 585,000
625,000
670,000
715,000

270,000

S 2,865,000

S 2,865,000

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A












